

 


 


CITY OF WILDOMAR CITY COUNCIL  
AND WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT AGENDA 


 


JANUARY 12, 2022 
6:00 P.M. – REGULAR SESSION 


 
Pursuant to Assembly Bill 361, this meeting of the Wildomar City Council will be 


held through a hybrid format of in-person attendance at the Wildomar City 
Council Chambers located at 


 


23873 Clinton Keith Road Ste 106 
Wildomar, CA 92595 


 
and/or virtual attendance via videoconferencing: 


 
Join Zoom Meeting:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84801699357 


OR 


Dial in: 1 (669) 900 6833 | Webinar ID: 848 0169 9357  


 
Given health and safety concerns, in person seating availability may be limited, 
and the meeting format may be changed to full remote via videoconferencing. 
Please refer to the City’s website for information regarding the format of the 


meeting, updates if the meeting is changed to a full remote via videoconferencing 
format, and details on how to participate: www.cityofwildomar.org   


 


 
 


Ben J. Benoit, Mayor/Chair, District 1 
Joseph Morabito, Mayor Pro Tem/Vice Chair, District 3 


Bridgette Moore, Council Member/Trustee, District 4 
Dustin Nigg, Council Member/Trustee, District 2 


Marsha Swanson, Council Member/Trustee, District 5 
 


Gary Nordquist              Thomas D. Jex 
City Manager /General Manager         City Attorney/District Counsel 



https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84801699357

http://www.cityofwildomar.org/





 


 


The City of Wildomar encourages your 
participation in the meeting; however, to 
minimize the spread of the COVID-19 
virus, this meeting is being conducted in 
person and via video and 
teleconferencing with the following 
options available for the public to 
participate: 
 
1. You may view the Regular Session 
meeting live on the City of Wildomar’s 
website at http://www.cityofwildomar.org or 
on cable TV through Frontier Channel 36 or 
AT&T channel 99. To view from the website, 
select the live stream link on the top of the 
front page. 
 
2. You may participate via the ZOOM 
Webinar Telephone and Videoconferencing.  
 
3. You may participate in person; however, 
masks are recommended for all individuals, 
and seating may be limited as the City is still 
participating in the 6-foot social distancing 
seating procedure. 
 
Instructions for Electronic Participation  


 
Please Note: During the meeting all 
participants videos will be turned off 
during the entire meeting and you will be 
placed on Mute by the host. You will not 
be able to mute or unmute your lines 
manually. The host will unmute your line 
when you are called to speak.  
 
1. Log in or call into ZOOM via 
desktop/laptop, smartphone or telephone. 
You must download the ZOOM app to access 
the link from an Apple smartphone or IPAD. 
 
2. During Public Comment not on the agenda 
and after each Agenda Item, the Mayor will 
announce Public Comment. If you would like 
to speak, please raise your hand virtually to 
be placed in the queue.  
 
3. When your name or the last 3 digits of your 
phone number are called, the host will 
unmute you. Public Comments will be limited 


to 3 minutes or such other time as the Council 
may provide.    
Directions to virtually raise hand on a 
DESKTOP/LAPTOP: 
• At the bottom of the list, please click on the 
grey “Raise Hand” button. 
 
Directions to virtually raise hand on a 
SMARTPHONE: 
• Look for the “Raise Hand” button on the 
screen and click the button. 
 
Directions to virtually raise hand on a 
TELEPHONE line only: 
• Dial *9 on your keypad to signal that you 
would like to comment. When the Host 
unmutes you, Dial *6 to unmute. 
 


Instructions for In Person Participation  
 
During Public Comment not on the agenda 
and after each Agenda Item, the Chair will 
announce Public Comment. If you would like 
to speak on that item, please fill out a speaker 
slip and submit it in the inbox at the front of 
the room.  
 
When the City Clerk announces your name, 
please come up to the podium. Public 
Comments are limited to 3 minutes or such 
other time as the Council may provide. 
 
In compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to participate in this meeting, you 
should contact the City Clerk’s Office at 951-
677-7751 x210. 
 
The City of Wildomar thanks you in advance 
for taking all precautions to prevent 
spreading the COVID 19 virus.  
  
NOTICE: City Council meetings may be 
live-streamed, photographed and/or 
videotaped. Participation at the meeting 
constitutes consent by members of the 
public to the City’s and any third party’s 
use in any media, without compensation 
or further notice, of audio, video, and/or 
pictures of meeting attendees. 
 


 
 
 
 



http://www.cityofwildomar.org/





  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
January 12, 2022 


 


  
 


 


SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS 


 
Dustin Nigg, 2020 and 2021 Mayor, passes the gavel to Ben J. Benoit, 2022 Mayor. 
 
 


CALL TO ORDER – REGULAR SESSION - 6:00 P.M. 
 
 


ROLL CALL 
 
 


FLAG SALUTE 
 


 


3.0 GENERAL BUSINESS  


 
3.1 Consideration of a Resolution authorizing the teleconferencing option 


for City Council, Commission and Committee meetings pursuant to 
Assembly Bill No. 361 


 RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a 
Resolution entitled: 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022 - ____ 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA AUTHORIZING THE NEED FOR TELECONFERENCING 


OPTION FOR CITY COUNCIL, COMMISSION AND COMMITTEE 
MEETINGS PURSUANT TO ASSEMBLY BILL 361 AND MAKING 


FINDINGS AND DETERMINATIONS REGARDING THE SAME 
 
 


2.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
2.1 Third Public Hearing to Receive Input from the Community Regarding 


the Redrawing of Election District Boundaries 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council review 
the demographer's preliminary analysis; review the public mapping tool and 
invite the community to submit maps; review maps prepared utilizing the 
discussed criteria; and conduct a public hearing to receive public input on 
communities of interest and potential district boundaries. 
 


 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
January 12, 2022 


 


  
 


 


PRESENTATIONS 
1. Acknowledgement to 2020 and 2021 Mayor, Dustin Nigg 
2. Manufactured Housing Education Trust (MHET) Charity Donation to Wildomar 
Community and Parks Foundation and Friends of the Wildomar Library 
3. Other City Recognitions/ Presentations 
 
 


DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
1. Police Department Update 
2. Fire Department Update 
3. Wildomar Library Update 
4. Bundy Canyon Road Update 
5. Code Enforcement Department Update 
6. Other Department Reports 
 
 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
This is the time when the Council receives general public comments regarding any 
items or matters within the jurisdiction that do not appear on the agenda.   
 
 


COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS 


1. Community events 
2. Regional events 
3. Chamber of Commerce 
4. Riverside Transit Agency (RTA) 
5. Riverside Conservation Authority (RCA) 
6. Riverside County Transportation Commission (RCTC) 
7. League of California Cities 
8. Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) 
9. Riverside County Habitat Conservation Agency (RCHCA) 
10. Western Riverside Council of Governments (WRCOG) 
11. South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) 
12. Southwest Community Financing Authority (Animal Shelter) 
13. Western Community Energy (WCE) 
14. Ad Hoc & Subcommittees 
 
 


APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED 


The City Council to approve the agenda as it is herein presented, or, if it is the 
desire of the City Council, the agenda can be reordered, added to, or have items 
tabled at this time. 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
January 12, 2022 


 


  
 


 


1.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 


All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be 
enacted by one roll call vote.  There will be no separate discussion of these items 
unless members of the Council, the Public, or Staff request to have specific items 
removed from the Consent Calendar for separate discussion and/or action. 
 
1.1 Reading of Ordinances 


RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the reading by title only of all ordinances on this agenda. 
 


1.2 Minutes- November 10, 2021 Regular Meeting 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the minutes as presented. 
 


1.3 Warrant and Payroll Registers 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the following: 
 
1. Warrant Register dated 12-02-2021 in the amount of $472,876.67. 
2. Warrant Register dated 12-09-2021 in the amount of $462,041.94. 
3. Warrant Register dated 12-16-2021 in the amount of $94,857.71. 
4. Warrant Register dated 12-22-2021 in the amount of $1,642,202.86. 
5. Wire Transfer Register dated 12-31-2021 in the amount of $52,381.59. 
6. Payroll Register dated 01-01-2022 in the amount of $177,123.94. 
 


1.4 Treasurer’s Report 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the Treasurer’s Report for November 2021. 


 
1.5 2nd Reading of Ordinance No. 209 – Monte Vista Ranch Townhome 


Project 
RECOMMENDATION: The Planning Commission recommends that 
the City Council adopt the following Ordinances entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 209 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING CHANGE OF ZONE NO. 21-
0045 TO CHANGE THE EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION FROM C-O 


(COMMERCIAL OFFICE) TO R-3 (GENERAL RESIDENTIAL) FOR A 
7.93-ACRE SITE LOCATED ON NORTHEAST CORNER OF MONTE 


VISTA DRIVE AND SUMMER SAGE WAY (APN: 367-502-002, 367-502-
003, 367-502-004) 


 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 
January 12, 2022 


 


  
 


 


1.6 Horizons by Lennar Homes, Tentative Tract Map 36672 Rough Grading 
Agreement 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the City Council authorize 
the City Manager to execute the Rough Grading Agreement with Lennar 
Homes of California, Inc. 
 


1.7 Professional Services Agreement for Kosmont Companies to conduct 
a Hotel Market Analysis in Wildomar 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council approve 
the attached Agreement for Services with the Kosmont Companies to 
prepare a Hotel Market Analysis. 
 


1.8 City of Wildomar Recovered Organic Waste Product Procurement 
Policy 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the City Council adopt the 
Recovered Organic Waste Product Procurement Policy in accordance with 
California Senate Bill (SB) 1383 
 


1.9 Summerhill 2 KB Homes, Tentative Tract Map 37476 Subdivision 
Improvement Agreement and Offsite Public Improvement Agreement 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the City Council authorize 
the City Manager to execute the Subdivision Improvement Agreement and 
the Offsite Public Improvement Agreement with KB Home Coastal Inc. 
 


1.10 Villa Sienna Apartment Project (PP 13-0089): Onsite Public 
Improvement Agreement and Offsite Public Improvement Agreement 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the City Council authorize 
the City Manager to execute the Onsite Public Improvement Agreement and 
Offsite Public Improvement Agreement with Villa Sienna Property, LLC. 
 


2.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 


 
2.2 Change of Zone No. 2021-01 (Zoning Consistency Program): City 


Council review of Change of Zone No. 2021-01 to change the existing 
zoning designations for 259 parcels in accordance with Government 
Code Section 65860 
RECOMMENDATION: The Planning Commission recommends the 
City Council take the following actions: 
 
1. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2022 - ____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 







City of Wildomar 
City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 


January 12, 2022 


2.3 


2.4 


CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING AN ADDENDUM TO THE 2003 GENERAL 
PLAN PROJECT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT (SCH# 


2002051143) IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 15164 OF THE 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) GUIDELINES 
FOR THE CITY’S ZONING CONSISTENCY PROGRAM (CHANGE OF 


ZONE NO. 2021-01) 


2. Introduce for first reading an Ordinance entitled:


ORDINANCE NO ____ 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA APPROVING CHANGE OF ZONE NO. 2021-
01 (ZONING CONSISTENCY PROGRAM) TO CHANGE THE EXISTING 


ZONING DESIGNATION FOR 259 PROPERTIES TO MATCH THEIR 
EXISTING GENERAL PLAN LAND USE DESIGNATIONS IN 


ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT CODE 65860 


Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-04: City Council 
consideration of a city-initiated Zoning Ordinance Amendment to 
modify Sections 17.36, 17.44 & 17.68 of the Wildomar Municipal Code 
RECOMMENDATION: The Planning Commission recommends the 
City Council introduce and approve the first reading of an Ordinance 
entitled: 


ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A GENERAL RULE EXEMPTION 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 15061(B)(3) OF THE CALIFORNIA 


ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) GUIDELINES, AND 
APPROVAL OF ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT NO. 2021-04 TO 


MODIFY SECTION 17.36 (MULTIPLE FAMILY DWELLING ZONE), 17.44 
(GENERAL RESIDENTIAL ZONE) AND 17.68 (RESIDENTIAL 


INCENTIVE ZONE) OF THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE RELATED 
TO MULTI-FAMILY DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 


Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-05: City Council 
consideration an amendment to modify Chapter 17.276 
(Water Efficient Landscapes) of the Wildomar Municipal 
Code RECOMMENDATION: The Planning Commission 
recommends the City Council introduce and approve the first reading 
of an Ordinance entitled: 







City of Wildomar 
City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 


January 12, 2022 


ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTION OF AN EXEMPTION IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH SECTIONS 15061(B)(3) AND 15308 OF THE 
CEQA GUIDELINES AND APPROVAL OF ZONING ORDINANCE 


AMENDMENT NO. 2021-05 TO MODIFY CHAPTER 17.276 (WATER 
EFFICIENT LANDSCAPES) OF THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE 


ESTABLISHING A NEW SUBSECTION TO ADDRESS SB 1383 STATE 
REQUIREMENTS 


3.0 GENERAL BUSINESS 


3.2 COVID-19 Update 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council receive 
and file the COVID-19 update and provide direction as desired. 


3.3 Legislative Platform 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council discuss 
and provide direction on Legislative Matters and direct staff to bring back a 
Legislative Platform at a future meeting. 


CITY MANAGER REPORT 


FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 


Title- Councilmember-Anticipated Date 
1. Salary and Benefits Survey- Benoit – Mar 2022
2. Litter/illegal Dumping Fees and related signage- Moore – Jan 2022 Feb 2022
3. Update from MSJC College regarding 2014 Bond Funding – Morabito - TBD
4. Flag Policy – Morabito – Mar 2022
5. Letter from City to State Representatives re: changing law of 602 letters- Morabito
6. Zip Code Unity – Benoit - TBD


ADJOURN THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 







City of Wildomar 
City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 


January 12, 2022 


In accordance with Government Code Section 54952.3, I, Janet 
Morales, City of Wildomar City Clerk, do hereby declare that the 
Board of Trustees will receive no compensation or stipend for the 
convening of the following regular meeting of the Wildomar 
Cemetery District. 


Ben J. Benoit, Chair 
Joseph Morabito, Vice Chair 


Bridgette Moore, Trustee 
Dustin Nigg, Trustee 


Marsha Swanson, Trustee


Gary Nordquist   Thomas D. Jex 
General Manager  District Counsel 







City of Wildomar 
City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 


January 12, 2022 


CALL TO ORDER THE WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 


ROLL CALL 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 


BOARD COMMUNICATIONS 


APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED 
The Board of Trustees to approve the agenda as it is herein presented, or if it is 
the desire of the Board, the agenda can be reordered at this time. 


4.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 


All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be 
enacted by one roll call vote.  There will be no separate discussion of these items 
unless members of the Board, the Public, or Staff request that specific items are 
removed from the Consent Calendar for separate discussion and/or action. 


4.1 Minutes – December 15, 2021 Adjourned Regular Meeting 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees 


approve the Minutes as presented. 


4.2 
Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees 


Warrant Register 
RECOMMENDATION: 
approve the following: 


1. Warrant Register dated 12-09-2021 in the amount of $1,315.61.
2. Warrant Register dated 12-16-2021 in the amount of $660.91.
3. Warrant Register dated 12-22-2021 in the amount of $1,109.44.


4.3 Treasurer’s Report 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees 
approve the Treasurer’s Report for November 2021. 







City of Wildomar 
City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 


January 12, 2022 


5.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
There are no items scheduled. 


6.0 GENERAL BUSINESS 
There are no items scheduled. 


GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 


FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 


ADJOURN THE WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT MEETING 


REPORTS:  All agenda items and reports are available for review at City Hall, 
23873 Clinton Keith Road and on the City’s website at the following address: 
http://www.cityofwildomar.org/government/agendas___minutes.  Any writings or 
documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
agenda (other than writings legally exempt from public disclosure) will be made 
available by appointment for public inspection at City Hall during regular business 
hours.   


If requested, the agenda and backup materials will be made available in 
appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by Section 
202 of the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132), and 
the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. 


Any person that requires a disability-related modification or accommodation, 
including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate in the public meeting, 
may request such modification, accommodation, aid or service by contacting the 
City Clerk either in person or by phone at 951-677-7751, no later than 10:00 a.m. 
on the day preceding the scheduled meeting. 



http://www.cityofwildomar.org/government/agendas___minutes





City of Wildomar 
City Council/ Cemetery District Agenda 


January 12, 2022 


I, Janet Morales, Wildomar City Clerk, do certify that at least 72 hours prior to the 
meeting, a true and correct copy of this agenda was posted at Wildomar City Hall, 
23873 Clinton Keith Road; U.S. Post Office, 21392 Palomar Street; Wildomar 
Library, 34303 Mission Trail Blvd; and on the City’s website at 
www.cityofwildomar.org. 


______________________________ 


Janet Morales, CMC 
City Clerk 
Dated: January 6, 2022 



http://www.cityofwildomar.org/





CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #3.1 


GENERAL BUSINESS 
Meeting Date: January 12, 2022 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO: Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Dan York, Assistant City Manager 


Thomas D. Jex, City Attorney 
 
SUBJECT: Consideration of a Resolution authorizing the teleconferencing option for 


City Council, Commission and Committee meetings pursuant to Assembly 
Bill No. 361 


 
STAFF REPORT 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2022 - ____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA AUTHORIZING THE NEED FOR TELECONFERENCING OPTION FOR 
CITY COUNCIL, COMMISSION AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS PURSUANT TO 


ASSEMBLY BILL 361 AND MAKING FINDINGS AND DETERMINATIONS 
REGARDING THE SAME 


 
DISCUSSION: 
Governor Newsom signed Assembly Bill 361 (AB 361) on September 16, 2021, which 
amends the Ralph M. Brown Act to provide additional provisions that allow meetings of 
legislative bodies to be conducted via teleconference.  AB 361 went into effect 
immediately upon the Governor’s signature.  AB 361 comes as the provisions of 
Executive Order No. N-29-20 (as revised by Executive Order No. N-08-21), which 
modifies the requirements for the conduct of meetings via teleconference during the 
COVID-19 pandemic, expired on September 30, 2021.  


AB 361 will allow a local agency legislative body to hold a meeting utilizing 
teleconferencing without complying with the standard teleconferencing requirements if 
the Governor has proclaimed a State of Emergency and any of the following 
circumstances: 


• State or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social 
distancing. 


• The meeting is being held for the purposes of determining, by majority vote, 
whether as a result of the emergency, meeting in person would present imminent 
risks to the health or safety of attendees. 







• The legislative body has determined that as a result of the emergency, meeting in 
person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees. 


The Governor’s March 4, 2020 Proclamation of Emergency related to the COVID-19 
pandemic is still in effect. 


If a meeting is held via teleconference under AB 361, the following requirements apply: 


• Notice of the meeting must still be given in compliance with the Brown Act, and the 
notice must include the means by which the public may access the meeting and 
provide public comment. 


• The public must be provided access to the meeting via a call-in option or internet-
based service option and allowed to “address the legislative body directly.” The 
agency does not have to provide an in-person option for the public to attend the 
meeting. 


• The meeting must be conducted “in a manner that protects the statutory and 
constitutional rights of the parties and the public appearing before the legislative 
body.” 


• If there is a disruption to the meeting broadcast or in the ability to take call-in or 
internet-based public comment, no further action can be taken on agenda items 
until the issue is resolved. 


• The body cannot require comments to be submitted before the start of the meeting. 
The public must be allowed to make “real time” public comment. 


• Reasonable time for public comment must be provided. If the agency provides a 
timed public comment period, the public comment period must be left open until 
the time expires. 


Findings must be made every 30 days to continue to conduct teleconference meetings 
under AB 361. The body must find it has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of 
emergency and either 1) the emergency continues to impact the ability to meet safely in 
person, or 2) State or local officials continue to impose or recommend social distancing. 


The City has already implemented the above stated requirements for conducting public 
meetings and is in full compliance with AB 361, thus there will be no change of the 
currently established procedures.   


In addition to the ability to attend public meetings in-person, teleconference accessibility 
via an internet-based service option (via the Zoom Webinars platform) is listed on the 
published agenda for each meeting.  The City monitors attendance via teleconference 
throughout each public meeting and provides access for public comment opportunities in 
real time. 


 


 
      
 







ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution  







 


RESOLUTION NO. 2022 - ______ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA AUTHORIZING THE NEED FOR 
TELECONFERENCING OPTION FOR CITY COUNCIL, 
COMMISSION AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS PURSUANT 
TO ASSEMBLY BILL 361 AND MAKING FINDINGS AND 
DETERMINATIONS REGARDING THE SAME 


 
WHEREAS, the City of Wildomar is committed to preserving and nurturing public access 
and participation in meetings of the City Council; and  
 
WHEREAS, all meetings of the City Council and the City’s boards, commissions and 
committees (“Legislative Bodies”) are open and public, as required by the Ralph M. Brown 
Act (Cal. Gov. Code 54950 – 54963), so that any member of the public may attend, 
participate, and watch the City’s Legislative Bodies conduct their business; and 
 
WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, the Governor of the State of California declared a state of 
emergency in order to address the COVID-19 pandemic, which currently remains in 
effect; and 
 
WHEREAS, on March 10, 2020, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Riverside 
proclaimed the existence of a local emergency for all of Riverside County in response to 
the outbreak of the COVID-19 in California and in Riverside County; and, 
 
WHEREAS, on March 11, 2020 the World Health Organization (WHO) publicly 
characterized COVID-19 as a pandemic; and 
 
WHEREAS, on March 13, 2020, the President of the United States declared a National 
Emergency due to the continued spread and the effects of COVID-19; and 
 
WHEREAS, On March 17, 2020, the City Council of the City of Wildomar adopted a 
Resolution declaring a local state of emergency (“Local Emergency”) which now exists in 
the City of Wildomar due to COVID-19; 
 
WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, to allow local government bodies to safely conduct public 
meetings during the COVID-19 pandemic as well as to ensure public access to 
governmental meetings, the Governor of the State of California issued Executive Orders 
N-25-20 and N-29-20, which streamlined notice requirements for teleconference 
meetings under the Ralph M. Brown Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, on September 16, 2021, the Governor of California signed into law Assembly 
Bill 361 amending Government Code § 54953 and providing alternative teleconferencing 
requirements to conduct public meetings during a proclaimed state of emergency; and 







 


 
WHEREAS, COVID-19 continues to threaten the health and lives of Wildomar residents 
and state and local health officials continue to recommend or require precautions be taken 
including, but not limited to, masking, limiting prolonged interior exposure to other 
individuals, limiting the size of gatherings indoors, and, for those with compromised health 
conditions or those without vaccines, limiting attendance at functions indoors; and 
 
WHEREAS, state and local officials continue to recommend social distancing to protect 
the community’s health against the spread of COVID-19; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Omicron variant and other variants continue to emerge and are highly 
transmissible in indoor settings and COVID-19 cases and hospitalization rates in 
Riverside County are rapidly rising;   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Wildomar 
does hereby resolve, declare, determine, and order as follows: 
 
SECTION 1. The above recitals are correct and are material to this Resolution and are 
incorporated into this Resolution as findings of the City Council. 
 
SECTION 2. The City continues to follow safety measures in response to COVID-19 as 
ordered or recommended by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, California 
Department of Public Health, and/or County of Riverside, as applicable.  Based upon that 
guidance, in person attendance indoors at public meetings continues to present a health 
risk for certain segments of the City’s population, necessitating teleconferencing to allow 
for meaningful participation options for all City constituents and its elected and appointed 
officials. 
 
SECTION 3.  State and local officials continue to recommend social distancing to protect 
the community’s health against the spread of COVID-19. 
 
SECTION 4.  Pursuant to the findings listed in this Resolution, the City Council and the 
City’s Legislative Bodies are authorized to utilize teleconferencing accessibility to conduct 
public meetings pursuant to AB 361.    
 
SECTION 5.  The City’s Legislative Bodies are hereby authorized to conduct meetings in 
a format whereby members of the Legislative Body and members of the public may elect 
to be present in person, utilizing appropriate safety procedures, or participate by 
teleconferencing technology.  Such meetings of the Legislative Bodies that occur using 
teleconferencing technology will provide an opportunity for any and all members of the 
public who wish to address Legislative Bodies to do so, and will otherwise occur in a 
manner that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of members of the public 
attending the meeting via teleconferencing.  The City’s Legislative Bodies have safety 







 


measures and technology in place to allow in-person and teleconferenced appearances 
at meetings, which reduces the risks to health and safety because the number of 
attendees is reduced.   
 
SECTION 6.  The City staff will agendize for Council consideration no less than every 30 
days consideration of the need to continue with teleconferenced meetings as allowed by 
AB 361. 
 
SECTION 7.  Severability:  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
Resolution is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any 
court of competed jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this Resolution. The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed 
this Resolution and each and every section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase not 
declare invalid or unconstitutional without regard to whether any portion of this Resolution 
would be subsequently declared invalid or unconstitutional.  
 
SECTION 8. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this resolution and hereafter 
the same shall be in full force and effect. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 12th day of January, 2022. 
 
 
 
 
       _______________________________ 


Ben J. Benoit 
Mayor 


 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________   ________________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales, CMC 
City Attorney      City Clerk 
 







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #2.1 


PUBLIC HEARING 
Meeting Date: January 12, 2022 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO: Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Janet Morales, City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Third Public Hearing to Receive Input from the Community Regarding the 


Redrawing of Election District Boundaries 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council review the demographer's preliminary analysis; 
review the public mapping tool and invite the community to submit maps; review maps 
prepared utilizing the discussed criteria; and conduct a public hearing to receive public 
input on communities of interest and potential district boundaries. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Every ten years, cities with by-district election systems must use new census data to 
review and, if needed, redraw district lines to reflect how local populations have 
changed. This process, called redistricting, ensures all districts have nearly equal 
population. The redistricting process for the City of Wildomar must be completed by 
April 17, 2022. 
 
At the January 27, 2016 City Council Meeting, the City Council took action to establish a 
single member district election system for the City Council. The City adopted its current 
district boundaries on March 9, 2016, based on 2010 census data as required by law.  
 
The districts must now be redrawn using the 2020 census data and in compliance with 
the FAIR MAPS Act, which was adopted by the California legislature as AB 849 and 
took effect January 1, 2020. 
 
Under the Act, the council shall draw and adopt boundaries using the following criteria 
in the listed order of priority (Elections Code 21601(c) for general law cities / 21621(c) 
for charter cities): 
 
1. Comply with the federal requirements of equal population and the Voting Rights Act 
 
2. Geographically contiguous 
 
3. Undivided neighborhoods and “communities of interest” (socio-economic geographic 
areas that should be kept together) 







 
4. Easily identifiable boundaries 
 
5. Compact (do not bypass one group of people to get to a more distant group of 
people) 
 
6. Shall not favor or discriminate against a political party 
 
Once the prioritized criteria are met, other traditional districting principles can be 
considered, such as: 
 
1. Minimize the number of voters delayed from voting in 2022 to 2024 
 
2. Respect voters’ choices / continuity in office 
 
3. Future population growth 
 
The purpose of this public hearing is to inform the public about the districting process 
and to hear from the community on what factors should be taken into consideration 
while creating district boundaries. The public is requested to provide input regarding 
communities of interest and other local factors that should be considered while drafting 
district maps. A community of interest under the relevant Elections Code for cities 
(Section 21601(c) / 21621(c)] is “a population that shares common social or economic 
interests that should be included within a single district for purposes of its effective and 
fair representation.”  
 
Possible features defining community of interest might include, but are not limited to: 
 
A. School attendance areas; 
 
B. Natural dividing lines such as major roads, hills, or highways; 
 
C. Areas around parks and other neighborhood landmarks; 
 
D. Common issues, neighborhood activities, or legislative/election concerns; and 
 
E. Shared demographic characteristics, such as: 
  
 (1) Similar levels of income, education, or linguistic insolation; 
 (2) Languages spoken at home; and 
 (3) Single-family and multi-family housing unit areas. 
 
By law, the City must hold at least four public hearings that enable community members 
to provide input on the drawing of district maps. At least one of these hearings is 
required to be held prior to any maps drawn.  
 







The City held two public hearings prior to maps being drawn for the purpose of receiving 
public input on the communities of interest. Video recording of these meetings can be 
found on the Agenda & Minutes page on the City’s website (www.cityofwildomar.org)  
 
DISCUSSION: 
The Third Public Hearing is being held to: 
 
1) Review preliminary analyses. 
 
2) Review public mapping tools and encourage the public to submit maps.  
 
3) Review maps prepared utilizing the discussed criteria. 
 
4) Conduct a public hearing to receive input on the communities of interest and potential 
district boundaries. 
 
Since the last hearing, four draft maps have been developed and posted to the City’s 
website for consideration. Three of those maps were developed by the demographer. 
One of those maps was submitted from the public using the online mapping tool. 
 
The City has received 10 comments since the last Public Hearing. Comments received 
prior to January 5, 2022 at 5pm are included in the attachments to the staff report.  
 
Residents are encouraged to visit www.cityofwildomar.org to follow updates on the 
redistricting process, review data and materials, and participate in the process by 
offering comments and submitting maps for consideration. Residents are also 
encouraged to participate in this public hearing.   
 
Next Steps: 
Confirm the fourth Public Hearing date which is tentatively scheduled for February 9, 
2022. 
 
Provide direction on what map the Council prefers a or provide input for the 
demographer to create a new map to review at the next public hearing.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Janet Morales      Gary Nordquist 
City Clerk       City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
1. Presentation: National Demographics Corporation - City of Wildomar Redistricting 
2021 



http://www.cityofwildomar.org/

http://www.cityofwildomar.org/





2. Public Input received though January 5, 2022. 







City of  Wildomar


Redistricting 2021


1/12/2022 Todd Tatum


National Demographics Corporation







2


Redistricting Process


2*SB 594 would explicitly confirm maps may be adopted by resolution.


Step Description


Two Initial Hearings
September 8 & November 10


Held prior to release of  draft maps. 


Education and to solicit input on the communities in the Districts.


Census Data Release


Mid/Late August


Census Bureau releases official 2020 Census population data.


California Data Release


Early October 2021


California Statewide Database releases California’s official ‘prisoner-


adjusted’ 2020 redistricting data.


Two Draft Map Hearings


January 12 & ????


Two Public Hearings to discuss and revise the draft maps and to 


discuss the election sequence.


Map Adoption


By April 17, 2022


Final map must be posted at least 7 days prior to adoption.


Map adopted via ordinance.*







3


Equal Population


Federal Voting Rights Act


No Racial Gerrymandering


Minimize voters shifted to 


different election years


Respect voters’ choices / 


continuity in office


Future population growth


Preserving the core of  existing 


districts


1. Federal Laws
2. California Criteria for 


Cities (rank ordered)


1.Geographically contiguous


2.Undivided neighborhoods and 


“communities of  interest” 
(Socio-economic geographic areas that 


should be kept together)


3.Easily identifiable boundaries


4.Compact
(Do not bypass one group of  people to 


get to a more distant group of  people)


Prohibited:


“Shall not favor or discriminate against 


a political party.”


3. Other Traditional 


Redistricting Principles


3


Redistricting Rules and Goals







4


Initial Draft Maps
 Three initial draft maps have been developed by NDC and one draft map 


submitted from the public.


 All of  the maps created by NDC have a deviation under the required 10%. 
The public map is also below 10%.


 NDC Map 101 has a deviation of  5.22%


 NDC Map 102 has a deviation of  5.66%


 NDC Map 103 has a deviation of  8.74%


 The Public Map 101 has a deviation of   0.88%


 Existing Districts deviation is 35.89%







5Date







6


NDC Map 101 Demographics


Date


NDC Map 101


District 1 2 3 4 5 Total


Total Pop 7,581 7,368 7,408 7,446 7,195 36,998


Deviation from ideal 181 -32 8 46 -205 386


% Deviation 2.45% -0.43% 0.11% 0.62% -2.77% 5.22%


Total Pop


% Hisp 56.4% 34% 35% 46% 31% 41%


% NH White 35% 50% 46% 42% 46% 44%


% NH Black 3% 4% 5% 2% 8% 4%


% Asian-American 3% 7% 9% 5% 10% 7%


Citizen Voting Age 


Pop


Total 4,490 4,562 4,959 4,873 4,752 23,637


% Hisp 42% 28% 31% 35% 24% 32%


% NH White 50% 63% 54% 58% 51% 55%


% NH Black 4% 2% 7% 1% 10% 5%


% Asian/Pac.Isl. 3% 5% 7% 4% 12% 6%


Voter Registration 


(Nov 2020)


Total 3,637 4,527 4,464 4,118 4,213 20,959


% Latino est. 41% 25% 28% 33% 25% 30%


% Spanish-Surnamed 37% 24% 26% 31% 23% 28%


% Asian-Surnamed 1% 2% 2% 1% 2% 2%


% Filipino-Surnamed 1% 2% 2% 1% 2% 2%


% NH White est. 55% 70% 61% 64% 61% 63%


% NH Black 3% 2% 8% 1% 11% 5%


Voter Turnout (Nov 


2020)


Total 2,747 3,630 3,678 3,273 3,450 16,778


% Latino est. 38% 23% 27% 30% 24% 28%


% Spanish-Surnamed 35% 22% 25% 28% 22% 26%


% Asian-Surnamed 1% 2% 2% 1% 2% 2%


% Filipino-Surnamed 1% 2% 2% 1% 2% 2%


% NH White est. 57% 72% 63% 67% 62% 64%


% NH Black 3% 2% 8% 1% 11% 5%







S
alid


a
D


elS
o


l


E
liz


ab
et


h
L


n


O
ran


ge
S
t


C
h


er
ry


S
t


P
ash


alP
l


Catt Rd


Wildomar Trail


Canyon Dr


Walnut St


F
red


erick
S
t


Olive St


Lemon St


La Estrella St


15


15


�2021 CALIPER







8


NDC Map 102 Demographics


Date


NDC Map 102


District 1 2 3 4 5 Total


Total Pop 7,328 7,588 7,239 7,212 7,631 36,998


Deviation from ideal -72 188 -161 -188 231 419


% Deviation -0.97% 2.54% -2.18% -2.54% 3.12% 5.66%


Total Pop


% Hisp 54.7% 42% 34% 43% 31% 41%


% NH White 36% 45% 44% 45% 48% 44%


% NH Black 2% 3% 6% 3% 7% 4%


% Asian-American 4% 5% 10% 5% 9% 7%


Citizen Voting Age 


Pop


Total 4,467 4,606 4,841 4,442 5,280 23,637


% Hisp 39% 33% 30% 35% 24% 32%


% NH White 51% 57% 52% 60% 55% 55%


% NH Black 3% 3% 9% 2% 8% 5%


% Asian/Pac.Isl. 4% 5% 8% 2% 11% 6%


Voter Registration 


(Nov 2020)


Total 3,604 4,447 4,155 4,092 4,661 20,959


% Latino est. 38% 31% 28% 32% 24% 30%


% Spanish-Surnamed 35% 28% 26% 29% 22% 28%


% Asian-Surnamed 1% 2% 2% 1% 2% 2%


% Filipino-Surnamed 1% 1% 2% 1% 2% 2%


% NH White est. 59% 64% 60% 66% 64% 63%


% NH Black 3% 2% 9% 1% 9% 5%


Voter Turnout (Nov 


2020)


Total 2,786 3,451 3,442 3,311 3,788 16,778


% Latino est. 35% 29% 27% 29% 23% 28%


% Spanish-Surnamed 32% 27% 25% 27% 21% 26%


% Asian-Surnamed 1% 2% 2% 1% 2% 2%


% Filipino-Surnamed 1% 1% 2% 1% 2% 2%


% NH White est. 61% 66% 61% 68% 65% 64%


% NH Black 3% 2% 9% 1% 9% 5%







9Date







10


NDC Map 103 Demographics


NDC Map 103


District 1 2 3 4 5 Total


Total Pop 7,304 7,399 7,770 7,402 7,123 36,998


Deviation from ideal -96 -1 370 2 -277 647


% Deviation -1.30% -0.01% 5.00% 0.03% -3.74% 8.74%


Total Pop


% Hisp 56.3% 38% 39% 41% 30% 41%


% NH White 34% 50% 43% 47% 44% 44%


% NH Black 3% 3% 5% 3% 9% 4%


% Asian-American 3% 4% 8% 5% 12% 7%


Citizen Voting Age 


Pop


Total 4,302 4,903 4,956 4,773 4,703 23,637


% Hisp 42% 29% 35% 32% 23% 32%


% NH White 49% 63% 51% 62% 50% 55%


% NH Black 4% 2% 7% 1% 11% 5%


% Asian/Pac.Isl. 4% 3% 6% 3% 14% 6%


Voter Registration 


(Nov 2020)


Total 3,495 4,632 4,436 4,381 4,015 20,959


% Latino est. 41% 26% 31% 29% 25% 30%


% Spanish-Surnamed 38% 24% 29% 27% 23% 28%


% Asian-Surnamed 1% 1% 2% 2% 3% 2%


% Filipino-Surnamed 1% 1% 2% 1% 2% 2%


% NH White est. 55% 70% 59% 68% 60% 63%


% NH Black 3% 2% 8% 1% 12% 5%


Voter Turnout (Nov 


2020)


Total 2,633 3,687 3,601 3,593 3,264 16,778


% Latino est. 39% 24% 29% 27% 24% 28%


% Spanish-Surnamed 36% 22% 27% 25% 22% 26%


% Asian-Surnamed 1% 1% 2% 2% 2% 2%


% Filipino-Surnamed 1% 1% 2% 1% 2% 2%


% NH White est. 56% 71% 61% 70% 61% 64%


% NH Black 3% 2% 8% 1% 12% 5%







11







12


Public Map 101 Demographics


Public 101


District 1 2 3 4 5 Total


Total Pop 7,408 7,436 7,375 7,408 7,371 36,998


Deviation from ideal 8 36 -25 8 -29 65


% Deviation 0.11% 0.49% -0.34% 0.11% -0.39% 0.88%


Total Pop


% Hisp 56.1% 37% 37% 44% 30% 41%


% NH White 34% 49% 46% 43% 44% 44%


% NH Black 3% 3% 4% 3% 9% 4%


% Asian-American 3% 6% 7% 5% 12% 7%


Citizen Voting Age 


Pop


Total 4,365 5,278 4,806 4,714 4,474 23,637


% Hisp 42% 28% 33% 34% 24% 32%


% NH White 49% 62% 54% 60% 49% 55%


% NH Black 4% 3% 6% 2% 11% 5%


% Asian/Pac.Isl. 4% 5% 6% 3% 13% 6%


Voter Registration 


(Nov 2020)


Total 3,533 4,518 4,420 4,225 4,263 20,959


% Latino est. 41% 26% 30% 31% 25% 30%


% Spanish-Surnamed 38% 24% 27% 29% 23% 28%


% Asian-Surnamed 1% 2% 1% 2% 3% 2%


% Filipino-Surnamed 1% 2% 2% 1% 2% 2%


% NH White est. 54% 69% 62% 67% 60% 63%


% NH Black 3% 2% 6% 1% 12% 5%


Voter Turnout (Nov 


2020)


Total 2,656 3,593 3,613 3,420 3,496 16,778


% Latino est. 39% 23% 28% 28% 24% 28%


% Spanish-Surnamed 36% 22% 26% 26% 22% 26%


% Asian-Surnamed 1% 2% 1% 2% 2% 2%


% Filipino-Surnamed 1% 2% 2% 1% 2% 2%


% NH White est. 56% 71% 63% 69% 61% 64%


% NH Black 3% 2% 7% 1% 11% 5%







13


Simple Map Review Tool


Online Interactive Review Map


▪ ESRI’s “ArcGIS Online” – similar to Google Maps in ease of  use


▪ Used to review, analyze and compare maps, not to create them


▪ Includes overlays of  “community of  interest”  and other data


13



http://www.arcgis.com/apps/View/index.html?appid=f311a464f12c4ed78690d55f0d98d14a





14


Discussion


 Conduct a Public Hearing


 Set next Public Hearing Date


 Provide direction on what map the Council prefers or 


new map the Council would like see at the next hearing







15


Redistricting Process Details


Date(s) Description Comments


September 8, 2021 1st Public Hearing


November 10, 2021 2nd Public Hearing


Mid-October  2021


Mapping software released to the public.


*Estimated time depending on Census data


December 1, 2022 Maps due from the public.


January 12, 2022
3rd Public Hearing


????? Publish Draft map(s) 7 Days prior to adoption


?????


4th Public Hearing and Council adopt 


District map. Must be completed no later 


than April 17, 2022


The 4th hearing could also be the adoption 


hearing


April 17, 2022
Deadline to adopt and submit map to 


Registrar 







16


Share Your Thoughts


Website
www.cityofwildomar.org


Phone
951-677-7751 x210 


Email
jmorales@cityofwildomar.org


16



http://www.cityofwildomar.org/

mailto:jmorales@cityofwildomar.org





From:
To:
Subject:
Date:


Kathy Pierce
Janet Morales
Redistricting Wildomar
Wednesday, December 22, 2021 3:41:34 PM


[The e-mail below is from an external source. Please do not open attachments or click
links from an unknown or suspicious origin.]


From Corazza Street:    Prefer Map #1



mailto:jmorales@cityofwildomar.org





From:
To:
Subject:
Date:


Kathleen Kovich
Janet Morales
Redistricting Wildomar
Wednesday, December 22, 2021 3:05:48 PM


[The e-mail below is from an external source. Please do not open attachments or click links from an unknown or
suspicious origin.]


I prefer Map #1


Sent from my iPhone



mailto:kkovich@sbcglobal.net





From:
To:
Subject:
Date:


Leah Foster
Janet Morales
Redistricting Wildomar
Wednesday, December 22, 2021 1:37:09 PM


[The e-mail below is from an external source. Please do not open attachments or click links from an unknown or
suspicious origin.]


Hello,
I hope you’re doing well today. Out of all three maps I prefer NDC 103. The Farm community should all lie within
the same lines.
Thank you,
Ms. Leah Foster


Sent from my iPhone



mailto:jmorales@cityofwildomar.org





From:
To:
Subject:
Date:


Leslie Anid
Janet Morales
Redistricting Wildomar
Wednesday, December 22, 2021 1:07:05 PM


[The e-mail below is from an external source. Please do not open attachments or click
links from an unknown or suspicious origin.]


Hi,


I would say map 101 or 102 for redisticting.


Thanks for sharing this and allowing us to respond via email!


Sincerely,
Leslie Anid



mailto:rubanid1@msn.com





From:
To:
Subject:
Date:


Trisha Sluder
Janet Morales
Redistricting Wildomar
Wednesday, December 22, 2021 12:58:08 PM


[The e-mail below is from an external source. Please do not open attachments or click links from an unknown or
suspicious origin.]


I am in District 4 and prefer Map 2


Sent from my iPad



mailto:jmorales@cityofwildomar.org





From: notification@cityofwildomar.org
To: Janet Morales
Subject: Redistricting Map Opinion Poll 2022-01-04 05:33 PM(PST) Submission Notification
Date: Tuesday, January 4, 2022 5:33:05 PM


Redistricting Map Opinion Poll 2022-01-04 05:33 PM(PST) was submitted by Guest on 1/4/2022 8:33:01 PM (GMT-08:00) US/Pacific


Name Value
Name-1639758909570-0 John Gunther
Email-1639758944781-0


What-street-do-you-live-on-1639758975583-0 Clovis Way
Which-Map-do-you-prefer-1639759014461-0 NDC101


Are-there-any-additional-community-interests-that-you-feel-werent-included-that-you-would-like-the-City-to-consider-1639759123434-0
Any-additional-comments-1639759212737-0


To view this form submission online, please follow the link below:


http://www.cityofwildomar.org/form/one.aspx?objectId=18251003&contextId=18209807&returnto=submissions



mailto:wildomar@gunthermail.com

mailto:jmorales@cityofwildomar.org





From: notification@cityofwildomar.org
To: Janet Morales
Subject: Redistricting Map Opinion Poll 2022-01-04 05:34 PM(PST) Submission Notification
Date: Tuesday, January 4, 2022 5:34:33 PM


Redistricting Map Opinion Poll 2022-01-04 05:34 PM(PST) was submitted by Guest on 1/4/2022 8:34:29 PM (GMT-08:00) US/Pacific


Name Value
Name-1639758909570-0 John Lloyd
Email-1639758944781-0


What-street-do-you-live-on-1639758975583-0 23164 Cannery Rd
Which-Map-do-you-prefer-1639759014461-0 NDC101


Are-there-any-additional-community-interests-that-you-feel-werent-included-that-you-would-like-the-City-to-consider-1639759123434-0


Any-additional-comments-1639759212737-0


I feel NDC 1 is the least
divisive, identifies like
areas to allow for better
neighborhood support.
The numbers look very
even is all regards.


To view this form submission online, please follow the link below:


http://www.cityofwildomar.org/form/one.aspx?objectId=18251005&contextId=18209807&returnto=submissions



mailto:john.lloyd@infineon.com

mailto:jmorales@cityofwildomar.org





From: notification@cityofwildomar.org
To: Janet Morales
Subject: Redistricting Map Opinion Poll 2022-01-04 05:35 PM(PST) Submission Notification
Date: Tuesday, January 4, 2022 5:35:54 PM


Redistricting Map Opinion Poll 2022-01-04 05:35 PM(PST) was submitted by Guest on 1/4/2022 8:35:51 PM (GMT-08:00) US/Pacific


Name Value
Name-1639758909570-0 Ray Moore
Email-1639758944781-0


What-street-do-you-live-on-1639758975583-0 32970 Wells Place
Which-Map-do-you-prefer-1639759014461-0 PUBLIC 101


Are-there-any-additional-community-interests-that-you-feel-werent-included-that-you-would-like-the-City-to-consider-1639759123434-0 none


Any-additional-comments-1639759212737-0
looks like a balance re-
districting based upon
population.


To view this form submission online, please follow the link below:


http://www.cityofwildomar.org/form/one.aspx?objectId=18251007&contextId=18209807&returnto=submissions



mailto:rmcoach@earthlink.net

mailto:jmorales@cityofwildomar.org





From: notification@cityofwildomar.org
To: Janet Morales
Subject: Redistricting Map Opinion Poll 2022-01-05 07:01 AM(PST) Submission Notification
Date: Wednesday, January 5, 2022 7:01:56 AM


Redistricting Map Opinion Poll 2022-01-05 07:01 AM(PST) was submitted by Guest on 1/5/2022 10:01:51 AM (GMT-08:00) US/Pacific


Name Value
Name-1639758909570-0 Mitch Crismon
Email-1639758944781-0


What-street-do-you-live-on-1639758975583-0 Larkspur Drive
Which-Map-do-you-prefer-1639759014461-0 NDC102


Are-there-any-additional-community-interests-that-you-feel-werent-included-that-you-would-like-the-City-to-consider-1639759123434-0
Any-additional-comments-1639759212737-0


To view this form submission online, please follow the link below:


http://www.cityofwildomar.org/form/one.aspx?objectId=18251479&contextId=18209807&returnto=submissions



mailto:mitchcrismon@hotmail.com

mailto:jmorales@cityofwildomar.org





From: G
To: Janet Morales
Subject: Redistricting Wildomar
Date: Wednesday, December 22, 2021 12:31:42 PM


[The e-mail below is from an external source. Please do not open attachments or click
links from an unknown or suspicious origin.]


Hello,


Which NDC is best for where I live?
It looks like I'm in District 2 no matter what.


George Deal
24136 Safiro Court



mailto:jmorales@cityofwildomar.org





Agenda Item #1.2 
 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 


NOVEMBER 10, 2021 


CALL TO ORDER – WORKSHOP- 3:00 P.M. 
The Workshop of November 10, 2021, of the Wildomar City Council was conducted 
in-person at the Wildomar Council Chambers, 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 
106, Wildomar, California, and was called to order by Mayor Nigg at 3:01 p.m. 
 
City Council Roll Call showed the following: 
 
Members in attendance: Council Member, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem 
Benoit, Mayor Nigg 
 
Members absent: Moore 
 
Staff in attendance: Assistant City Manager York, City Attorney Jex, City Clerk 
Morales, Planning Director Bassi, Administrative Services Director Howell, Project 
Consultant Riley, Economic Development Director Davidson, Associate Engineer 
Luna, Development Manager Stadnik, Associate Engineer Farag, Parks, 
Community Services Director Torres, Capital Project Manager Repke, 
Development Manager Stadnik and Associate Engineer Farag. 
 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
There were no public comments. 
 
 


0 WORKSHOP 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL OF THE WILDOMAR 
CEMETERY DISTRICT 
The Workshop of November 10, 2021, of the Wildomar Cemetery was conducted 
in-person at the Wildomar Council Chambers, 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 
106, Wildomar, California, and was called to order by Chair Nigg at 3:04 p.m. 


 
Cemetery Roll Call showed the following: 
 
Members in attendance: Board Member Morabito, Swanson, Vice Chair Benoit, 
Chair Nigg 
 
Members absent: Moore 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
November 10, 2021 


2 


  
 


 


Council Member/Board Member Moore arrived at 3:07 p.m. 
 
0.1 Concept Design Presentation Wildomar Cemetery Perimeter Wall, 


Fencing and ADA Improvements and Palomar Street Widening Project 
(CIP 028-2 and CIP 067-1) 
 
Mayor Nigg read the title. 
 
Capital Project Manager Repke presented the staff report. 
 
Residents Gina Castanon and Kenny Mayes provided public comment.  
 
It was the consensus of the City Council and the Cemetery Board to receive 
and file the concepts presented for improvements along Palomar Street, 
Gruwell Street and along the Wildomar Cemetery frontage associated with 
the Wildomar Cemetery Perimeter Wall, Fencing and ADA Improvements 
and Palomar Street Widening Project (CIP 028-2 and CIP 067-1) (“Project”) 
 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember/ Trustee Swanson seconded by 
Councilmember/Trustee Moore to adopt a Categorical Exemption pursuant 
to Section 15301(c) of the CEQA Guidelines. 
 


 MOTION carried 5-0, by the following vote: 
  
 YEA:   Moore, Morabito, Swanson,  
   Mayor Pro Tem/Vice Chair Benoit, Mayor/Chair Nigg 
 NAY:   None 
 ABSTAIN:  None 
 ABSENT:  None 


 
 


ADJOURN THE WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT MEETING 
There being no further business, Chair Nigg adjourned the Cemetery District 
Meeting at 3:46 p.m. 
 


 
0.2 Development Impact Fee Update Presentation (CIP 023) 


 
Mayor Nigg read the title. 
 
Associate Engineer Farag presented the staff report. 
 
Residents Gina Castanon and Kenny Mayes provided public comment.  







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
November 10, 2021 


3 


  
 


 


 
It was the consensus of the City Council to receive and file the proposed 
updates to the City’s Development Impact Fees. 
 


 


ADJOURN WORKSHOP 
There being no further business, Mayor Nigg adjourned the Workshop at 4:11 
p.m. 


CALL TO ORDER – CLOSED SESSION - 5:00 P.M. 
The Closed Session of November 10, 2021, of the Wildomar City Council was 
conducted in-person at the Wildomar Council Chambers, 23873 Clinton Keith 
Road, Suite 106, Wildomar, California, and was called to order by Mayor Pro Tem 
Benoit at 5:00 p.m. 
 
City Council Roll Call showed the following: 
 
Members in attendance: Council Member Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro 
Tem Benoit 
 
Members absent: Mayor Nigg 
 
Staff in attendance: City Attorney Jex, City Clerk Morales, Assistant City Manager 
York. 
 
 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
There were no public comments.  
 
 


CLOSED SESSION 
City Clerk Morales read the following: 
 
1.  The City Council will meet in closed session pursuant to the provisions of 
Government Code section 54957(b) regarding Public Employee Appointment. 
Title:  City Manager. 
 
2.  The City Council will meet in closed session to hold a conference with its 
Labor Negotiator regarding Unrepresented Employee pursuant to Government 
Code 54957.6. 
 
Agency representative:  Changed from Dustin Nigg to Joseph Morabito 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
November 10, 2021 


4 


  
 


 


Unrepresented employee:  City Manager 
 
The City Council convened into closed session at 5:01 p.m. 
 
 


RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION 


The City Council reconvened into open session with all members except Mayor 
Nigg present at 6:06 p.m. 
 
 


ANNOUNCEMENTS 
City Attorney Jex stated that the City Council met in Closed Session and there is 
no reportable action.  
 
 


ADJOURN CLOSED SESSION 
There being no further business, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit adjourned the closed 
session at 6:06 p.m. 


 
 
CALL TO ORDER – REGULAR SESSION - 6:00 P.M. 
The Regular Meeting of November 10, 2021, of the Wildomar City Council was 
conducted in-person at the Wildomar Council Chambers, 23873 Clinton Keith 
Road, Suite 106, Wildomar, California, and was called to order by Mayor Pro Tem 
Benoit at 6:06 p.m. 
 
City Council Roll Call showed the following: 
 
Members in attendance: Council Member Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro 
Tem Benoit 
 
Members absent: Mayor Nigg 
 
Staff in attendance: Assistant City Manager York, City Attorney Jex, City Clerk 
Morales, Planning Director Bassi, Administrative Services Director Howell, Project 
Consultant Riley, Economic Development Director Davidson, Associate Engineer 
Luna, Development Manager Stadnik, Associate Engineer Farag, Parks, 
Community Services Director Torres, Capital Project Manager Repke, 
Development Manager Stadnik and Associate Engineer Farag. 
 
The flag salute was led by Councilmember Moore. 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
November 10, 2021 


5 


  
 


 


2.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 


 
2.1 Second Public Hearing to Receive Input from the Community 


Regarding the Redrawing of Election District Boundaries 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Benoit opened the public hearing.  
 
City Clerk Morales and Todd Tatum from the National Demographics 
Corporation presented the staff report. 
 
Resident Gina Castanon with 3 minutes donated by Ruben Castanon 
provided public comment for a total of 6 minutes. 
 
Resident Kenny Mayes provided public comment. 
 
There being no further testimony, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit closed the public 
hearing.  
 
It was the consensus of the City Council to receive and file the report. 
 


 


PRESENTATIONS 
1. Mayor Pro Tem Benoit presented the Small Business Saturday November 27, 
2021 Proclamation to the Murrieta/Wildomar Chamber of Commerce. 
 
 


DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
1. Community Services Director Torres presented the Community Services 
Update. 
 
 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
The following provided public comments on items not on the agenda: Ginger 
Greaves, Santa Rosa Plateau Nature Education Foundation, Ms. Miller, Resident 
Don Saunders. 
 
 
 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
November 10, 2021 


6 


  
 


 


COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS 
The City Council Members spoke regarding the various committees, commissions, 
and boards that they serve on locally and regionally and community events, 
including: 
 
1. Community events 
2. Regional events 
3. Chamber of Commerce 
4. Riverside Transit Agency (RTA) 
5. Riverside Conservation Authority (RCA) 
6. Riverside County Transportation Commission (RCTC) 
7. League of California Cities 
8. Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) 
9. Riverside County Habitat Conservation Agency (RCHCA) 
10. Western Riverside Council of Governments (WRCOG) 
11. South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) 
12. Southwest Community Financing Authority (Animal Shelter) 
13. Western Community Energy (WCE) 
14. Ad Hoc & Subcommittees 
 
 


APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED 


There were no changes to the agenda as presented.  
 
 


1.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 


Staff requested to table agenda items # 1.9, 1.11 & 1.18.  
 
Staff noted that Exhibit A to the Resolution for agenda item #1.7 should have been 
included in the agenda packet. 
 
Miss Miller provided public comment on agenda items #1.9, 1.10, 1.11, 1.12, 1.18. 
 
Residents Rick Harris and Richard Hooley provided public comment on agenda 
item #1.17. 
 
Council Member Morabito abstained from voting on agenda item #1.10 due to a 
conflict of interest.  
 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Moore seconded by Councilmember 
Swanson to approve the Consent Calendar with the changes.  
 
MOTION carried 4-0, by the following vote: 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
November 10, 2021 


7 


  
 


 


 
YEA:   Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  Mayor Nigg 
 
 
1.1 Reading of Ordinances 


Approved the reading by title only of all ordinances on this agenda. 
 


1.2 Minutes- August 26, 2021 Special Meeting 
Approved the minutes as presented. 
 


1.3 Minutes- September 8, 2021 Regular Meeting 
Approved the minutes as presented. 
 


1.4 Warrant and Payroll Registers 
Approved the following: 
 
For Fiscal Year 2020-2021 
 
1. Warrant Register dated 10-07-2021 in the amount of $2,220.75. 
 
For Fiscal Year 2021-2022 
 
2. Warrant Register dated 10-07-2021 in the amount of $99,994.67. 
3. Warrant Register dated 10-14-2021 in the amount of $185,321.23. 
4. Warrant Register dated 10-21-2021 in the amount of $595,866.29. 
5. Warrant Register dated 10-28-2021 in the amount of $78,174.43. 
6. Wire Transfer Register dated 10-31-2021 in the amount of $211,280.48. 
7. Payroll Register dated 11-01-2021 in the amount of $174,914.04. 
 


1.5 Treasurer’s Report 
Approved the Treasurer’s Report for September 2021. 


 
1.6 2nd Reading of Ordinance No. 204 (ZOA No. 2021-02) 


Adopted an Ordinance entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 204 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A GENERAL RULE EXEMPTION 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 15061(B)(3) OF THE CALIFORNIA 


ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) GUIDELINES, AND 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
November 10, 2021 


8 


  
 


 


APPROVAL OF ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT NO. 2021-02 TO 
MODIFY SECTION 17.188 (OFF-STREET VEHICLE PARKING 


STANDARDS) OF THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE RELATED TO 
PARKING STANDARDS FOR SINGLE-FAMILY, MULTI-FAMILY AND 


COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN THE CITY OF WILDOMAR 
 


1.7 2nd Reading of Ordinance No. 205 – Repealing and Replacing Chapter 
8.48 (Hazardous Vegetation) of the Wildomar Municipal Code 
Adopted an Ordinance entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 205 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, REPEALING CHAPTER 8.48 (HAZARDOUS 
VEGETATION) OF THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE, AND ADDING 


CHAPTER 8.48 (HAZARDOUS VEGETATION AND RUBBISH 
ABATEMENT PROGRAM) TO THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE 


 
1.8 2nd Reading of Ordinance No. 206 – Amending and Restating Chapter 


8.104 (Solid Waste Collection and Disposal) of the City of Wildomar 
Municipal Code 
Adopt an Ordinance entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 206 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA AMENDING AND RESTATING CHAPTER 
8.104 (SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL) OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE 
 


1.9 Tract Map No. 32035 - McVicar Residential Project Final Map Approval, 
Subdivision Improvement Agreement, and Lien Agreement 
Tabled to December 15, 2021. 
 


1.10 Baxter Village Hotel and Borrow Site, Off-site and On-site Street 
Improvements (Grading Only) – Parcel 2 of Parcel Map No. 37941 – 
Rough Grading Agreement 
Authorized the City Manager to execute the Rough Grading Agreements 
with Strata Baxter, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company for the Baxter 
Village Hotel and Borrow Site, Off-site and On-site Street Improvements – 
Parcel 2 of Parcel Map No. 37941. 
 


1.11 Tract No. 31667 - Boulder Creek Joint Community Facilities Agreement 
and DIF Credit Agreement 
Tabled to December 15, 2021. 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
November 10, 2021 


9 


  
 


 


 
1.12 Summerhill 2 KB Homes, Tentative Tract Map 37476 Rough Grading 


Agreement 
Authorized the City Manager to execute the Rough Grading Agreement with 
KB Home Coastal Inc. 
 


1.13 Resolution approving the filing of all applications associated with the 
Per Capita program grant funds for which the City of Wildomar is 
Eligible 
Adopted a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 66 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA APPROVING APPLICATION(S) FOR PER CAPITA GRANT 
FUNDS 


 
1.14 Third Amendment to Animal Field Services and Sheltering Agreement. 


Authorized the City Manager to execute the Second Amendment to the 
Animal Field Services and Sheltering Agreement between the City of 
Wildomar and Animal Friends of the Valleys, Inc. 
 


1.15 Position Classification Schedule Update 
Adopted a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 67 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, UPDATING THE POSITION CLASSIFICATION 
SCHEDULE, UPDATING THE ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 


DIRECTOR, COMMUNITY SERVICES DIRECTOR, AND ACCOUNTANT 
I/II/III POSITION CLASSIFICATION DESCRIPTIONS, AND PLACE THE 
ACCOUNTANT I/II/III POSITION ON THE FY 2021-22 SCHEDULE OF 


AUTHORIZED POSITIONS 
 


1.16 Confirming Adoption of Riverside County Transportation Commission 
(RCTC) Funding Agreements No. 21-62-117-00 and 21-62-118-00SB 
821 Project Grant Funding 
Confirmed adoption of the following: 
 
1. Accepted $381,325 from the Riverside County Transportation 
Commission (RCTC) in SB 821 Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Program 
funding for the Bundy Canyon Road Sidewalk and Bike Lane Connectivity 
Project from Almond St. to Monte Vista Dr; 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
November 10, 2021 


10 


  
 


 


2. Accepted $432,500 from the Riverside County Transportation 
Commission (RCTC) in SB 821 Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Program 
funding for the Palomar St. Sidewalk, Trail and Bike Lane Connectivity 
Project on Palomar St. from Gruwell St. to Wildomar Trail and Gruwell St. 
from Palomar St. to 550’ North; 
 
3. Authorized the City Manager to execute Funding Agreement No. 21-62-
117-00 and 21-62-118-00 with RCTC. 
 


1.17 Bundy Canyon Road Improvement Project – Segment 1 (CIP 026-1) 
Increase Contract Contingency Authorization for Approving Contract 
Change Orders 
Increased the contingency authorization on the construction contract from 
7.5% to 12.5% to allow the City Engineer to execute Contract Change 
Orders (CCOs) with James McMinn Inc. (JMI) for the Bundy Canyon Road 
Improvement Project – Segment 1 (CIP 026-1). 
 


1.18 Horizons by Lennar Homes, Tentative Tract Map 36672 Rough Grading 
Agreement 
Authorized the City Manager to execute the Rough Grading Agreement with 
Lennar Homes of California, Inc. 
 
 


2.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 


 
2.2 Culture Cannabis Club Revised Proposal - PA No. 20-0078(R1): A 


proposal to expand an approved 1,440 square-foot retail cannabis 
business into an 835 square-foot adjacent suite bringing the total 
lease space to 2,275 square feet located at 33980 Mission Trail, Suite 
#A & B 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Benoit opened the public hearing 
 
Planning Director Bassi presented the staff report. 
 
Resident Gina Castanon provided public comment.  
 
There being no testimony Mayor Pro Tem Benoit closed the public 
hearing. 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
November 10, 2021 


11 


  
 


 


A MOTION was made by Councilmember Moore seconded by 
Councilmember Morabito to adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2021 - 68 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING CATEGORICAL EXEMPTION IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 15301 (CLASS 1) OF THE 


CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA), AND 
APPROVING CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 20-0078(R1), SUBJECT 
TO CONDITIONS, TO EXPAND AN APPROVED 1,440 SQUARE-FOOT 


RETAIL CANNABIS BUSINESS INTO AN 835 SQUARE-FOOT 
ADJACENT SUITE BRINGING THE TOTAL LEASE SPACE TO 2,275 
SQUARE FEET LOCATED AT 33980 MISSION TRAIL, SUITE #A & B 


(APN: 366-160-070) 
 


MOTION carried 4-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:   Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  Mayor Nigg 
 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Moore seconded by 
Councilmember Swanson to Introduce and approve first reading of an 
Ordinance entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 207 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTION OF A CATEGORICAL 
EXEMPTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 15301 (CLASS 1) OF 


THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA), AND 
APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT #1 TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
NO. 20-0078(R1) TO EXPAND AN APPROVED 1,440 SQUARE-FOOT 


RETAIL CANNABIS BUSINESS INTO AN 835 SQUARE-FOOT 
ADJACENT SUITE NOW TOTALING 2,275 SQUARE FEET LOCATED IN 


THE C-1/C-P (GENERAL COMMERCIAL) ZONE AT 33980 MISSION 
TRAIL, SUITE #A & B (APN: 366-160-070) 


 
MOTION carried 4-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:   Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
November 10, 2021 


12 


  
 


 


ABSENT:  Mayor Nigg 
 
 


3.0 GENERAL BUSINESS  


 
3.1 COVID-19 Update  
 


Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title. 
 
Community Services Director Torres presented the staff report. 
 
It was the consensus of the City Council to receive and file the report.  
 


3.2 Permanent Supportive Housing Project Contract-Social Work Action 
Group (SWAG) 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title. 
 
Project Consultant Riley presented the staff report. 
 
Resident Gina Castanon with time donated by Ruben Castanon provided 
public comment for a total of 6 minutes. 
 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Swanson seconded by 
Councilmember Moore to approve and authorize the City Manager to 
execute a contract with Social Work Action Group (SWAG) to provide 
permanent supportive housing (PSH) services for six (6) chronically 
homeless individuals in the City of Wildomar for the fiscal year 2021-22 for 
$217,600, which was included in the ARPA funds (Fund115) in the biennial 
FY 2021-2023 budget and approved an additional one-time $262,700 of the 
ARPA funds to be budgeted for the conversion of the garage at the property 
into a livable Accessory Dwelling Unit. 
 
MOTION carried 4-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:   Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  Mayor Nigg 
 
 
 
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
November 10, 2021 


13 


  
 


 


3.3 Ordinance Adding Chapter 2.44 (Campaign Contribution Limits for 
Elective City Offices) to the Wildomar Municipal Code  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title. 
 
City Attorney Jex and Assistant City Manager York presented the staff 
report. 
 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Moore seconded by 
Councilmember Morabito to introduce and waive further reading of an 
Ordinance Entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 208 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
CALIFORNIA, ADDING CHAPTER 2.44 (CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION 
LIMITS FOR ELECTIVE CITY OFFICES) TO THE WILDOMAR 
MUNICIPAL CODE 
 
MOTION carried 4-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:   Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  Mayor Nigg 


 
3.4 Establishment of an Ad-Hoc Subcommittee to Evaluate Homeowner 


Association (HOA) Procedures for development projects in the City 
 


Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title. 
 
Planning Director Bassi presented the staff report. 
 
A MOTION was made by Councilmember Moore seconded by 
Councilmember Morabito to select and approve Mayor Pro Tem Benoit and 
Council Member Swanson to serve on a temporary ad-hoc subcommittee 
to provide guidance to staff in evaluating Home Owner Association 
procedures for development projects in the City. 
 
MOTION carried 4-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:   Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
November 10, 2021 


14 


  
 


 


ABSENT:  Mayor Nigg 
 


3.5 City Hall Future Site Planning 
 


Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title. 
 


 Assistant City Manager York presented the staff report. 
 


Resident Gina Castanon with time donated by Ruben Castanon provided 
public comment for a total of 6 minutes. 
 
Discussed the following Site Planning Options:  
 
1. No change to site and execute the one-time 3-year lease extension; or  
2. No change to site and negotiate a purchase and sale agreement; or  
3. Site Location to be determined: Class A Office, build to suit.  
4. City property: Factory Built offices  
 
Consensus was to move towards option 4 on existing city property as staff 
work towards option 3 in the future. 


 
3.6 Holiday Lights Home Decorating Contest 2021 
 
 Mayor Pro Tem Benoit read the title. 
 
 Community Services Director Torres presented the staff report.  
 
 A MOTION was made by Councilmember Moore seconded by 


Councilmember Morabito to appoint Mayor Nigg as the delegate and 
Council Member Morabito as the alternate to judge the contest. 


 
MOTION carried 4-0, by the following vote: 
 
YEA:   Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit 
NAY:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  Mayor Nigg 


 
 


CITY MANAGER REPORT 
Assistant City Manager York presented the Riverside County Redistricting update 
and City Manager report.  
 







  
City of Wildomar 


City Council Minutes 
November 10, 2021 


15 


  
 


 


 


FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 


No future agenda items added.  
 
 


ADJOURN THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING TO AN ADJOURNED 
REGULAR MEETING ON DECEMBER 15, 2021  
There being no further business, Mayor Pro Tem Benoit adjourned the City Council 
Meeting at 8:14 p.m. to an adjourned regular meeting on December 15, 2021.  
 
 
Submitted by:    Approved by: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Janet Morales, CMC   Ben J. Benoit 
City Clerk     Mayor 


 







  


CITY OF WILDOMAR CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.3 


  CONSENT CALENDAR  
 Meeting Date: January 12, 2022 
______________________________________________________________________  
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Robert Howell, Administrative Services Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Warrant and Payroll Registers 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the following: 
 


1. Warrant Register dated 12-02-2021 in the amount of $472,876.67. 
2. Warrant Register dated 12-09-2021 in the amount of $462,041.94. 
3. Warrant Register dated 12-16-2021 in the amount of $94,857.71. 
4. Warrant Register dated 12-22-2021 in the amount of $1,642,202.86. 
5. Wire Transfer Register dated 12-31-2021 in the amount of $52,381.59. 
6. Payroll Register dated 01-01-2022 in the amount of $177,123.94. 


 
DISCUSSION: 
The City of Wildomar requires that the City Council audit payments of demands and direct 
the City Manager to issue checks. The Warrant and Payroll Registers are submitted for 
approval.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
These Warrant, Wire Transfer and Payroll Registers will have a budgetary impact in the 
amount and fiscal year noted in the recommendation section of this report. These costs 
are included in the Fiscal Year 2021/22 Budgets. 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Robert Howell      Gary Nordquist 
Administrative Services Director              City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Voucher Register 12/02/2021   Voucher Register 12/22/2021 
Voucher Register 12/09/2021       Wire Transfer Register 12/31/2021 
Voucher Register 12/16/2021   Payroll Register 01/01/2022  
   







12/02/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 8:21:27AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214433 12/2/2021 000008  AT&T MOBILITY X11202021 11/13/21-12/12/21 COUNCIL MOBILE PHONE  57.00


Total :  57.00


 214434 12/2/2021 001671  BERROTERAN, RAUL 112921 REIMBURSE - CLEANING OIL OFF 


VANDALIZED


 36.00


Total :  36.00


 214435 12/2/2021 000787  CA ASSOC OF CODE ENFORCEMENT 3000016081 ANNUAL CACEO MEMBERSHIP DUES - T 


BAGGIO


 95.00


 95.00ANNUAL CACEO MEMBERSHIP DUES - J 


PARKER


300015377


Total :  190.00


 214436 12/2/2021 000035  COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, TLMA TL0000016103 OCTOBER 2021 SLF COSTS FY21-22  360.91


Total :  360.91


 214437 12/2/2021 000022  EDISON 111721-3767 10/18/21-11/16/21 ELECTRIC WILDOMAR 


3116


 11.49


 28.7910/18/21-11/16/21 ELECTRIC 32975 WILLOW111721-5249


 74.3110/18/21-11/16/21 ELECTRIC 32975 WILLOW111721-7633


Total :  114.59


 214438 12/2/2021 000012  ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL, WATER DISTRICT11382160 10/07/21-11/06/21 WATER ZONE 52 LOC 01  38.13


 44.3010/07/21-11/06/21 WATER ZONE 29 LOC 0211382216


 111.2410/07/21-11/06/21 WATER ZONE 71 LOC 0111382496


 82.0810/07/21-11/06/21 WATER 32637 GRUWELL -11382696


 1,035.8910/07/21-11/06/21 WATER MARNA OBRIEN11382777


 83.0610/11/21-11/10/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 7 M111386711


 157.0710/11/21-11/10/21 WATER HERITAGE PARK 


(A


11386724


 174.4210/12/21-11/11/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 25 


M1


11393077


 160.5410/12/21-11/11/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 25 


M2


11393078


 723.8410/12/21-11/11/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 24 


M1


11394853


 55.3010/12/21-11/11/21 WATER CFD 2013-1 ZONE11396025


 506.2810/12/21-11/11/21 WATER MALAGA 


GATEWAY P


11396185







12/02/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


2


 8:21:27AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214438 12/2/2021 (Continued)000012  ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL, WATER DISTRICT


 233.4110/14/21-11/13/21 WATER ZONE 42 LOC 01 


M


11397632


 164.0110/14/21-11/13/21 WATER ZONE 42 LOC 03 


M


11397884


 174.4210/14/21-11/13/21 WATER ZONE 42 LOC 02 


M


11397885


 72.6510/19/21-11/18/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 35 


M1


11404343


Total :  3,816.64


 214439 12/2/2021 001222  FOBRO CONSULTING LLC 125 0000348 CONTRACTUAL SVCS 07/01/21-06/30/22 AS 


PE


 3,025.00


Total :  3,025.00


 214440 12/2/2021 000836  KOA CORPORATION JB93120-13 09/27/21-10/31/21 PROFESSIONAL SVCS 


WILD


 685.00


Total :  685.00


 214441 12/2/2021 001652  MARK THOMAS 42061 0000327 DESIGN PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS PER 


SERV


 7,957.50


Total :  7,957.50


 214442 12/2/2021 001046  MUNICIPAL CONSULTING SERVICES, LLC 113021 11/01/21-11/30/21 PROJECT CONSULTANT  7,645.00


Total :  7,645.00


 214443 12/2/2021 001210  MURRIETA/WILDOMAR CHAMBER, OF COMMERCE39238 STATE OF THE CITY  16,175.00


Total :  16,175.00


 214444 12/2/2021 000606  RING CENTRAL CD_000324528 11/21/21-11/20/22 - ANNUAL PHONE LINES (  13,743.51


Total :  13,743.51


 214445 12/2/2021 000283  RIVERSIDE COUNTY CLERK 113021 FILING - GRAND AVE MICROSURFACE NOE  50.00


Total :  50.00


 214446 12/2/2021 000047  RIVERSIDE COUNTY, SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENTSH0000039848 CONTRACT LAW ENFORCEMENT 


THROUGH 09/22/2


 411,030.52


Total :  411,030.52


 214447 12/2/2021 001241  SIEMENS MOBILITY, INC. 5610278328 OCT 2021 TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE  1,494.50







12/02/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


3


 8:21:27AM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214447 12/2/2021 (Continued)001241  SIEMENS MOBILITY, INC.


 413.52OCT 2021 TRAFFIC SIGNAL RESPONSE 


CALL OU


5620038056


Total :  1,908.02


 214448 12/2/2021 000790  SPARKLETTS 111321 CITY HALL DRINKING WATER THROUGH 


11/13/2


 124.21


Total :  124.21


 214449 12/2/2021 001021  SPICER CONSULTING GROUP 914 FY 21/22 ANNUAL ADMIN LLMD89-1-C/CSA 


22/


 2,791.67


 2,791.67FY 21/22 ANNUAL ADMIN LLMD89-1-C/CSA 


22/


929


Total :  5,583.34


 214450 12/2/2021 000919  STANTON, SHERRI 113021 REIMBURSEMENT FOR HR DEPT SUPPLIES  374.43


Total :  374.43


Bank total :  472,876.67 18 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 472,876.67Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 18







12/09/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


12:43:13PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214451 12/9/2021 001627  AMERICAN EAGLE TROPHIES 6456 PUBLIC WORKS DEV. MGR - ENGRAVED 


PLATE


 104.40


Total :  104.40


 214452 12/9/2021 000760  ARMADA ADMINISTRATORS 170001 NOVEMBER 2021 PREMIUM  2,970.00


-546.00CREDIT: PREMIUM ADJUSTMENT - CITY 


COUNCI


170001CR


Total :  2,424.00


 214453 12/9/2021 000080  BURKE, WILLIAMS AND SORENSON,, LLP 276351 OCTOBER 2021 LEGAL FEES  50,013.38


 44,178.40NOVEMBER 2021 LEGAL FEES277545


Total :  94,191.78


 214454 12/9/2021 000367  CINTAS CORPORATION 5086752266 CITY HALL FIRST AID & SAFETY  1,312.34


Total :  1,312.34


 214455 12/9/2021 001622  COMMERCIAL BUILDING MANAGEMENT, SERVICES INC68570 0000362 WILDOMAR PARK CLEANING SVC FY21/22 


AS PE


 4,097.00


 239.21NOV 2021 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES - MARNA 


OBR


68571


 1,800.00NOV 2021 CITY HALL DISINFECT - COVID-1968572


Total :  6,136.21


 214456 12/9/2021 000002  CRYSTAL CLEAN MAINTENANCE 1203I DECEMBER 2021 CITY HALL JANITORIAL 


SERVI


 3,214.75


Total :  3,214.75


 214457 12/9/2021 000022  EDISON 112921 09/26/21-11/28/21 ELECTRIC 21400 


PALOMAR


 344.66


 58.1710/27/21-11/28/21 ELECTRIC - BASEBALL FI112921-6091


 536.2110/21/21-11/28/21 ELECTRIC -112921-9129


Total :  939.04


 214458 12/9/2021 000012  ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL, WATER DISTRICT11400563 10/17/21-11/16/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 23 


M1


 357.11


 60.1310/17/21-11/16/21 WATER ZONE 30 LOC 211400772


 100.8410/17/21-11/16/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 49 


M1


11400813


 68.1910/17/21-11/16/21 WATER ZONE 51 LOC 111401066


 333.9310/17/21-11/16/21 WATER BASEBALL FIELD11401233







12/09/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


2


12:43:13PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214458 12/9/2021 (Continued)000012  ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL, WATER DISTRICT


 365.1310/17/21-11/16/21 WATER WINDSONG PARK11401273


 863.6810/17/21-11/16/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 29 


M1


11401783


 307.8710/17/21-11/16/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 29 


M2


11401861


 136.4310/17/21-11/16/21 WATER ZONE 30 LOC 111401864


 180.7610/17/21-11/16/21 WATER ZONE 3 LOC 42 &11401963


 450.2110/17/21-11/16/21 WATER 22450 1/2 


CERVER


11402359


 399.1710/17/21-11/16/21 WATER 22450 CERVERA11402600


 78.8410/17/21-11/16/21 WATER ZONE 62 - 2293311403699


Total :  3,702.29


 214459 12/9/2021 001664  EXPRESS EVENTS 121121A SANTA CLAUS FOR BREAKFAST EVENT  595.00


 2,995.00TENT/TABLES/CHAIRS FOR BREAKFAST 


EVENT


121121B


Total :  3,590.00


 214460 12/9/2021 001726  G & G ENTERTAINMENT 0080 LIVE MUSIC - VETERAN'S DAY EVENT  250.00


Total :  250.00


 214461 12/9/2021 000685  GREAT AMERICA FINANCIAL SERVIC 30550710 CANON COLOR COPIER SYST 


#017-1249376


 214.24


Total :  214.24


 214462 12/9/2021 000634  HEYDAY RECORDS AND EVENTS 120721  BREAKFAST WITH SANTA 12/11/21  500.00


Total :  500.00


 214463 12/9/2021 001666  INFINITY TECHNOLOGIES 228 0000351 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SUPPORT 


SERVICES


 8,000.00


Total :  8,000.00


 214464 12/9/2021 000272  INLAND URGENT CARE 72730 PRE-EMPLOYMENT TESTING 11/22/21 - B 


RIVE


 95.00


 65.00PRE-EMPLOYMENT TESTING 11/17/21 - D 


YORK


73100


Total :  160.00


 214465 12/9/2021 000072  INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP 73175 SEPT 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC - CIP -  53,307.72


 76,170.25SEPT 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVC -73293







12/09/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


3


12:43:13PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


(Continued) Total :  129,477.97 214465 12/9/2021 000072 000072  INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP


 214466 12/9/2021 001005  PEOPLEREADY INC 26941367 CONTRACTUAL SVC - ROOTED IN NATURE 


EVENT


 248.68


Total :  248.68


 214467 12/9/2021 001262  PEST OPTIONS INC 388842 NOVEMBER 2021 GOPHER CONTROL - 


WINDSONG


 500.00


Total :  500.00


 214468 12/9/2021 000185  PITNEY BOWES 1019514911 12/16/21-03/15/22 POSTAGE METER RENTAL  97.88


Total :  97.88


 214469 12/9/2021 001107  PLACEWORKS 76795 OCTOBER 2021 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES - 


PROJ


 7,841.00


 100.00OCTOBER 2021 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES - 


PROJ


76796


 63.75OCTOBER 2021 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES - 


PROJ


76799


 253.00OCTOBER 2021 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES - 


PROJ


76891


 63.00OCTOBER 2021 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES - 


PROJ


76892


 1,180.00OCTOBER 2021 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES - 


CIP


76893


 285.00OCTOBER 2021 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES - 


PROJ


76894


 285.00OCTOBER 2021 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES - 


PROJ


76895


 3,772.75OCTOBER 2021 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES - 


HOUS


76896


Total :  13,843.50


 214470 12/9/2021 000526  PRINT POSTAL 16153 NON-DEPT SUPPLIES  41.03


Total :  41.03


 214471 12/9/2021 000042  PV MAINTENANCE, INC. 005-248 NOVEMBER 2021 CITYWIDE MAINTENANCE 


CONTR


 55,153.55


Total :  55,153.55


 214472 12/9/2021 000149  RIVERSIDE COUNTY EXECUTIVE, OFFICE102021 SCFA ANIMAL SHELTER FY 21/22 DEBT SVC 


1


 64,725.50







12/09/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


4


12:43:13PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214472 12/9/2021 (Continued)000149  RIVERSIDE COUNTY EXECUTIVE, OFFICE


 69,890.00OCT 2021-DEC 2021 ANIMAL SHELTERING 


SVCS


2022-02WIL


Total :  134,615.50


 214473 12/9/2021 001101  SIGNS BY TOMORROW 27478 COVID-19 FRONT COUNTER TI 109/110 


SIGNS


 1,319.10


 363.18ROOTED IN NATURE EVENT27731


 547.50WILDOMAR PUBLIC HEARING SIGN 20-007827783


 547.50WILDOMAR PUBLIC HEARING SIGN27822


 547.50WILDOMAR PUBLIC HEARING SIGN27936


Total :  3,324.78


Bank total :  462,041.94 23 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 462,041.94Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 23







12/16/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


12:38:49PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214480 12/16/2021 000210  ALBERT A. WEBB ASSOCIATES 214599 COMMONS @ HIDDEN SPRINGS MND  17,551.25


Total :  17,551.25


 214481 12/16/2021 000033  AMERICAN FORENSIC NURSES 75121 BLOOD DRAW (2)  110.00


 55.00BLOOD DRAW (1)75152


 55.00BLOOD DRAW (1)75153


 61.22BLOOD DRAW (1)75310


 61.22BLOOD DRAW (1)75320


Total :  342.44


 214482 12/16/2021 000029  APPLEONE 01-6133277 BUILDING ADMIN W/E 12/04/21  848.64


Total :  848.64


 214483 12/16/2021 001518  ASSISTANCE LEAGUE OF TEMECULA, VALLEY121421 OPERATION SCHOOL BELL FY21/22  4,365.57


Total :  4,365.57


 214484 12/16/2021 001468  BANKS, ARRIN 120221 PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 12/01/21  75.00


Total :  75.00


 214485 12/16/2021 001419  BERNARD, BRIANNA 120221 PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 12/01/21  75.00


Total :  75.00


 214486 12/16/2021 000034  BIO-TOX LABORATORIES 42036 RC SHERIFF - LAB SERVICES  118.00


 46.00RC SHERIFF - LAB SERVICES42037


Total :  164.00


 214487 12/16/2021 001330  BMW MOTORCYCLES OF RIVERSIDE 6028876/1 BMW MOTORCYCLE MAINTENANCE - 


SHERIFF


 252.20


Total :  252.20


 214488 12/16/2021 001727  CRAZY EIGHTS LLC 121521 ROW ACQUISITION CIP 059  1,825.00


Total :  1,825.00


 214489 12/16/2021 000058  DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 547082 OCT 2021 POLICE BLOOD ALCOHOL  385.00


Total :  385.00


 214490 12/16/2021 000022  EDISON 120121-0828 11/01/21-11/30/21 ELECTRIC - WILDOMAR CI  204.50


 289.6411/01/21-11/30/21 ELECTRIC - CFD 2013-00120121-0962


 44.1611/01/21-11/30/21 ELECTRIC - CFD 2013-00120121-1202







12/16/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


2


12:38:49PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214490 12/16/2021 (Continued)000022  EDISON


 254.9811/01/21-11/30/21 ELECTRIC - CFD 2013-00120121-1757


 5,303.9611/01/21-11/30/21 ELECTRIC120121-4293


 19.5711/01/21-11/30/21 ELECTRIC - CSA 103120121-4487


 78.6511/01/21-11/30/21 ELECTRIC - CFD 2013-1120121-4845


 24.2211/01/21-11/30/21 ELECTRIC - CFD 2013-00120121-7504


 267.4211/01/21-11/30/21 ELECTRIC - CFD 2013-00120121-7694


 157.3011/01/21-11/30/21 ELECTRIC - CFD 2013-00120121-8975


 302.0311/01/21-11/30/21 ELECTRIC - CFD 2013-00120121-9127


Total :  6,946.43


 214491 12/16/2021 001343  FILAR, ERIC 120221 PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 12/01/21  75.00


Total :  75.00


 214492 12/16/2021 001222  FOBRO CONSULTING LLC 126 0000348 CONTRACTUAL SVCS 07/01/21-06/30/22 AS 


PE


 4,015.00


Total :  4,015.00


 214493 12/16/2021 001728  FORENSIC NURSES OF SOCAL, INC. 1798 POLICE DEPT - SEXUAL ASSAULT EXAM 


11/12/


 1,200.00


 800.00POLICE DEPT - SUSPECT FORENSIC EXAM 


11/1


1800


 800.00POLICE DEPT - PEDIATRIC FORENSIC 


EXAM 11


1807


 800.00POLICE DEPT - SUSPECT FORENSIC EXAM 


11/2


1808


Total :  3,600.00


 214494 12/16/2021 001690  GALLS, LLC 19190059 CODE ENFORCEMENT UNIFORM  929.81


 929.81CODE ENFORCEMENT UNIFORM19190060


Total :  1,859.62


 214495 12/16/2021 000685  GREAT AMERICA FINANCIAL SERVIC 30602133 CANON COLOR COPIER SYSTEM 


#003-1228588


 214.24


Total :  214.24


 214496 12/16/2021 001666  INFINITY TECHNOLOGIES 263 0000376 MONTHLY GIS CONTRACTUAL SERVICES - 


FLAT


 2,000.00


Total :  2,000.00







12/16/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


3


12:38:49PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214497 12/16/2021 000272  INLAND URGENT CARE 72500 PRE-EMPLOYMENT TESTING 11/22/21 A 


DIAZ,


 190.00


Total :  190.00


 214498 12/16/2021 000016  INNOVATIVE DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS 236335 11/1/21-11/30/21 CONTRACT COPIER SVCS, 


M


 803.71


Total :  803.71


 214499 12/16/2021 001640  JAMES MCMINN INC 120821 BUNDY CYN RD WIDE CIP 026-1 


RCFC/TUMF/RC


 36,643.74


Total :  36,643.74


 214500 12/16/2021 000879  LLOYD, JOHN 120221 PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 12/01/21  75.00


Total :  75.00


 214501 12/16/2021 001107  PLACEWORKS 77095 NOVEMBER 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVCS - 


ZONE CO


 4,929.75


 1,182.50NOVEMBER 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVCS - 


CIP 025


77096


 50.00NOVEMBER 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVCS - 


PROJECT


77097


 252.00NOVEMBER 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVCS - 


PROJECT


77098


 826.00NOVEMBER 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVCS - 


PROJECT


77099


 1,710.00NOVEMBER 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVCS - 


PROJECT


77100


 537.00NOVEMBER 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVCS - 


PROJECT


77101


 95.00NOVEMBER 2021 CONTRACTUAL SVCS - 


PROJECT


77102


Total :  9,582.25


 214502 12/16/2021 001720  STERICYCLE, INC 8000451245 CONTRACTUAL SHREDDING SVC (11/03/21)  164.81


Total :  164.81


 214503 12/16/2021 001255  STEVE'S TOWING INC 130384 CASE WI212790025  280.00


Total :  280.00


 214504 12/16/2021 001505  THE ENDEAVOR PRODUCTION, GROUP 1038 VIDEO PRODUCATION-STATE OF THE CITY 


2021


 850.00







12/16/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


4


12:38:49PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


(Continued) Total :  850.00 214504 12/16/2021 001505 001505  THE ENDEAVOR PRODUCTION, GROUP


 214505 12/16/2021 001571  THE OFFICE FURNITURE EXPERT INV-11100 OFFICE FURNITURE - FS61  1,219.10


Total :  1,219.10


 214506 12/16/2021 000006  WELLS FARGO PAYMENT REMITTANCE, CENTER110121 VIDEO HOSTING SOFTWARE  250.00


Total :  250.00


 214507 12/16/2021 000006  WELLS FARGO PAYMENT REMITTANCE, CENTER111021 LINQ - HOTEL  124.72


 79.99MARKETING PLATFORM SUBSCRIPTION111621


Total :  204.71


Bank total :  94,857.71 28 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 94,857.71Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 28







12/22/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 2:08:40PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214510 12/22/2021 000088  ACE HARDWARE 306192/3 HR DEPT SUPPLIES  61.54


 67.11MARNA OBRIEN DEPT SUPPLIES306280/3


Total :  128.65


 214511 12/22/2021 000031  AFLAC, REMITTANCE PROCESSING, CENTER412103 DECEMBER 2021 MEDICAL INSURANCE 


BENEFIT


 2,269.24


Total :  2,269.24


 214512 12/22/2021 001590  ALL AMERICAN ASPHALT 122021 0000358 CIP 057 CITYWIDE RD MAINT & REHAB 


PROG P


 508,688.79


Total :  508,688.79


 214513 12/22/2021 001627  AMERICAN EAGLE TROPHIES 6552 ACRYLIC AWARD - HR  115.28


Total :  115.28


 214514 12/22/2021 001731  AVENU INSIGHTS & ANALYTICS INV06-013287 SALES & USE TAX REPORT SYST SUTA SVC 


FOR


 6,035.49


 8,935.41SALES & USE TAX REPORT SYST SUTA 


DIST SV


INV06-013288


Total :  14,970.90


 214515 12/22/2021 000068  COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, FIRE DEPARTMENT234661 07/01/21-09/30/21 FIRE PROTECTION 


SERVIC


 800,715.89


-5,141.6607/01/21-09/30/21 FIRE PROTECTION 


SERVIC


234661CR


Total :  795,574.23


 214516 12/22/2021 000011  CR&R INC. 2797 11/01/21-11/30/21 STREET & BIKE LAKE 


SWE


 603.08


 1,203.2411/12/21 & 11/17/21 DUMP 40 YD BOX & DIS342331


 224.7112/01/21  3 YD BOX - BASEBALL FIELD342355


 260.0312/01/21  3 YD BOX - FIRE STATION #61342411


Total :  2,291.06


 214517 12/22/2021 000058  DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 540344 OCTOBER 2021 FINGERPRINT APPS  32.00


Total :  32.00


 214518 12/22/2021 000027  DIRECT TV 082317220X211213 12/12/21-01/11/22 CITY HALL CABLE SERVIC  153.99


Total :  153.99







12/22/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


2


 2:08:40PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214519 12/22/2021 001703  DLT SOLUTIONS LLC SI540834 0000365 AUTOCAD SINGLE USER 3 DEVICES  ELD 


INCLU


 4,705.09


Total :  4,705.09


 214520 12/22/2021 000075  DOGGIE WALK BAGS, INC. 0097243-IN DISPENSER BAGS - MARNA 


OBRIEN/REGENCY HE


 573.19


Total :  573.19


 214521 12/22/2021 000022  EDISON 121421-3123 10/13/21-12/13/21 ELECTRIC - CITY HALL #  282.76


 286.5510/13/21-12/13/21 ELECTRIC - CITY HALL #121421-3487


 188.1710/13/21-12/13/21 ELECTRIC - CITY HALL #121421-7255


 37.1110/13/21-12/13/21 ELECTRIC - CFD 2013-00121421-8408


 11.4911/17/21-12/16/21 ELECTRIC - WILDOMAR 


31


121721-3767


 29.7011/17/21-12/16/21 ELECTRIC - 32975 WILLO121721-5249


 73.9411/17/21-12/16/21 ELECTRIC - 32975 WILLO121721-7633


Total :  909.72


 214522 12/22/2021 001664  EXPRESS EVENTS 121121C BREAKFAST WITH SANTA EVENT  166.80


Total :  166.80


 214523 12/22/2021 001222  FOBRO CONSULTING LLC 127 0000348 CONTRACTUAL SVCS 07/01/21-06/30/22 AS 


PE


 3,520.00


Total :  3,520.00


 214524 12/22/2021 000685  GREAT AMERICA FINANCIAL SERVIC 30637801 CANON COLOR COPIER SYST. 


#015-1472515


 359.97


 214.24CANON COLOR COPIER SYST. 


#016-1585799


30641917


Total :  574.21


 214525 12/22/2021 000499  INLAND EMPIRE LANDSCAPE INC 37544 NOVEMBER 2021 LANDSCAPE 


MAINTENANCE


 14,735.66


Total :  14,735.66


 214526 12/22/2021 001640  JAMES MCMINN INC 122121 BUNDY CANYON RD WIDE CIP 026-1 PROG 


PAY


 223,316.07


Total :  223,316.07


 214527 12/22/2021 001398  LUNA, CAMERON 122021 12/04/21-12/20/21 MILEAGE 


REIMBURSEMENT


 13.44







12/22/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


3


 2:08:40PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


(Continued) Total :  13.44 214527 12/22/2021 001398 001398  LUNA, CAMERON


 214528 12/22/2021 001337  MPS SECURITY 1548 0000357 WILDOMAR PARKS PATROL SVC - FY21/22 


AS D


 2,128.00


0000357  2,204.00WILDOMAR PARKS PATROL SVC - FY21/22 


AS D


1591


Total :  4,332.00


 214529 12/22/2021 000185  PITNEY BOWES 120621 POSTAGE METER REFILL 11/30/21  503.50


Total :  503.50


 214530 12/22/2021 000526  PRINT POSTAL 16196 NON-DEPT SUPPLIES - COVID-19  82.05


Total :  82.05


 214531 12/22/2021 000186  RIGHTWAY 295566 12/09/21-01/05/22 - PORTA/WASHSTN - 


WIND


 402.00


Total :  402.00


 214532 12/22/2021 001732  ROSALES, ANNELLE 122021 12/04/21-12/17/21 MILEAGE 


REIMBURSEMENT


 30.85


Total :  30.85


 214533 12/22/2021 001393  SOCALGAS 121421 11/09/21-12/10/21 GAS - FIRE DEPT 32637  66.90


Total :  66.90


 214534 12/22/2021 000790  SPARKLETTS 121121 CITY HALL DRINKING WATER THROUGH 


12/11/2


 119.33


Total :  119.33


 214535 12/22/2021 001495  TIME WARNER CABLE 2318120821 CABLE THROUGH 01/07/22 - FS61  5.32


Total :  5.32


 214536 12/22/2021 000918  TKE ENGINEERING INC 2021-1031 10/01/21-10/31/21 CONTRACTUAL 


SERVICES


 105.00


 105.0010/01/21-10/31/21 CONTRACTUAL 


SERVICES


2021-1032


 105.0010/01/21-10/31/21 CONTRACTUAL 


SERVICES


2021-1033


 105.0010/01/21-10/31/21 CONTRACTUAL 


SERVICES


2021-1034


 105.0010/01/21-10/31/21 CONTRACTUAL 


SERVICES


2021-1035







12/22/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


4


 2:08:40PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214536 12/22/2021 (Continued)000918  TKE ENGINEERING INC


 105.0010/01/21-10/31/21 CONTRACTUAL 


SERVICES


2021-1036


 560.0004/01/21-10/31/21 CONTRACTUAL 


SERVICES


2021-958


 5,535.0010/01/21-10/31/21 CONTRACTUAL 


SERVICES


2021-961


 166.5007/01/21-10/31/21 CONTRACTUAL 


SERVICES


2021-962


 1,048.0009/01/21-10/31/21 CONTRACTUAL 


SERVICES


2021-963


 1,503.0010/01/21-10/31/21 CONTRACTUAL 


SERVICES


2021-964


 1,568.0010/01/21-10/31/21 CONTRACTUAL 


SERVICES


2021-965


 333.0010/01/21-10/31/21 CONTRACTUAL 


SERVICES


2021-966


 4,883.0009/01/21-10/31/21 CONTRACTUAL 


SERVICES


2021-967


 881.5009/01/21-10/31/21 CONTRACTUAL 


SERVICES


2021-968


 390.0010/01/21-10/31/21 CONTRACTUAL 


SERVICES


2021-969


 195.0010/01/21-10/31/21 CONTRACTUAL 


SERVICES


2021-970


 556.5010/01/21-10/31/21 CONTRACTUAL 


SERVICES


2021-971


 15,960.0010/01/21-10/31/21 CONTRACTUAL 


SERVICES


2021-972


 735.0009/01/21-10/31/21 CONTRACTUAL 


SERVICES


2021-973


 2,205.0009/26/21-10/31/21 CONTRACTUAL 


SERVICES


2021-974


Total :  37,149.50


 214537 12/22/2021 001733  VP SPECIALTY OPERATIONS, BANKING MANAGER122021 CIP 057 CITYWIDE RD MAINT & REHAB 


PROG P


 26,773.09


Total :  26,773.09


Bank total :  1,642,202.86 28 Vouchers for bank code : wf







12/22/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


5


 2:08:40PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 1,642,202.86Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 28







ACH Date Payee Description Amount


12/7/2021 Wright Express Fuel Purchases 290.94$                


12/15/2021 CFT NV Developments Monthly Lease Payment 37,320.23             


12/17/2021 US Bank
Office Supplies, Repairs & 


Maintenance, and Registrations
10,591.37             


12/20/2021 Enterprise Fleet Management Monthly Vehicle Lease Payment 4,179.05               


TOTAL 52,381.59$           


City of Wildomar


Wire Transfer Register


12/31/2021







ACH Date Payee Description Amount


12/9/2021 Heartland Payroll 11/20/2021-12/03/2021 86,336.72$            


12/23/2021 Heartland Payroll 12/04/2021-12/17/2021 89,256.98


12/31/2021 Heartland Payroll 12/01/2021-12/31/2021 1,530.24


TOTAL 177,123.94$          


City of Wildomar


Payroll Warrant Register


1/1/2022







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.4 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: January 12, 2022 


 
TO:   Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Robert Howell, City Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT:  Treasurer’s Report 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the Treasurer’s Report for November 
2021. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Attached is the Treasurer’s Report for Cash and Investments for the month of November 
2021. The City utilizes both the California State Treasurer’s Local Agency Investment 
Fund (LAIF) and the California Asset Management Program (CAMP) for its city 
investments. Utilizing the two investment programs allows the City to potentially increase 
the interest earned on the money held.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Robert Howell      Gary Nordquist 
City Treasurer      City Manager   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Treasurer’s Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 


 







BEGINNING + (-) ENDING
FUND ACCOUNT INSTITUTION BALANCE DEPOSITS WITHDRAWALS BALANCE RATE


All All WELLS FARGO # 7,589,522.18  $ 2,016,777.40 (1,975,294.07)  $ 7,631,005.51 0.000%


TOTAL  $ 7,589,522.18  $ 2,016,777.40  $ (1,975,294.07)  $ 7,631,005.51


PERCENT
OF DAYS STATED


FUND BOOK VALUE FACE VALUE MARKET VALUE PORTFOLIO TO MAT. RATE


All  $ 9,665,604.54  $ 9,665,604.54  $ 9,665,604.54 100.00% 0 0.203%
All  $ 5,593,421.76  $ 5,593,421.76  $ 5,593,421.76 100.00% 0 0.050%


TOTAL  $ 15,259,026.30  $ 15,259,026.30  $ 15,259,026.30 100.00%


CITY $ 22,890,031.81


(-)
+ WITHDRAWALS/


BEGINNING DEPOSITS/ SALES/ ENDING STATED
FUND BALANCE PURCHASES MATURITIES BALANCE RATE


All  $ 9,665,604.54  $ 0.00  $ 0.00  $ 9,665,604.54 0.203%
All  $ 5,593,189.19  $ 232.57  $ 0.00  $ 5,593,421.76 0.050%


TOTAL  $ 15,258,793.73  $ 232.57  $ 0.00  $ 15,259,026.30


 


CITY OF WILDOMAR
TREASURER'S REPORT FOR


CASH AND INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO
November 2021


TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENT


CITY INVESTMENT


In compliance with the California Code Section 53646, as City Treasurer for the City of Wildomar, I hereby certify that sufficient investment liquidity and anticipated revenues 
are available to meet the City's expenditure requirements for the next six months, and that all investments are in compliance with the City's Statement of Investment Policy.


I also certify that this report reflects all Government Agency pooled investments and all of the City's Bank Balances.


CITY CASH


ISSUER


CALIFORNIA ASSET MANAGEMENT PROGRAM


CALIFORNIA ASSET MANAGEMENT PROGRAM


CITY INVESTMENT (Continued)


LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND


LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUNDS


ISSUER


Robert Howell
Robert Howell
City Treasurer


Date


1/5/2022







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.5 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: January 12, 2022 


 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Matthew C. Bassi, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: 2nd Reading of Ordinance No. 209 – Monte Vista Ranch Townhome Project 


STAFF REPORT 


RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Commission recommends that the City Council adopt the following 
Ordinances entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 209 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING CHANGE OF ZONE NO. 
21-0045 TO CHANGE THE EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION 


FROM C-O (COMMERCIAL OFFICE) TO R-3 (GENERAL 
RESIDENTIAL) FOR A 7.93-ACRE SITE LOCATED ON NORTHEAST 


CORNER OF MONTE VISTA DRIVE AND SUMMER SAGE WAY 
(APN: 367-502-002, 367-502-003, 367-502-004) 


DISCUSSION: 
The City Council approved the first reading of Ordinance No. 209 at the December 15, 
2021 City Council meeting for the Monte Vista Ranch Townhome Project (PA 21-0045). 
At this time, it would be appropriate for the City Council to adopt Ordinance No. 203. 
 
 
 


Submitted by:     Approved by: 
Matthew Bassi     Gary Nordquist 
Planning Director     City Manager 


ATTACHMENT: 
A. Ordinance No. 209 







ATTACHMENT A 
 


Ordinance No. 209 
 
  







ORDINANCE NO. 209 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING CHANGE OF ZONE NO. 
21-0045 TO CHANGE THE EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION 
FROM C-O (COMMERCIAL OFFICE) TO R-3 (GENERAL 
RESIDENTIAL) FOR A 7.93-ACRE SITE LOCATED ON 
NORTHEAST CORNER OF MONTE VISTA DRIVE AND SUMMER 
SAGE WAY (APN: 367-502-002, 367-502-003, 367-502-004) 


THE WILDOMAR CITY COUNCIL DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 


SECTION 1. CEQA ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION 
The approval of General Plan Amendment No. 2021-04 (PA 21-0045) is in 


compliance with requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), in 
that on December 15, 2021, at a duly noticed public hearing, the City Council adopted the 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (SCH No. 2021080301), including the 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program reflecting its independent judgment and 
analysis and documenting the environmental impacts and mitigation measures related to 
the proposed Change of Zone No. 21-0045 for the Monte Vista Ranch II Townhome 
project.  The documents comprising the City’s environmental review for the project are on 
file and available for public review at Wildomar City Hall, 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 
201, Wildomar, CA 92595. 


SECTION 2. MULTIPLE SPECIES HABITAT CONSERVATION PLAN (MSHCP) 
 The proposed General Plan Amendment No. 2021-04 (PA 21-0045) for the Monte 
Vista Ranch II Townhome project is found to be consistent with the MSHCP.  The project 
is located outside of any MSHCP criteria area and mitigation is provided through payment 
of the MSHCP Mitigation Fee. 


SECTION 3. CHANGE OF ZONE FINDINGS 
In accordance with the State of California, Government Code 65856 and 65857 and 


Chapter 17.280 of the Zoning Ordinance, the City Council, in light of the whole record 
before it, including but not limited to the Planning Department’s staff report and all 
documents incorporated by reference herein, the City’s General Plan and any other 
evidence within the record or provided at the public hearing of this matter, finds and 
determines as follows: 
 
A. The proposed change of zone is in conformance with the adopted General Plan for 


the City of Wildomar. 
 


Evidence:  The proposal to change the zoning map from the existing zoning 
designation of C-O (Commercial Office) to R-3 (General Residential) for the 7.93 
acre site is highly consistent with the Wildomar General Plan in that the HDR land 
use designation is intended to encourage the development of multi-family housing, 
especially for-sale townhomes/condominiums which provides for valuable home 
ownership opportunities for Wildomar residents.  The proposed zone change to R-3 







will also be consistent with and implement the following goals and polices of the 
General Plan: 
LU 2.1 The proposed project will accommodate a land use development that is 


in accordance with patterns and distribution of land uses that are 
depicted on the General Plan Land Use map proposed for the subject 
site. 


LU 4.1 The proposed project will accommodate a land use development 
proposal that is located and designed to visually enhance and not 
degrade the character of the surrounding area. 


LU 6.1 The proposed project will be developed in accordance with the proposed 
General Plan land use designation that ensures compatibility and 
minimizes impacts. 


LU 22.1 The proposed project will accommodate the development of single 
family detached dwellings in an area that is appropriately designated by 
the General Plan. 


LU 22.4 The proposed project will provide a specific housing type, style and 
density that is accessible to and, meets the needs, of a range of 
lifestyles, physical abilities and income levels. 


LU 22.10 The proposed project is designed to consider the surrounding areas to 
visually enhance, and not degrade, the appearance of adjacent 
residential structures. 


LU23.6 The proposed project will have proper mitigation measures to protect 
the neighboring residential areas from noise, light, fumes, odors, 
vehicular traffic, parking and operational hazards.  


LU23.7 The proposed project will be served by water and sewer along provided 
by EVMWD to meet the project demands.  


LU23.1 The proposed project will accommodate the development of a new hotel 
that will provide jobs and sales tax revenues for the general fund. 


LU24.1 The proposed project will accommodate the development of a new 
business park land uses that will provide jobs and sales tax revenues 
for the general fund.  


LU24.8 The proposed project will accommodate a land use development 
proposal that is located and designed to visually enhance and not 
degrade the character of the surrounding area. 


H-1.1 The proposed single family project will help ensure a sufficient supply of 
properly planned land to meet housing needs identified in the City’s 
Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) required in the Housing 
Element. 


H-6.1 The proposed single project will utilize energy conservation measures in 
that each enclosed garage space is conditioned to have an EV charging 







outlet for electric vehicles, and will be designed to meet Cal-Green 
Building code standards. 


SECTION 4:  AMENDMENT TO THE ZONING MAP 
The City Council, based on the findings above, hereby approves Change of Zone 


No. 21-0045 to change the existing zoning form C-O (Commercial Office) to R-3 (General 
Residential) for the property identified as APN: 367-502-002, 367-502-003, 367-502-004 
located at the northeast Corner of Monte Vista Drive & Summer Sage Way as illustrated 
herein as Exhibit 1 to this Ordinance. 


SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE ORDINANCE. 
This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and operation thirty (30) days 


after its second reading and adoption. 


SECTION 6  SEVERABILITY. 
If any section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 


Ordinance is, for any reason, held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any 
court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this Ordinance.  The City Council hereby declares that it would have adopted 
this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or 
portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, 
subdivisions, sentences, clauses, phrases, or portions thereof be declared invalid or 
unconstitutional. 


SECTION 7.  CITY CLERK ACTION 
The City Clerk is authorized and directed to cause this Ordinance to be published 


within fifteen (15) days after its passage in a newspaper of general circulation and 
circulated within the City in accordance with Government Code Section 36933(a) or, to 
cause this Ordinance to be published in the manner required by law using the alternative 
summary and pasting procedure authorized under Government Code Section 39633(c). 


 


PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED, this 12th day of January, 2022. 
 
 
 
       _______________________________ 


Ben J. Benoit 
Mayor 


 
 
 
 
 
 







APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________   ________________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales, CMC 
City Attorney      City Clerk 
  







EXHIBIT 1  
(APN: 367-502-002, 367-502-003, 367-502-004) 


 


 
 


Zone Change 
Subject Site to R-3 







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.6 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: January 12, 2022 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO: Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Dan York, Assistant City Manager 
 
PREPARED: Emily Stadnik, Land Development Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Horizons by Lennar Homes, Tentative Tract Map 36672 Rough Grading 


Agreement 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the City Manager to execute the Rough 
Grading Agreement with Lennar Homes of California, Inc. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On February 10, 2016, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2016-15 approving 
Tentative Tract Map No. 36672 to subdivide the approximate 18.41 site into three (3) lots 
to accommodate the proposed project located at the northwest corner of Elizabeth Lane 
and Prielipp Road. An aerial image of the project site and the surrounding area is provided 
in Attachment A.  On October 7, 2020, the Planning Commission approved a minor 
change to Tentative Tract Map No. 36672. All the original conditions of approval and 
mitigation measures adopted by the City Council remained in full force and effect.  
Tentative Tract Map No. 36672’s approved expiration date is February 10, 2022.  On 
March 10, 2021, the City Council approved the final map for Tract No. 36672 and 
executed Subdivision Improvement Agreements for all the lots.  The grading and 
improvement plans for this residential development are currently being processed with 
the City.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
Rough Grading Agreement 
The Developer is processing rough grading plans for the project.  In order to complete 
rough grading activities, the Developer is required to enter into a Rough Grading 
Agreement (Attachment B) which identifies the Developer’s obligations to the City in 
performing and completing the rough grading construction. The agreement also provides 
the City with bonds to secure the rough grading activities. If the Developer fails to fulfill 
their obligations, the bonds provide a mechanism for the City to ensure that the 
construction site is brought to a safe and acceptable condition. The bonds are based on 
the Developer’s engineer’s grading bond estimate and is included in Attachment B. 
 







Staff is requesting that the City Council authorize the City Manager to execute the Rough 
Grading Agreement with Lennar Homes of California, Inc. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There are no fiscal impacts to the City at this time. All costs related to this process are 
covered by developer deposits.  
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Daniel A. York      Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager,     City Manager 
Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 


A. Aerial Image of Horizons by Lennar Homes, Tract Map No. 36672 
B. Rough Grading Agreement, Bond, and Grading Bond Estimate 


 







ATTACHMENT A


Aerial Image of
Horizons by Lennar Homes  TR36672 Project


(highlighted in yellow)







ATTACHMENT B


Rough Grading Agreement, Bond and 
Grading Bond Estimate







RIV #4849-0958-0384 v2 


AGREEMENT
FOR ROUGH GRADING PROJECTS


This Agreement, made and entered into by and between the City of Wildomar, Riverside County, State of California, 
hereinafter called City, and Lennar Homes of California, Inc., hereinafter called Landowner.


WITNESSETH
FIRST: Landowner, for and in consideration of the approval of a grading plan and the issuance of a grading permit on 
that certain land division known as Horizons by Lennar Homes (the “Property”) agrees, at Landowner's own cost and 
expense, to furnish all labor, equipment, and material necessary to perform and complete in a good and workmanlike 
manner, within 12 months from the date this agreement is executed,  said grading and all work incidental thereto (the 
“Work”) in accordance with the grading plans for the development of the Property which have been approved by the 
City Engineer, and are on file in the Office of the City of Wildomar, Public Works/Engineering Department, and the 
standards set forth in Wildomar Municipal Code Chapter 15, as it may be amended from time to time, which are 
expressly made a part of this agreement. Landowner further agrees to comply with any and all laws, regulations and 
permits pertaining to water quality applicable to the Work, including but not limited to the Clean Water Act, the Porter-
Cologne Water Quality Control Act, and all permits and regulations issued pursuant thereto. All of the above required 
work shall be done under the inspection of and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer and shall not be deemed 
complete until approval of the Work is made by the City Engineer. The estimated cost of said Work is the sum of Nine 
Hundred Fifty-Three Thousand Five Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($953,500.00), which covers rough grading only.


SECOND: Landowner agrees to pay to the City the actual cost of such inspections of the Work as may be required by the 
City Engineer. Landowner further agrees that if suit is brought upon this agreement or any security guaranteeing the 
completion of the Work, all costs and reasonable expenses and fees incurred by the City in successfully enforcing such 
obligations shall be paid by Landowner, including reasonable attorney's fees, and that upon entry of judgment, such 
costs, expenses, and fees shall be taxed as costs and included in any judgment rendered.


THIRD: City shall not, nor shall any officer or employee of City, be liable or responsible for any accident, loss or damage 
happening or occurring to the Work specified in this agreement prior to the completion and approval hereof, nor shall 
City or any officer or employee thereof be liable for any persons or property injured by reason of the acts or omissions 
of Landowner, his agents or employees in the performance of the Work, and all of said liabilities are assumed by 
Landowner. Landowner agrees to protect, defend and hold harmless City and the officers and employees thereof from 
all loss, liability or claim because of, or arising out of the acts or omissions of Landowner, his agents and employees, in 
the performance of this Agreement.  Separately, and not as a limitation on the foregoing duty to protect, defend, and 
indemnify City, Landowner agrees, as required by Section 13.12.090 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, to protect, defend 
and indemnify City, or any officer or employee thereof, in any administrative or judicial enforcement action by the State 
Water Board, Regional Water Quality Control Board, or any other federal, state or local agency, as well as in any action 
brought against the City by a non-governmental organization relating to one or more alleged violations of the NPDES 
permit or other federal, state or local water quality requirements by Landowner, his agents or employees, including but 
not limited to any and all costs, attorneys’ fees, fines or penalties. 


FOURTH: The Landowner hereby grants to the City, and to any agent or employee of the City, the irrevocable permission 
to enter upon the Property for the purpose of inspecting or completing the Work. This permission shall terminate in the 
event that Landowner has completed the Work within the time specified or any extension thereof granted by the City 
Engineer.


FIFTH: Landowner agrees at all times, up to the completion and approval of the Work by the City Engineer, to give good 
and adequate warning to the traveling public of each and every dangerous condition caused by the Work, and to protect 
the traveling public from such defective or dangerous conditions.







RIV #4849-0958-0384 v2 


SIXTH: The Landowner, or his agents and employees shall give notice to the City Engineer at least 48 hours before 
beginning the Work and shall furnish the City Engineer all reasonable facilities for obtaining full information respecting 
the progress and manner of the Work.


SEVENTH: If the Landowner, or his agents or employees, neglects, refuses, or fails to prosecute the Work with such 
diligence as to insure its completion within the specified time, or within such extensions of time as have been granted by 
the City Engineer, or if the Landowner violates, neglects, refuses, or fails to perform satisfactorily any of the provisions of 
the plans and specifications for the Work, the Landowner shall be in default of this agreement. The City Engineer shall 
have the power to terminate all rights of the Landowner because of such default. The determination of the City Engineer 
of the question as to whether any of the terms of this agreement or the plans and specifications for the Work have been 
violated or have not been performed satisfactorily shall be conclusive upon the Landowner, and any and all parties who 
may have any interest in the agreement or any portion thereof. The foregoing provisions of this section shall be in 
addition to all rights and remedies available to the City under law.


EIGHTH: The Landowner agrees to file with City prior to the date this agreement is executed a good and sufficient 
security as provided in subsections (1), (2) and (3) of subdivision (a) of Section 66499 of the Government Code in any 
amount not less than the estimated cost of the Work for the faithful performance of the terms and conditions of this 
agreement, except that when the estimated cost of said Work is $2,500 or less, the security shall be a deposit of cash or 
its equivalent as determined acceptable by the City Engineer. Landowner further agrees that if in the opinion of the City 
Engineer the security becomes insufficient, Landowner agrees to renew each and every security with good and sufficient 
sureties or increase the amount of the security, within ten days after being notified by the City Engineer that the sureties 
or amounts are insufficient. 


Notwithstanding any other provision herein, if landowner fails to take such action as is necessary to comply with said 
notice, he shall be in default of this agreement unless the Work is completed within 90 days of the date on which the 
City Engineer notifies the Landowner of the insufficiency of the sureties or the amount of the bonds or both.


NINTH: It is further agreed by and between the parties hereto, including the surety or sureties on the bonds or the 
issuers of any instruments or letters or credit securing this agreement that, in the event it is deemed necessary to 
extend the time of completion of the Work, extensions of time may be granted from time to time by the City Engineer 
either at his own option or upon request of the Landowner, and such extensions shall in no way affect the validity of this 
agreement or release the surety or sureties on said bonds. Landowner further agrees to maintain the aforesaid bond or 
bonds or the issuance of any instruments or letters of credit in full force and effect during the terms of this agreement, 
including any extensions of time as may be granted thereon.


TENTH: When the Work described in the first paragraph of this agreement consists of only rough or precise grading, 
upon the satisfactory completion and final approval of said Work by the City Engineer, the entire amount of the security 
applicable thereto shall be released or returned by City to the Landowner.


ELEVENTH: This agreement shall be binding upon the Landowner and his heirs, executors, administrators, successors or 
assigns, all and each both jointly and severally.


TWELFTH: It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that if any part, term or provision of this agreement is 
determined by the courts to be unlawful and void, the validity of the remaining portions shall not be affected and the 
rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the agreement did not contain the particular 
part, term or provision held to be invalid.


THIRTEENTH: The City's City Manager may, but is not required to, make minor amendments not affecting substantive 
terms without further authorization from the City Council. The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to 







RIV #4849-0958-0384 v2 


execute any such amendments as required by this Agreement or that do not otherwise reduce City's rights under this 
Agreement.


FOURTEENTH: Any notice or notices required or permitted to be given pursuant to this agreement shall be served on the 
other party by mail, postage prepaid, at the following addresses:


City Landowner
City of Wildomar Lennar Homes of California, Inc.
Public Works/Engineering Department Geoffrey Smith, Vice President 
23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 201 980 Montecito Drive, Suite 302
Wildomar, CA 92595 Corona, CA 92879
(951) 677-7751 (951) 817-3542
(951) 698-1463


FIFTEENTH:  Each of the signatories hereto represents and warrants that he or she is competent and authorized to enter 
into this Agreement on behalf of the Party for whom he or she purports to sign. Each Party hereto agrees to defend, 
indemnify, and hold harmless the other Parties hereto against all claims, suits, actions, and demands, including 
necessary expenses of investigation and reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, arising out of claims that its signatory was 
not competent or so authorized to sign this Agreement.


[SIGNATURES ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]



































City of Wildomar


Grading Bond Estimate Worksheet


For Onsite and Offsite Grading (includes streets)


Parcel Map/Tract Map No: TM 36672 Date: 10/28/2021


PP, CU, PU, MS OR VL No: City Project No: 21-0117


Quantity Unit Unit Cost Amount


1             LS 35,000.00$       35,000.00$      


1             LS 10,000.00$       10,000.00$      


1             LS 5,000.00$         5,000.00$        


223,155  CY 2.00$               446,310.00$    


46,246    CY 1.10$               50,870.60$      


450         SF 40.00$             18,000.00$      


5,700      SF 40.00$             228,000.00$    


975         LF 27.00$             26,325.00$      


3,565      LF 4.00$               14,260.00$      


4             EA 2,000.00$         8,000.00$        


920         LF 27.00$             24,840.00$      


5             EA 27.00$             135.00$           


86,674.06$      


953,500.00$    


10/28/2021


Signature Date


John D. Tanner III


Name (type or printed)


60132 6/30/2022


RCE No. Expiration Date


Civil Engineer's Stamp


1. Quantities are to be taken from the Improvement Plans.


2. Show Performance Bond Amounts to the nearest $500.00. 


3. For Construction items not covered by this worksheet, Design Engineer is to provide his opinion of 


construction cost and use that cost. 


Offsite Retaining Walls


Onsite Retaining Walls


Mobilization


Item


Erosion Control


Rough Grading


Demolition and Removal


Contractor Mobilization


Import and Export Material


Mass Excavation


Clearing and Grubbing


Temporary Facilities and Utilities


Place Gravel Bags to Protect Catch Basin


Place Gravel Bags to Prevent Scour


Install Stabilized Construction Entrance


Silt Fence


Place Gravel Bags 2 Course High


*** PLEASE READ INSTRUCTIONS BELOW *** 


Total


10% Contingency


Horizons - Project No. 21-0117







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.7 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: January 12, 2022 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Kimberly Davidson, Economic Development Director 
 
SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement for Kosmont Companies to 


conduct a Hotel Market Analysis in Wildomar 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the attached Agreement for Services 
with the Kosmont Companies to prepare a Hotel Market Analysis. 


 
STAFF REPORT 


 
BACKGROUND:  
The City is currently seeking assistance with economic development initiatives focused 
primarily on opportunities and development strategies that would result in an improved 
economic environment and related increased fiscal revenues for the City. The City sees 
opportunity sites along Clinton Keith Road and Wildomar Trail as well-suited for hotel 
development, given the proximity to I-15, as well as Inland Valley Medical Center and 
other regional attractions. Kosmont has previously (December 2020) assisted the City 
with a Commercial Market Analysis that provided demographic and market information 
and a high-level assessment of development and commercial opportunity areas. 
Consultant can build upon this previous work to provide a Hotel Market and Site 
Analysis that is specifically targeted toward hotel market information and development 
opportunities. This analysis is needed for the proper marketing of sites to hoteliers. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
This Hotel Market Analysis will provide data to show areas of opportunity for Wildomar’s 
growth, allowing the City and business interests to have a clear, data-driven vision of 
the hotel development opportunities in the City of Wildomar.  The City has never had 
such a report to share with hoteliers, and has been requested by hoteliers as a starting 
point for discussion. 
 
Staff met with hoteliers at the recent ICSC conference and the common request to 
consider locating in Wildomar was a site-specific hotel study. The data from this report 
will be an essential step to having meaningful conversations about Wildomar with 
targeted hoteliers and hotel developers. 
 
 







FISCAL IMPACT: 
The cost of the study is $19,000 and was approved as part of the FY 2021-22 Budget 
process. 
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Kimberly Davidson      Gary Nordquist 
Economic Development Director    City Manager 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Agreement for Services 
Kosmont Proposal 







// 2021 
RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  


 


AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 


 


By and Between 


 


THE CITY OF WILDOMAR,  


a municipal corporation 


 


and 


 


KOSMONT & ASSOCIATES, INC. 







RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  - 1 -  


 


AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 
BETWEEN 


THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA 
AND 


KOSMONT & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 
 


This Agreement for Services (“Agreement”) is entered into as of this 12th day of 
January, 2022 by and between the City of Wildomar, a municipal corporation (“City”) and 
Kosmont & Associates, Inc. (DBA Kosmont Companies), an S-Corp company (“Service 
Provider”).  City and Service Provider are sometimes hereinafter individually referred to 
as “Party” and hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Parties.” 


RECITALS 
A. City has sought, by informal quote, the performance of the services defined 


and described particularly in Section 2 of this Agreement.   


B. Service Provider, following submission of a quote, for the performance of 
the services defined and described particularly in Section 2 of this Agreement, was 
selected by the City to perform those services. 


C. Pursuant to the City of Wildomar’s Municipal Code, City has authority to 
enter into this Services Agreement and the City Manager has authority to execute this 
Agreement. 


D. The Parties desire to formalize the selection of Service Provider for 
performance of those services defined and described particularly in Section 2 of this 
Agreement and desire that the terms of that performance be as particularly defined and 
described herein. 


OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants made 
by the Parties and contained here and other consideration, the value and adequacy of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 


SECTION 1. TERM OF AGREEMENT. 


Subject to the provisions of Section 20 "Termination of Agreement" of this 
Agreement, the Term of this Agreement is for 3 months commencing on the date first 
ascribed above.  


SECTION 2. SCOPE OF SERVICES & SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE. 


(a) Scope of Services.  Service Provider agrees to perform the services set 
forth in Exhibit “A” “Scope of Services” (hereinafter, the “Services”) and made a part of 
this Agreement by this reference. 







RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  - 2 -  


 


(b) Schedule of Performance.  The Services shall be completed pursuant to the 
schedule specified in Exhibit “A.”  Should the Services not be completed pursuant to that 
schedule, the Service Provider shall be deemed to be in Default of this Agreement.  The 
City, in its sole discretion, may choose not to enforce the Default provisions of this 
Agreement and may instead allow Service Provider to continue performing the Services. 


SECTION 3. ADDITIONAL SERVICES. 


Service Provider shall not be compensated for any work rendered in connection 
with its performance of this Agreement that are in addition to or outside of the Services 
unless such additional services are authorized in advance and in writing in accordance 
with Section 26 “Administration and Implementation” or Section 28 “Amendment” of this 
Agreement.  If and when such additional work is authorized, such additional work shall 
be deemed to be part of the Services. 


SECTION 4. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT. 


(a) Subject to any limitations set forth in this Agreement, City agrees to pay 
Service Provider the amounts specified in Exhibit “B” “Compensation” and made a part of 
this Agreement by this reference.  The total compensation, including reimbursement for 
actual expenses, shall not exceed nineteen thousand dollars ($19,000), unless additional 
compensation is approved in writing in accordance with Section 26 “Administration and 
Implementation” or Section 28 “Amendment” of this Agreement. In accordance with 
California Government Code Section 8546.7, if the Not to Exceed Amount exceeds TEN 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00), this Agreement and the Service Provider's books 
and records related to this Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the 
State Auditor, at the request of City or as part of any audit of the City, for a period of three 
(3) years after final payment under the Agreement. 


(b) Each month Service Provider shall furnish to City an original invoice for all 
work performed and expenses incurred during the preceding month.  The invoice shall 
detail charges by the following categories: labor (by sub-category), travel, materials, 
equipment, supplies, and sub-Service Provider contracts.  Sub-Service Provider charges 
shall be detailed by the following categories: labor, travel, materials, equipment and 
supplies.   If the compensation set forth in subsection (a) and Exhibit “B” include payment 
of labor on an hourly basis (as opposed to labor and materials being paid as a lump sum), 
the labor category in each invoice shall include detailed descriptions of task performed 
and the amount of time incurred for or allocated to that task.  City shall independently 
review each invoice submitted by the Service Provider to determine whether the work 
performed and expenses incurred are in compliance with the provisions of this 
Agreement.  In the event that no charges or expenses are disputed, the invoice shall be 
approved and paid according to the terms set forth in subsection (c).  In the event any 
charges or expenses are disputed by City, the original invoice shall be returned by City 
to Service Provider for correction and resubmission. 


(c) Except as to any charges for work performed or expenses incurred by 
Service Provider which are disputed by City, City will use its best efforts to cause Service 







RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  - 3 -  


 


Provider to be paid within forty-five (45) days of receipt of Service Provider’s correct and 
undisputed invoice. 


(d) Payment to Service Provider for work performed pursuant to this Agreement 
shall not be deemed to waive any defects in work performed by Service Provider. 


SECTION 5. INSPECTION AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE. 


City may inspect and accept or reject any of Service Provider’s work under this 
Agreement, either during performance or when completed.  City shall reject or finally 
accept Service Provider’s work within sixty (60) days after submitted to City.  City shall 
reject work by a timely written explanation, otherwise Service Provider’s work shall be 
deemed to have been accepted.  City’s acceptance shall be conclusive as to such work 
except with respect to latent defects, fraud and such gross mistakes as amount to fraud.  
Acceptance of any of Service Provider’s work by City shall not constitute a waiver of any 
of the provisions of this Agreement including, but not limited to, Section 16 
“Indemnification” and Section 17 “Insurance.” 


SECTION 6. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. 


All original maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, 
reports, data, notes, computer files, files and other documents prepared, developed or 
discovered by Service Provider in the course of providing the Services pursuant to this 
Agreement shall become the sole property of City and may be used, reused or otherwise 
disposed of by City without the permission of the Service Provider.  Upon completion, 
expiration or termination of this Agreement, Service Provider shall turn over to City all 
such original maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, 
data, notes, computer files, files and other documents. 


If and to the extent that City utilizes for any purpose not related to this Agreement 
any maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, data, 
notes, computer files, files or other documents prepared, developed or discovered by 
Service Provider in the course of providing the Services pursuant to this Agreement, 
Service Provider’s guarantees and warranties in Section 9 “Standard of Performance” of 
this Agreement shall not extend to such use of the maps, models, designs, drawings, 
photographs, studies, surveys, reports, data, notes, computer files, files or other 
documents. 


All Final Work Product developed by Service Provider in the course of providing 
the Services pursuant to this Agreement shall become the sole property of City and may 
be used, reused or otherwise disposed of by City without the permission of the Service 
Provider.  Upon completion, expiration or termination of this Agreement, Service Provider 
shall turn over to City all such Final Work Product if paid for by the City.  This provision 
specifically excludes Service Providers’ work notes and drafts, which are owned by 
Service Provider, not City. 







RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  - 4 -  


 


SECTION 7. SERVICE PROVIDER'S BOOKS AND RECORDS. 


(a) Service Provider shall maintain any and all documents and records 
demonstrating or relating to Service Provider’s performance of the Services.  Service 
Provider shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of account, invoices, vouchers, 
canceled checks, or other documents or records evidencing or relating to work, services, 
expenditures and disbursements charged to City pursuant to this Agreement.  Any and 
all such documents or records shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles and shall be sufficiently complete and detailed so as to permit an 
accurate evaluation of the services provided by Service Provider pursuant to this 
Agreement.  Any and all such documents or records shall be maintained for three (3) 
years from the date of execution of this Agreement and to the extent required by laws 
relating to audits of public agencies and their expenditures. 


(b) Any and all records or documents required to be maintained pursuant to this 
section shall be made available for inspection, audit and copying, at any time during 
regular business hours, upon request by City or its designated representative.  Copies of 
such documents or records shall be provided directly to the City for inspection, audit and 
copying when it is practical to do so; otherwise, unless an alternative is mutually agreed 
upon, such documents and records shall be made available at Service Provider’s address 
indicated for receipt of notices in this Agreement. 


(c) Where City has reason to believe that any of the documents or records 
required to be maintained pursuant to this section may be lost or discarded due to 
dissolution or termination of Service Provider’s business, City may, by written request, 
require that custody of such documents or records be given to the City.  Access to such 
documents and records shall be granted to City, as well as to its successors-in-interest 
and authorized representatives. 


SECTION 8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. 


(a) Service Provider is and shall at all times remain a wholly independent 
contractor and not an officer, employee or agent of City.  Nothing in this Agreement may 
be construed to be inconsistent with this relationship or status.  Service Provider shall not 
at any time or in any manner represent that it or any of its agents or employees are agents 
or employees of City.  Service Provider shall have no authority to bind City in any manner, 
nor to incur any obligation, debt or liability of any kind on behalf of or against City, whether 
by contract or otherwise, unless such authority is expressly conferred under this 
Agreement or is otherwise expressly conferred in writing by City. 


(b) Service Provider shall perform all Services as an independent contractor of 
City and shall remain at all times as to City a wholly independent contractor with only such 
obligations as are consistent with that role.  Service provider shall be solely responsible 
for the means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures in performance of 
Services.  The personnel performing the Services under this Agreement on behalf of 
Service Provider shall at all times be under Service Provider’s exclusive direction and 
control.  Any terms within this Agreement regarding City directives apply to an concern 
the result of Service Provider’s provision of service and not the means, methods, or 







RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  - 5 -  


 


scheduling of the Service Provider’s work.  Neither City, nor any elected or appointed 
boards, officers, officials, employees or agents of City, shall have control over the conduct 
of Service Provider or any of Service Provider’s officers, employees, or agents except as 
set forth in this Agreement.  Service Provider shall not at any time or in any manner 
represent that Service Provider or any of Service Provider’s officers, employees, or 
agents are in any manner officials, officers, employees or agents of City. 


(c) Neither Service Provider, nor any of Service Provider’s officers, employees 
or agents, shall obtain any privileges or rights to retirement, health care or any other 
benefits which may otherwise accrue to City’s employees.  Service Provider expressly 
waives any claim Service Provider may have to any such benefits, privileges or rights. 


SECTION 9. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE. 


Service Provider represents and warrants that it has the qualifications, experience 
and facilities necessary to properly perform the Services required under this Agreement 
in a thorough, competent and professional manner.  Service Provider shall at all times 
faithfully, competently and to the best of its ability, experience and talent, perform all 
Services.  In meeting its obligations under this Agreement, Service Provider shall employ, 
at a minimum, generally accepted standards and practices utilized by persons engaged 
in providing services similar to the Services required of Service Provider under this 
Agreement.  In addition to the general standards of performance set forth this section, 
additional specific standards of performance and performance criteria may be set forth in 
Exhibit “A” “Scope of Work” that shall also be applicable to Service Provider’s work under 
this Agreement.  Where there is a conflict between a general and a specific standard of 
performance or performance criteria, the specific standard or criteria shall prevail over the 
general. 


SECTION 10. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS; PERMITS AND LICENSES. 


Service Provider shall keep itself informed of and comply with all applicable 
federal, state and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, regulations and rules in effect 
during the term of this Agreement.  Service Provider shall obtain any and all licenses, 
permits and authorizations necessary to perform the Services set forth in this Agreement.  
Neither City, nor any elected or appointed boards, officers, officials, employees or agents 
of City, shall be liable, at law or in equity, as a result of any failure of Service Provider to 
comply with this section. 


SECTION 11. PREVAILING WAGE LAWS 


It is the understanding of City and Service Provider that California prevailing wage 
laws do not apply to this Agreement because the Agreement does not involve any of the 
following services subject to prevailing wage rates pursuant to the California Labor Code 
or regulations promulgated thereunder: Construction, alteration, demolition, installation, 
or repair work performed on public buildings, facilities, streets or sewers done under 
contract and paid for in whole or in part out of public funds.  In this context, “construction" 
includes work performed during the design and preconstruction phases of construction 
including, but not limited to, inspection and land surveying work. 







RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  - 6 -  


 


SECTION 12. NONDISCRIMINATION. 


Service Provider shall not discriminate, in any way, against any person on the 
basis of race, color, religious creed, national origin, ancestry, sex, age, physical handicap, 
medical condition or marital status in connection with or related to the performance of this 
Agreement. 


SECTION 13. UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS. 


Service Provider hereby promises and agrees to comply with all of the provisions 
of the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act, 8 U.S.C.A. §§ 1101, et seq., as amended, 
and in connection therewith, shall not employ unauthorized aliens as defined therein.  
Should Service Provider so employ such unauthorized aliens for the performance of the 
Services, and should the any liability or sanctions be imposed against City for such use 
of unauthorized aliens, Service Provider hereby agrees to and shall reimburse City for the 
cost of all such liabilities or sanctions imposed, together with any and all costs, including 
attorneys' fees, incurred by City. 


SECTION 14. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. 


(a) Service Provider covenants that neither it, nor any officer or principal of its 
firm, has or shall acquire any interest, directly or indirectly, which would conflict in any 
manner with the interests of City or which would in any way hinder Service Provider’s 
performance of the Services.  Service Provider further covenants that in the performance 
of this Agreement, no person having any such interest shall be employed by it as an 
officer, employee, agent or subcontractor without the express written consent of the City 
Manager. Service Provider agrees to at all times avoid conflicts of interest or the 
appearance of any conflicts of interest with the interests of City in the performance of this 
Agreement. 


(b) City understands and acknowledges that Service Provider is, as of the date 
of execution of this Agreement, independently involved in the performance of non-related 
services for other governmental agencies and private parties.  Service Provider is 
unaware of any stated position of City relative to such projects.  Any future position of City 
on such projects shall not be considered a conflict of interest for purposes of this section. 


(c) City understands and acknowledges that Service Provider will perform non-
related services for other governmental agencies and private Parties following the 
completion of the Services under this Agreement.  Any such future service shall not be 
considered a conflict of interest for purposes of this section. 


SECTION 15. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; RELEASE OF INFORMATION. 


(a) All information gained or work product produced by Service Provider in 
performance of this Agreement shall be considered confidential, unless such information 
is in the public domain or already known to Service Provider.  Service Provider shall not 
release or disclose any such information or work product to persons or entities other than 
City without prior written authorization from the City Manager, except as may be required 
by law. 







RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  - 7 -  


 


(b) Service Provider, its officers, employees, agents or subcontractors, shall 
not, without prior written authorization from the City Manager or unless requested by the 
City Attorney of City, voluntarily provide declarations, letters of support, testimony at 
depositions, response to interrogatories or other information concerning the work 
performed under this Agreement.  Response to a subpoena or court order shall not be 
considered "voluntary" provided Service Provider gives City notice of such court order or 
subpoena.  


(c) If Service Provider, or any officer, employee, agent or subcontractor of 
Service Provider, provides any information or work product in violation of this Agreement, 
then City shall have the right to reimbursement and indemnity from Service Provider for 
any damages, costs and fees, including attorney's fees, caused by or incurred as a result 
of Service Provider’s conduct. 


Service Provider shall promptly notify City should Service Provider, its officers, 
employees, agents or subcontractors, be served with any summons, complaint, 
subpoena, notice of deposition, request for documents, interrogatories, request for 
admissions or other discovery request, court order or subpoena from any party regarding 
this Agreement and the work performed thereunder.  City retains the right, but has no 
obligation, to represent Service Provider or be present at any deposition, hearing or 
similar proceeding.  Service Provider agrees to cooperate fully with City and to provide 
City with the opportunity to review any response to discovery requests provided by 
Service Provider.  However, this right to review any such response does not imply or 
mean the right by City to control, direct, or rewrite said response. Service Provider shall 
not be held criminally or civilly liable under any Federal or State trade secret law for the 
disclosure of a trade secret that is made in confidence to a Federal, State, or local 
government official or to an attorney solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a 
suspected violation of law or for the disclosure of a trade secret that is made in a complaint 
or other document filed in a lawsuit or other proceeding, if such filing is made under seal. 


SECTION 16. INDEMNIFICATION. 


(a) Indemnification for Professional Liability.  Where the law establishes a 
professional standard of care for Service Provider’s services, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, Service Provider shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless 
City and any and all of its officials, employees and agents (“Indemnified Parties”) from 
and against any and all liability (including liability for claims, suits, actions, arbitration 
proceedings, administrative proceedings, regulatory proceedings, losses, expenses or 
costs of any kind, whether actual, alleged or threatened, including attorney’s fees and 
costs, court costs, interest, defense costs, and expert witness fees) arise out of, are a 
consequence of, or are in any way attributable to, in whole or in part, any negligent or 
wrongful act, error or omission of Service Provider, or by any individual or entity for which 
Service Provider is legally liable, including but not limited to officers, agents, employees 
or sub-contractors of Service Provider, in the performance of professional services under 
this Agreement.  


(b) Indemnification for Other than Professional Liability.  Other than in the 
performance of professional services and to the full extent permitted by law, Service 







RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  - 8 -  


 


Provider shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless City, and any and all of its 
employees, officials and agents from and against any liability (including liability for claims, 
suits, actions, arbitration proceedings, administrative proceedings, regulatory 
proceedings, losses, expenses or costs of any kind, whether actual, alleged or 
threatened, including attorney’s fees and costs, court costs, interest, defense costs, and 
expert witness fees), where the same arise out of, are a consequence of, or are in any 
way attributable to, in whole or in part, the performance of this Agreement by Service 
Provider, or by any individual or entity for which Service Provider is legally liable, including 
but not limited to officers, agents, employees or sub-contractors of Service Provider. 


(c) Indemnification from Sub-Service Providers.  Service Provider agrees to 
obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions identical to those set forth in this 
section from each and every sub-Service Provider or any other person or entity involved 
by, for, with or on behalf of Service Provider in the performance of this Agreement naming 
the Indemnified Parties as additional indemnitees.  In the event Service Provider fails to 
obtain such indemnity obligations from others as required herein, Service Provider agrees 
to be fully responsible according to the terms of this section.  Failure of City to monitor 
compliance with these requirements imposes no additional obligations on City and will in 
no way act as a waiver of any rights hereunder.  This obligation to indemnify and defend 
City as set forth herein is binding on the successors, assigns or heirs of Service Provider 
and shall survive the termination of this Agreement or this section. 


(d) City’s Negligence.  The provisions of this section do not apply to claims 
occurring as a result of City’s sole negligence. The provisions of this section shall not 
release City from liability arising from gross negligence or willful acts or omissions of City 
or any and all of its officials, employees and agents.   


SECTION 17. INSURANCE. 


Service Provider agrees to obtain and maintain in full force and effect during the 
term of this Agreement the insurance policies set forth in Exhibit “C” “Insurance” and made 
a part of this Agreement.  All insurance policies shall be subject to approval by City as to 
form and content.  These requirements are subject to amendment or waiver if so approved 
in writing by the City Manager.  Service Provider agrees to provide City with copies of 
required policies upon request. 


SECTION 18. ASSIGNMENT. 


The expertise and experience of Service Provider are material considerations for 
this Agreement.  City has an interest in the qualifications and capability of the persons 
and entities who will fulfill the duties and obligations imposed upon Service Provider under 
this Agreement.  In recognition of that interest, Service Provider shall not assign or 
transfer this Agreement or any portion of this Agreement or the performance of any of 
Service Provider’s duties or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written 
consent of the City.  Any attempted assignment shall be ineffective, null and void, and 
shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement entitling City to any and all remedies 
at law or in equity, including termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 20 
“Termination of Agreement.”  City acknowledges, however, that Service Provider, in the 







RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  - 9 -  


 


performance of its duties pursuant to this Agreement, may utilize sub-contractors. 


SECTION 19. CONTINUITY OF PERSONNEL. 


Service Provider shall make every reasonable effort to maintain the stability and 
continuity of Service Provider’s staff and sub-contractors, if any, assigned to perform the 
Services.  Service Provider shall notify City of any changes in Service Provider’s staff and 
sub-contractors, if any, assigned to perform the Services prior to and during any such 
performance. 


SECTION 20. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT. 


(a) City may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, at any time by 
giving thirty (30) days written notice of termination to Service Provider.  In the event such 
notice is given, Service Provider shall cease immediately all work in progress. 


(b) Service Provider may terminate this Agreement for cause at any time upon 
thirty (30) days written notice of termination to City. 


(c) If either Service Provider or City fail to perform any material obligation under 
this Agreement, then, in addition to any other remedies, either Service Provider, or City 
may terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice. 


(d) Upon termination of this Agreement by either Service Provider or City, all 
property belonging exclusively to City which is in Service Provider’s possession shall be 
returned to City.  Service Provider shall furnish to City a final invoice for work performed 
and expenses incurred by Service Provider, prepared as set forth in Section 4 
“Compensation and Method of Payment” of this Agreement.  This final invoice shall be 
reviewed and paid in the same manner as set forth in Section 4 “Compensation and 
Method of Payment” of this Agreement. 


SECTION 21. DEFAULT. 


In the event that Service Provider is in default under the terms of this Agreement, 
the City shall not have any obligation or duty to continue compensating Service Provider 
for any work performed after the date of default.  Instead, the City may give notice to 
Service Provider of the default and the reasons for the default.  The notice shall include 
the timeframe in which Service Provider may cure the default.  This timeframe is 
presumptively thirty (30) days, but may be extended, though not reduced, if 
circumstances warrant.  During the period of time that Service Provider is in default, the 
City shall hold all invoices and shall, when the default is cured, proceed with payment on 
the invoices.  In the alternative, the City may, in its sole discretion, elect to pay some or 
all of the outstanding invoices during the period of default.  If Service Provider does not 
cure the default, the City may take necessary steps to terminate this Agreement under 
Section 20 “Termination of Agreement.”  Any failure on the part of the City to give notice 
of the Service Provider’s default shall not be deemed to result in a waiver of the City’s 
legal rights or any rights arising out of any provision of this Agreement. 







RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  - 10 -  


 


SECTION 22. EXCUSABLE DELAYS. 


Service Provider shall not be liable for damages, including liquidated damages, if 
any, caused by delay in performance or failure to perform due to causes beyond the 
control of Service Provider.  Such causes include, but are not limited to, acts of God, acts 
of the public enemy, acts of federal, state or local governments, acts of City, court orders, 
fires, floods, epidemics, strikes, embargoes, and unusually severe weather.  The term 
and price of this Agreement shall be equitably adjusted for any delays due to such causes. 


SECTION 23. COOPERATION BY CITY. 


All public information, data, reports, records, and maps as are existing and 
available to City as public records, and which are necessary for carrying out the Services 
shall be furnished to Service Provider in every reasonable way to facilitate, without undue 
delay, the Services to be performed under this Agreement. 


SECTION 24. NOTICES. 


All notices required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in 
writing and shall be personally delivered, or sent by telecopier or certified mail, postage 
prepaid and return receipt requested, addressed as follows: 


 


To City:    City of Wildomar 
Attn:  City Manager  
23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 201 
Wildomar, CA  92595 


 
To Service Provider: Ken Hira, President 


Kosmont Companies 
1601 N. Sepulveda Blvd. #382 
Manhattan Beach, CA 90266 


 
Notice shall be deemed effective on the date personally delivered or transmitted 


by facsimile or, if mailed, three (3) days after deposit of the same in the custody of the 
United States Postal Service. 


SECTION 25. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE. 


Each of the signatories hereto represents and warrants that he or she is competent 
and authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of the Party for whom he or she 
purports to sign. Each Party hereto agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 
other Parties hereto against all claims, suits, actions, and demands, including necessary 
expenses of investigation and reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, arising out of claims 
that its signatory was not competent or so authorized to execute this Agreement.  







RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  - 11 -  


 


SECTION 26. ADMINISTRATION AND IMPLEMENTATION. 


This Agreement shall be administered and executed by the City Manager or his or 
her designated representative.  The City Manager shall have the authority to issue 
interpretations and to make amendments to this Agreement, including amendments that 
commit additional funds, consistent with Section 28 “Amendment” and the City Manager’s 
contracting authority under the Wildomar Municipal Code. 


SECTION 27. BINDING EFFECT. 


This Agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors and assigns of the Parties. 


SECTION 28. AMENDMENT. 


No amendment to or modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in 
writing and approved by the Service Provider and by the City.  The City Manager shall 
have the authority to approve any amendment to this Agreement if the total compensation 
under this Agreement, as amended, would not exceed the City Manager’s contracting 
authority under the Wildomar Municipal Code.  The Parties agree that the requirement for 
written modifications cannot be waived and that any attempted waiver shall be void. The 
City’s City Manager may, but is not required to, make minor amendments not affecting 
substantive terms without further authorization from the City Council. The City Council 
hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute any such amendments as required by this 
Agreement or that do not otherwise reduce City’s rights under this Agreement.  All other 
amendments shall be approved by the City Council. 


SECTION 29. WAIVER. 


Waiver by any Party to this Agreement of any term, condition, or covenant of this 
Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any other term, condition, or covenant.  Waiver 
by any Party of any breach of the provisions of this Agreement shall not constitute a 
waiver of any other provision nor a waiver of any subsequent breach or violation of any 
provision of this Agreement.  Acceptance by City of any work or services by Service 
Provider shall not constitute a waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 


SECTION 30. LAW TO GOVERN; VENUE. 


This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and governed according to the 
laws of the State of California.  In the event of litigation between the Parties, venue in 
state trial courts shall lie exclusively in the County of Riverside, California.  In the event 
of litigation in a U.S. District Court, venue shall lie exclusively in the Central District of 
California, in Riverside. 


SECTION 31. ATTORNEYS FEES, COSTS AND EXPENSES. 


In the event litigation or other proceeding is required to enforce or interpret any 
provision of this Agreement, the prevailing Party in such litigation or other proceeding 







RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  - 12 -  


 


shall be entitled to an award of reasonable attorney's fees, costs and expenses, in 
addition to any other relief to which it may be entitled. 


SECTION 32. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 


This Agreement, including the attached Exhibits "A" through "C", is the entire, 
complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the matters 
addressed therein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether oral 
or written, or entered into between Service Provider and City prior to the execution of this 
Agreement.  No statements, representations or other agreements, whether oral or written, 
made by any Party which are not embodied herein shall be valid and binding.   


SECTION 33. SEVERABILITY. 


If any term, condition or covenant of this Agreement is declared or determined by 
any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby and the Agreement shall be 
read and construed without the invalid, void or unenforceable provision(s). 


SECTION 34. CONFLICTING TERMS. 


Except as otherwise stated herein, if the terms of this Agreement conflict with the 
terms of any Exhibit hereto, or with the terms of any document incorporated by reference 
into this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall control.    


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the 
date and year first-above written. 


CITY OF WILDOMAR 


___________________________ 
Gary Nordquist 
City Manager 


ATTEST: 


___________________________ 
Janet Morales 
City Clerk 







RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  - 13 -  


 


APPROVED AS TO FORM 


_______________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex 
City Attorney 


___________________________________ 


“Service Provider”: Kosmont & Associates, Inc. 


By: __________________________         By: _______________________________ 
  
Name:___________________________   Name: ____________________________ 
 
Its (Title):_________________________   Its (Title): __________________________ 


NOTE: SERVICE PROVIDER’S SIGNATURES SHALL BE DULY NOTARIZED, 
AND APPROPRIATE ATTESTATIONS SHALL BE INCLUDED AS MAY 
BE REQUIRED BY THE BYLAWS, ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION, 
OR OTHER RULES OR REGULATIONS APPLICABLE TO SERVICE 
PROVIDER’S BUSINESS ENTITY. 







 


RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1    
 


CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 


A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 


 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


COUNTY OF ________________ 


On ______________, before me, ________________, personally appeared ________________, proved to me on the 
basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose names(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their 
signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the 
instrument. 


I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true and 
correct. 


WITNESS my hand and official seal. 


Signature: _____________________________________ 
                               Signature of Notary Public                                                                                  Place Notary Seal Above 
 


OPTIONAL 
Though the data below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document and could prevent 
fraudulent reattachment of this form. 


CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 
 INDIVIDUAL 


 CORPORATE OFFICER 


 _______________________________ 


TITLE(S) 
 PARTNER(S)  LIMITED 


    GENERAL 


 ATTORNEY-IN-FACT 


 TRUSTEE(S) 


 GUARDIAN/CONSERVATOR 


 OTHER____________________________ 


SIGNER IS REPRESENTING: 


(NAME OF PERSON(S) OR ENTITY(IES)) 


_________________________________________ 


_________________________________________ 


___________________________________ 
TITLE OR TYPE OF DOCUMENT 


___________________________________ 
NUMBER OF PAGES 


___________________________________ 
DATE OF DOCUMENT 


___________________________________ 
SIGNER(S) OTHER THAN NAMED ABOVE 







 


RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1    
 


CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 


A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 
 


STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


COUNTY OF ________________ 


On ______________, before me, ________________, personally appeared ________________, proved to me on the 
basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose names(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their 
signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the 
instrument. 


I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true and 
correct. 


WITNESS my hand and official seal. 


Signature: _____________________________________ 
                                            Signature of Notary Public                                                                                  Place Notary Seal Above 
 


OPTIONAL 
Though the data below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document and could prevent 
fraudulent reattachment of this form. 


CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 
 INDIVIDUAL 


 CORPORATE OFFICER 


 _______________________________ 


TITLE(S) 
 PARTNER(S)  LIMITED 


    GENERAL 


 ATTORNEY-IN-FACT 


 TRUSTEE(S) 


 GUARDIAN/CONSERVATOR 


 OTHER____________________________ 


SIGNER IS REPRESENTING: 


(NAME OF PERSON(S) OR ENTITY(IES)) 


_________________________________________ 


_________________________________________ 


___________________________________ 
TITLE OR TYPE OF DOCUMENT 


___________________________________ 
NUMBER OF PAGES 


___________________________________ 
DATE OF DOCUMENT 


___________________________________ 
SIGNER(S) OTHER THAN NAMED ABOVE 







 


RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  
 


EXHIBIT "A" 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 


 
I.  Service Provider will perform the following Services: 
 
Task 1: Background Research and Kickoff Meeting 
Kosmont will participate in a kick-off meeting with City staff to establish objectives; obtain 
information on proposed opportunity sites (e.g., ownership history, zoning/land uses); 
gather previously prepared hotel/economic development market studies, including visitor 
data; and identify up to four (4) potential opportunity site(s) for potential hotel/blended-
use development. 
 
Task 2: Hotel Market Review 
Consultant will review hotel supply offerings for the local market and map and describe 
competitive hotel offerings. Consultant will analyze historic trends and evaluate key 
market supply and demand data to assess general feasibility for hotel development. Key 
metrics considered in this Analysis may include hotel average daily rates (ADR), 
occupancy, revenue per available room (RevPAR), existing supply of room nights, 
demand for room nights, market trends, construction trends, room tax collection trends, 
and/or other factors that may impact market potential for hospitality uses as deemed 
relevant by Kosmont. Consultant will identify a set of competitive hotels in the market and 
analyze occupancy, ADR’s, and RevPAR for this competitive set, based on Smith Travel 
Research ("STR") data. 
 
Task 3: Review of Potential Hotel Locations 
Consultant will discuss with the City up to four (4) potential hotel locations that may be 
appropriate for the development of a hotel(s). Consultant will provide summary 
observations on its opinion of the suitability of the hotel locations. 
 
Task 4: Summary Report of Hotel Market Analysis 
Results from the data collection and analysis conducted in Task 1 – 3 will be summarized 
in PowerPoint presentation format. Consultant will provide Client a draft version of the 
summary presentation for Client’s comments and, as appropriate, Consultant will 
incorporate Client’s comments into a final summary report. 
 
II.  As part of the Services, Service Provider will prepare and deliver the following 
tangible work products to the City: 
 
Results from the data collection and analysis conducted in Task 1 – 3 will be 
summarized in PowerPoint presentation format. Consultant will provide Client a draft 
version of the summary presentation for Client’s comments and, as appropriate, 
Consultant will incorporate Client’s comments into a final summary report. 
 
III.  During performance of the Services, Service Provider will keep the City 
appraised of the status of performance by delivering the following status reports: 







 


RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  
 


 
Results from the data collection and analysis conducted in Task 1 – 3 will be 
summarized in PowerPoint presentation format. Consultant will provide Client a draft 
version of the summary presentation for Client’s comments and, as appropriate, 
Consultant will incorporate Client’s comments into a final summary report. 
 
IV.  The tangible work products and status reports will be delivered to the City 
pursuant to the following schedule: 
 
Final Summary Report to be finalized and delivered to the City by May 1, 2022. 
 
 
V.  Service Provider will utilize the following personnel to accomplish the 
Services: 
 
Ken K. Hira President and Robert Valenti VP, Kosmont Companies 
 
 
VI.  Service Provider will utilize the following subcontractors to accomplish the 
Services: 
 
No subs will be used for this study. 







 


RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  
 B-1 


EXHIBIT "B" 
COMPENSATION 


 
I.  Service Provider shall use the following rates of pay in the performance of the 
Services: 
 
Chairman & CEO         $395.00/hour 


President          $365.00/hour 


Senior Vice President/Senior Advisor     $325.00/hour 


Vice President/Project Advisor       $225.00/hour 


Senior Project Analyst        $195.00/hour 


Project Analyst/Project Research       $165.00/hour 


Assistant Project Analyst/Assistant Project Manager   $125.00/hour 


Project Promotion/Graphics/GIS Mapping Services   $ 95.00/hour 


Clerical Support         $ 70.00/hour 


 
II.  Service Provider may utilize sub-contractors as indicated in this Agreement.  
The hourly rate for any subcontractor is not to exceed $165.00 per hour without 
written authorization from the City Manager or his designee. 
 
 
III.  The total compensation for the Services shall not exceed $19,000.00, as 
provided in Section 4 “Compensation and Method of Payment” of this Agreement.







 


RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  


Exhibit C 


Insurance Requirements 


Service Provider shall procure and maintain, for the duration of the Agreement, insurance 
against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in 
connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Service Provider, its 
agents, representatives, or employees. 


MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE 


Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 


1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 
covering CGL on an “occurrence” basis, including products and completed operations, 
property damage, bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than 
$1,000,000 per occurrence. If a general aggregate limit applies, either the general 
aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or 
the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit. 


2. Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 
1 (any auto), or if Service Provider has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (non-
owned), with limit no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property 
damage. 


3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory 
Limits, and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per 
accident for bodily injury or disease. 


(Not required if Service Provider provides written verification it has no employees) 


4. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) Insurance appropriate to the Service 
Provider’s profession, with limit no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence or claim, 
$2,000,000 aggregate.  The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the 
date of the Agreement or the beginning of Agreement work.  Insurance must be 
maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years after 
completion of the Agreement of work.  If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not 
replaced with another claims-made policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to the 
Agreement effective date, the Service Provider must purchase “extended reporting” 
coverage for a minimum of three (3) years after completion of Agreement work.  A copy 
of the claims reporting requirements must be submitted to the City for review. 


If the Service Provider maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the 
minimums shown above, the City requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage 
and/or higher limits maintained by the Service Provider. Any available insurance proceeds 
in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to 
the City. 







 


RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  


Other Insurance Provisions 


The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 


The City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as additional 
insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or operations 
performed by or on behalf of the Service Provider including materials, parts, or equipment 
furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage can be 
provided in the form of an endorsement to the Service Provider’s insurance (at least as 
broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 
38; and CG 20 37 forms if later revisions used). 


Primary Coverage 


For any claims related to this Agreement, the Service Provider’s insurance coverage shall 
be primary insurance coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects the 
City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by the City, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of 
the Service Provider’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 


Notice of Cancellation 


Service Provider shall provide immediate written notice if (1) any of the required insurance 
policies is terminated; (2) the limits of any of the required polices are reduced; (3) or the 
deductible or self-insured retention is increased.  In the event of any cancellation or 
reduction in coverage or limits of any insurance, Service Provider shall forthwith obtain 
and submit proof of substitute insurance.   


Waiver of Subrogation 


Service Provider hereby grants to City a waiver of any right to subrogation which any 
insurer of said Service Provider may acquire against the City by virtue of the payment of 
any loss under such insurance. Service Provider agrees to obtain any endorsement that 
may be necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies 
regardless of whether or not the City has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement 
from the insurer.  However, the Workers’ Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a 
waiver of subrogation in favor of the City for all work performed by the Service Provider, 
its employees, agents and subcontractors. 


Self-Insured Retentions 


Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City. The City may 
require the Service Provider to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related 
investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the retention. The 
policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention 
may be satisfied by either the named insured or City. 


Acceptability of Insurers 







 


RIV #4814-7282-0706 v1  


Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the state with a 
current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to the City. 


Verification of Coverage 


Service Provider shall furnish the City with original Certificates of Insurance including all 
required amendatory endorsements (or copies of the applicable policy language effecting 
coverage required by this clause) and a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page 
of the CGL policy listing all policy endorsements to City before work begins. However, 
failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the 
Service Provider’s obligation to provide them. The City reserves the right to require 
complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements 
required by these specifications, at any time. 


Subcontractors 


Service Provider shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance 
meeting all the requirements stated herein, and Service Provider shall ensure that City is 
an additional insured on insurance required from subcontractors. 


Special Risks or Circumstances 


City reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the nature 
of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances. 


 







 


 Kosmont Companies  


Mailing Address: 1601 N. Sepulveda Blvd., #382 (424) 297-1070 Physical Address: 1230 Rosecrans Ave., #630 
Manhattan Beach, CA 90266 www.kosmont.com Manhattan Beach, CA 90266 


 


 
 
 
December 21, 2021 
 
 
Kimberly Davidson 
Economic Development Director  
City of Wildomar 
23873 Clinton Keith Road 
Wildomar, CA 92595 
 
 
Re: Proposal for Services for Hotel Market Analysis Services 
 
 
Dear Ms. Davidson, 
 
Kosmont & Associates, Inc. doing business as Kosmont Companies (“Consultant” or “Kosmont”) 


is pleased to present this proposal for economic development advisory services to the City of 


Wildomar (“City” or “Client”) in connection with the preparation of a Hotel Market and Site Analysis 


(“Analysis”) for potential new hotel(s) within the City. 


 
This proposal serves as an Agreement when executed and returned by Client to Kosmont. 
 
 
I. BACKGROUND AND OBJECTIVE 
The City is currently seeking assistance with economic development initiatives focused primarily 
on opportunities and development strategies that would result in an improved economic 
environment and related increased fiscal revenues for the City. The City sees opportunity sites 
along Clinton Keith Road as well-suited for hotel development, given the proximity to I-15 and the 
Inland Valley Medical Center.  Kosmont has previously assisted the City with a Commercial 
Market Analysis that provided demographic and market information and a high-level assessment 
of development and commercial opportunity areas.  Consultant can build upon this previous work 
to provide a Hotel Market and Site Analysis that is specifically targeted toward hotel market 
information and development opportunities. 
 
Kosmont proposes the following scope of services accordingly.  
 
II. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
Approach to Tasks: The prospective assignment and consulting services that Kosmont will 
provide will be of a relatively limited scope and duration, and advisory in nature. Kosmont will be 
making recommendations only, which advise the Client and jurisdictions, including their elected 
officials, appointed officials, and staff, which they can accept or reject by. None of Kosmont's staff 
will act in a capacity as an elected official, nor appointed official, nor as staff, nor as serving in a 
"designated" position. 







City of Wildomar 
Hotel Market Analysis 


December 21, 2021 


 


Kosmont Companies   2 | P a g e  


(424) 297-1070    
www.kosmont.com    


 


 
 
Task 1: Background Research and Kickoff Meeting 


Kosmont will participate in a kick-off meeting with City staff to establish objectives; obtain 
information on proposed opportunity sites (e.g., ownership history, zoning/land uses); gather 
previously prepared hotel/economic development market studies, including visitor data; and 
identify up to four (4) potential opportunity site(s) for potential hotel/blended-use development. 
 
Task 2: Hotel Market Review 


Consultant will review hotel supply offerings for the local market and map and describe 
competitive hotel offerings.  Consultant will analyze historic trends and evaluate key market 
supply and demand data to assess general feasibility for hotel development. Key metrics 
considered in this Analysis may include hotel average daily rates (ADR), occupancy, revenue per 
available room (RevPAR), existing supply of room nights, demand for room nights, market trends, 
construction trends, room tax collection trends, and/or other factors that may impact market 
potential for hospitality uses as deemed relevant by Kosmont. Consultant will identify a set of 
competitive hotels in the market and analyze occupancy, ADR’s, and RevPAR for this competitive 
set, based on Smith Travel Research ("STR") data. 
 
Task 3: Review of Potential Hotel Locations 


Consultant will discuss with the City up to four (4) potential hotel locations that may be appropriate 
for the development of a hotel(s).  Consultant will provide summary observations on its opinion of 
the suitability of the hotel locations. 
 


Task 4: Summary Report of Hotel Market Analysis 


Results from the data collection and analysis conducted in Task 1 – 3 will be summarized in 
PowerPoint presentation format. Consultant will provide Client a draft version of the summary 
presentation for Client’s comments and, as appropriate, Consultant will incorporate Client’s 
comments into a final summary report. 
 
 
III. SCHEDULE AND REQUIRED DATA 
Consultant is prepared to commence work upon receipt of executed Agreement. Client will 
provide Consultant with relevant existing project data including relevant existing project / property 
/ market data, ownership / zoning / parcel information, transactional documents, and previous 
analyses. 
 
IV. COMPENSATION  
Compensation for Tasks 1 through 4 is estimated at $17,500 for professional services (hourly) 
fees at Consultant’s billing rates as shown on Attachment A. Future increases in budget will 
require approval by Client in advance.  Budget may be increased by Client at any time. 
 







City of Wildomar 
Hotel Market Analysis 


December 21, 2021 


 


Kosmont Companies   3 | P a g e  


(424) 297-1070    
www.kosmont.com    


 


Consultant anticipates a single consolidated round of Client comments and revisions on draft work 
product before Kosmont provides a final version of work product. If necessary, additional rounds 
of comments and revisions can be accommodated on an hourly basis. 
 
Consultant’s attendance or participation at any publicly noticed meeting, whether such 
participation is in person, digital, video and/or telephonic (e.g., City Council, Planning 
Commission, Public Agency Board, other), as requested by Client is in addition to compensation 
for Tasks 1 through 4 and will be billed at the professional services (hourly) fees as shown on 
Attachment A. 
 
Services will be invoiced monthly at Consultant’s standard billing rates, as shown on Attachment 
A. In addition to professional services (hourly) fees, invoices will include reimbursement for out-
of-pocket expenses such as travel and mileage (provided that there shall be no overnight travel 
without the Client’s prior approval and that mileage shall be reimbursed at the current IRS mileage 
reimbursement rate), professional printing, conference calls, and delivery charges for messenger 
and overnight packages at actual cost. Unless otherwise agreed to in advance, out-of-area travel, 
if any, requires advance funding of flights and hotel accommodations. 
 
Consultant will also include in each invoice an administrative services fee to cover in-house copy, 
fax, telephone and postage costs equal to four percent (4.0%) of Consultant’s monthly 
professional service fees incurred. Any unpaid invoices after 30 days shall accrue interest at the 
rate of 10% per annum. 
 
For the convenience of Kosmont’s clients, we offer a secure credit card payment service.  The 
credit card payment link is: https://kosmont.paidyet.com and there are two ways to make a secure 
credit card payment: 


1. Fill in the “Make a Payment” form when you go to the link (https://kosmont.paidyet.com), 
or  


2. Call Kosmont Companies’ accounting desk (Ms. Charo Martinez; (424) 297-1072) to make 
a credit card payment 
 


Consultant is prepared to commence work upon receipt of executed Agreement. 
 
 
DISCLOSURE: Compensation for possible future transaction-based services or brokerage 
services. 
 
The following is being provided solely as an advance disclosure of possible real estate brokerage 
and finance services and potential compensation for such services. This disclosure is not intended 
to commit the Client. 
 
When assignments involve real estate/property brokerage services, such transaction-based 
services are typically provided by Kosmont Real Estate Services, Inc. dba Kosmont Realty (“KR”) 
is licensed by the State of California Department of Real Estate (License# 02058445).  
Compensation to KR is typically paid through commissions for property sale transactions, lease 
transactions and success/broker fees. KR also provides Broker Opinions of Value (“BOV”) 
services on a fixed fee basis. 



https://kosmont.paidyet.com/

https://kosmont.paidyet.com/





City of Wildomar 
Hotel Market Analysis 


December 21, 2021 


 


Kosmont Companies   4 | P a g e  


(424) 297-1070    
www.kosmont.com    


 


 
When assignments involve public finance services on behalf of a public agency, such municipal 
advisory services are provided by Kosmont Transactions Services, Inc. (“KTS”). KTS is registered 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (CIK# 0001769359) and the Municipal Securities 
Rulemaking Board as a Municipal Advisor (ID# K1256).  
 
SEC registration does not constitute an endorsement of the firm by the Commission or state 
securities regulators.  
 
 
V.   OTHER PROVISIONS 


A.        Termination. Client or Consultant shall have the right to terminate this Agreement at any 
time upon written notification to the other party.  Payment for fees accrued through the date of 
termination shall be remitted in full.   
  
B.        Arbitration. Any controversy or claim arising out of or in relation to this Agreement, or the 
making, performance, interpretation or breach thereof, shall be settled by arbitration at JAMS in 
Los Angeles, California.  Each of the parties to such arbitration proceeding shall be entitled to 
take up to five depositions with document requests.    The provisions of Section 1283.05 (except 
subdivision (e) thereof) of the California Code of Civil Procedure are incorporated by reference 
herein, except to the extent they conflict with this Agreement, in which case this Agreement is 
controlling.  If the matter is heard by only one arbitrator, such arbitrator shall be a member of the 
State Bar of California or a retired judge.  If the matter is heard by an arbitration panel, at least 
one member of such panel shall be a member of the State Bar of California or a retired judge.  
The arbitrator or arbitrators shall decide all questions of law, and all mixed questions of law and 
fact, in accordance with the substantive law of the State of California to the end that all rights and 
defenses which either party may have asserted in a court of competent jurisdiction shall be fully 
available to such party in the arbitration proceeding contemplated hereby.  The arbitrator and 
arbitrators shall set forth and deliver their findings of fact and conclusions of law with the delivery 
of the arbitration award.  Judgment upon the award rendered shall be final and non-appealable 
and may be entered in any court having jurisdiction. 
 
C.        Attorneys' Fees.  In the event of any legal action, arbitration, or proceeding arising out of 
an alleged breach of this Agreement, the party prevailing in such legal action, arbitration, or 
proceeding shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys' fees, expenses and costs, as well 
as all actual attorneys' fees, expenses and cost incurred in enforcing any judgment entered. 
  
D.        Authority. Each of the parties executing this Agreement warrants that persons duly 
authorized to bind each such party to its terms execute this Agreement. 
 
E.        Further Actions. The parties agree to execute such additional documents and take such 
further actions as may be necessary to carry out the provisions and intent of this Agreement. 
  
F.         Assignment. Neither this Agreement nor any of the rights or obligations hereunder may 
be assigned by either party without the prior written consent of the other party. 
  







City of Wildomar 
Hotel Market Analysis 


December 21, 2021 


 


Kosmont Companies   5 | P a g e  


(424) 297-1070    
www.kosmont.com    


 


G.        Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit 
of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns. 
 
H.        Entire Agreement; Amendments and Waivers. This Agreement contains the entire 
agreement between the parties relating to the transactions contemplated hereby and any and all 
prior discussions, negotiations, commitments and understanding, whether written or oral, related 
hereto are superseded hereby.  No addition or modification of any term or provision of this 
Agreement shall be effective unless set forth in writing signed by both parties.  No waiver of any 
of the provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of any other provision 
hereof (whether or not similar), nor shall such waiver constitute a continuing waiver of such 
provisions unless otherwise expressly provided.  Each party to this Agreement has participated 
in its drafting and, therefore, ambiguities in this Agreement will not be construed against any party 
to this Agreement. 
   
I.          Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement shall be deemed invalid or 
unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and each remaining 
term and provision of this Agreement shall be valid and in force to the fullest extent permitted by 
law. 
  
 J.         Notices. All notices, requests, demands and other communications which may be 
required under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been received 
when transmitted; if personally delivered, if transmitted by telecopier, electronic or digital 
transmission method, upon transmission; if sent by next day delivery to a domestic address by a 
recognized overnight delivery service (e.g., Federal Express), the day after it is sent; and if sent 
by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, upon receipt.  In each case, notice shall 
be sent to the principal place of business of the respective party.  Either party may change its 
address by giving written notice thereof to the other in accordance with the provisions of this 
paragraph. 
  
K.       Titles and Captions. Titles and captions contained in this Agreement are inserted only as 
a matter of convenience and for reference and in no way define, limit, extend or describe the 
scope of this Agreement or the intent of any provision herein. 
 
L.        Governing Law. The statutory, administrative and judicial law of the State of California 
(without reference to choice of law provisions of California law) shall govern the execution and 
performance of this Agreement. 
  
M.        Confidentiality. Each of the parties agrees not to disclose this Agreement or any 
information concerning this Agreement to any persons or entities, other than to their attorneys 
and accountants, or as otherwise may be required by law. 
  
N. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of 
which constitutes an original, and all of which together constitute one and the same 
instrument.  The signature of any person on a telecopy of this Agreement, or any notice, action 
or consent taken pursuant to this Agreement shall have the same full force and effect as such 
person's original signature. 
 







City of Wildomar 
Hotel Market Analysis 


December 21, 2021 


 


Kosmont Companies   6 | P a g e  


(424) 297-1070    
www.kosmont.com    


 


O.  Disclaimer.  Consultant’s financial analysis activities and work product, which may 
include but is not limited to pro forma analysis and tax projections, are projections only.  Actual 
results may differ materially from those expressed in the analysis performed by Consultant due 
to the integrity of data received, market conditions, economic events and conditions, and a variety 
of factors that could materially affect the data and conclusions.  Client’s reliance on Consultant’s 
analysis must consider the foregoing.  
 
Consultant services outlined and described herein are advisory services only.  Any decisions or 
actions taken or not taken by Client and affiliates, are deemed to be based on Client’s 
understanding and by execution of this Agreement, acknowledgement that Consultant’s services 
are advisory only and as such, cannot be relied on as to the results, performance and conclusions 
of any investment or project that Client may or may not undertake as related to the services 
provided including any verbal or written communications by and between the Client and 
Consultant. 
 
Client acknowledges that Consultant's use of work product is limited to the purposes 
contemplated within this Agreement. Consultant makes no representation of the work product's 
application to, or suitability for use in, circumstances not contemplated by the scope of work under 
this Agreement. 
 
P. Limitation of Damages.  In the event Consultant is found liable for any violation of duty, 
whether in tort or in contract, damages shall be limited to the amount Consultant has received 
from Client.  
 
Q. Force Majeure. Consultant shall not be liable for failure or delay in performance of its 
obligations under this Agreement arising out of or caused, directly or indirectly, by significant 
circumstances beyond its reasonable control, including, without limitation:  epidemic; acts of God; 
earthquakes; fires; floods; wars; civil or military disturbances; acts of terrorism; sabotage; strikes; 
riots; wide-spread power failures and wide-spread internet failure.   Contractual performance and 
deadline(s) shall be extended for a period equal to the time lost by reason of the delay.  
 
R. Expiration of Proposal for Services.  If this Agreement is not fully executed by the 
parties within thirty (30) days from the date of this letter, this proposal shall expire. 
 
S.     Not an agreement for Legal Services or Legal Advice.  This Agreement does not 
constitute an agreement for the performance of legal services or the provision of legal advice, or 
legal opinion.  Client should seek independent legal counsel on matters for which Client is seeking 
legal advice. 
 
 
 
 
[ signature page follows ] 
 







City of Wildomar 
Hotel Market Analysis 


December 21, 2021 


 


Kosmont Companies   7 | P a g e  


(424) 297-1070    
www.kosmont.com    


 


VI. ACCEPTANCE AND AUTHORIZATION   
If this Agreement is acceptable to Client, please execute two copies of the Agreement and return 
both originals to Kosmont Companies.  Upon receipt of both signed contracts, we will return one 
fully executed original for your files. Kosmont will commence work upon receipt of executed 
Agreement. 
  
 
Read, understood, and agreed to this    
 
____ Day of _______________ 2021 
 
 
  
City of Wildomar    Kosmont & Associates, Inc. 


doing business as “Kosmont Companies” 
 
 
By: _________________________           By: _________________________  


 (Signature)     (Signature) 
  
 
Name:                Name: Ken K. Hira  
             (Print Name) 


  
 
Its:       Its: President            
                 (Title) 







ATTACHMENT A 
 


Kosmont Companies 
2022 Public Agency Fee Schedule 


 


Kosmont Companies   8 | P a g e  


(424) 297-1070    
www.kosmont.com    


 


Professional Services 
 


Chairman & CEO       $395.00/hour 


President         $365.00/hour 


Senior Vice President/Senior Advisor    $325.00/hour 


Vice President/Project Advisor                $225.00/hour 


Senior Project Analyst      $195.00/hour 


Project Analyst/Project Research     $165.00/hour 


Assistant Project Analyst/Assistant Project Manager         $125.00/hour 


Project Promotion/Graphics/GIS Mapping Services    $ 95.00/hour 


Clerical Support       $ 70.00/hour 


Additional Expenses 
In addition to professional services (labor fees): 


1) An administrative fee for in-house copy, fax, phone, postage costs, digital/technological 
support and related administrative expenses will be charged, which will be computed at 
four percent (4.0 %) of monthly Kosmont Companies professional service fees incurred; 
plus   


2) Out-of-pocket expenditures, such as travel and mileage, professional printing, and 
delivery charges for messenger and overnight packages will be charged at cost. 


3) Project/Market data sources for support of evaluation and analysis eg ESRI, 
Placer.ai, CoStar/STR, IMPLAN and other based on quoted project cost . 


4) If Kosmont retains Third Party Vendor(s) for Client (with Client’s advance approval), fees 
and cost will be billed to Client at 1.1X (times) fees and costs.  


5) Consultant’s attendance or participation at any public meeting, whether 
such participation is in person, digital, video and/or telephonic (e.g., City Council, 
Planning Commission, Public Agency Board, other) requested by Client and are beyond 
those specifically identified in the Scope of Work will be billed at the professional services 
(hourly) fees as shown on this Attachment A.  


• Charges for Court/Deposition/Expert Witness-Related Appearances 


Court-related (non-preparation) activities, such as court appearances, depositions, mediation, 
arbitration, dispute resolution and other expert witness activities, will be charged at a court 
rate of 1.5 times scheduled rates, with a 4-hour minimum. 


 


 


Rates shall remain in effect until December 31, 2022. 







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.8 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: January 12, 2022 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Robert Howell, Administrative Services Director 
 James R. Riley, Project Consultant  
 
SUBJECT: City of Wildomar Recovered Organic Waste Product Procurement Policy  
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the Recovered Organic Waste Product 
Procurement Policy in accordance with California Senate Bill (SB) 1383 
 
DISCUSSION: 
SB 1383 regulations (14 CCR Section 18993.1(a)), require a jurisdiction, as of January 
1, 2022, to annually procure a CalRecycle-defined quantity of recovered organic waste 
products. Each jurisdiction’s annual recovered organic waste product procurement 
target will be calculated by multiplying the jurisdiction’s population by 0.08 tons of 
organic waste per California resident. In addition, SB 1383 regulations require that 
jurisdictions purchase, and vendors supply, paper that meets specified recycled-content 
standards pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18993.3. The SB 1383 regulatory requirement to 
purchase recycled-content paper products and printing and writing paper applies to all 
departments in a jurisdiction that purchase such paper, and shall not be limited to the 
department tasked with obtaining records to confirm compliance with the SB 1383 
regulatory requirements and the jurisdiction’s procurement policy. 
 
To meet these requirements, staff has prepared a Recovered Organic Waste Product 
Procurement Policy based the CalRecycle Model Recovered Organic Waste Product 
Procurement Policy. This policy would be effective retroactively to January 1, 2022. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The costs associated with the requirements of this policy have been determined to be 
minimal and have been included in the City’s fiscal year 2021-22 budget. 
 
Submitted by:                   Approved by: 
Robert Howell                  Gary Nordquist 
Administrative Services Director                 City Manager 
 
 
 







ATTACHMENTS: 
City of Wildomar Recovered Organic Waste Product Procurement Policy 







 -1- [City of Wildomar] 
  [Procurement Policy] 


CITY OF WILDOMAR RECOVERED ORGANIC 1 
WASTE PRODUCT PROCUREMENT POLICY 2 


SECTION 1.  PURPOSE  3 


A. It is the policy of the City of Wildomar (“City”), applicable to all departments and 4 
divisions, to incorporate environmental considerations including recycled-content 5 
and recovered Organic Waste product use into purchasing practices and 6 
procurement.  This Recovered Organic Waste Product Procurement Policy (Policy) 7 
will help the City to: 8 


1. Protect and conserve natural resources, water, and energy; 9 


2. Minimize the City’s contribution to climate change, pollution, and solid waste 10 
disposal; and, 11 


3. Comply with State requirements as contained in 14 CCR Division 7, Chapter 12 
12, Article 12 (SB 1383 procurement regulations) to procure a specified 13 
amount of Recovered Organic Waste Products to support Organic Waste 14 
disposal reduction targets and markets for products made from recycled 15 
and recovered Organic Waste materials, and to purchase Recycled-16 
Content Paper Products and Recycled-Content Printing and Writing Paper.  17 


SECTION 2.  DEFINITIONS 18 


A. “Annual Recovered Organic Waste Product Procurement Target” means the 19 
amount of Organic Waste in the form of a Recovered Organic Waste Product that 20 
the City is required to procure annually under 14 CCR Section 18993.1.  This target 21 
shall be calculated by multiplying the per capita procurement target, which shall be 22 
0.08 tons of Organic Waste per California resident per year, times the City’s 23 
residential population using the most recent annual data reported by the California 24 
Department of Finance. Annually, CalRecycle will provide notice to each 25 
Jurisdiction of its Annual Recovered Organic Waste Product Procurement Target 26 
by posting such information on CalRecycle’s website and providing written notice 27 
directly to the Jurisdiction.  28 


B. “Compost” means the product resulting from the controlled biological 29 
decomposition of organic solid wastes that are source separated from the 30 
municipal solid waste stream or which are separated at a centralized facility or as 31 
otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 17896.2(a)(4).   32 


Compost eligible for meeting the Annual Recovered Organic Waste Product 33 
Procurement Target must be produced at a compostable material handling 34 







 -2- [City of Wildomar] 
  [Procurement Policy] 


operation or facility permitted or authorized under 14 CCR Chapter 3.1 of Division 35 
7 or produced at a large volume in-vessel digestion facility that composts on-site 36 
as defined and permitted under 14 CCR Chapter 3.2 of Division 7.  Compost shall 37 
meet the State’s composting operations regulatory requirements. 38 


C. “Direct Service Provider” means a person, company, agency, district, or other 39 
entity that provides a service or services to City pursuant to a contract or other 40 
written agreement or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(17).  41 


D. “Electricity Procured from Biomass Conversion” means electricity generated from 42 
biomass facilities that convert recovered Organic Waste, such as wood and 43 
prunings from the municipal stream, into electricity. Electricity procured from a 44 
biomass conversion facility may only count toward the City’s Annual Recovered 45 
Organic Waste Product Procurement Target if the facility receives feedstock 46 
directly from certain permitted or authorized compostable material handling 47 
operations or facilities, transfer/processing operations or facilities, or landfills, as 48 
described in 14 CCR Section 18993.1(i).  49 


E. “City” means City of Wildomar.  50 


F. “Organic Waste” means solid wastes containing material originated from living 51 
organisms and their metabolic waste products including, but not limited to, food, 52 
yard trimmings, organic textiles and carpets, lumber, wood, Paper Products, 53 
Printing And Writing Paper, manure, biosolids, digestate, and sludges, or as 54 
otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(46). Biosolids and digestate are as 55 
defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(4) and 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(16.5), 56 
respectively. 57 


G. “Paper Products” include, but are not limited to, paper janitorial supplies, cartons, 58 
wrapping, packaging, file folders, hanging files, corrugated boxes, tissue, and 59 
toweling; or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(51). 60 


H. “Printing and Writing Papers” include, but are not limited to, copy, xerographic, 61 
watermark, cotton fiber, offset, forms, computer printout paper, white wove 62 
envelopes, manila envelopes, book paper, note pads, writing tablets, newsprint, 63 
and other uncoated writing papers, posters, index cards, calendars, brochures, 64 
reports, magazines, and publications; or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 65 
18982(a)(54). 66 


I. “Procurement of Recovered Organic Waste Products” shall mean purchase or 67 
acquisition (e.g., free delivery or free distribution from a hauler or other entity via a 68 
written agreement or contract), and end use by the City or others. The City’s 69 
Annual Recovered Organic Waste Product Procurement Target can be fulfilled 70 
directly by the City or by Direct Service Providers through written contracts or 71 
agreements for Procurement of Recovered Organic Waste Products at the City’s 72 
behest.  73 







 -3- [City of Wildomar] 
  [Procurement Policy] 


J. “Publicly-Owned Treatment Works” or “POTW” has the same meaning as in 74 
Section 403.3(r) of Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations.  75 


K. “Recovered Organic Waste Products” means products made from California, 76 
landfill-diverted recovered Organic Waste processed at a permitted or otherwise 77 
authorized operation or facility, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 78 
18982(a)(60). Products that can be used to meet the Annual Recovered Organic 79 
Waste Product Procurement Target shall include Compost, SB 1383 Eligible 80 
Mulch, Renewable Gas from an in-vessel digestion facility, and Electricity Procured 81 
from Biomass Conversion as described herein and provided that such products 82 
meet requirements of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12, Article 12.  83 


L. “Recordkeeping Designee” means the public employee appointed by the City 84 
Manager or their designee to track procurement and maintain records of 85 
Recovered Organic Waste Product procurement efforts both by the City and 86 
others, if applicable, as required by 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12, Articles 12 87 
and 13.  88 


M. "Recyclability" means that the Paper Products and Printing and Writing Paper 89 
offered or sold to the City are eligible to be labeled with an unqualified recyclable 90 
label as defined in 16 Code of Federal Regulations Section 260.12 (2013). 91 


N. “Recycled-Content Paper Products and Recycled-Content Printing and Writing 92 
Paper” means such products that consist of at least thirty percent (30%), by fiber 93 
weight, postconsumer fiber, consistent with the requirements of Sections 22150 to 94 
22154 and Sections 12200 and 12209 of the Public Contract Code, and as 95 
amended.  96 


O. “Renewable Gas” means gas derived from Organic Waste that has been diverted 97 
from a landfill and processed at an in-vessel digestion facility that is permitted or 98 
otherwise authorized by 14 CCR to recover Organic Waste, or as otherwise 99 
defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(62). 100 


P. “SB 1383” means Senate Bill 1383 of 2016 approved by the Governor on 101 
September 19, 2016, which added Sections 39730.5, 39730.6, 39730.7, and 102 
39730.8 to the Health and Safety Code, and added Chapter 13.1 (commencing 103 
with Section 42652) to Part 3 of Division 30 of the Public Resources Code, 104 
establishing methane emissions reduction targets in a statewide effort to reduce 105 
emissions of short-lived climate pollutants, as amended, supplemented, 106 
superseded, and replaced from time to time.  107 


Q. “SB 1383 Regulations” or “SB 1383 Regulatory” means or refers to, for the 108 
purposes of this policy, the Short-Lived Climate Pollutants (SLCP): Organic Waste 109 
Reductions regulations developed by CalRecycle and adopted in 2020 that created 110 
Chapter 12 of 14 CCR, Division 7 and amended portions of regulations of 14 CCR 111 
and 27 CCR. 112 







 -4- [City of Wildomar] 
  [Procurement Policy] 


R. “SB 1383 Eligible Mulch” means mulch eligible to meet the Annual Recovered 113 
Organic Waste Product Procurement Target, pursuant to 14 CCR Chapter 12 of 114 
Division 7. This SB 1383 Eligible Mulch shall meet the following conditions for the 115 
duration of the applicable procurement compliance year, as specified by 14 CCR 116 
Section 18993.1(f)(4): 117 


1. Produced at one of the following facilities:  118 


i. A compostable material handling operation or facility as defined in 119 
14 CCR Section 17852(a)(12), that is permitted or authorized under 120 
14 CCR Division 7, other than a chipping and grinding operation or 121 
facility as defined in 14 CCR Section 17852(a)(10);  122 


ii. A transfer/processing facility or transfer/processing operation as 123 
defined in 14 CCR Sections 17402(a)(30) and (31), respectively, that 124 
is permitted or authorized under 14 CCR Division 7; or,  125 


iii. A solid waste landfill as defined in Public Resources Code Section 126 
40195.1 that is permitted under 27 CCR Division 2.   127 


S. “State” means the State of California.  128 


SECTION 3.  RECOVERED ORGANIC WASTE PRODUCT PROCUREMENT 129 


3.1 Procurement Target 130 
A. City will annually procure for use or giveaway a quantity of Recovered Organic 131 


Waste Products that meets or exceeds its Annual Recovered Organic Waste 132 
Product Procurement Target through the implementation of Sections 3 through 5 133 
of this Policy.  134 


B. To be eligible to meet the Annual Recovered Organic Waste Product Procurement 135 
Target, products that may be procured include the following (provided that each 136 
product meets the criteria included in their respective definition in Section 2 of this 137 
Policy): 138 


1. SB 1383 eligible Compost (as defined in Section 2.B).   139 


2. SB 1383 Eligible Mulch (as defined in Section 2.R). 140 


3. Renewable Gas (in the form of transportation fuel, electricity, or heat) (as 141 
defined in Section 2.O). 142 


4. Electricity Procured from Biomass Conversion (as defined in Section 2.D). 143 







 -5- [City of Wildomar] 
  [Procurement Policy] 


3.2 Requirements for City Departments 144 
A. Compost and SB 1383 Eligible Mulch procurement. Divisions and departments 145 


responsible for landscaping maintenance, renovation, or construction shall: 146 


1. Use Compost and SB 1383 Eligible Mulch produced from recovered 147 
Organic Waste, as defined in Section 2.B and 2.R of this Policy, for 148 
landscaping maintenance, renovation, or construction, as practicable, 149 
whenever available, and capable of meeting quality standards and criteria 150 
specified.  151 


2. When City uses Compost and SB 1383 Eligible Mulch and the applications 152 
are subject to the City’s Water Efficient Landscaping Ordinance (WELO), 153 
pursuant to Municipal Code Section 17.276, comply with one of the 154 
following, whichever is more stringent, (i) the City’s WELO, City Code 155 
Section 17.276, if more stringent than the State’s Model Water Efficient 156 
Landscape Ordinance (MWELO), or (ii) Sections 492.6 (a)(3)(B), (C), (D), 157 
and (G) of the State’s Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance, Title 23, 158 
Division 2, Chapter 2.7 of the CCR, as amended September 15, 2015, 159 
which requires the submittal of a landscape design plan with a “Soil 160 
Preparation, Mulch, and Amendments Section” to include the following:  161 


a. For landscape installations, Compost at a rate of a minimum of 4 162 
cubic yards per 1,000 square feet of permeable area shall be 163 
incorporated to a depth of six (6) inches into the soil. Soils with 164 
greater than six percent (6%) organic matter in the top six (6) inches 165 
of soil are exempt from adding Compost and tilling. 166 


b. Apply a minimum three- (3-) inch layer of mulch on all exposed soil 167 
surfaces of planting areas except in turf areas, creeping or rooting 168 
groundcovers, or direct seeding applications where mulch is 169 
contraindicated. To provide habitat for beneficial insects and other 170 
wildlife, leave up to five percent (5%) of the landscape area without 171 
mulch. Designated insect habitat must be included in the landscape 172 
design plan as such. 173 


c. Procure organic mulch materials made from recycled or post-174 
consumer materials rather than inorganic materials or virgin forest 175 
products unless the recycled post-consumer organic products are 176 
not locally available. Organic mulches are not required where 177 
prohibited by local Fuel Modification Plan Guidelines or other 178 
applicable local ordinances. 179 


3. Keep records, including invoices or proof of Recovered Organic Waste 180 
Product procurement (either through purchase or acquisition), and submit 181 
records to the Recordkeeping Designee, on a schedule to be determined 182 
by Recordkeeping Designee.  183 







 -6- [City of Wildomar] 
  [Procurement Policy] 


Records shall include: 184 


a. General procurement records, including: 185 


(i) General description of how and where the product was used 186 
and applied, if applicable; 187 


(ii) Source of product, including name, physical location, and 188 
contact information for each entity, operation, or facility from 189 
whom the Recovered Organic Waste Products were 190 
procured; 191 


(iii) Type of product;  192 


(iv) Quantity of each product; and,  193 


(v) Invoice or other record demonstrating purchase or 194 
procurement. 195 


b. For Compost and SB 1383 Eligible Mulch provided to residents 196 
through giveaway events or other types of distribution methods, keep 197 
records of the Compost and SB 1383 Eligible Mulch provided to 198 
residents. Records shall be maintained and submitted to the 199 
Recordkeeping Designee in accordance with the requirements 200 
specified in Section 3.2.A.3.  201 


4. When Procurement of Recovered Organic Waste Products occurs through 202 
a Direct Service Provider, enter into a written contract or agreement or 203 
execute a purchase order with enforceable provisions that includes: (i) 204 
definitions and specifications for SB 1383 Eligible Mulch, Compost, 205 
Renewable Gas, and/or Electricity Procured from Biomass Conversion; 206 
and, (ii) an enforcement mechanism (e.g., termination, liquidated damages) 207 
in the event the Direct Service Provider is not compliant with the 208 
requirements.  209 


B. Renewable Gas procurement (used for fuel for transportation, electricity, or heating 210 
applications). For Renewable Gas procurement, City shall:  211 


1. Procure Renewable Gas made from recovered Organic Waste for 212 
transportation fuel, electricity, and heating applications to the degree that it 213 
is appropriate and available for the City and to help meet the Annual 214 
Recovered Organic Waste Product Procurement Target, which requires 215 
compliance with criteria specified in 14 CCR Section 18993.1.  216 


2. Keep records in the same manner indicated in Section 3.2.A.3 for the 217 
amount of Renewable Gas procured and used by the City, including the 218 
general procurement record information specified in Section 3.2.A.3.a, and 219 
submit records to the Recordkeeping Designee on a schedule to be 220 







 -7- [City of Wildomar] 
  [Procurement Policy] 


determined by Recordkeeping Designee. City shall additionally obtain the 221 
documentation and submit records specified in Section 3.2.B.3 below, if 222 
applicable.  223 


3. If the City procures Renewable Gas from a POTW,  224 


a. Annually verify that the Renewable Gas from the POTW complies 225 
with the requirements specified in 14 CCR Section 18993.1(h), 226 
including, but not limited to the exclusion in 14 CCR Section 227 
17896.6(a)(1) and the items listed in this Section 3.2.B.3.  228 


b. Annually receive a record from the POTW documenting the tons of 229 
Organic Waste received by the POTW from: (i) a compostable 230 
material handling operation or facility as defined in 14 CCR Section 231 
17852(a)(12), other than a chipping and grinding operation or facility 232 
as defined in 14 CCR Section 17852(a)(10), that is permitted or 233 
authorized under 14 CCR Division 7; (ii) transfer/processing facility 234 
or transfer/processing operation as defined in 14 CCR Sections 235 
17402(a)(30) and (31), respectively, that is permitted or authorized 236 
under 14 CCR Division 7; or (iii) a solid waste landfill as defined in 237 
Public Resources Code Section 40195.1 that is permitted under 27 238 
CCR Division 2.  239 


c. Annually receive documentation from the POTW of the percentage 240 
of biosolids that the POTW produced and transported to activities 241 
that constitute landfill disposal in order to demonstrate that the 242 
POTW transported less than twenty-five percent (25%) of the 243 
biosolids it produced to activities that constitute landfill disposal. For 244 
the purposes of this Policy, landfill disposal is defined pursuant to 14 245 
CCR Section 18983.1(a) and includes final disposition at a landfill; 246 
use of material as alternative daily cover or alternative intermediate 247 
cover at a landfill, and other dispositions not listed in 14 CCR Section 248 
18983.1(b). Alternative daily cover or alternative intermediate cover 249 
are defined in 27 CCR Sections 20690 and 20700, respectively. 250 


d. Annually receive documentation that the POTW receives vehicle-251 
transported solid waste that is an anaerobically digestible material 252 
for the purpose of anaerobic co-digestion with POTW treatment plant 253 
wastewater to demonstrate that the POTW meets the requirement of 254 
14 CCR Section 18993.1(h)(2). 255 


e. City shall submit these records to the Recordkeeping Designee on a 256 
schedule to be determined by Recordkeeping Designee.  257 


C. Electricity Procured from Biomass Conversion. For Electricity Procured from 258 
Biomass Conversion, City shall:  259 


1. Procure electricity from a biomass conversion facility that receives 260 







 -8- [City of Wildomar] 
  [Procurement Policy] 


feedstock from a composting facility, transfer/processing facility, a solid 261 
waste landfill, and/or receives feedstock from the generator or employees 262 
on behalf of the generator of the Organic Waste and to the degree that it is 263 
available and practicable for the City and to help meet the Annual 264 
Recovered Organic Waste Product Procurement Target, which requires 265 
compliance with criteria specified in 14 CCR Section 18993.1.  266 


2. Maintain records and conduct the following recordkeeping activities: 267 


a. Keep records in the same manner indicated in Section 3.2.A.3 of this 268 
Policy for the amount of Electricity Procured from Biomass 269 
Conversion facilities, including the general procurement record 270 
information specified in Section 3.2.A.3.a.  271 


b. Receive written notification by an authorized representative of the 272 
biomass conversion facility certifying that biomass feedstock was 273 
received from a permitted solid waste facility identified in 14 CCR 274 
Section 18993.1(i). 275 


c. Provide these records to the Recordkeeping Designee. 276 


3.3 Requirements for Direct Service Providers 277 
A. Direct Service Providers of landscaping maintenance, renovation, and 278 


construction shall: 279 


1. Use Compost and SB 1383 Eligible Mulch, as practicable, produced from 280 
recovered Organic Waste, as defined in Section 2.B and 2.R of this Policy, 281 
for all landscaping renovations, construction, or maintenance performed for 282 
the City, whenever available, and capable of meeting quality standards and 283 
criteria specified. SB 1383 Eligible Mulch used for land application shall 284 
comply with 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12, Article 12 and must meet or 285 
exceed the physical contamination, maximum metal concentration and 286 
pathogen density standards specified in 14 CCR Section 287 
17852(a)(24.5)(A)(1) through (3). 288 


2. If Direct Service Provider is subject to the City’s WELO pursuant to City 289 
Municipal Code Section 17.276, comply with one of the following, whichever 290 
is more stringent: (i) the locally-adopted WELO that is more stringent than 291 
the State’s MWELO, or (ii) Sections 492.6 (a)(3)(B), (C), (D), and (G) of the 292 
State’s MWELO, Title 23, Division 2, Chapter 2.7 of the CCR, as amended 293 
September 15, 2015, which requires the submittal of a landscape design 294 
plan with a “Soil Preparation, Mulch, and Amendments Section” to include 295 
the following:  296 


a. For landscape installations, Compost at a rate of a minimum of 4 297 
cubic yards per 1,000 square feet of permeable area shall be 298 
incorporated to a depth of six (6) inches into the soil. Soils with 299 







 -9- [City of Wildomar] 
  [Procurement Policy] 


greater than six percent (6%) organic matter in the top six (6) inches 300 
of soil are exempt from adding Compost and tilling. 301 


b. Apply a minimum three- (3-) inch layer of mulch on all exposed soil 302 
surfaces of planting areas except in turf areas, creeping or rooting 303 
groundcovers, or direct seeding applications where mulch is 304 
contraindicated. To provide habitat for beneficial insects and other 305 
wildlife, leave up to five percent (5%) of the landscape area without 306 
mulch. Designated insect habitat must be included in the landscape 307 
design plan as such. 308 


c. Procure organic mulch materials made from recycled or post-309 
consumer materials rather than inorganic materials or virgin forest 310 
products unless the recycled post-consumer organic products are 311 
not locally available. Organic mulches are not required where 312 
prohibited by local Fuel Modification Plan Guidelines or other 313 
applicable local ordinances. 314 


d. For all mulch that is land applied, procure SB 1383 Eligible Mulch 315 
that meets or exceeds the physical contamination, maximum metal 316 
concentration, and pathogen density standards for land applications 317 
specified in 14 CCR Section 17852(a)(24.5)(A)(1) through (3). 318 


3. Keep and provide records of Procurement of Recovered Organic Waste 319 
Products (either through purchase or acquisition) to Recordkeeping 320 
Designee, on a schedule to be determined by Recordkeeping Designee. 321 
Information to be provided shall include:  322 


a. General description of how and where the product was used and if 323 
applicable, applied; 324 


b. Source of product, including name, physical location, and contact 325 
information for each entity, operation, or facility from whom the 326 
Recovered Organic Waste Products were procured; 327 


c. Type of product;  328 


d. Quantity of each product; and,  329 


e. Invoice or other record demonstrating purchase or procurement. 330 


SECTION 4.  RECYCLED-CONTENT PAPER PROCUREMENT 331 


4.1 Requirements for City Departments 332 
A. If fitness and quality of Recycled-Content Paper Products and Recycled-Content 333 


Printing and Writing Paper are equal to that of non-recycled items, all departments 334 
and divisions of City shall purchase Recycled-Content Paper Products and 335 







 -10- [City of Wildomar] 
  [Procurement Policy] 


Recycled-Content Printing and Writing Paper that consists of at least thirty percent 336 
(30%), by fiber weight, postconsumer fiber, whenever the total cost is the same or 337 
a lesser total cost than non-recycled items or whenever the total cost is no more 338 
than one percent (1%) of the total cost for the non-recycled items, consistent with 339 
the requirements of the Public Contract Code, Sections 22150 through 22154 and 340 
Sections 12200 and 12209, as amended.   341 


B. All Paper Products and Printing and Writing Paper shall be eligible to be labeled 342 
with an unqualified recyclable label as defined in Title 16 Code of Federal 343 
Regulations Section 260.12 (2013). 344 


C. Provide records to the Recordkeeping Designee of all Paper Products and Printing 345 
and Writing Paper purchases on a schedule to be determined by Recordkeeping 346 
Designee (both recycled-content and non-recycled content, if any is purchased) 347 
made by a division or department or employee of the City. Records shall include a 348 
copy of the invoice or other documentation of purchase, written certifications as 349 
required in Section 4.2.A.3-4 for recycled-content purchases, vendor name, 350 
purchaser name, quantity purchased, date purchased, and recycled content 351 
(including products that contain none), and if non-Recycled-Content Paper 352 
Products and/or non-Recycled-Content Printing and Writing Paper are provided, 353 
include a description of why Recycled-Content Paper Products and/or Recycled-354 
Content Printing and Writing Paper were not provided. 355 


4.2 Requirements for Vendors 356 
A. All vendors that provide Paper Products (including janitorial Paper Products) and 357 


Printing and Writing Paper to City shall: 358 


1. Provide Recycled-Content Paper Products and Recycled-Content Printing 359 
and Writing Paper that consists of at least thirty percent (30%), by fiber 360 
weight, postconsumer fiber, if fitness and quality are equal to that of non-361 
recycled item, and available at equal or lesser price or available at no more 362 
than one percent (1%) of the total cost for non-recycled Paper Products.  363 


2. Only provide Paper Products and Printing and Writing Papers that meet 364 
Federal Trade Commission Recyclability standard as defined in Title 16 365 
Code of Federal Regulations Section 260.12 (2013). 366 


3. Certify in writing, under penalty of perjury, the minimum percentage of 367 
postconsumer material in the Paper Products and Printing and Writing 368 
Paper offered or sold to the City. This certification requirement may be 369 
waived if the percentage of postconsumer material in the Paper Products, 370 
Printing and Writing Paper, or both can be verified by a product label, 371 
catalog, invoice, or a manufacturer or vendor internet website.  372 


4. Certify in writing, under penalty of perjury, that the Paper Products and 373 
Printing and Writing Paper offered or sold to the City is eligible to be labeled 374 
with an unqualified recyclable label as defined in Title 16 Code of Federal 375 







 -11- [City of Wildomar] 
  [Procurement Policy] 


Regulations Section 260.12 (2013). 376 


5. Provide records to the Recordkeeping Designee of all Paper Products and 377 
Printing and Writing Paper purchased from the vendor on a schedule to be 378 
determined by Recordkeeping Designee (both recycled-content and non-379 
recycled content, if any is purchased) made by a division or department or 380 
employee of the City. Records shall include a copy of the invoice or other 381 
documentation of purchase, written certifications as required in Section 382 
4.2.A.3-4 for recycled-content purchases, purchaser name, quantity 383 
purchased, date purchased, and recycled content (including products that 384 
contain none), and if non-Recycled-Content Paper Products and/or non- 385 
Recycled-Content Printing and Writing Paper are provided, include a 386 
description of why Recycled-Content Paper Products and/or Recycled-387 
Content Printing and Writing Paper were not provided.  388 


B. All vendors providing printing services to the City via a printing contract or written 389 
agreement, shall use Printing and Writing Paper that consists of at least thirty 390 
percent (30%), by fiber weight, postconsumer fiber, or as amended by Public 391 
Contract Code Section 12209.   392 


SECTION 5.  RECORDKEEPING RESPONSIBILITIES 393 


A. The Administrative Services department will be the responsible department and 394 
will select an employee to act as the Recordkeeping Designee that will be 395 
responsible for obtaining records pertaining to Procurement of Recovered Organic 396 
Waste Products and Recycled-Content Paper Products and Recycled-Content 397 
Printing and Writing Paper.  398 


B. The Recordkeeping Designee will do the following to track Procurement of 399 
Recovered Organic Waste Products, Recycled-Content Paper Products, and 400 
Recycled-Content Printing and Writing Paper: 401 


1. Collect and collate copies of invoices or receipts (paper or electronic) or 402 
other proof of purchase that describe the procurement of Printing and 403 
Writing Paper and Paper Products, including the volume and type of all 404 
paper purchases; and, copies of certifications and other required 405 
verifications from all departments and/or divisions procuring Paper Products 406 
and Printing and Writing Paper (whether or not they contain recycled 407 
content) and/or from the vendors providing Printing and Writing Paper and 408 
Paper Products. These records must be kept as part of City’s 409 
documentation of its compliance with 14 CCR Section 18993.3.  410 


2. Collect and collate copies of invoices or receipts or documentation 411 
evidencing procurement from all departments and divisions procuring 412 
Recovered Organic Waste Products and invoices or similar records from 413 
vendors/contractors/others procuring Recovered Organic Waste Products 414 
on behalf of the City to develop evidence of City meeting its Annual 415 







 -12- [City of Wildomar] 
  [Procurement Policy] 


Recovered Organic Waste Product Procurement Target. These records 416 
must be kept as part of the City’s documentation of its compliance with 14 417 
CCR Section 18993.1. 418 


3. Collect, collate, and maintain documentation submitted by the City, Direct 419 
Service Providers, and/or vendors, including the information reported to the 420 
Recordkeeping Designee in accordance with Sections 3.2.A.3, 3.2.B.2, 421 
3.2.C.2, 3.3.A.3, 3.3.B.2, 3.3.C.3, 4.1.C, and 4.2.A.5. 422 


4. Compile an annual report on the City’s direct procurement, and 423 
vendor/other procurement on behalf of the City, of Recovered Organic 424 
Waste Products, Recycled-Content Paper Products, and Recycled-Content 425 
Printing and Writing Paper, consistent with the recordkeeping requirements 426 
contained in 14 CCR Section 18993.2 for the Annual Recovered Organic 427 
Waste Product Procurement Target and 14 CCR Section 18993.4 for 428 
Recycled-Content Paper Products and Recycled-Content Printing and 429 
Writing Paper procurement. This report shall be made available to the City’s 430 
responsible entity for compiling the annual report to be submitted to 431 
CalRecycle (which will include a description of compliance on many other 432 
SB 1383 regulatory requirements) pursuant to 14 CCR Division 7, Chapter 433 
12, Article 13. The procurement report shall also be shared with the City 434 
Council or other regulating body annually as evidence of implementing this 435 
Policy.   436 


SECTION 6.  EFFECTIVE DATE OF POLICY 437 


This Policy shall go into effect retroactively to January 1, 2022.  438 







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.9 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: January 12, 2022 


______________________________________________________________________ 


TO: Mayor and City Council Members 


FROM: Dan York, Assistant City Manager 


PREPARED: Emily Stadnik, Land Development Manager 


SUBJECT: Summerhill 2 KB Homes, Tentative Tract Map 37476 Subdivision 
Improvement Agreement and Offsite Public Improvement Agreement 


STAFF REPORT 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the City Manager to execute the 
Subdivision Improvement Agreement and the Offsite Public Improvement Agreement with 
KB Home Coastal Inc. 


BACKGROUND: 
On February 13, 2019, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2019-08 approving 
Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 to subdivide the 38.22 acres into 84 lots.  The lots consist 
of 80 single family residential lots and four lots for commercial/business park 
development.  Also adopted on the same council date is Resolution No. 2019-10 
approving the Final Site Plan of Development No.18-0034 to develop an 80-unit single 
family residential development of 28.86 acres, including related onsite/offsite 
improvements.  The final map, grading and improvement plans for this residential 
development also known as Summerhill 2 are currently being processed with the City.  
The street and storm drain improvement plans for the project have been approved.  An 
aerial image of the project site and the surrounding area is provided in Attachment A and 
the project site plan is shown in Attachment B.   


DISCUSSION: 
Subdivision Improvement Agreement 
In order to secure the incomplete public improvements that are required of the project 
prior to map recordation, a Subdivision Improvement Agreement has been prepared 
(Attachment C). The Subdivision Improvement Agreement identifies the subdivider’s 
obligations to complete the Project’s improvements and sets forth policies and procedures 
for the Developer and the City to ensure that the improvements are completed. The 
Agreement also provides the City with bonds/securities should the Developer fail to fulfill 
their obligations. The security amounts are based on the Developer’s engineer’s 
construction cost estimates for the private improvements.  Conditions of approval related 







to Final Map recordation not yet satisfied have been identified in Exhibit D of the 
Subdivision Improvement Agreement. 
 
Public Improvement Agreements 
In order to complete offsite public improvements, the Developer is required to enter into 
an Offsite Public Improvement Agreement (Attachment D) with the City. The agreements 
identify the Developer’s obligations to the City in performing and completing the 
construction for offsite public improvements. The agreement also provide the City with 
bonds to ensure the Developer will fulfill his/her obligations and secure improvements. If 
the Developer fails to fulfill these obligations, the bonds will provide a mechanism for the 
City to ensure that the construction site is brought to a safe and acceptable condition. The 
security amounts are based on the original Developer’s engineer’s construction cost 
estimates for the public improvements.  
 
Staff is requesting that the City Council authorize the City Manager to execute the 
Subdivision Improvement Agreement and Offsite Public Improvement Agreement. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There are no fiscal impacts to the City at this time. All costs related to this process are 
covered by developer deposits.  
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Daniel A. York      Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager,     City Manager 
Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 


A. Aerial Image of Summerhill 2 KB Homes, TTM 37476 
B. Summerhill 2 KB Homes Project Site Plan 
C. Subdivision Improvement Agreement, Surety Bonds and Private Improvement 


Cost Estimate 
D. Offsite Public Improvement Agreement, Surety Bonds and Public Improvement 


Cost Estimate 
 







ATTACHMENT A


Aerial Image of
 Summerhill 2 KB Homes TR37476 Project


(highlighted in yellow)







ATTACHMENT B


 Summerhill 2 KB Homes TR37476 Project
Site Plan







123456789101112131415161718


56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68 69 70


71


72


73


74


75


76


77


383940414243444546474849505152


23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37


78


79


1920


21 22


54 53


55G


F


FIRE DEP'T TURNOUT


81


83


84


E


 B
V
C


14
54


.5


 E
V
C


14
60


.9


 B
V
C


14
98


.6


 E
V
C


15
10


.0


 P
V
I


10
0'
 V


C


 P
V
I


10
0'
 V


C


 B
V
C


14
78


.6


 E
V
C


14
73


.4


 P
V
I


10
0'
 V


C


 B
V
C


15
09


.0


 P
V
I


30
0'
 V


C


 EV
C


1530.7


 BVC
1529.3


 EVC
1527.3


 PVI
50' VC


 BVC
1511.7


 EVC
1509.4


 PVI
50' VC


 B
V
C


14
45


.8


 E
V
C


14
54


.2


 P
V
I


10
0'
 V


C


 B
V
C


14
02


.0


 E
V
C


14
18


.8


 P
V
I


10
0'
 V


C


 BVC
1453.4


 PVI
250' VC


 E
V
C


14
53


.3


 BVC
1460.5


 PVI175' VC


 EVC
1460.7


SECTION A-A SECTION B-B SECTION C-C SECTION D-D


SECTION F-FSECTION E-E


C
ity


 o
f 
W


ild
o
m


a
r


Te
nt


at
iv


e 
Tr


ac
t N


o.
 3


74
76


1
1


M
o
n
te


 V
is


ta


TTM 37476 SITE PLAN







ATTACHMENT B


Tract Map No. 31667 
McVicar Culvert Cooperative Agreement


Rough Grading Agreement
Grading Bond


Grading Bond Estimate


ATTACHMENT C


Subdivision Improvement Agreement
Surety Bonds


Private Improvement Cost  Estimate







RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2 


RECORDED AT THE REQUEST OF
AND WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO:
(Document exempt from recording fees
pursuant to Cal. Gov. Code § 27383)


CITY OF WILDOMAR
Attn: City Clerk
23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 111
Wildomar, California 92595


THIS SPACE FOR RECORDER’S USE ONLY


SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 


FINAL TRACT MAP 37476


By and Between


THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 
a municipal corporation


and


KB Home Coastal Inc.
a California corporation


Dated January 12, 2022







RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2 - 1 -


SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


FINAL TRACT MAP 37476


This Subdivision Improvement Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into as of this 12th 
day of January, 2022 by and between the City of Wildomar, a municipal corporation (“City”) and 
KB Home Coastal Inc., a California corporation (“Developer”).  City and Developer are sometimes 
hereinafter individually referred to as “Party” and hereinafter collectively referred to as the 
“Parties.”


RECITALS


A. Developer has submitted to City an application for approval of a final tract map for 
real property located within City, a legal description of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”.  
The tract map is identified in City records as Tract Map No. 37476.  On February 13, 2019, the 
City conditionally approved Tract No. 37476.


B. Developer has not completed all of the work or made all of the Public 
Improvements required by the Subdivision Map Act (Government Code sections 66410 et seq.), 
(“Map Act”) the City Ordinances, the conditions of approval for Tract No. 37476, or other 
ordinances, resolutions, or policies of City requiring construction of improvements in conjunction 
with the subdivision of land.


C. Pursuant to City Ordinances and the applicable provisions of the Map Act, 
Developer and City enter into this Agreement for the timely construction and completion of the 
Public Improvements and the furnishing of the security therefor, acceptable to the City Engineer 
and City Attorney, for Tract No. 37476.


D. City has authority to enter into this Subdivision Improvement Agreement pursuant 
to Government Code Sections 66499 – 66499.10.


E. Pursuant to Government Code Section 66499, Developer’s execution of this 
Agreement and the provision of the security are made in consideration of City’s approval of the 
final map for Tract No. 37476. 


DEFINED TERMS


“Developer” shall mean KB Home Coastal Inc., a California corporation.  The term “Developer” 
shall also include all assignees, to the extent permitted under this Agreement, of the rights and 
obligations of Developer under this Agreement, and any successor-in-interest to Developer having 
a legal and/or equitable interest in the Property.


“Estimated Costs” shall mean the City Engineer’s approximation of the actual cost to construct 
the Public Improvements, including the replacement cost for all landscaping.







RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2 - 2 -


“Litigation Expenses” shall mean all costs and expenses, to the extent reasonable in amount, 
actually and necessarily incurred by a party in good faith in the prosecution of an action or 
proceeding, including, but not limited to, court costs, filing, recording, and service fees, copying 
costs, exhibit production costs, special media rental costs, attorneys’ fees, fees for investigators, 
witness fees (both lay and expert), travel expenses, deposition and transcript costs and any other 
cost or expense, the award of which a court of competent jurisdiction may determine to be just and 
reasonable.


“Map Act” shall mean the Subdivision Map Act, Government Code Sections 66410 et seq.


“Property” shall mean the all of the real property contained within the boundaries of Tract Map 
No. 37476 located in the City of Wildomar, California, as is more particularly described in the 
legal description and tract diagram attached hereto and incorporated hereby by reference at Exhibit  
“A”.


“Public Improvements” shall include, but not be limited to, all grading, roads, streets, paving, 
curbs and gutters, sidewalks, paseos, pathways, trails, sanitary sewers, utilities, storm drains, 
detention and retention basins and other drainage facilities, traffic controls, landscaping, street 
lights and all other facilities required to be constructed and dedicated to the City or other public 
entity as conditions of approval of Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 and as shown in detail on the 
plans, and specifications which have been approved by the City and incorporated into Tract Map 
No. 37476.  The Parties agree that the Public Improvements to be completed by Developer are 
more specifically described in the diagram or plan attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference as Exhibit “B.  Notwithstanding, Exhibit “B”, Developer shall remain obligated to 
construct and complete all of the Public Improvements required as conditions of approval for 
Tentative Tract Map 37476.  


“Required Insurance” shall mean the insurance required to be maintained by Developer under 
Section 17.


“Security” shall mean surety bonds, lien agreement or other security approved by the City 
Engineer or City Attorney in the amounts and under the terms of Section 12.


“Tract No 37476.” shall mean the final map prepared and approved by the City for tentative tract 
map no. 37476.


“Warranty” shall mean the one year period following completion of the Public Improvements by 
Developer and the acceptance of the Public Improvements by the City in which Developer warrants 
and guarantees all Public Improvements.


OPERATIVE PROVISIONS


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants made by the 
parties and contained here and other consideration, the value and adequacy of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:


1. EFFECTIVENESS.  This Agreement shall not be effective unless and until all 
four (4) of the following conditions are satisfied in the order provided:  







RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2 - 3 -


1.1 Security.  Developer provides City with the Security of the type and in the 
amounts required by this Agreement; 


1.2 Final Map and Agreement Approval.  The City Council of the City (“City 
Council”) approves the final map for Tract No. 37476 and this Agreement;


1.3 Record Agreement.  Developer and City execute the Agreement and City 
records this Agreement in the Recorder’s Office of the County of Riverside; and 


1.4 Record Final Map.  Developer records the final map for Tract No. 37476 
in the Recorder’s Office of the County of Riverside.  


If the above described conditions are not satisfied in the order, manner and within the time 
provided under this Agreement, this Agreement shall automatically terminate without need of 
further action by either City or Developer.


2. PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS.  Developer shall construct or have constructed at 
its own cost, expense, and liability the Public Improvements, as defined herein, within the time 
and in the manner required under this Agreement.  Construction of the Public Improvements shall 
include any transitions and/or other incidental work deemed necessary for drainage or public 
safety.  The Developer shall be responsible for the replacement, relocation, or removal of any 
component of any irrigation water or sewer system in conflict with the construction or installation 
of the Public Improvements.  Such replacement, relocation, or removal shall be performed to the 
complete satisfaction of the City Engineer and the owner of such water or sewer system.  
Developer further promises and agrees to provide all equipment, tools, materials, labor, tests, 
design work, and engineering services necessary or required by City to fully and adequately 
complete the Public Improvements.


2.1 Prior Partial Construction of Public Improvements.  Where construction 
of any Public Improvements has been partially completed prior to this Agreement, Developer 
agrees to complete such Public Improvements or assure their completion in accordance with this 
Agreement.


2.2 Permits; Notices; Utility Statements.  Prior to commencing any work, 
Developer shall, at its sole cost, expense, and liability, obtain all necessary permits and approvals 
and give all necessary and incidental notices required for the lawful construction of the Public 
Improvements and performance of Developer’s obligations under this Agreement.  Developer shall 
conduct the work in full compliance with the regulations, rules, and other requirements contained 
in any permit or approval issued to Developer.  Prior to commencing any work, Developer shall 
file a written statement with the City Clerk and the City Engineer, signed by Developer and each 
utility which will provide utility service to the Property, attesting that Developer has made all 
deposits legally required by the utility for the extension and provision of utility service to the 
Property.


2.3 Pre-approval of Plans and Specifications.  Developer is prohibited from 
commencing work on any Public Improvement until all plans and specifications for such Public 
Improvement have been submitted to and approved by the City Engineer, or his or her designee.  
Approval by the City Engineer shall not relieve Developer from ensuring that all Public 
Improvements conform with all other requirements and standards set forth in this Agreement.







RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2 - 4 -


2.4 Quality of Work; Compliance With Laws and Codes.  The construction 
plans and specifications for the Public Improvements shall be prepared in accordance with all 
applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, regulations, codes, standards, and other 
requirements.  The Public Improvements shall be completed in accordance with all approved maps, 
plans, specifications, standard drawings, and special amendments thereto on file with City, as well 
as all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations, codes, standards, and other 
requirements applicable at the time work is actually commenced. 


2.5 Standard of Performance.  Developer and its contractors, if any, shall 
perform all work required to construct the Public Improvements under this Agreement in a skillful 
and workmanlike manner, and consistent with the standards generally recognized as being 
employed by professionals in the same discipline in the State of California.  Developer represents 
and maintains that it or its contractors shall be skilled in the professional calling necessary to 
perform the work.  Developer warrants that all of its employees and contractors shall have 
sufficient skill and experience to perform the work assigned to them, and that they shall have all 
licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to 
perform the work, and that such licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals shall be maintained 
throughout the term of this Agreement.


2.6 Alterations to Improvements.  All work shall be done and improvements 
made and completed as shown on approved plans and specifications, and any subsequent 
alterations thereto.  If during the course of construction and installation of the Public Improvements 
it is determined that the public interest requires alterations in the Public Improvements, Developer 
shall undertake such design and construction changes as may be reasonably required by City.  Any 
and all alterations in the plans and specifications and the Public Improvements to be completed 
may be accomplished without giving prior notice thereof to Developer’s surety for this Agreement.


2.7 Other Obligations Referenced in Conditions of Tentative Map 
Approval.  In addition to the foregoing, Developer shall satisfy all of the conditions of approval 
on the tentative map for the Property.  The conditions of approval which have not been satisfied 
prior to the date of this Agreement are identified on Exhibit “D” hereto.


3. MAINTENANCE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS AND LANDSCAPING.  
City shall not be responsible or liable for the maintenance or care of the Public Improvements until 
City formally approves and accepts them in accordance with its policies and procedures.  City shall 
exercise no control over the Public Improvements until approved and accepted.  Any use by any 
person of the Public Improvements, or any portion thereof, shall be at the sole and exclusive risk 
of the Developer at all times prior to City’s acceptance of the Public Improvements.  Developer 
shall maintain all the Public Improvements in a state of good repair until they are completed by 
Developer and approved and accepted by City, and until the security for the performance of this 
Agreement is released.  Maintenance shall include, but shall not be limited to, repair of pavement, 
curbs, gutters, sidewalks, signals, parkways, water mains, and sewers; maintaining all landscaping 
in a vigorous and thriving condition reasonably acceptable to City; removal of debris from sewers 
and storm drains; and sweeping, repairing, and maintaining in good and safe condition all streets 
and street improvements.  It shall be Developer’s responsibility to initiate all maintenance work, 
but if it shall fail to do so, it shall promptly perform such maintenance work when notified to do 
so by City.  If Developer fails to properly prosecute its maintenance obligation under this section, 
City may do all work necessary for such maintenance and the cost thereof shall be the 







RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2 - 5 -


responsibility of Developer and its surety under this Agreement.  City shall not be responsible or 
liable for any damages or injury of any nature in any way related to or caused by the Public 
Improvements or their condition prior to acceptance.  


4. CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE.  Unless extended pursuant to this Section 4.1 
of this Agreement, Developer shall fully and adequately complete or have completed the Public 
Improvements within three years (36 months) following approval of the final map for Tract No. 
37476.


4.1 Extensions.  City may, in its sole and absolute discretion, provide 
Developer with additional time within which to complete the Public Improvements.  It is 
understood that by providing the Security required under Section 12.0 et seq. of this Agreement, 
Developer and its surety consent in advance to any extension of time as may be given by City to 
Developer, and waives any and all right to notice of such extension(s).  Developer’s acceptance of 
an extension of time granted by City shall constitute a waiver by Developer and its surety of all 
defense of laches, estoppel, statutes of limitations, and other limitations of action in any action or 
proceeding filed by City following the date on which the Public Improvements were to have been 
completed hereunder.  In addition, as consideration for granting such extension to Developer, City 
reserves the right to review the provisions of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, the 
construction standards, the cost estimates established by City, and the sufficiency of the Security 
provided by Developer, and to require adjustments thereto when warranted according to City’s 
reasonable discretion.


4.2 Accrual of Limitations Period.  Any limitations period provided by law 
related to breach of this Agreement or the terms thereof shall not accrue until Developer has 
provided the City Engineer with written notice of Developer’s intent to abandon or otherwise not 
complete required or agreed upon Public Improvements.


5. GRADING.  Developer agrees that any and all grading done or to be done in 
conjunction with construction of the Public Improvements or development of Tract No. 37476 
shall conform to all federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations, and other requirements, 
including City’s grading regulations.  All grading, landscaping, and construction activities shall be 
performed in a manner to control erosion and prevent flooding problems.  The City Engineer shall 
have the authority to require erosion plans to prescribe reasonable controls on the method, manner, 
and time of grading, landscaping, and construction activities to prevent nuisances to surrounding 
properties.  Plans shall include without limitation temporary drainage and erosion control 
requirements, dust control procedures, restrictions on truck and other construction traffic routes, 
noise abatement procedures, storage of materials and equipment, removal of garbage, trash, and 
refuse, securing the job site to prevent injury, and similar matters.  In order to prevent damage to 
the Public Improvements by improper drainage or other hazards, the grading shall be completed 
in accordance with the time schedule for completion of the Public Improvements established by 
this Agreement, and prior to City’s approval and acceptance of the Public Improvements and 
release of the Security as set forth in Section 12.0 et seq. of this Agreement.


6. UTILITIES.  Developer shall provide utility services, including water, sewer, 
power, gas, and telephone service to serve each parcel, lot, or unit of land within Tract No. 37476 
in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations, including, 
but not limited to, the regulations, schedules and fees of the utilities or agencies providing such 







RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2 - 6 -


services.  Except for commercial or industrial properties, Developer shall also provide cable 
television facilities to serve each parcel, lot, or unit of land in accordance with all applicable 
federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations, including, but not limited to, the requirements 
of the cable company possessing a valid franchise with City to provide such service within City’s 
jurisdictional limits.  All utilities shall be installed underground.


7. FEES AND CHARGES.  Developer shall, at its sole cost, expense, and liability, 
pay all fees, charges, and taxes arising out of construction of the Public Improvements, including, 
but not limited to, all plan check, design review, engineering, inspection, and other service fees, 
and any impact or connection fees established by City ordinance, resolution, regulation, or policy, 
or as established by City relative to Tract No. 37476, or as required by other governmental agencies 
having jurisdiction over Tract No. 37476.


8. CITY INSPECTION OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS.  Developer shall, at its 
sole cost, expense, and liability, and at all times during construction of the Public Improvements, 
maintain reasonable and safe facilities and provide safe access for inspection by City of the Public 
Improvements and areas where construction of the Public Improvements is occurring or will occur.  
If the City inspector requests it, the Developer at any time before acceptance of the Public 
Improvements shall remove or uncover such portions of the finished work as may be directed 
which have not previously been inspected.  After examination, the Developer shall restore said 
portions of the work to the standards required hereunder.  Inspection or supervision by the City 
shall not be considered as direct control of the individual workmen on the job site.  City’s inspector 
shall have the authority to stop any and all work not in accordance with the requirements contained 
or referenced in this Agreement.  The inspection of the work by City shall not relieve Developer 
or the contractor of any obligations to fulfill this Agreement as herein provided, and unsuitable 
materials or work may be rejected notwithstanding that such materials or work may have been 
previously overlooked or accepted.  


9. ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS.  If Developer fails to construct and install all or 
any part of the Public Improvements within the time required by this Agreement, or if Developer 
fails to comply with any other obligation contained herein, Developer and its surety shall be jointly 
and severally liable to City for all administrative expenses, fees, and costs, including reasonable 
attorney’s fees and costs, incurred in obtaining compliance with this Agreement or in processing 
any legal action or for any other remedies permitted by law.


10. ACCEPTANCE OF IMPROVEMENTS; AS-BUILT OR RECORD 
DRAWINGS.  The City Council may, in its sole and absolute discretion, accept fully completed 
portions of the Public Improvements prior to such time as all of the Public Improvements are 
complete, which shall not release or modify Developer’s obligation to complete the remainder of 
the Public Improvements within the time required by this Agreement.  


10.1 Developer’s Notice of Completion.  Upon the total or partial acceptance 
of the Public Improvements by City, Developer shall file with the Recorder’s Office of the County 
of Riverside a notice of completion for the accepted Public Improvements in accordance with 
Article 2 of Chapter 4 of Title 2 of Part 6 of Division 4 of the Civil Code, at which time the 
accepted Public Improvements shall become the sole and exclusive property of City without 
payment therefor.







RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2 - 7 -


10.2 City Acceptance of Public Improvements.  If Tract No. 37476 was 
approved and recorded as a single phase map, City shall not accept any one or more of the 
improvements until all of the Public Improvements are completed by Developer and approved by 
City.  Issuance by City of occupancy permits for any buildings or structures located on the Property 
shall not be construed in any manner to constitute City’s acceptance or approval of any Public 
Improvements.  


10.3 Developer’s Obligation to Provide As-Built or Record Drawings.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, City may not accept any Public Improvements unless and until 
Developer provides one (1) set of “as-built” or record drawings or plans to the City Engineer for 
all such Public Improvements.  The drawings shall be certified and shall reflect the condition of 
the Public Improvements as constructed, with all changes incorporated therein.


11. WARRANTY AND GUARANTEE.  Developer hereby warrants and guarantees 
all Public Improvements against any defective work or labor done, or defective materials furnished 
in the performance of this Agreement, including the maintenance of all landscaping within the 
Property in a vigorous and thriving condition reasonably acceptable to City, for a period of one (1) 
year following completion of the work and acceptance by City.  During the Warranty, Developer 
shall repair, replace, or reconstruct any defective or otherwise unsatisfactory portion of the Public 
Improvements, in accordance with the current ordinances, resolutions, regulations, codes, 
standards, or other requirements of City, and to the approval of the City Engineer.  All repairs, 
replacements, or reconstruction during the Warranty shall be at the sole cost, expense, and liability 
of Developer and its surety.  As to any Public Improvements which have been repaired, replaced, 
or reconstructed during the Warranty, Developer and its surety hereby agree to extend the 
Warranty for an additional one (1) year period following City’s acceptance of the repaired, 
replaced, or reconstructed Public Improvements.  Nothing herein shall relieve Developer from any 
other liability it may have under federal, state, or local law to repair, replace, or reconstruct any 
Public Improvement following expiration of the Warranty or any extension thereof.  Developer’s 
warranty obligation under this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement.


12. SECURITY.  Prior to City’s approval and execution of this Agreement, Developer 
shall provide City with surety bonds, a lien agreement, or another form of security acceptable to 
the City Attorney and City Engineer under the terms set forth below.  


12.1 Surety Bonds.  If surety bonds are provided as Security, the amount of the 
Security shall be based on the City Engineer’s Estimated Costs.  If City determines at any time 
prior to Developer’s completion of the Public Improvements under Section 4 [Construction 
Schedule], in its sole and absolute discretion, that the Estimated Costs have changed, Developer 
shall adjust the Security in the amount requested by City.  Developer’s compliance with this 
provision (Section 12.0 et seq.) shall in no way limit or modify Developer’s indemnification 
obligation provided in Section 16.0 of this Agreement.


12.1.1 Performance Bond.  To guarantee the faithful performance of the 
Public Improvements and all the provisions of this Agreement, to protect City if Developer is in 
default as set forth in Section 18.0 et seq. of this Agreement, and to secure Developer’s one-year 
guarantee and warranty of the Public Improvements, including the maintenance of all  landscaping 
in a vigorous and thriving condition, Developer shall provide City a faithful performance bond in 







RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2 - 8 -


the amount of Two Hundred Seventy Four Thousand and No/Dollars ($274,000.00), which 
sum shall be not less than one hundred percent (100%) of the Estimated Costs.


12.1.2 Partial Release.  The City Council may, in its sole and absolute 
discretion and upon recommendation of the City Engineer, partially release a portion or portions 
of the Security provided under this section as the Public Improvements are accepted by City, 
provided that Developer is not in default on any provision of this Agreement or condition of 
approval for Tract No. 37476, and the total remaining Security is not less than twenty-five percent 
(25%) of the Estimated Costs.  All Security provided under this section shall be released at the end 
of the Warranty period, or any extension thereof as provided in Section 11.0 of this Agreement, 
provided that Developer is not in default on any provision of this Agreement or condition of 
approval for Tract No. 37476.


12.1.3 Labor & Material Bond.  To secure payment to the contractors, 
subcontractors, laborers, material men, and other persons furnishing labor, materials, or equipment 
for performance of the Public Improvements and this Agreement, Developer shall provide City a 
labor and materials bond in the amount of One Hundred Thirty Seven Thousand and 
No/Dollars ($137,000.00), which sum shall not be less than fifty percent (50%) of the Estimated 
Costs.  The Security provided under this section may be released by written authorization of the 
City Engineer after six (6) months from the date City accepts the final Public Improvements.  The 
amount of such Security shall be reduced by the total of all stop notice or mechanic’s lien claims 
of which City is aware, plus an amount equal to twenty percent (20%) of such claims for 
reimbursement of City’s anticipated administrative and legal expenses arising out of such claims.


12.1.4 Additional Requirements.  The surety for any surety bonds 
provided as Security shall have a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VIII, be a bank or 
insurance company licensed to transact surety business in California, and shall be satisfactory to 
City.  As part of the obligation secured by the Security and in addition to the face amount of the 
Security, the Developer or its surety shall secure the costs and reasonable expenses and fees, 
including reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, incurred by City in enforcing the obligations of this 
Agreement.  The Developer and its surety stipulate and agree that no change, extension of time, 
alteration, or addition to the terms of this Agreement, the Public Improvements, or the plans and 
specifications for the Public Improvements shall in any way affect its obligation on the Security.


12.1.5 Form of Bonds.  The evidence of the Security shall be provided on 
the forms set forth in Exhibit “C”, unless other forms are deemed acceptable by the City Engineer 
and the City Attorney, and when such forms are completed to the satisfaction of City, the forms 
and evidence of the Security shall be attached hereto as Exhibit “C” and incorporated herein by 
this reference.


12.2 Lien Agreement.  In lieu of surety bonds required under Section 12.1 et 
seq. or the security required by Section 13 of this Agreement, Developer may execute a lien 
agreement as Security for the Improvements in accordance with Wildomar Municipal Code 
Section 16.56.030.  The Lien Agreement shall be in the form attached hereto as Exhibit “E” and 
incorporated herein by this reference.  


12.3 Developer’s Liability.  While no action of Developer shall be required in 
order for City to realize on its security under any Security instrument, Developer agrees to 







RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2 - 9 -


cooperate with City to facilitate City’s realization under any Security instrument, and to take no 
action to prevent City from such realization under any Security instrument.  Notwithstanding the 
giving of any Security instrument or the subsequent expiration of any Security instrument or any 
failure by any surety or financial institution to perform its obligations with respect thereto, 
Developer shall be personally liable for performance under this Agreement and for payment of the 
cost of the labor and materials for the improvements required to be constructed or installed hereby 
and shall, within ten (10) days after written demand therefor, deliver to City such substitute 
Security as City shall require satisfying the requirements in this Section 12.


13. MONUMENT SECURITY.  Prior to City’s execution of this Agreement, to 
guarantee payment to the engineer or surveyor for the setting of all subdivision boundaries, lot 
corners, and street centerline monuments for Tract No. 37476 in compliance with the applicable 
provisions of City’s Municipal and/or Development Code (“Subdivision Monuments”), Developer 
shall deposit cash or a surety bond with City in the amount of Seven Thousand and No/Dollars 
($7,000.00), which sum shall not be less than one hundred percent (100%) of the costs of setting 
the Subdivision Monuments as determined by the City Engineer.  Said cash deposit or surety bond 
may be released by written authorization of the City Engineer after all required Subdivision 
Monuments are accepted by the City Engineer, City has received written acknowledgment of 
payment in full from the engineer or surveyor who set the Subdivision Monuments, and provided 
Developer is not in default of any provision of this Agreement or condition of approval for Tract 
No. 37476.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if City accepts a lien agreement as security for the 
Improvements under Section 12.2 of this Agreement, such lien agreement may serve as the security 
for some or all of the Subdivision Monuments, as determined by the City Engineer.   


14. LIEN.  To secure the timely performance of Developer’s obligations under this 
Agreement, including those obligations for which security has been provided pursuant to Sections 
12.0 et seq. and 13.0 of this Agreement, Developer hereby creates in favor of City a lien against 
all portions of the Property not dedicated to City or some other governmental agency for a public 
purpose.  As to Developer’s default on those obligations for which security has been provided 
pursuant to Sections 12.0 et seq. and 13.0 of this Agreement, City shall first attempt to collect 
against such security prior to exercising its rights as a contract lienholder under this section.


15. SIGNS AND ADVERTISING.  Developer understands and agrees to City’s 
ordinances, regulations, and requirements governing signs and advertising structures.  Developer 
hereby agrees with and consents to the summary removal by City, without notice to Developer, of 
all signs or other advertising structures erected, placed, or situated in violation of any City 
ordinance, regulation, or other requirement.  Removal shall be at the expense of Developer and its 
surety.  Developer and its surety shall indemnify and hold City free and harmless from any claim 
or demand arising out of or incident to signs, advertising structures, or their removal.


16. INDEMNIFICATION.  Developer shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless 
City, its elected officials, officers, employees, and agents from any and all actual or alleged claims, 
demands, causes of action, liability, loss, damage, or injury, to property or persons, including 
wrongful death, whether imposed by a court of law or by administrative action of any federal, 
state, or local governmental body or agency, arising out of or incident to any acts, omissions, 
negligence, or willful misconduct of Developer, its personnel, employees, agents, or contractors 
in connection with or arising out of construction or maintenance of the Public Improvements, or 
performance of this Agreement.  This indemnification includes, without limitation, the payment 







RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2 - 10 -


of all penalties, fines, judgments, awards, decrees, attorneys’ fees, and related costs or expenses, 
and the reimbursement of City, its elected officials, officers, employees, and/or agents for all legal 
expenses and costs incurred by each of them.  This indemnification excludes only such portion of 
any claim, demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, penalty, fine, or injury, to property or 
persons, including wrongful death, which is caused solely and exclusively by the gross negligence 
or willful misconduct of City as determined by a court or administrative body of competent 
jurisdiction.  Developer’s obligation to indemnify City shall survive the expiration or termination 
of this Agreement, and shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by City, its 
elected officials, officers, employees, or agents. 


17. INSURANCE.


17.1 Types; Amounts.  Developer shall procure and maintain, and shall require 
its contractors to procure and maintain, during construction of any Public Improvement pursuant 
to this Agreement, insurance of the types and in the amounts described below.  If any of the 
Required Insurance contains a general aggregate limit, such insurance shall apply separately to 
this Agreement or be no less than two times the specified occurrence limit. 


17.1.1 General Liability.  Developer and its contractors shall procure and 
maintain Commercial General Liability Insurance no less broad than Insurance Services Office 
(ISO) form CG 00 01 or equivalent form, with a combined single limit of not less than $3,000,000 
per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage. The General Aggregate 
shall be twice the occurrence limit or shall apply separately to each project. If Developer maintains 
higher limits than the specified minimum limits, City requires and shall be entitled to coverage for 
the higher limits maintained by Developer. The General Liability policy shall not contain a 
Contractors' Warranty or other similar language which eliminates or restricts insurance because of 
a subcontractor's failure to carry specific insurance or to supply evidence of such insurance


17.1.2 Business Automobile Liability.  Developer and its contractors shall 
procure and maintain business automobile liability insurance, or equivalent form, with a combined 
single limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence.  Such insurance shall include coverage for 
the ownership, operation, maintenance, use, loading, or unloading of any vehicle owned,  hired, 
and non owned  by the insured or for which the insured is responsible.


17.1.3 Workers’ Compensation.  Developer and its contractors shall 
procure and maintain workers’ compensation insurance with limits as required by the Labor Code 
of the State of California and  Employers Liability with limits of $1,000,000 per Accident; 
$1,000,000 Disease per employee; $1,000,000 Disease per policy at all times during which insured 
retains employees.


17.1.4 Professional Liability.  For any consultant or other professional 
who will engineer or design the Public Improvements, liability insurance for errors and omissions 
with limits not less than $1,000,000 per claim. Such insurance shall be endorsed to include 
contractual liability.  Coverage applicable to the work performed under this agreement shall be 
continued for five (5) years after completion of the work . Such continuation coverage may be 
provided by one of the following: (1) renewal of the existing policy; (2) an extended reporting 
period endorsement; or (3) replacement insurance with a retroactive date no later than the 
commencement of the work under this agreement.







RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2 - 11 -


17.1.5 Pollution Liability. Minimum Limits: $1,000,000 per Pollution 
Incident; $1,000,000 Aggregate; Coverage shall apply to pollution incidents at or from any 
location at which Developer and its contractors are performing work under this agreement. Any 
deductible or self-insured retention shall be shown on the Certificate of Insurance.  If the deductible 
or self-insured retention exceeds $25,000 it shall be approved in advance by the City.  Developer 
and its contractors are responsible for any deductible or self-insured retention and shall fund it 
upon the City’s written request, regardless of whether Developer and its contractors have a claim 
against the insurance or are named as a party in any action involving the City. The City, its elected 
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be endorsed as an additional insured for 
liability arising out of ongoing and completed operations by or on behalf of the Developer and its 
contractors.  Additional insured status shall continue for one (1) year after completion of the work. 
The insurance provided to the additional insureds shall apply on a primary and non-contributory 
basis with respect to any insurance or self-insurance program maintained by them. If the insurance 
is on a Claims-Made basis, the retroactive date shall be no later than the commencement of work. 
The insurance shall be continued for one (1) year after completion of the work.  If the insurance is 
on a Claims-Made basis, the continuation coverage may be provided by: (a) renewal of the existing 
policy; (b) an extended reporting period endorsement; or (c) replacement insurance with a 
retroactive date no later than the commencement of the work.


17.2 Deductibles.  Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared 
to and approved by City.  At the option of City, either: (a) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate 
such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects City, its elected officials, officers, 
employees, agents, and volunteers; or (b) Developer and its contractors shall provide a financial 
guarantee satisfactory to City guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation costs, 
claims, and administrative and defense expenses.


17.3 Additional Insured; Separation of Insureds.  The Required Insurance 
(except Workers’ Compensation and Professional Liability) shall name City, its elected officials, 
officers, employees, agents, and volunteers as additional insureds with respect to work performed 
by or on behalf of Developer or its contractors, including materials, parts, or equipment furnished 
in connection therewith City shall be endorsed as an additional insured for liability arising out of 
ongoing and completed operations by or on behalf of the contractor. City shall continue to be an 
additional insured for completed operations for (1) year after completion of the work.   The policy 
shall cover inter-insured suits and include a “Separation of Insureds” or “severability” clause 
which treats each insured separately and shall contain no special limitations on the scope of its 
protection to City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.


17.4 Primary Insurance; Waiver of Subrogation.  The General Liability 
Insurance provided to the additional insured shall be primary to, and non contributory with, any 
insurance or self insurance program maintained by the City, its elected officials, officers, 
employees, agents, and volunteers.  All policies for the Required Insurance shall provide that the 
insurance company waives all right of recovery by way of subrogation against City, its elected 
officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers.


17.5 Certificates; Verification.  Developer and its contractors shall furnish City 
with original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage for the Required 
Insurance.  The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy shall be signed by a person 
authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.  All certificates and endorsements must 







RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2 - 12 -


be received and approved by City before work pursuant to this Agreement can begin.  City reserves 
the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any time.


17.6 Term; Cancellation Notice.  Developer and its contractors shall maintain 
the Required Insurance for the term of this Agreement and shall replace any certificate, policy, or 
endorsement which will expire prior to that date. Developer shall provide immediate written notice 
if (1) any of the required insurance policies is terminated; (2) the limits of any of the required 
polices are reduced; (3) or the deductible or self insured retention is increased.  In the event of any 
cancellation or reduction in coverage or limits of any insurance, Developer shall forthwith obtain 
and submit proof of substitute insurance.  Should Developer fail to immediately procure other 
insurance, as specified, to substitute for any canceled policy, the City may procure such insurance 
at Developer’s sole cost and expense.


17.7 Insurer Rating.  Unless approved in writing by City, all Required 
Insurance shall placed with insurers licensed to do business in the State of California and with a 
current A.M. Best rating of at least A:VIII.


18. DEFAULT; NOTICE; REMEDIES.


18.1 Notice.  If Developer neglects, refuses, or fails to fulfill or timely complete 
any obligation, term, or condition of this Agreement, or if City determines there is a violation of 
any federal, state, or local law, ordinance, regulation, code, standard, or other requirement, City 
may at any time thereafter declare Developer to be in default or violation of this Agreement and 
make written demand upon Developer or its surety, or both, to immediately remedy the default or 
violation.  Developer shall commence the work required to remedy the default or violation within 
ten (10) days of the written demand from the City.  If the default or violation constitutes an 
immediate threat to the public health, safety, or welfare, City may provide the demand verbally, 
and Developer shall commence the required work within twenty-four (24) hours thereof.  
Immediately upon City’s issuance of the demand to remedy the default, Developer and its surety 
shall be liable to City for all costs of construction and installation of the Public Improvements and 
all other administrative costs expenses as provided for in Section 9.0 of this Agreement.


18.2 Failure to Remedy; City Action.  If the work required to remedy the 
noticed default or violation is not diligently prosecuted to a substantial completion acceptable to 
City within a reasonable time designated by the City, City may complete all remaining work, 
arrange for the completion of all remaining work, and/or conduct such remedial activity as in its 
sole and absolute discretion it believes is required to remedy the default or violation.  All such 
work or remedial activity shall be at the sole and absolute cost, expense, and liability of Developer 
and its surety, without the necessity of giving any further notice to Developer or surety.  City’s 
right to take such actions shall in no way be limited by the fact that Developer or its surety may 
have constructed any, or none of the required or agreed upon Public Improvements at the time of 
City’s demand for performance.  In the event City elects to complete or arrange for completion of 
the remaining work and improvements, City may require all work by Developer or its surety to 
cease in order to allow adequate coordination by City.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if 
conditions precedent for reversion to acreage can be met and if the interests of City will not be 
prejudiced thereby, City may also process a reversion to acreage and thereafter recover from 
Developer or its surety the full cost and expense incurred.







RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2 - 13 -


18.3 Other Remedies.  No action by City pursuant to Section 18.0 et seq. of this 
Agreement shall prohibit City from exercising any other right or pursuing any other legal or 
equitable remedy available under this Agreement or any federal, state, or local law.  City may 
exercise it rights and remedies independently or cumulatively, and City may pursue inconsistent 
remedies.  City may institute an action for damages, injunctive relief, or specific performance.


19. GENERAL PROVISIONS.


19.1 Authority to Enter Agreement.  Each of the signatories hereto represents 
and warrants that he or she is competent and authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of 
the Party for whom he or she purports to sign. Each Party hereto agrees to defend, indemnify, and 
hold harmless the other Parties hereto against all claims, suits, actions, and demands, including 
necessary expenses of investigation and reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, arising out of claims 
that its signatory was not competent or so authorized to sign this Agreement.


19.2 Cooperation; Further Acts.  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one 
another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary, 
appropriate, or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement.


19.3 Construction; References; Captions.  It being agreed the Parties or their 
agents have participated in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement shall 
be construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any Party.  Any 
term referencing time, days, or period for performance shall be deemed calendar days and not work 
days.  All references to Developer include all personnel, employees, agents, and subcontractors of 
Developer, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  All references to City include its 
elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise specified in this 
Agreement.  The captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for convenience and ease of 
reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope, content, or intent of this 
Agreement.


19.4 Notices.  All notices, demands, invoices, and written communications shall 
be in writing and delivered to the following addresses or such other addresses as the Parties may 
designate by written notice:


CITY:


City of Wildomar
Attn:  City Manager 
23873 Clinton Keith Rd., Suite 111
Wildomar, CA  92595


DEVELOPER:


KB Home Coastal Inc.
Heidi McBroom, Director of Forward Planning
36310 Inland Valley Drive
Wildomar, CA 92595







RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2 - 14 -


Depending upon the method of transmittal, notice shall be deemed received as follows:  by 
facsimile, as of the date and time sent provided the original is contemporaneously deposited with 
United States Postal Service and delivered by regular mail; by messenger, as of the date delivered; 
and by U.S. Mail first class postage prepaid, as of 72 hours after deposit in the U.S. Mail.


19.5 Amendment; Modification.  No amendment to or modification of this 
Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and approved by the Developer and by the City.  
The City’s City Manager may, but is not required to, make minor amendments not affecting 
substantive terms without further authorization from the City Council. The City Council hereby 
authorizes the City Manager to execute any such amendments as required by this Agreement or 
that do not otherwise reduce City’s rights under this Agreement. Waiver.  City’s failure to insist 
upon strict compliance with any provision of this Agreement or to exercise any right or privilege 
provided herein, or City’s waiver of any breach of this Agreement, shall not relieve Developer of 
any of its obligations under this Agreement, whether of the same or similar type.  The foregoing 
shall be true whether City’s actions are intentional or unintentional.  Developer agrees to waive, 
as a defense, counterclaim or set off, any and all defects, irregularities or deficiencies in the 
authorization, execution or performance of the Public Improvements or this Agreement, as well as 
the laws, rules, regulations, ordinances or resolutions of City with regards to the authorization, 
execution or performance of the Public Improvements or this Agreement.


19.6 Assignment or Transfer of Agreement.  Developer shall not assign, 
hypothecate, or transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest 
herein without prior written consent of City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and any 
assignee, hypothecatee, or transferee shall acquire no right or interest by reason of such attempted 
assignment, hypothecation, or transfer.  Unless specifically stated to the contrary in City’s written 
consent, any assignment, hypothecation, or transfer shall not release or discharge Developer from 
any duty or responsibility under this Agreement.


19.7 Binding Effect.  Each and all of the covenants and conditions shall be 
binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties, and their successors, heirs, personal 
representatives, or assigns.  This section shall not be construed as an authorization for any Party 
to assign any right or obligation.


19.8 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  There are no intended third party 
beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed by the Parties.


19.9 Invalidity; Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared 
invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining 
provisions shall continue in full force and effect.


19.10 Consent to Jurisdiction and Venue.  This Agreement shall be construed 
in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of California.  Any legal action or 
proceeding brought to interpret or enforce this Agreement, or which in any way arises out of the 
Parties’ activities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement, shall be filed and prosecuted in the 
appropriate California State Court in the County of Riverside, California.  Each Party waives the 
benefit of any provision of state or federal law providing for a change of venue to any other court 
or jurisdiction including, without limitation, a change of venue based on the fact that a 
governmental entity is a party to the action or proceeding, or that a federal right or question is 











RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2 - 15 -


involved or alleged to be involved in the action or proceeding.  Without limiting the generality of 
the foregoing waiver, Developer expressly waives any right to have venue transferred pursuant to 
California Code of Civil Procedure Section 394.


19.11 Attorneys’ Fees and Costs.  If any arbitration, lawsuit, or other legal action 
or proceeding is brought by one Party against the other Party in connection with this Agreement 
or the Property, the prevailing party, whether by final judgment or arbitration award, shall be 
entitled to and recover from the other party all Litigation Expenses.  Any judgment, order, or award 
entered in such legal action or proceeding shall contain a specific provision providing for the 
recovery of Litigation Expenses.


19.12 Relationship Between The Parties.  The Parties hereby mutually agree 
that neither this Agreement, any map related to Tract No. ___________, nor any other related 
entitlement, permit, or approval issued by City for the Property shall operate to create the 
relationship of partnership, joint venture, or agency between City and Developer.  Developer’s 
contractors and subcontractors are exclusively and solely under the control and dominion of 
Developer.  Nothing herein shall be deemed to make Developer or its contractors an agent or 
contractor of City.


19.13 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterpart originals, 
which taken together, shall constitute one and the same instrument.


19.14 Effective Date of Agreement.  This Agreement shall not become effective 
until the date it has been formally approved by the City and executed by the appropriate authorities 
of City and Developer.


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date 
and year first-above written.


CITY OF WILDOMAR


___________________________
Gary Nordquist
City Manager


ATTEST:


___________________________
Janet Morales
City Clerk


37476







RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2 1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


EXHIBIT “A”


LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY


TRACT NO. 37476


BEING A DIVISION OF A PORTION OF THE SOUTH HALF OF LOT 178
OF SEDCO TRACT NO. 1 AS SHOWN BY MAP ON FILE IN BOOK 10


PAGES 58075, INCLUSIVE OF MAPS, RECORDS OF RIVERSIDE COUNTY,
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, SITUATED IN SECTION 26,


T6S, R4W, S.B.M.


APNs: 367-140-008, 367-140-010, 367-140-012







RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2 1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


EXHIBIT “B”


LIST OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS


TRACT NO. 37476







































RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2 1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


EXHIBIT “C”


SURETY BONDS AND OTHER SECURITY


TRACT NO. 37476


As evidence of understanding the provisions contained in this Agreement, and of the Developer’s 
intent to comply with same, the Developer has submitted the below described security in the 
amounts required by this Agreement, and has affixed the appropriate signatures thereto:


PERFORMANCE BOND PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: $ 274,000.00
Surety:
Attorney-in-fact:
Address:


MATERIAL AND LABOR BOND PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: $ 137,000.00
Surety:
Attorney-in-fact:
Address:


CASH MONUMENT SECURITY: $ 7,000.00
Amount deposited per Cash Receipt No. Date:


MONUMENT BOND PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: $
Surety:
Attorney-in-fact:
Address:







RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2 1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


BOND NO. ___________________
INITIAL PREMIUM:  ___________________


SUBJECT TO RENEWAL


CITY OF WILDOMAR


TRACT MAP NO. 37476 IMPROVEMENTS


FORM OF PERFORMANCE BOND


KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:


WHEREAS the City of Wildomar, California (“City”) and KB Home Coastal Inc., 
(“Principal”), have executed an agreement for work consisting of, but not limited to, the furnishing 
all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidentals for all grading, roads, paving, curbs 
and gutters, pathways, storm drains, sanitary sewers, utilities, drainage facilities, traffic controls, 
landscaping, street lights, and all other required facilities for Tract Map No. 37476 (“Public 
Improvements”);


WHEREAS, the Public Improvements to be performed by Principal are more particularly 
set forth in that certain Subdivision Improvement Agreement dated January 12, 2022 
(“Improvement Agreement”);


WHEREAS, the Improvement Agreement is hereby referred to and incorporated herein by 
reference; and


WHEREAS, Principal is required by the Improvement Agreement to provide a good and 
sufficient bond for performance of the Improvement Agreement, and to guarantee and warranty 
the Public Improvements constructed thereunder.


NOW, THEREFORE, Principal and _________________________________ (“Surety”), 
a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of __________, and duly 
authorized to transact surety business under the laws of the State of California, are held and firmly 
bound unto City in the sum of ___________________________________ Dollars 
($____________), said sum being not less than one hundred percent (100%) of the total cost of 
the Public Improvements as set forth in the Improvement Agreement, we bind ourselves, our heirs, 
executors and administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these 
presents.


THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such, that if Principal, his or its heirs, 
executors, administrators, successors or assigns, shall in all things stand to and abide by, and well 
and truly keep and perform the covenants, conditions, agreements, guarantees, and warranties in 
the Improvement Agreement and any alteration thereof made as therein provided, to be kept and 
performed at the time and in the manner therein specified and in all respects according to their 
intent and meaning, and to indemnify and save harmless City, its officers, employees, and agents, 
as stipulated in the Improvement Agreement, then this obligation shall become null and void; 
otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and effect.







RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2 2 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


As part of the obligation secured hereby, and in addition to the face amount specified 
therefor, there shall be included costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable 
attorney’s fees, incurred by City in successfully enforcing such obligation, all to be taxed as costs 
and included in any judgment rendered.


Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, 
alteration, or addition to the terms of the Improvement Agreement, or to any plans, profiles, and 
specifications related thereto, or to the Public Improvements to be constructed thereunder, shall in 
any way affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, 
extension of time, alteration, or addition.


This bond is executed and filed to comply with Section 66499 et seq. of the Government 
Code of California as security for performance of the Improvement Agreement and security for 
the one-year guarantee and warranty of the Public Improvements.


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the seal and signature of the Principal is hereto affixed, and the 
corporate seal and the name of the Surety is hereto affixed and attested by its duly authorized 
Attorney-in-Fact at _______________________, this _____ day of _______________, ______.


Principal Surety


By: By:
Its:  Managing Member Attorney-In-Fact


(print name) (print name)


NOTE: APPROPRIATE NOTARIAL ACKNOWLEDGMENTS OF EXECUTION 
BY PRINCIPAL AND SURETY, AND A COPY OF THE POWER OF 
ATTORNEY TO LOCAL REPRESENTATIVES OF THE BONDING 
COMPANY MUST BE ATTACHED TO THIS BOND.







RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2 1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


BOND NO. ___________________
INITIAL PREMIUM:  ___________________


SUBJECT TO RENEWAL


CITY OF WILDOMAR


TRACT MAP 37476 IMPROVEMENTS


FORM OF LABOR AND MATERIAL BOND


KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:


WHEREAS the City of Wildomar California (“City”) and KB Home Coastal Inc., 
(“Principal”), have executed an agreement for work consisting of, but not limited to, the furnishing 
all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidentals for all grading, roads, paving, curbs 
and gutters, pathways, storm drains, sanitary sewers, utilities, drainage facilities, traffic controls, 
landscaping, street lights, and all other required facilities for Tract Map No. 37476 (“Public 
Improvements”);


WHEREAS, the Public Improvements to be performed by Principal are more particularly 
set forth in that certain Subdivision Improvement Agreement dated January 12, 2022 
(“Improvement Agreement”);


WHEREAS, the Improvement Agreement is hereby referred to and incorporated herein by 
reference; and


WHEREAS, Principal is required to furnish a bond in connection with the Improvement 
Agreement providing that if Principal or any of its subcontractors shall fail to pay for any materials, 
provisions, or other supplies, or terms used in, upon, for, or about the performance of the Public 
Improvements, or for any work or labor done thereon of any kind, or for amounts due under the 
provisions of Title 1 (commencing with section 8000) through Title 3 (commencing with section 
9000) of Part 6 of Division 4 of the California Civil Code, with respect to such work or labor, that 
the Surety on this bond will pay the same together with a reasonable attorney’s fee in case suit is 
brought on the bond.


NOW, THEREFORE, Principal and _________________________ (“Surety”), a 
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of _________________, and duly 
authorized to transact business under the laws of the State of California, are held and firmly bound 
unto City and to any and all material men, persons, companies or corporations furnishing materials, 
provisions, and other supplies used in, upon, for or about the performance of the Public 
Improvements, and all persons, companies or corporations renting or hiring teams, or implements 
or machinery, for or contributing to the Public Improvements to be done, and all persons 
performing work or labor upon the same and all persons supplying both work and materials as 
aforesaid excepting the Principal, the sum of _________________________ Dollars 
($_______________), said sum being not less than 50% of the total cost of the Public 
Improvements under the terms of the Improvement Agreement, we bind ourselves, our heirs, 
executors and administrators, successors and assigns jointly and severally, firmly by these 
presents.







RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2 2 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH that if the Principal, his or its 
subcontractors, heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns, shall fail to pay for any 
materials, provisions, or other supplies or machinery used in, upon, for or about the performance 
of the Public Improvements, or for work or labor thereon of any kind, or fail to pay any of the 
persons named in California Civil Code Section 9100, or amounts due under the Unemployment 
Insurance Code with respect to work or labor performed by any such claimant, or for any amounts 
required to be deducted, withheld, and paid over to the Employment Development Department 
from the wages of employees of the contractor and his subcontractors pursuant to Section 13020 
of the Unemployment Insurance Code with respect to such work and labor, and all other applicable 
laws of the State of California and rules and regulations of its agencies, then said Surety will pay 
the same in or to an amount not exceeding the sum specified herein.


As part of the obligation secured hereby, and in addition to the face amount specified 
therefor, there shall be included costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable 
attorney’s fees, incurred by City in successfully enforcing such obligation, all to be taxed as costs 
and included in any judgment rendered.


This bond is executed and filed to comply with Section 66499 et seq. of the California 
Government Code as security for payment to contractors, subcontractors, and persons furnishing 
labor, materials, or equipment for construction of the Public Improvements or performance of the 
Improvement Agreement.  It is hereby expressly stipulated and agreed that this bond shall inure to 
the benefit of any and all persons, companies, and corporations entitled to file claims under Title 
1 (commencing with Section 8000) through Title 3 (commencing with Section 9000) of Part 6 of 
Division 4 of the California Civil Code, so as to give a right of action to them or their assigns in 
any suit brought upon this bond.


Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, 
alteration, or addition to the terms of the Improvement Agreement, or to any plans, profiles, and 
specifications related thereto, or to the Public Improvements to be constructed thereunder, shall in 
any way affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, 
extension of time, alteration, or addition.


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the seal and signature of the Principal is hereto affixed, and the 
corporate seal and the name of the Surety is hereto affixed and attested by its duly authorized 
Attorney-in-Fact at _____________________, this _____ day of _______________, ______.


Principal Surety


By: By:
Its:  Managing Member Attorney-In-Fact


(print name) (print name)







RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2 3 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


NOTE: APPROPRIATE NOTARIAL ACKNOWLEDGMENTS OF EXECUTION 
BY PRINCIPAL AND SURETY, AND A COPY OF THE POWER OF 
ATTORNEY TO LOCAL REPRESENTATIVES OF THE BONDING 
COMPANY MUST BE ATTACHED TO THIS BOND.







RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2 1 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


EXHIBIT “D”


LIST OF TRACT MAP CONDITIONS
OF APPROVAL NOT SATISFIED 


Condition No. Condition Language Notes







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 (PA No. 18-0034) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 (by City Council) 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring 
Verification Date 


& Signature 


 


PLANNING DEPARTMENT CONDITIONS 


General Requirements / Standard Conditions 


1.  In compliance with Chapter 15094 of the CEQA Guidelines, a Notice 
of Determination (NOD) shall be filed with the Riverside County Clerk 
within five (5) working days of project approval by the City Council. 
The notice shall include the required California Department of Fish 
and Wildlife (Fish and Game Code Chapter 711.4.d.3) fee, and the 
Riverside County Clerk administrative fee (paid by the Applicant) in 
the amount of $2,404.75. Failure to pay the required fee will result in 
the project being deemed null and void (California Fish and Game 
Code Chapter 711.4(c)). The above fee shall be provided to the 
Planning Department no later than February 14, 2019 and is broken 
down as follows: 


a. California Department of Fish and Wildlife =  $2,354.75 


b. Riverside County Clerk Administrative Fee = $     50.00 


February 14, 2019 Planning Department 
 


 


2.  The Applicant’s signature below, which shall be submitted to the 
Planning Department on or before February 21, 2019, hereby verifies 
the “Acceptance of the Conditions of Approval” contained within this 
conditions of approval matrix. 


 


 


 


Applicant Signature     Date 


February 21, 2019 Planning Department 
 


 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 (PA No. 18-0034) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 (by City Council) 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring 
Verification Date 


& Signature 


 


3.  The Applicant shall indemnify, protect, defend, and hold harmless, the 
City, and/or any of its officials, officers, employees, agents, 
departments, agencies, and instrumentalities thereof, from any and all 
claims, demands, law suits, writs of mandamus, and other actions and 
proceedings (whether legal, equitable, declaratory, administrative or 
adjudicatory in nature), and alternative dispute resolutions procedures 
(including, but not limited to arbitrations, mediations, and other such 
procedures), (collectively “Actions”), brought against the City, and/or 
any of its officials, officers, employees, agents, departments, 
agencies, and instrumentalities thereof, that challenge, attack, or seek 
to modify, set aside, void, or annul, the any action of, or any permit or 
approval issued by, the City and/or any of its officials, officers, 
employees, agents, departments, agencies, and instrumentalities 
thereof (including actions approved by the voters of the City), for or 
concerning the project, whether such Actions are brought under the 
California Environmental Quality Act, the Planning and Zoning Law, 
the Subdivision Map Act, Code of Civil Procedure Section 1085 or 
1094.5, or any other state, federal, or local statute, law, ordinance, 
rule, regulation, or any decision of a court of competent jurisdiction. 
City shall promptly notify the Applicant of any Action brought and 
request that Applicant defend the City. It is expressly agreed that 
Applicant may select legal counsel providing the Applicant’s defense 
and the City shall have the right to approve separate legal counsel 
providing the City’s defense. The Applicant shall reimburse City for 
any attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses directly and necessarily 
incurred by the City in the course of the defense. Applicant agrees that 
City will forward monthly invoices to Applicant for attorneys’ fees, 
costs and expenses it has incurred related to its defense of any Action 
and Applicant agrees to timely payment within thirty (30) days of 


Ongoing Planning Department 
 


 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 (PA No. 18-0034) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 (by City Council) 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring 
Verification Date 


& Signature 


 
receipt of the invoice. Within fourteen (14) days of an Action being 
filed, Applicant agrees to post adequate security or a cash deposit 
with City in an amount to cover the City’s estimated attorneys’ fees, 
costs and expenses incurred by City in the course of the defense in 
order to ensure timely payment of the City’s invoices. The amount of 
the security or cash deposit shall be determined by the City. City shall 
cooperate with Applicant in the defense of any Action.  


4.  TTM No. 37476 shall not become effective until 30 days after the 
second reading of the Ordinance approving Change of Zone No. 18-
0034 by the City Council.  No grading or building permits shall be 
issued until after the effective date of the change of zone. 


April 13, 2019 Planning Department 
 


5.  Within 30 days after approval of the second reading of the Ordinance 
approving Change of Zone No. 18-0034 by the City Council, the 
Applicant shall pay all applicable outstanding/negative deposit account 
balances (#18-0034).  Failure to pay the outstanding balance by the 
due date may result in delays in the processing of the final tract map. 


May 13, 2019 Planning Department 
 


6.  Approval of Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 shall expire on February 
13, 2022 (3 years after approval by the City Council) if the final map 
has not been approved by the City Council and recorded with the 
Riverside County Clerk.  The Applicant may apply in writing for a 
Extension of Time (EOT) for review and approval of the City Council in 
accordance with Section 16.12.240 of the Wildomar Municipal Code.  
Said extension of time application and required fee must be submitted 
to the Planning Department prior to the expiration date. 


February 13, 2022 Planning Department 
 


7.  In accordance with Chapter 66020.d.1 of the Government Code, the 
Applicant has 90 days from project approval to file a protest of the 
imposition of fees, dedications, reservations, or other exactions being 


May 13, 2019 Planning Department 
 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 (PA No. 18-0034) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 (by City Council) 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring 
Verification Date 


& Signature 


 
imposed on this project Notice is hereby given to the Applicant that the 
90-day appeal period begins with the tentative approval date by City 
Council on February 13, 2019. 


8.  Applicant hereby understands and agrees that failure to comply with 
all Conditions of Approval may result in the City Council taking action 
resulting in a modification to the Conditions of Approval and/or 
suspension or revocation of the tentative tract map. 


On-Going Planning Department 
 


9.  The project shall be subdivided in accordance with the Tentative Tract 
Map approved by the City Council on February 13, 2019.  The 
Applicant, if needed, may request a minor change or revised map in 
accordance with Sections 16.12.210 and/or 16.12.220 of the Wildomar 
Municipal Code. 


Ongoing Planning Department 
 


10.  Prior to building permits for any construction on lots subdivided under 
Tentative tract Map No. 37476 (including the residential and business 
park development), the Applicant shall all appropriate local and 
regional development impact fees in accordance with Chapter 3.40 
(TUMF Fees), 3.42 (MSHCP fees), 3.43 (SKR Fee), and 3.44 (DIF 
fees) of the Wildomar Municipal Code for the property subdivided 
under this tract map. 


Prior to Issuance of 
Building Permits 


Building, Public Works 
& Planning 


Departments 


 


Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) Mitigation Measures  


Biological Resources 


11.  BIO-1 Vegetation clearing/grubbing, ground disturbance (e.g., 
grading, earthmoving, excavation, use of heavy equipment), and 
construction activities that may directly (e.g., grading) or indirectly 
(e.g., noise) affect protected nesting avian species shall be timed to 


No more than 14 
days prior to any 
vegetation removal 
or ground-


City of Wildomar 
Public Works & 
Planning Depts. 


 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 (PA No. 18-0034) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 (by City Council) 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring 
Verification Date 


& Signature 


 
avoid the typical avian nesting season (February 15 to August 31 for 
songbirds; January 15 to August 31 for raptors). If such activities are 
scheduled to occur during the nesting season, a qualified biologist 
shall conduct a preconstruction survey for nesting raptors and other 
protected avian species within 500 feet of proposed disturbance 
activities. The preconstruction survey shall be conducted no more 
than 14 days prior to the start of vegetation clearing/grubbing. As 
determined necessary by the biologist, surveys for nesting birds may 
be required to continue during grading/construction to address the 
potential for new arrivals and unique species’ breeding seasons. The 
necessity and timing of these continued surveys shall be determined 
by the biologist in coordination with the City, the Western Riverside 
County Regional Conservation Authority, and participating wildlife 
agencies as needed. 


If raptors or other protected avian nests are identified during the above 
surveys, the qualified biologist shall notify the City, the Western 
Riverside County Regional. Conservation Authority, and participating 
wildlife agencies, and an appropriate no-disturbance buffer shall be 
imposed (to be determined by the biologist) within which no vegetation 
clearing/grubbing, ground disturbance, and construction activities shall 
take place (generally 500 feet in all directions for raptors; other avian 
species may have species-specific requirements) until the young have 
fledged and are no longer reliant upon the nest or parental care for 
survival, as determined by the biologist. 


disturbing activities 


12.  BIO-2 Due to the presence of potentially suitable habitat on the 
project site and in adjacent off-site areas, a 30-day preconstruction 
survey for burrowing owl is required pursuant to the MSHCP. If 
burrowing owls are determined present during the 30-day 


No more than 14 
days prior to any 
vegetation removal 
or ground-


City of Wildomar 
Public Works & 
Planning Depts. 


 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 (PA No. 18-0034) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 (by City Council) 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring 
Verification Date 


& Signature 


 
preconstruction survey, occupied burrows shall be avoided to the 
greatest extent feasible, following the guidelines in the Staff Report on 
Burrowing Owl Mitigation published by California Department of Fish 
and Wildlife (2012) including, but not limited to, conducting 
preconstruction surveys, avoiding occupied burrows during the nesting 
and non-breeding seasons, implementing a worker awareness 
program, biological monitoring, establishing avoidance buffers, and 
flagging burrows for avoidance with visible markers. If occupied 
burrows cannot be avoided, acceptable methods may be used to 
exclude burrowing owl either temporarily or permanently, pursuant to 
a Burrowing Owl Exclusion Plan that shall be prepared and 
implemented to the approval of the City and the Western Riverside 
County Regional Conservation Authority. 


disturbing activities 


13.  BIO-3 The following construction-related best management practices 
(BMP’s) shall be implemented during vegetation clearing/grubbing, 
ground disturbance (e.g., grading, earthmoving, excavation, use of 
heavy equipment), and construction activities to avoid impacts to 
potentially occurring special-status wildlife species: 


Prior to vegetation clearing/grubbing, a biological monitor shall 
conduct a preconstruction meeting with the construction crew to 
identify appropriate access route(s) in and out of the construction area 
and to review project boundaries.  


Prior to vegetation clearing/grubbing, a biological monitor shall inspect 
the limits of protective fencing along the work limits adjacent to on/off-
site habitats to remain. Following construction, a qualified biologist 
shall ensure temporarily disturbed vegetated areas are returned to 
pre-project contours using a local native plant hydroseed mix.  


Prior to any 
vegetation removal 
or ground-
disturbing activities. 


City of Wildomar 
Public Works & 
Planning Depts. 


 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 (PA No. 18-0034) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 (by City Council) 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring 
Verification Date 


& Signature 


 
  







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 (PA No. 18-0034) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 (by City Council) 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring 
Verification Date 


& Signature 


 


Cultural Resources 


14.  CUL-1 To address the possibility that historical, archaeological, 
and/or tribal cultural resources (collectively referred to as “cultural 
resources” in these mitigation measures) may be encountered during 
grading or construction, a qualified professional archaeologist shall 
monitor all construction activities that could potentially impact cultural 
resources (e.g., grading, excavation, and/or trenching). The Pechanga 
Band of Luiseño Indians may assign individuals to monitor all grading, 
excavation, and groundbreaking activities as well, and the tribal 
monitors shall be allowed on-site during any construction activities that 
could potentially impact cultural resources. However, monitoring may 
be discontinued as soon the qualified professional and the appropriate 
tribe(s) are satisfied that construction will not disturb cultural 
resources.  


During any ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Planning Department 
and Building and 
Safety Department 


 


15.  CUL-2 At least 30 days but no more than 60 days prior to the 
issuance of any grading permit, the project archaeologist shall file a 
pre-grading report with the City to document the proposed 
methodology for grading activity observation which will be determined 
in consultation with the tribe(s) that intend to assign tribal monitors 
pursuant to mitigation measure CUL-1. The archaeologist and the 
tribal monitor(s) will have the authority to temporarily halt and redirect 
grading activities in order to evaluate the significance of any cultural 
resources discovered on the project site. 


Thirty days (30) 
prior to any ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


 


City of Wildomar 
Public Works 
Department and 
Planning Department 


 


16.  CUL-3 At least 30 days but no more than 60 days prior to the 
issuance of any grading permit, the project applicant shall contact the 
Pechanga Band of Luiseño Indians with notification of the proposed 
grading and shall enter into a Tribal Cultural Resources Treatment 


During any ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Public Works 
Department and 
Planning Department 


 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 (PA No. 18-0034) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 (by City Council) 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring 
Verification Date 


& Signature 


 
and Monitoring Agreement with the tribe. The agreements shall 
include, but not be limited to, outlining provisions and requirements for 
addressing the handling of tribal cultural resources; project grading 
and development scheduling; terms of compensation for tribal 
monitors; treatment and final disposition of any tribal cultural 
resources, including but not limited to sacred sites, burial goods, and 
human remains, discovered on the site; and establishing on-site 
monitoring provisions and/or requirements for professional tribal 
monitors during all ground-disturbing activities. The terms of the 
agreements shall not conflict with any of these mitigation measures. A 
copy of the signed agreement shall be provided to the Planning 
Director and the Building Official prior to the issuance of the first 
grading permit. 


 


17.  CUL-4 If during grading or construction activities, cultural resources 
are discovered on the project site, work shall be halted immediately 
within 50 feet of the discovery and the resources shall be evaluated by 
the archaeologist and the tribal monitor(s). Any cultural resources that 
are discovered shall be evaluated and a final report prepared by the 
archaeologist. The report shall include a list of the resources 
discovered; documentation of each site/locality; interpretation of the 
resources identified; a determination of whether the resources are 
historical resources, unique or non-unique archeological resources, 
and/or tribal cultural resources; and the method of preservation and/or 
recovery for the identified resources. If the archaeologist, in 
consultation with the tribes, determines the cultural resources to be 
either historic resources or unique archaeological resources, 
avoidance and/or mitigation will be required pursuant to and 
consistent with CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(c) and Public 


During any ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Public Works 
Department and 
Planning Department 


 


 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 (PA No. 18-0034) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 (by City Council) 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring 
Verification Date 


& Signature 


 
Resources Code Section 21083.2. Further ground disturbance shall 
not resume within the area of the discovery until the City, project 
applicant, project archaeologist, and consulting tribe(s) reach an 
agreement regarding the appropriate treatment of the cultural 
resources, which may include avoidance or appropriate mitigation. 
Pursuant to California Public Resources Code Section 21083.2(b), 
avoidance is the preferred method of preservation for archaeological 
and cultural resources. Work may continue outside of the buffer area 
and will be monitored by additional tribal monitors, if needed as 
determined by the project archaeologist and the consulting tribe(s).  


18.  CUL-5 In the event that cultural resources are discovered during the 
course of grading (inadvertent discoveries), the following shall be 
carried out for final disposition of the discoveries:  


a) The landowner(s) shall agree to relinquish ownership of all 
recovered tribal cultural resources to the consulting tribe(s), 
including sacred items and all artifacts as part of the required 
treatment for impacts to cultural resources.  


b) One or more of the following treatment, in order of preference 
below, with (i) being the preferred treatment and (ii) being the 
secondary preferred treatment, shall be employed with the 
agreement of all Parties. Evidence of such agreement shall be 
provided to the City:  


i. Preservation in place of the cultural resources, if feasible. 
Preservation in place means avoiding the resources, leaving 
them in place they were found with no development affecting 
the integrity of the resources.  


ii. On-site relocation to a preservation area shall be 


During any ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


 


City of Wildomar 
Public Works 
Department and 
Planning Department 


 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 (PA No. 18-0034) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 (by City Council) 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring 
Verification Date 


& Signature 


 
accomplished as requested by the consulting tribe(s). The 
preservation area location shall be governed by measures 
and provisions to protect the preservation area from any 
future impacts in perpetuity. Relocation shall not occur until 
all legally required cataloging and basic recordation have 
been completed. No recordation of sacred items is permitted 
without the written consent of the consulting tribe(s).  


c) Only if (i) and (ii) above cannot be employed, curation shall be 
arranged with an appropriate qualified repository that meets 
federal standards per 36 CFR Part 79. The cultural resources 
would be professionally curated and made available to other 
archeologists/researchers/tribal governments for further research 
and culturally appropriate use. The collections and associated 
records shall be transferred to a curation facility meeting the above 
federal standards to be accompanied by a curation agreement, 
and payment of any fees necessary for permanent curation. 


19.  CUL-6 Construction personnel involved in excavation and grading 
activities shall be informed of the possibility of discovering fossils at 
any location and the protocol to be followed if fossils are found. A 
professional meeting the Society of Vertebrate Paleontology’s 
standards shall provide the preconstruction training. The City shall 
ensure the grading plan notes include specific reference to the 
potential discovery of fossils. If potentially unique paleontological 
resources (fossils) are inadvertently discovered during project 
construction, work shall be halted immediately within 50 feet of the 
discovery, the City shall be notified, and a professional paleontologist 
shall be retained to determine the significance of the discovery. The 
paleontologist shall establish procedures for paleontological resource 


During any ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities  


City of Wildomar 
Public Works 
Department and 
Planning Department 


 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 (PA No. 18-0034) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 (by City Council) 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring 
Verification Date 


& Signature 


 
surveillance throughout project construction and shall establish, in 
cooperation with the project applicant, procedures for temporarily 
halting or redirecting work to permit sampling, identification, and 
evaluation of fossils. Excavated finds shall be offered to a State-
designated repository such as the Museum of Paleontology at the 
University of California, Berkeley, or the California Academy of 
Sciences.  


20.  CUL-7 If human remains are encountered, California Health and 
Safety Code Section 7050.5 states that no further disturbance shall 
occur until the county coroner has made the necessary findings as to 
origin. Further, pursuant to California Public Resources Code Section 
5097.98(b), remains shall be left in place and free from disturbance 
until a final decision as to the treatment and disposition has been 
made. If the Riverside County Coroner determines the remains to be 
Native American, the Native American Heritage Commission shall be 
contacted within 24 hours. Subsequently, the Native American 
Heritage Commission shall identify the most likely descendant and 
notify them of discovery. The most likely descendant shall then make 
recommendations and engage in consultations concerning the 
treatment of the remains as provided in Public Resources Code 
Section 5097.98. 


During any ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Public Works 
Department and 
Planning Department 


 


Geology/Soils 


21.  GEO-1 The project applicant shall incorporate the recommendations 
of the preliminary geotechnical/geological Public Works study 
prepared by Soils Southwest (2018a; Appendix 5.0) into project plans 
related to the proposed project. The project’s building plans shall 
demonstrate that they incorporate all applicable recommendations of 


Prior to any 
ground-disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Planning Department 
and Building and 
Safety Department 


 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 (PA No. 18-0034) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 (by City Council) 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring 
Verification Date 


& Signature 


 
the design-level geotechnical study and comply with all applicable 
requirements of the latest adopted version of the California Building 
Code. A licensed professional engineer shall prepare the plans, 
including those that pertain to soil Public Works, structural 
foundations, pipeline excavation, and installation. All on-site soil Public 
Works activities shall be conducted under the supervision of a 
licensed geotechnical engineer or certified Public Works geologist. All 
plans will be subject to the approval of the City Engineer. 


Hazards and Hazardous Materials 


22.  HAZ-1 Prior to the issuance of building permits, the project applicant 
shall demonstrate, to the satisfaction of the City Building Official and 
the Riverside County Fire Chief, compliance with the 2016 California 
Building Code or the most recent edition of the 2016 California Fire 
Code (Part 9 of Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations), 
including those regulations pertaining to materials and construction 
methods intended to mitigate wildfire exposure as described in the 
2016 California Building Code and California Residential Code (or 
most recent edition); specifically California Building Code Chapter 7A; 
California Residential Code Section R327; California Residential Code 
Section R337; California Referenced Standards Code Chapter 12-7A; 
and California Fire Code Chapter 49. 


Prior to issuance of 
building permits  


City of Wildomar 
Building Department 
and Riverside County 
Fire Department 


 


23.  HAZ-2 Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the 
applicant shall demonstrate, to the satisfaction of the City Building 
Official and the County Fire Chief, compliance with the vegetation 
management requirements prescribed in California Fire Code Section 
4906, including California Government Code Section 51182. 


Prior to issuance of 
certificate of 
occupancy 


City of Wildomar 
Building Department 
and Riverside County 
Fire Department 


 


  







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 (PA No. 18-0034) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 (by City Council) 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring 
Verification Date 


& Signature 


 


Noise 


24.  NOI-1 Construction Noise Impacts. In addition to adherence to the 
City of Wildomar’s policies found in the Noise Element and Municipal 
Code limiting the construction hours of operation, the following 
measures shall be implemented to reduce construction noise and 
vibrations, emanating from the proposed project: 


1. During all project site excavation and grading on-site, construction 
contractors shall equip all construction equipment, fixed or mobile, 
with properly operating and maintained mufflers, consistent with 
manufacturers’ standards. 


2. The contractor shall place all stationary construction equipment so 
that emitted noise is directed away from the noise-sensitive 
receptors nearest the project site. 


3. Equipment shall be shut off and not left to idle when not in use. 


4. The contractor shall locate equipment staging in areas that will 
create the greatest distance between construction-related 
noise/vibration sources and sensitive receptors nearest the project 
site during all project construction. 


5. Jackhammers, pneumatic equipment, and all other portable 
stationary noise sources shall be shielded, and noise shall be 
directed away from sensitive receptors. 


6. The contractor shall limit the use of heavy equipment or vibratory 
rollers and soil compressors within 25 feet of existing structures to 
the greatest degree possible. 


During project 
construction and 
prior to issuance of 
a certificate of 
occupancy 
 


City of Wildomar 
Planning and Public 
Works Departments 


 


  







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 (PA No. 18-0034) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 (by City Council) 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring 
Verification Date 


& Signature 


 


Transportation/Traffic 


25.  TRA-1 Traffic Signal. The project applicant shall install a traffic 
signal at Monte Vista Drive / Project North Access ‐#6 (on “New” 
Street). The applicant shall also ensure that, at project buildout, all 
traffic signals within the study area function as a coordinated system. 


Prior to Occupancy 
Permits 


Planning and Public 
Works Departments 


 


Tribal Cultural Resources 


26.  Refer to mitigation measures CUL-1 through CUL-5 and CUL-7 in for 
applicable mitigation measures related to tribal cultural resources. CUL-1 through 


CUL-5 and CUL-7 
Planning and Public 
Works Departments 


 


Prior to Final Map Review, Approval and Recordation 


27.  Prior to City Council approval of the final map, the Applicant shall 
submit two (2) copies of the proposed Covenants, Conditions, and 
Restrictions (CC&R’s) for the entire project area for review and 
approval by the Planning Director and City Attorney.  The CC&R’s 
shall include liability insurance and methods of maintaining 
landscaping, parking areas, private roads, exterior of all buildings (if 
applicable), and all landscaped and open areas including parkways, 
as well as a provisions indicating that the homeowners association 
may not be terminated or dissolved without the permission of the City.  
The CC&R’s shall be in the form and content approved by the 
Planning Director and City Attorney and shall include such provisions 
as are required by this approval and as said officials deem necessary 
to protect the interests of the City and its residents. The CC&R’s shall 
include specific language prohibiting resident and visitor parking along 
Monte Vista Drive and within the business park site area, and include 


Prior to Final Map 
Review by City 


Council 


Planning Department 
& City Attorney 


 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 (PA No. 18-0034) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 (by City Council) 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring 
Verification Date 


& Signature 


 
specific provisions for reciprocal access and parking within the 
business park development site. 


28.  Said CC&R’s shall be recorded concurrently with the final map and a 
copy of the recorded CC&R’s shall be submitted to the Planning and 
Engineering Departments within 2 weeks after recordation.   


Prior to Final Map 
Review by City 


Council 


Planning & Public 
Works Departments 


 


PUBLIC WORKS/ENGINEERING/BUILDING DEPARTMENT CONDITIONS 


General Requirements / Standard Conditions 


1.  The project shall comply with all Plot Plan Conditions of Approval 
associated with this property. 


On-Going Planning & 
Engineering 
Departments 


 


2.  The project shall comply with all mitigation measures identified in the 
approved Traffic Impact Analysis to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer. 


On-Going Planning & 
Engineering 
Departments 


 


3.  The Developer shall obtain City approval for any modifications or 
revisions to the approval of this project. Deviations not identified on 
the plans may not be approved by the City, potentially resulting in the 
need for the project to be redesigned. Consequently, amended 
entitlement approvals may be necessary. 


On-Going Planning & 
Engineering 
Departments 


 


4.  The Developer shall dedicate, design and construct all improvements 
in accordance the City of Wildomar Road Improvement Standards & 
Specification, Improvement Plan Check Policies and Guidelines, as 
further conditioned herein and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 
 


5.  The Developer shall be responsible for all costs associated with off-
site right-of-way acquisition and offsite easements, including any costs 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 
 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 (PA No. 18-0034) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 (by City Council) 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring 
Verification Date 


& Signature 


 
associated with the eminent domain process, if necessary. 


6.  All flood control plans to be reviewed by the City or Riverside County 
Flood Control District shall be submitted though the City of Wildomar, 
unless otherwise directed by the City Engineer.  Appropriate fees shall 
be paid to the reviewing agencies and flood control plans and reports 
shall be approved prior to recordation of the final map. 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 
 


7.  The developer shall annex into the City’s Community Facility District 
(CFD Services) and pay associated costs for annexation.  Should this 
project lie within any assessment/benefit district that duplicates the 
services to be covered under CFD Services then the developer shall 
de-annex from said assessment/benefit district. 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 
 


8.  Should this project lie within any assessment/benefit district, the 
project proponent shall, prior to acceptance of improvements, make 
application for and pay for their reapportionment of the assessments 
or pay the unit fees in the benefit district unless said fees are 
otherwise deferred or covered under the City’s Community Facility 
District (CFD Services). 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 
 


9.  The Developer shall design and construct all driveways in accordance 
with the City of Wildomar Improvement Standards. 


On-Going Engineering Dept. 
 


Prior to Final Map Approval and Recordation 


10.  The final map shall be submitted to and approved by the Planning 
Director and the City Engineer prior to scheduling the Final Map for 
approval by the City Council. 


Prior to Map 
Recordation 


Engineering Dept. 
 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 (PA No. 18-0034) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 (by City Council) 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring 
Verification Date 


& Signature 


 


11.  Prior to recordation of the final map, the Planning Department shall 
determine if the deposit based fees for the project are in a negative 
balance, and receive the appropriate payment for any negative 
balance as well as any anticipated additional project-related expenses. 


Prior to Map 


Recordation 
Planning Dept. 


 


12.  Approval for the filing of this land division is contingent upon approval 
of plans and specifications based on the conditions of approval 
presented herein and the final version of Tentative Tract Map. If the 
improvements are not installed prior to the filing of this land division, 
the Developer must submit a Surety Agreement and Faithful 
Performance and Labor and Materials Bonds (or other surety type 
acceptable to the City) in the amount approved by the City Engineer 
guaranteeing the installation of said improvements. 


Prior to Map 


Recordation 
Engineering Dept. 


 


13.  Prior to recordation of the final map, Developer shall submit a street 
light plan for approval by the City Engineer and install (or secure) 
street lights.  Street lighting shall be designed and installed in 
accordance with the City of Wildomar Road Improvement Standards & 
Specification, Improvement Plan Check Policies and Guidelines, City 
Ordinances and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 


Prior to Map 


Recordation 


Engineering Dept. 


 


14.  Prior to recordation of the final map, the Developer shall provide to the 
City Engineer, evidence of the water and sewer system plans 
approved and signed by the local water company.  Water plan shall 
also be approved and signed by the Fire Department and shall 
conform to hydrant type, location, spacing and minimum fire flow.  All 
plans shall be prepared by a registered civil engineer.  All public 
sewer, water and fire facilities shall be constructed or secured prior to 
recordation of the final map. 


Prior to Map 


Recordation 
Engineering Dept. 


 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 (PA No. 18-0034) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 (by City Council) 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring 
Verification Date 


& Signature 


 


15.  All public water and sewer easements shall be recorded on or 
concurrently with the final map and easement widths shall be 
approved by the governing water purveyor. 


Prior to Map 


Recordation 


Engineering Dept. 


 


16.  Environmental Constraint Sheet (ECS) must be stamped by the 
Riverside County Surveyor with the following note: “The required 
water system, including fire hydrants, shall be installed and accepted 
by the appropriate water agency prior to any combustible building 
material being placed on an individual lot.” 


Prior to Map 


Recordation 
Engineering Dept. 


 


17.  Prior to recordation of the final map, the improvement plans for the 
required public street improvements must be prepared and shall be 
based upon a design profile extending a minimum of 300 feet beyond 
the project boundaries at a grade and alignment as approved by the 
City Engineer. 


Prior to Map 


Recordation 
Engineering Dept. 


 


18.  The Developer shall dedicate public utility easements where 
applicable for overhead and/or underground facilities and 
appurtenances to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 


Prior to Map 


Recordation 


Engineering Dept. 


 


19.  Prior to recordation of the final map, all above-ground utilities, 
including but not limited to communication and power that are 33KV in 
size or less, shall be undergrounded (or securities posted) by the 
Developer in accordance with City of Wildomar Municipal Code 
Section 16.40.010 requirements. The undergrounding of utilities shall 
be reflected on the project improvement plans. (amended by City 
Council on 2/13/19) 


Prior to Map 


Recordation 


Engineering Dept 


 


20.  The Developer shall show all easements per the Title Report to the 
satisfaction of Public Works.  Any conflict with existing easements 
resulting in the site being redesigned potentially requires a minor 
change or amendment approval by Planning Commission. 


Prior to Map 


Recordation 
Engineering Dept. 


 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 (PA No. 18-0034) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 (by City Council) 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring 
Verification Date 


& Signature 


 


21.  Prior to the recordation of the final map or issuance of the first building 
permit, Developer shall dedicate the easterly half of Monte Vista Drive 
to provide for a 46-foot haft street measured from the “New” centerline 
per Riverside County Standard Drawing No. 109 Modified as show on 
the Monte Vista Drive cross section on the Tentative Tract Map.  Off-
site transitions may require additional dedications. All property 
conveyed to the City of Wildomar in fee title shall be free and clear of 
any encumbrances, except as expressly permitted by the City. The 
Developer shall provide title insurance in conjunction with all fee title 
dedications to the City of Wildomar.  Inability of the Developer to 
acquire any necessary offsite dedications may require redesign of 
project.  


Prior to Map 


Recordation or 


Issuance of the 


First Building 


Permit 


Engineering Dept. 
 


22.  Developer shall prepare improvement plans for approval by the City 
Engineer and construct (or secure) improvements to Monte Vista Drive 
as show on the Tentative Map street cross section to include full street 
improvements to the easterly half plus partial improvements from the 
centerline to the outside edge of the first lane line on the westerly half 
of the street in accordance with the City of Wildomar Road 
Improvement Standards & Specifications, Improvement Plan Check 
Policies and Guidelines and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.  
Improvements shall include roadway grading, removal and 
replacement of existing pavement, grind and overlay (west side only), 
new pavement, curb and cutter, 6-foot wide curb adjacent sidewalk 
with an 8-foot wide R/W adjacent trail in the parkway, street lights, 
roadway signing and striping.  10:1 incoming and outgoing transitions 
shall be required at the project boundaries. 


Prior to Map 


Recordation or 


Issuance of the 


First Building 


Permit 


Engineering Dept. 


 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 (PA No. 18-0034) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 (by City Council) 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring 
Verification Date 


& Signature 


 


23.  This project is dependent upon the construction of the offsite street 
that intersects Monte Vista Drive and runs directly adjacent to and 
parallel with the north project boundary.  This street provides the main 
entrance to the 80 single family lots and the commercial site.  In the 
event that the adjacent project (Tract No 32024) does not construct 
this street prior to recordation of this project’s tract map, the Developer 
shall be responsible to dedicate street right of way to include a 28-foot 
half street on the south side plus an additional 12-feet north of 
centerline for two-way traffic to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.  In 
addition, street improvement plans shall be prepared and approved 
and improvements constructed (or secured) for this offsite street per 
the City of Wildomar Road Improvement Standards & Specifications, 
Improvement Plan Check Policies and Guidelines and to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer.  


Prior to Map 


Recordation or 


Issuance of the 


First Building 


Permit 


Engineering Dept. 
 


24.  Public onsite streets A, B and D, as shown on the Tentative Tract 
Map, shall be dedicated, designed and constructed (or secured) prior 
to recordation of the final map.  Full width street dedications shall 
conform to Riverside County Local Street Standard No. 105 to include 
a 56-foot right of way with 36-feet between curbs and two 10-foot 
parkways and shall be designed and constructed in accordance with 
the City of Wildomar Road Improvement Standards & Specifications, 
Improvement Plan Check Policies and Guidelines and to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer.  


Prior to Map 


Recordation or 


Issuance of the 


First Building 


Permit 


Engineering Dept. 
 


25.  Public onsite street C shall be dedicated, designed and constructed 
(or secured) prior to recordation of the final map per the Typical 
Section shown on the Tentative Tract Map.  Street dedications shall 
conform to Riverside County Local Street Standard No. 105 Modified 
to include a 47.50-foot right of way with 36-feet between curbs, a 10-


Prior to Map 


Recordation or 


Issuance of the 


First Building 


Engineering Dept. 


 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 (PA No. 18-0034) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 (by City Council) 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring 
Verification Date 


& Signature 


 
foot parkway on the east side and a 1.5-ft parkway on the west side 
and shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the City of 
Wildomar Road Improvement Standards & Specifications, 
Improvement Plan Check Policies and Guidelines and to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer. 


Permit 


26.  Prior to recordation of the final map, a signing and striping plan shall 
be approved by the City Engineer and signing and striping installed (or 
secured) to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. The signing striping 
plan shall establish “No Stopping Anytime Zones” along the Monte 
Vista Drive project frontage and include signing for Sight Distance as 
outlined in the Traffic Impact Analysis.  Limit Use areas shown in the 
Traffic Impact Analysis shall be consistent with the Street 
Improvement Plans to provide both Stopping Sight Distance and 
Corner Sight Distance from the Project Entrance driveway.  The 
project proponent shall be responsible for any additional paving and/or 
striping removal caused by the striping plan to the satisfaction of the 
City Engineer. 


Prior to Map 


Recordation 
Engineering Dept. 


 


27.  Prior to recordation of the final map, the Developer shall prepare traffic 
control plans (or post securities for costs to prepare traffic control 
plans) and sureties shall include costs to provide for traffic control 
during construction. 


Prior to Map 


Recordation  
Engineering Dept. 


 


28.  Prior to recordation of the final map or issuance of a grading permit, 
Developer shall prepare a comprehensive drainage study for approval 
by the City Engineer.  The 10-year storm flow shall be contained within 
the curb and the 100-year storm flow shall be contained within the 
street right of way.  When either of these criteria is exceeded, 
additional drainage facilities shall be installed.  All lots shall be graded 
to drain to the adjacent street or an adequate outlet. 


Prior to Map 


Recordation or 


Grading Permit 


Engineering Dept. 


 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 (PA No. 18-0034) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 (by City Council) 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring 
Verification Date 


& Signature 


 


29.  Prior to recordation of the final map or issuance of a grading permit, 
the Developer shall submit plans for approval by the City Engineer and 
construct (or secure) public storm drain improvements as shown on 
the approved Tentative Tract Map.   


Prior to Map 


Recordation or 


Grading Permit 


Engineering Dept. 


 


30.  All bio-basins, retention basins and associated drainage pipes and 
appurtenances shall be privately maintained.  However, in the event that 
the City determines it necessary to take over maintenance at a future 
date, the final map shall be set up to allow for immediate action.  
Therefore, the final map shall include lettered lots or easements to 
contain each basin and associated appurtenances to be offered to the 
City in the Owner’s Statement.  Initially, the City will decline the offer, but 
will have the option to accept at a future date.  In addition, the above 
listed facilities shall be included in the CFD Annexation when 
establishing the maximum tax to ensure a revenue source for 
maintenance in the event the City takes over.   


Prior to Map 


Recordation 


Engineering Dept. 


 


31.  Developer to provide a 10-foot wide public trail easement adjacent to 
lot 80 as shown on the Tentative Tract Map. 


Prior to Map 


Recordation 


Engineering Dept. 


 


32.  Prior to or concurrently with the recordation of the final map, 
Developer shall record an offsite 20-ft wide private drainage easement 
for the storm drain exiting the basin in Lot 81 that connects to the 
Caltrans Culvert #12 as shown on the Tentative Tract Map.  The storm 
drain within this easement shall be designed and constructed (or 
secured) prior to recordation of the final map or issuance of a grading 
permit. 


Prior to Map 


Recordation 


Engineering Dept. 


 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 (PA No. 18-0034) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 (by City Council) 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring 
Verification Date 


& Signature 


 


33.  Prior to recordation of the final map, Developer to design and 
construct (or secure) the “bypass” storm drain system across lots 81 & 
82 as shown on the Tentative Map.  Appropriate private easement 
shall be dedicated on the final map as shown on the Tentative Map. 


Prior to Map 


Recordation 


Engineering Dept. 


 


34.  The final map shall include a Fire Department emergency access from 
the north terminus of Street D to the proposed cul-de-sac on the north 
adjacent property (said cul-de-sac shown on Tentative Map No. 
32024).  Emergency access easement to be shown on the final tract 
map and width and alignment approved by the Fire Department prior 
to recordation of the Final Tract Map. 


Prior to Map 


Recordation 
Engineering Dept. 


 


35.  Lettered Lot E - H shall be retained by the owner as private and 
maintained by a Home Owner’s Association (HOA).  The CC&R’s shall 
include provisions for maintenance of this landscaped lot. 


Prior to Map 


Recordation 


Engineering Dept.  


36.  Prior to the recordation of the final map or issuance of the first building 
permit, the Developer shall record a reciprocal agreement between 
commercial lots 81-84 for ingress and egress, reciprocal access, 
parking and drainage acceptance to the satisfaction the Public Works 
and Planning Director’s.  A recorded copy of the agreement shall be 
submitted to the Planning Department within 30 days of map 
recordation. 


Prior to Map 


Recordation or 


Issuance of 


Building Permits 


Engineering Dept. 


 


37.  Prior to recordation of the final map, the Developer shall submit 
landscaping and irrigation plans and install (or secure) landscaping for 
work within the public right-of-way to the City for approval. These 
plans shall include water usage calculations, estimate of irrigation and 
the location of all existing trees that will remain. All plans and 
calculations shall be designed and calculated per the City of Wildomar 
Road Improvement Standards & Specification, Improvement Plan 


Prior to Map 


Recordation 


Engineering Dept. and 


Planning Dept  







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 (PA No. 18-0034) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 (by City Council) 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring 
Verification Date 


& Signature 


 
Check Policies and Guidelines, City Codes and to the satisfaction of 
the City Engineer. 


38.  Prior to the recordation of the final map, Covenants, Conditions, and 
Restrictions (CC&R’s) or a Property Owner’s Agreement shall be 
submitted to and approved by the City. The CC&R’s/Property Owner’s 
Agreement shall provide for the effective establishment, operation, 
management, use, repair and maintenance of all common areas, 
private drainage facilities, landscaping, parking areas, private roads, 
basins, BMP’s, etc. 


Prior to Map 


Recordation 
Planning/ Engineering 


Departments and City 


Attorney 
 


39.  The project CC&R’s/Property Owner’s Agreement shall be recorded 
prior to or concurrently with the recordation of the final map and one 
hard copy and an electronic copy of the final recorded document shall 
be provided to the Planning Department. 


Prior to Map 


Recordation 
Planning/ Engineering 


Departments and City 


Attorney 
 


RIVERSIDE COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT 


General Conditions 


1.  Fire Hydrants and Fire Flow: Provide or show there exist fire 
hydrant(s) capable of delivering required fire flow per the California 
Fire Code, Riverside County Fire Department within 600 feet to all 
portions of the proposed structures. The Riverside County Fire 
Department has a Technical Policy allowing this distance to increase 
based upon an upgraded sprinkler system in the home. Reference 
2016 California Fire Code (CFC) Section 507.5.1. 


On-Going Fire Department 
 


2.  Water Plans: If fire hydrants are required to be installed, 
applicant/developer shall furnish two copies of the water system fire 
hydrant plans to Fire Department for review and approval prior to 
building permit issuance.  Plans shall be signed by a registered civil 


On-Going Fire Department 
 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 (PA No. 18-0034) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 (by City Council) 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring 
Verification Date 


& Signature 


 
engineer, and shall confirm hydrant type, location, spacing, and 
minimum fire flow.  Once plans are signed and approved by the local 
water authority, the originals shall be presented to the Fire Department 
for review and approval. Ref. CFC 105.4.1. 


3.  Water system prior to combustibles on site: No combustible material 
shall be brought on site until the water system has been inspected and 
approved by the Riverside County Fire Department. 


On-Going Fire Department 
 


4.  Blue Dot Reflectors: Blue retro-reflective pavement markers shall be 
installed to indicate the location of fire hydrants. On-Going Fire Department 


 


5.  Fire Department Access: Fire Department apparatus access shall be 
provided to within 150 feet of all portions of all buildings.  Driveway 
loops, fire apparatus access lanes and entrance curb radius should be 
designed to adequately allow access of emergency fire vehicles.  The 
Applicant shall include in the building plans the required fire lanes and 
include the appropriate lane printing and/or signs. 


On-Going Fire Department 
 


6.  Building Address Numbers: Display street numbers in a prominent 
location on the address side of buildings.  Numbers shall be legible, of 
a contrasting color, and adequately illuminated to be visible from street 
at all hours. 


On-Going Fire Department 
 


7.  Address: The address shall be posted per Riverside County Fire 
Department standards and will be clearly visible from public roadway. 
Ref. CFC 505.1 as amended by the City of Wildomar and the County 
of Riverside Fire Prevention Standard #07-01 Premises Identification. 


On-Going Fire Department 
 


8.  Knox Rapid Entry System: Gates shall be equipped with a Knox Rapid 
Entry System.  Contact the Riverside County Fire Department for 
further information. 


On-Going Fire Department 
 







ATTACHMENT C – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 (PA No. 18-0034) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 (by City Council) 


Tentative Tract Map No. 37476 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing / 


Implementation 
Enforcement / 


Monitoring 
Verification Date 


& Signature 


 
 
END 







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


PLANNING DEPARTMENT CONDITIONS 


Standard Conditions 


1.  In compliance with Chapter 15094 of the CEQA Guidelines, a Notice 
of Determination (NOD) shall be filed with the Riverside County Clerk 
within five (5) working days of project approval by the City Council. 
The notice shall include the required California Department of Fish 
and Wildlife (Fish and Game Code Chapter 711.4.d.3) fee, and the 
Riverside County Clerk administrative fee (paid by the Applicant) in 
the amount of $2,404.75. Failure to pay the required fee will result in 
the project being deemed null and void (California Fish and Game 
Code Chapter 711.4(c)). The above fee shall be provided to the 
Planning Department no later than February 14, 2019 and is broken 
down as follows: 


a. California Department of Fish and Wildlife =  $2,354.75 


b. Riverside County Clerk Administrative Fee = $50.00 


February 14, 2019 Planning Department 


 


 


 


2.  The Applicant’s signature below, which shall be submitted to the 
Planning Department on or before February 21, 2019, hereby verifies 
the acceptance of the “Council Adopted Conditions of Approval” 
contained within this conditions of approval matrix. 


 


 


 


Applicant Signature     Date 


February 21, 2019 Planning Department 
 


  







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


3.  The Applicant shall indemnify, protect, defend, and hold harmless, the 
City, and/or any of its officials, officers, employees, agents, 
departments, agencies, and instrumentalities thereof, from any and all 
claims, demands, law suits, writs of mandamus, and other actions and 
proceedings (whether legal, equitable, declaratory, administrative or 
adjudicatory in nature), and alternative dispute resolutions procedures 
(including, but not limited to arbitrations, mediations, and other such 
procedures), (collectively “Actions”), brought against the City, and/or 
any of its officials, officers, employees, agents, departments, 
agencies, and instrumentalities thereof, that challenge, attack, or seek 
to modify, set aside, void, or annul, the any action of, or any permit or 
approval issued by, the City and/or any of its officials, officers, 
employees, agents, departments, agencies, and instrumentalities 
thereof (including actions approved by the voters of the City), for or 
concerning the project, whether such Actions are brought under the 
California Environmental Quality Act, the Planning and Zoning Law, 
the Subdivision Map Act, Code of Civil Procedure Chapter 1085 or 
1094.5, or any other state, federal, or local statute, law, ordinance, 
rule, regulation, or any decision of a court of competent jurisdiction. 
City shall promptly notify the Applicant of any Action brought and 
request that Applicant defend the City. It is expressly agreed that 
Applicant may select legal counsel providing the Applicant’s defense 
and the City shall have the right to approve separate legal counsel 
providing the City’s defense. The Applicant shall reimburse City for 
any attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses directly and necessarily 
incurred by the City in the course of the defense. Applicant agrees that 
City will forward monthly invoices to Applicant for attorneys’ fees, 
costs and expenses it has incurred related to its defense of any Action 


Ongoing Planning Department 
 


 







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 
and Applicant agrees to timely payment within thirty (30) days of 
receipt of the invoice.  Within fourteen (14) days of an Action being 
filed, Applicant agrees to post adequate security or a cash deposit 
with City in an amount to cover the City’s estimated attorneys’ fees, 
costs and expenses incurred by City in the course of the defense in 
order to ensure timely payment of the City’s invoices. The amount of 
the security or cash deposit shall be determined by the City. City shall 
cooperate with Applicant in the defense of any Action.  


4.  Plot Plan No. 18-0034 shall not become effective until 30 days after 
the second reading of the Ordinance approving Change of Zone No. 
18-0034 by the City Council.  No grading or building permits shall be 
issued until after the effective date of the change of zone.  


April 13, 2019 Planning Department 
 


5.  Within 30 days after approval of the second reading of the Ordinance 
approving  Plot Plan No. 18-0034 by the City Council, the Applicant 
shall pay all applicable outstanding/negative deposit account balances 
(#18-0034).  Failure to pay the outstanding balance by the due date 
may result in delays in the processing building permits. 


May 13, 2019 
Planning Department 


 


6.  Approval of Plot Plan No. 18-0034 shall expire on February 13, 2022 
(3 years after approval by the City Council) if grading and/or building 
permits have not been issued and substantial construction work has 
not commenced on the project site.  For the purposes of this condition, 
the term “commenced” means either the beginning of substantial 
construction of facilities for the use that is authorized, which 
construction must thereafter be pursued diligently to completion, or the 
actual occupancy of existing buildings or land under the terms of the 
authorized use.  The Applicant may submit a request for a one-year 


February 13, 2022 Planning Department 
 







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


  


Extension of Time (EOT) for review and approval of the Planning 
Director in accordance with Chapter 17.216.070 of the Wildomar 
Municipal Code.  Said extension of time application and fee must be 
submitted prior to the expiration date. If a request for an EOT has not 
been submitted by this deadline, then Plot Plan No. 18-0034 shall 
automatically become null and void. 


7.  In accordance with Chapter 66020.d.1 of the Government Code, the 
Applicant has 90 days from project approval to file a protest of the 
imposition of fees, dedications, reservations, or other exactions being 
imposed on this project.  Notice is hereby given to the Applicant that 
the 90-day appeal period begins with the tentative approval date by 
City Council on February 13, 2019. 


May 13, 2019 Planning Department 
 


8.  Applicant hereby understands and agrees that failure to comply with 
all Conditions of Approval may result in the City Council taking action 
resulting in a modification to the Conditions of Approval and/or 
suspension or revocation of the plot plan. 


On-Going Planning Department 


 


9.  The project site shall be developed in accordance with the approved 
development plans for Plot Plan No. 18-0034 as approved by the City 
Council on February 13, 2019. The Applicant may request a 
modification/revision to the approved project, if needed, in accordance 
with Chapter 17.228 of the Wildomar Municipal Code. 


Ongoing Planning Department 
 


10.  The proposed Project shall comply with existing SCAQMD rules for 
the reduction of fugitive dust emissions in accordance with SCAQMD 
Rule 403. 


On-Going Planning Department 
 







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


11.  Erosion control-landscape plans, required for manufactured slopes 
greater than 3 feet in vertical height, are to be signed by a registered 
landscape architect and bonded.  Temporary erosion controls shall 
occur immediately upon establishing planting final grades to minimize 
erosion and to ensure slope coverage prior to the rainy season.  Prior 
to occupancy, the Applicant shall plant and irrigate all manufactured 
slopes steeper than a 4:1 (horizontal to vertical) ratio and 3 feet or 
greater in vertical height with grass or ground cover; slopes 15 feet or 
greater in vertical height shall be planted with additional shrubs or 
trees or as approved by the City Engineer. 


On-Going Planning Department 
 


12.  If human remains are encountered during grading activities, State 
Health and Safety Code Chapter 7050.5 states that no further 
disturbance shall occur until the Riverside County Coroner has made 
the necessary findings as to origin. Further, pursuant to Public 
Resource Code Chapter 5097.98(b) remains shall be left in place and 
free from disturbance until a final decision as to the treatment and 
disposition has been made.  If the Riverside County Coroner 
determines the remains to be Native American, the Native American 
Heritage Commission shall be contacted within a reasonable 
timeframe. Subsequently, the Native American Heritage Commission 
shall identify the "most likely descendant."  The most likely 
descendant shall then make recommendations and engage in 
consultation concerning the treatment of the remains as provided in 
Public Resources Code Chapter 5097.98. 


On-Going Planning & 
Engineering Depts. 


 


13.  The Applicant is prohibited from using any sort of blasting 
device/activity during all grading and/or construction operations. On-Going Planning Department  







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


14.  The proposed development approved by the City Council shall comply 
with the standards and requirements of the City’s Light Pollution 
Ordinance in accordance with Chapter 8.64 of the Wildomar Municipal 
Code.   


On-Going Planning Department  


15.  As required by Chapter 8.56 of the WMC, subsequent development on 
the site will need to comply with the County of Riverside, Department 
of Environmental Health, Local Enforcement Agency (LEA) for all 
activities related to potential hazardous materials. 


On-Going Planning Department  


16.  The Applicant shall be required to provide at least one (1) 220 volt 
electric vehicle plug in fixture in each enclosed garage.  This 
information shall be provided on the construction drawings when they 
are submitted to the Building Department.  


On-Going 
Planning & Building 


Departments 
 


17.  The Applicant shall provide EV charging stations, EV parking spaces, 
and bike racks/spaces within the business park development area 
(i.e., Lots 81 – 84 of TTM 374176) in accordance with the current Cal-
Green building code standards and requirements at the time of 
construction drawing submittals. This information shall be reflected on 
the construction drawings submitted to the Building Official prior to the 
issuance of building permits. 


On-Going 
Planning & Building 


Departments 
 


18.  All plot plans which permit the construction of more than one structure 
on a single legally divided parcel shall, in addition to all other 
requirements, be subject to a condition which prohibits the sale of any 
existing or subsequently constructed structures on the parcel until the 
parcel is divided and a final map recorded in accordance with Title 16 
(Subdivisions) in such a manner that each building is located on a 
separate legally divided parcel. 


On-Going 
Planning & Building 


Departments 
 







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) Mitigation Measures 


Biological Resources 


19.  BIO-1 Vegetation clearing/grubbing, ground disturbance (e.g., 
grading, earthmoving, excavation, use of heavy equipment), and 
construction activities that may directly (e.g., grading) or indirectly 
(e.g., noise) affect protected nesting avian species shall be timed to 
avoid the typical avian nesting season (February 15 to August 31 for 
songbirds; January 15 to August 31 for raptors). If such activities are 
scheduled to occur during the nesting season, a qualified biologist 
shall conduct a preconstruction survey for nesting raptors and other 
protected avian species within 500 feet of proposed disturbance 
activities. The preconstruction survey shall be conducted no more 
than 14 days prior to the start of vegetation clearing/grubbing. As 
determined necessary by the biologist, surveys for nesting birds may 
be required to continue during grading/construction to address the 
potential for new arrivals and unique species’ breeding seasons. The 
necessity and timing of these continued surveys shall be determined 
by the biologist in coordination with the City, the Western Riverside 
County Regional Conservation Authority, and participating wildlife 
agencies as needed. 


If raptors or other protected avian nests are identified during the above 
surveys, the qualified biologist shall notify the City, the Western 
Riverside County Regional. Conservation Authority, and participating 
wildlife agencies, and an appropriate no-disturbance buffer shall be 
imposed (to be determined by the biologist) within which no vegetation 
clearing/grubbing, ground disturbance, and construction activities shall 
take place (generally 500 feet in all directions for raptors; other avian 


No more than 14 
days prior to any 
vegetation removal 
or ground-
disturbing activities 


City of Wildomar 
Public Works & 
Planning Depts. 


 







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 
species may have species-specific requirements) until the young have 
fledged and are no longer reliant upon the nest or parental care for 
survival, as determined by the biologist. 


20.  BIO-2 Due to the presence of potentially suitable habitat on the 
project site and in adjacent off-site areas, a 30-day preconstruction 
survey for burrowing owl is required pursuant to the MSHCP. If 
burrowing owls are determined present during the 30-day 
preconstruction survey, occupied burrows shall be avoided to the 
greatest extent feasible, following the guidelines in the Staff Report on 
Burrowing Owl Mitigation published by California Department of Fish 
and Wildlife (2012) including, but not limited to, conducting 
preconstruction surveys, avoiding occupied burrows during the nesting 
and non-breeding seasons, implementing a worker awareness 
program, biological monitoring, establishing avoidance buffers, and 
flagging burrows for avoidance with visible markers. If occupied 
burrows cannot be avoided, acceptable methods may be used to 
exclude burrowing owl either temporarily or permanently, pursuant to 
a Burrowing Owl Exclusion Plan that shall be prepared and 
implemented to the approval of the City and the Western Riverside 
County Regional Conservation Authority. 


 


No more than 14 
days prior to any 
vegetation removal 
or ground-
disturbing activities 


City of Wildomar 
Public Works & 
Planning Depts. 


 


21.  BIO-3 The following construction-related best management practices 
(BMPs) shall be implemented during vegetation clearing/grubbing, 
ground disturbance (e.g., grading, earthmoving, excavation, use of 
heavy equipment), and construction activities to avoid impacts to 
potentially occurring special-status wildlife species: 


• Prior to vegetation clearing/grubbing, a biological monitor shall 


Prior to any 
vegetation removal 
or ground-
disturbing activities. 


City of Wildomar 
Public Works & 
Planning Depts. 


 







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 
conduct a preconstruction meeting with the construction crew to 
identify appropriate access route(s) in and out of the construction 
area and to review project boundaries.  Prior to vegetation 
clearing/grubbing, a biological monitor shall inspect the limits of 
protective fencing along the work limits adjacent to on/off-site 
habitats to remain. Following construction, a qualified biologist shall 
ensure temporarily disturbed vegetated areas are returned to pre-
project contours using a local native plant hydroseed mix.  


Cultural Resources 


22.  CUL-1 To address the possibility that historical, archaeological, 
and/or tribal cultural resources (collectively referred to as “cultural 
resources” in these mitigation measures) may be encountered during 
grading or construction, a qualified professional archaeologist shall 
monitor all construction activities that could potentially impact cultural 
resources (e.g., grading, excavation, and/or trenching). The Pechanga 
Band of Luiseño Indians may assign individuals to monitor all grading, 
excavation, and groundbreaking activities as well, and the tribal 
monitors shall be allowed on-site during any construction activities that 
could potentially impact cultural resources. However, monitoring may 
be discontinued as soon the qualified professional and the appropriate 
tribe(s) are satisfied that construction will not disturb cultural 
resources.  


During any ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Planning Department 
and Building and 
Safety Department 


 


23.  CUL-2 At least 30 days but no more than 60 days prior to the 
issuance of any grading permit, the project archaeologist shall file a 
pre-grading report with the City to document the proposed 
methodology for grading activity observation which will be determined 
in consultation with the tribe(s) that intend to assign tribal monitors 


Thirty days (30) 
prior to any ground-
disturbing 
construction 


City of Wildomar 
Public Works 
Department and 
Planning Department 


 







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 
pursuant to mitigation measure CUL-1. The archaeologist and the 
tribal monitor(s) will have the authority to temporarily halt and redirect 
grading activities in order to evaluate the significance of any cultural 
resources discovered on the project site. 


activities 


 


24.  CUL-3 At least 30 days but no more than 60 days prior to the 
issuance of any grading permit, the project applicant shall contact the 
Pechanga Band of Luiseño Indians with notification of the proposed 
grading and shall enter into a Tribal Cultural Resources Treatment 
and Monitoring Agreement with the tribe. The agreements shall 
include, but not be limited to, outlining provisions and requirements for 
addressing the handling of tribal cultural resources; project grading 
and development scheduling; terms of compensation for tribal 
monitors; treatment and final disposition of any tribal cultural 
resources, including but not limited to sacred sites, burial goods, and 
human remains, discovered on the site; and establishing on-site 
monitoring provisions and/or requirements for professional tribal 
monitors during all ground-disturbing activities. The terms of the 
agreements shall not conflict with any of these mitigation measures. A 
copy of the signed agreement shall be provided to the Planning 
Director and the Building Official prior to the issuance of the first 
grading permit. 


During any ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


 


City of Wildomar 
Public Works 
Department and 
Planning Department 


 


25.  CUL-4 If during grading or construction activities, cultural resources 
are discovered on the project site, work shall be halted immediately 
within 50 feet of the discovery and the resources shall be evaluated by 
the archaeologist and the tribal monitor(s). Any cultural resources that 
are discovered shall be evaluated and a final report prepared by the 
archaeologist. The report shall include a list of the resources 


During any ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Public Works 
Department and 
Planning Department 


 


 







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 
discovered; documentation of each site/locality; interpretation of the 
resources identified; a determination of whether the resources are 
historical resources, unique or non-unique archeological resources, 
and/or tribal cultural resources; and the method of preservation and/or 
recovery for the identified resources. If the archaeologist, in 
consultation with the tribes, determines the cultural resources to be 
either historic resources or unique archaeological resources, 
avoidance and/or mitigation will be required pursuant to and 
consistent with CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(c) and Public 
Resources Code Section 21083.2. Further ground disturbance shall 
not resume within the area of the discovery until the City, project 
applicant, project archaeologist, and consulting tribe(s) reach an 
agreement regarding the appropriate treatment of the cultural 
resources, which may include avoidance or appropriate mitigation. 
Pursuant to California Public Resources Code Section 21083.2(b), 
avoidance is the preferred method of preservation for archaeological 
and cultural resources. Work may continue outside of the buffer area 
and will be monitored by additional tribal monitors, if needed as 
determined by the project archaeologist and the consulting tribe(s).  


26.  CUL-5 In the event that cultural resources are discovered during the 
course of grading (inadvertent discoveries), the following shall be 
carried out for final disposition of the discoveries:  


a) The landowner(s) shall agree to relinquish ownership of all 
recovered tribal cultural resources to the consulting tribe(s), 
including sacred items and all artifacts as part of the required 
treatment for impacts to cultural resources.  


b) One or more of the following treatment, in order of preference 


During any ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


 


City of Wildomar 
Public Works 
Department and 
Planning Department 


 







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 
below, with (i) being the preferred treatment and (ii) being the 
secondary preferred treatment, shall be employed with the 
agreement of all Parties. Evidence of such agreement shall be 
provided to the City:  


i. Preservation in place of the cultural resources, if feasible. 
Preservation in place means avoiding the resources, leaving 
them in place they were found with no development affecting 
the integrity of the resources.  


ii. On-site relocation to a preservation area shall be 
accomplished as requested by the consulting tribe(s). The 
preservation area location shall be governed by measures 
and provisions to protect the preservation area from any 
future impacts in perpetuity. Relocation shall not occur until 
all legally required cataloging and basic recordation have 
been completed. No recordation of sacred items is permitted 
without the written consent of the consulting tribe(s).  


c) Only if (i) and (ii) above cannot be employed, curation shall be 
arranged with an appropriate qualified repository that meets 
federal standards per 36 CFR Part 79. The cultural resources 
would be professionally curated and made available to other 
archeologists/researchers/tribal governments for further research 
and culturally appropriate use. The collections and associated 
records shall be transferred to a curation facility meeting the above 
federal standards to be accompanied by a curation agreement, 
and payment of any fees necessary for permanent curation. 


27.  CUL-6 Construction personnel involved in excavation and grading 
activities shall be informed of the possibility of discovering fossils at 


During any ground-
disturbing 


City of Wildomar 
Public Works  







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 
any location and the protocol to be followed if fossils are found. A 
professional meeting the Society of Vertebrate Paleontology’s 
standards shall provide the preconstruction training. The City shall 
ensure the grading plan notes include specific reference to the 
potential discovery of fossils. If potentially unique paleontological 
resources (fossils) are inadvertently discovered during project 
construction, work shall be halted immediately within 50 feet of the 
discovery, the City shall be notified, and a professional paleontologist 
shall be retained to determine the significance of the discovery. The 
paleontologist shall establish procedures for paleontological resource 
surveillance throughout project construction and shall establish, in 
cooperation with the project applicant, procedures for temporarily 
halting or redirecting work to permit sampling, identification, and 
evaluation of fossils. Excavated finds shall be offered to a State-
designated repository such as the Museum of Paleontology at the 
University of California, Berkeley, or the California Academy of 
Sciences.  


construction 
activities  


Department and 
Planning Department 


28.  CUL-7 If human remains are encountered, California Health and 
Safety Code Section 7050.5 states that no further disturbance shall 
occur until the county coroner has made the necessary findings as to 
origin. Further, pursuant to California Public Resources Code Section 
5097.98(b), remains shall be left in place and free from disturbance 
until a final decision as to the treatment and disposition has been 
made. If the Riverside County Coroner determines the remains to be 
Native American, the Native American Heritage Commission shall be 
contacted within 24 hours. Subsequently, the Native American 
Heritage Commission shall identify the most likely descendant and 
notify them of discovery. The most likely descendant shall then make 


During any ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Public Works 
Department and 
Planning Department 


 







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 
recommendations and engage in consultations concerning the 
treatment of the remains as provided in Public Resources Code 
Section 5097.98. 


Geology/Soils 


29.  GEO-1 The project applicant shall incorporate the recommendations 
of the preliminary geotechnical/geological Public Works study 
prepared by Soils Southwest (2018a; Appendix 5.0) into project plans 
related to the proposed project. The project’s building plans shall 
demonstrate that they incorporate all applicable recommendations of 
the design-level geotechnical study and comply with all applicable 
requirements of the latest adopted version of the California Building 
Code. A licensed professional engineer shall prepare the plans, 
including those that pertain to soil Public Works, structural 
foundations, pipeline excavation, and installation. All on-site soil Public 
Works activities shall be conducted under the supervision of a 
licensed geotechnical engineer or certified Public Works geologist. All 
plans will be subject to the approval of the City Engineer. 


Prior to any 
ground-disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Planning Department 
and Building and 
Safety Department 


 


Hazards and Hazardous Materials 


30.  HAZ-1 Prior to the issuance of building permits, the project applicant 
shall demonstrate, to the satisfaction of the City Building Official and 
the Riverside County Fire Chief, compliance with the 2016 California 
Building Code or the most recent edition of the 2016 California Fire 
Code (Part 9 of Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations), 
including those regulations pertaining to materials and construction 
methods intended to mitigate wildfire exposure as described in the 
2016 California Building Code and California Residential Code (or 


Prior to issuance of 
building permits  


City of Wildomar 
Building Department 
and Riverside County 


Fire Department 
 







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 
most recent edition); specifically California Building Code Chapter 7A; 
California Residential Code Section R327; California Residential Code 
Section R337; California Referenced Standards Code Chapter 12-7A; 
and California Fire Code Chapter 49. 


31.  HAZ-2 Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the 
applicant shall demonstrate, to the satisfaction of the City Building 
Official and the County Fire Chief, compliance with the vegetation 
management requirements prescribed in California Fire Code Section 
4906, including California Government Code Section 51182. 


Prior to issuance of 
certificate of 
occupancy 


City of Wildomar 
Building Department 
and Riverside County 


Fire Department 


 


Noise 


32.  NOI-1: Construction Noise Impacts. In addition to adherence to the 
City of Wildomar’s policies found in the General Plan Noise Element 
and the Municipal Code limiting the construction hours of operation, 
the following measures shall be implemented to reduce construction 
noise and vibrations emanating from the proposed project: 


1. During all project site excavation and grading on-site, 
construction contractors shall equip all construction equipment, 
fixed or mobile, with properly operating and maintained mufflers, 
consistent with manufacturers’ standards. 


2. The contractor shall place all stationary construction equipment 
so that emitted noise is directed away from the noise-sensitive 
receptors nearest the project site. 


3. Equipment shall be shut off and not left to idle when not in use. 


4. The contractor shall locate equipment staging in areas that will 
create the greatest distance between construction-related 


During each 
construction phase 
or any ground-
breaking activity 


Planning and Public 
Works Departments 


 







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 
noise/vibration sources and sensitive receptors nearest the 
project site during all project construction. 


5. Jackhammers, pneumatic equipment, and all other portable 
stationary noise sources shall be shielded, and noise shall be 
directed away from sensitive receptors. 


6. The contractor shall limit the use of heavy equipment or vibratory 
rollers and soil compressors within 25 feet of existing structures 
to the greatest degree possible. 


Transportation/Traffic 


33.  TRA-1 Traffic Signal. The project applicant shall install a traffic 
signal at Monte Vista Drive / Project North Access ‐#6 (on “New” 
Street). The applicant shall also ensure that, at project buildout, all 
traffic signals within the study area function as a coordinated system. 


Prior to Occupancy 
Permits 


Planning and Public 
Works Departments 


 


Tribal Cultural Resources 


34.  Refer to mitigation measures CUL-1 through CUL-5 and CUL-7 for 
implementation of applicable mitigation measures related to tribal 
cultural resources. 


CUL-1 through 
CUL-5 and CUL-7 


Planning and Public 
Works Departments 


 


Prior to Issuance of Grading Permits 


35.  Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, the Applicant shall submit a 
haul permit for any import of material to the site or export of material 
off-site for review and approval by the City Engineer and Planning 
Director. The request for a haul permit shall include a haul route plan 
addressing the limitations of haul hours, number of loads per day and 
the posting of traffic control personnel at all approved entrances/exits 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Planning and Public 
Works Departments 


 







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 
onto public roads. This haul permit shall be in place prior to the 
issuance of the grading permit and the mobilization of equipment on 
the project site.  If the proposed material source or disposal site does 
not have an approved environmental assessment, a grading 
environmental assessment shall be submitted for review and approval 
by the Planning Director prior to the issuance of the haul permit. 


36.  Prior to the issuance of a grading permit for the single family 
residential portion of the project, the Applicant shall submit two (2) 
sets of final/detailed landscape and irrigation plans prepared by a 
registered landscape architect to the Planning Director and City’s 
Landscape Architect for review and approval.   


Prior to Issuance of 
Grading Permits 


Planning Department 


 


37.  Prior to the issuance of a grading permit for the business park 
development portion of the project, the Applicant shall submit two (2) 
sets of final/detailed landscape and irrigation plans prepared by a 
registered landscape architect to the Planning Director and City’s 
Landscape Architect for review and approval.   


Prior to Issuance of 
Grading Permits 


Planning Department 


 


38.  The following special landscape requirements/conditions shall be 
applied to the landscape and irrigation plans required under Planning 
Condition No. 34 & 35 above: 


a) Provide separate slope planting design and plant palette from 
non-slope areas. Use various spreading groundcovers on 
slopes to provide 100% coverage and slope erosion control 
within 1 year. 


b) Provide a Basin landscape design to show a list/palette of 
shrubs that go in the basin area slopes and bottom if 
applicable. 


Prior to Issuance of 
Grading Permits 


Planning Department 


 







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 
c) Tubular Steel Fencing shall be provided as designed and 


shown on the approved plans. 


d) Provide enhanced paving area with pavers or stamped color 
concrete at project entries.   


e) Provide accent trees at project interior corners, corridors and 
end of streets/cul-de-sacs per the approved conceptual 
landscape plans. 


f) The proposed picnic shelter, pool area, tot-lot/basketball court 
area and dog park shall be designed to be consistent with the 
approved plans. 


g) Vertical/screening type trees at end of buildings shall be 
designed to be consistent with the approved plans. 


h) Provide vertical theme trees and or Date Palms at pool area, 
(18’BTH Min.) 


i) All site amenities, benches, tot-lots, trash receptacles, etc., shall 
be designed to be consistent with the approved plans. 


j) Accent trees 36”-box and 48”-box shall be provided at end of 
streets, corners, etc., per the approved plans.  


Prior to Issuance of Building Permits 


39.  Prior to issuance of building permits for Plot Plan No. 18-0034, the 
Applicant shall submit a detailed/final photometric analysis for review 
and approval by the Planning and Building departments.  The 
proposed development approved by the City Council shall comply with 
the standards and requirements of the City’s Light Pollution Ordinance 
in accordance with Chapter 8.64 of the Wildomar Municipal Code.  


Prior to Issuance of 
Building Permits 


Planning & Building 
Departments 


 







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


40.  Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the Applicant shall prepare a 
comprehensive sign program for the project for review and approval 
by the Planning Director.  The sign program shall be consistent with all 
applicable provisions of Chapter 17.252 (Sign Regulations) of the 
Wildomar Municipal Code.  


Prior to Issuance of 
Building Permits 


Planning Department  


Prior to Issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy 


41.  Prior to the issuance of occupancy permits, all required landscape 
planting and irrigation shall be inspected, and installed consistent with 
the approved construction plans and shall be in a condition acceptable 
to the Planning Director, or his designee.  All plants shall be healthy 
and free of weeds, disease, or pests.  The irrigation system shall be 
properly constructed and in good working order which may be verified 
via an irrigation audit. . 


Prior to the 
Issuance of 


Occupancy Permits 
Planning Department 


 


42.  Prior to the issuance of occupancy permits, the following conditions 
shall be satisfied: 


• Performance securities, in the amount determined by the City 
Landscape Architect and Planning Director, shall be provided to 
guarantee the adequate maintenance of the landscaping materials 
and irrigation system in accordance with the approved plans for a 
period of one (1) year from the date of final clearance of the 
installed landscaping by the City.  Acceptable forms of security 
shall be limited to cash deposit, cash bonds, or irrevocable letters 
of credit.  The performance securities shall be released one (1) 
year after final clearance of the installed landscaping by the City, 
upon written request by the owner, if the landscaping has been 
adequately maintained in accordance with the approved 


Prior to the 
Issuance of 


Occupancy Permits 
Planning Department  







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 
landscape plans.  A deposit to cover re-inspection of the 
landscape, at the current City rate shall be posted with the 
Planning Department prior to re-inspection for maintenance bond 
release. 


• The project landscape contractor shall provide the City with the 
Landscape Installation Certification of Completion stating that the 
landscaping was installed per the approved plans.  The City will 
review the Certificate and conduct inspections to ensure that the 
landscape installation is in compliance with the approved 
landscape plans. 


43.  In accordance with Chapter 17.92.040.D of the WMC, the applicant 
shall provide a decorative block wall along the south and east property 
lines of the business park as these property lines abut residential 
zoned properties.  These wall shall be reflected on the construction 
drawings as part of the building plan check process. 


Prior to Occupancy 
Permits 


Planning and Building 
Departments 


 


44.  Prior to the Issuance of Occupancy Permits for the Hotel proposed on 
Lot 82 of Tentative Tract Map No. 37476, the Applicant shall install a 
traffic signal at the intersection of Bundy Canyon Road and Monte 
Vista Drive. (added by City Council on 2/13/19) 


Prior to Occupancy 
Permits 


Planning and Public 
Works Departments 


 


PUBLIC WORKS/ENGINEERING/BUILDING DEPARTMENT CONDITIONS 


General Requirements/Conditions 


1.  The project shall comply with all conditions of approval for Tentative 
Tract Map No. 37476 to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. On-Going Public Works Dept. 


 







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


2.  The project shall comply with all mitigation measures identified in the 
approved Traffic Impact Analysis to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer. 


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 


3.  The Developer shall obtain City approval for any modifications or 
revisions to the approval of this project.  Deviations not identified on 
the plans may not be approved by the City, potentially resulting in the 
need for the project to be redesigned.  Amended entitlement approvals 
may be necessary as a result. 


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 


4.  Should Developer elect to develop this project in phases, appropriate 
phasing plans shall be submitted for review and approval by the City 
Engineer and Community Development Director. 


On-Going 


Public Works Dept. 


Planning Dept. 


 


5.  The project site shall accommodate for construction of future drainage 
Line “C” by Riverside County Flood Control and Water Conservation 
District (RCFC&WCD) to the satisfaction of the City Engineer and 
RCFC&WCD.  Developer shall coordinate final engineering design 
with RCFC&WCD prior to project plan submittal to the City for plan 
checking. 


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 


6.  No grading shall be performed without the prior issuance of a grading 
permit by the City. Prior to Issuance of 


Grading 
Permits/On-Going 


Public Works Dept. 
 


7.  Prior to issuance of any permits, the Developer shall provide a current 
Title Report and show all easements, rights-of-way, and 
encumbrances to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director.  If the 


Prior to Issuance of 
Public Works Dept.  







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 
Developer is different than the owner identified in the Title Report then 
a notarized letter authorizing the Developer to improve the property 
shall be provided. 


any permits. 
Building Dept. 


8.  All grading shall conform to the California Building Code, Ordinance 
457, and all other relevant laws, rules, and regulations governing 
grading in the City of Wildomar.  The Developer shall obtain a grading 
permit from the Building Department for any grading which includes 50 
or more cubic yards. 


On-Going 
Public Works Dept. 


Building Dept. 


 


9.  All necessary measures to control dust shall be implemented by the 
Developer during grading to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. A 
PM10 plan may be required at the time a grading permit is issued. 


Prior to Issuance of 
Grading 


Permits/On-Going 


Public Works Dept. 
 


10.  Graded slopes shall be limited to a maximum steepness ratio of 2:1 
(horizontal to vertical) unless otherwise approved by the City 
Engineer.  Contour grade to mimic natural slopes in the area. 


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 


11.  Grading in excess of 199 cubic yards will require a grading agreement 
and a performance security to be posted with the City.  Grading 
Agreements require City Council Approval unless authority is 
delegated to the City Engineer. 


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 


12.  The Developer/owner or contractor shall apply for an Encroachment 
Permit for work performed within the public right of way.  Compliance 
with current environmental regulations applies and additional studies 
and/or permits may be required. 


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


13.  Storm water and non-storm water discharges from the project site 
shall be mitigated in conformance with the applicable Regional Water 
Quality Control Board permit(s) and/or site specific SWPPP prior to 
entering into the MS4s. 


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 


14.  For commercial/industrial projects, the Developer shall submit a 
Business Registration application to the city for approval.  The 
Business Registration shall indicate that this business in required to 
submit a Storm water Compliance Deposit to the City for ongoing 
Commercial/Industrial Inspection requirements of the City’s MS4 
permit (NPDES Inspection).  The requirement for storm water 
compliance deposits and NPDES inspections are recurring for the 
duration of the conditional use permit.  The Developer/applicant shall 
also provide to the Planning Department, as part of the Business’ 
Statement of Operations, a copy of the educational materials, 
business’ handbook, training or similar documents describing the 
business’ best management practices for storm water pollution 
prevention.  


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 


15.  The Developer shall provide all tenants/employees/homeowners with 
educational materials regarding Best Management Practices for 
Stormwater Pollution Prevention.  Educational materials are available 
on the Riverside County Flood Control and Water Conservation 
District’s website.   


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 


16.  The commercial portion of the project shall include recycling facilities 
per current California State Standards and to the satisfaction of the 
City Engineer. 


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


17.  The Developer shall dedicate, design and construct all improvements 
in accordance the City of Wildomar Road Improvement Standards & 
Specification, Improvement Plan Check Policies and Guidelines, as 
further conditioned herein and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 


18.  The Developer shall be responsible for all costs associated with off-
site right-of-way acquisition, including any costs associated with the 
eminent domain process, if necessary. 


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 


19.  Erosion control – landscape plans, required for manufactured slopes 
greater than 3 feet in vertical height, are to be signed by a registered 
landscape architect and bonded.  The soils engineer shall review the 
erosion control plans for conformance with the Geotechnical Report’s 
Findings and Recommendations.  Erosion control shall be placed 
within 30 days of meeting final grades to minimize erosion and to 
ensure slope coverage prior to the rainy season.  The Developer shall 
plant & irrigate all manufactured slopes steeper than a 4:1 (horizontal 
to vertical) ratio and 3 feet or greater in vertical height with soil 
stabilizers and ground cover; slopes 15 feet or greater in vertical 
height shall be planted with additional shrubs or trees or as approved 
by the City Engineer and City Planner. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading 


Permit/On-Going 


Public Works Dept. 


Planning Dept. 


 


20.  Should this project lie within any assessment/benefit district, the 
project proponent shall, prior to acceptance of improvements, make 
application for and pay for their reapportionment of the assessments 
or pay the unit fees in the benefit district unless said fees are 
otherwise deferred or covered under the City’s Community Facility 
District (CFD Services). 


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


21.  The Developer shall annex into the City’s Community Facility District 
(CFD Services) and/or Landscape Lighting & Maintenance District and 
pay associated costs for annexation.  Should this project lie within any 
assessment/benefit district that duplicates the services to be covered 
under CFD Services then the Developer shall de-annex from said 
assessment/benefit district. 


Prior to Map 
Recordation 


Public Works Dept. 
 


22.  The Developer shall design and construct all driveways in accordance 
with the City of Wildomar Improvement Standards. On-Going Public Works Dept. 


 


23.  The improvement plans for the required public improvements must be 
prepared and shall be based upon a design profile extending a 
minimum of 300 feet beyond the project boundaries at a grade and 
alignment as approved by the City Engineer. 


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 


24.  Improvement Plans for underground utilities (e.g., Water, sewer, 
electrical, telecommunications, etc.) to be placed in public right of way 
or easement that will be owned and maintained by other entities shall 
be reviewed by the City.  The City shall have a place on the Title 
Sheet to accept the plans with a statement “The city’s acceptance is 
limited to the placement of utilities relative to public infrastructure 
clearances, uses and future plans within the right of way.”  The plans 
shall be attached to a city Encroachment Permit. 


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 


25.  All flood control plans to be reviewed by the City or the Riverside 
County Flood Control District (RCFCD) shall be submitted through the 
City of Wildomar, unless otherwise directed by the City Engineer.  For 
projects requiring RCFCD review the Developer shall pay the 
appropriate fees to RCFCD. 


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


26.  The storm drain proposed to be constructed in Monte Vista Drive shall 
require an encroachment permit from the City.  Plans shall be 
submitted for review and approval prior to issuance of the permit. 


Prior to Issuance of 
Encroachment 


Permits 


Public Works Dept. 
 


27.  The Developer shall submit to the City Engineer, traffic control plans 
for construction located in a public right of way to ensure the continued 
flow of traffic during construction.  


Prior to Issuance of 
Encroachment 


Permits 


Public Works Dept. 
 


28.  Cross lot drainage is undesirable and will not be allowed without 
justification and approval by the City Engineer. On-going Public Works Dept. 


 


Prior to the Issuance of Grading Permits 


29.  Prior to issuance of a grading permit, the Developer shall submit a 
grading and erosion control plan for review and approval by the City 
Engineer.   


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Public Works Dept.  


30.  Prior to issuance of a grading permit, the Developer shall submit 
drainage plans and plans for bio-basins and retention basins for 
review and approval by the City Engineer.   


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Public Works Dept.  


31.  The Developer shall submit a geotechnical soils report to the City 
Engineer for review and approval prior to issuance of grading permit.  
The findings and recommendations shall reflect current conditions and 
the report shall be no older than one (1) year.  All grading shall be in 
conformance with the recommendations of the geotechnical/soils 
reports as approved by City of Wildomar. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Public Works Dept.  







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


32.  Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, it shall be the sole 
responsibility of the applicant to obtain any and all easements and/or 
permissions necessary to perform the grading required for the project. 
A notarized letter of permission from all affected property owners or 
easement holders, or encroachment permit, is required for all off-site 
grading. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Public Works Dept.  


33.  The project specific SWPPP and an Erosion/Sediment Control plan 
shall be approved by the City Engineer. Prior to Issuance of 


a Grading Permit 
Public Works Dept.  


34.  The Developer shall provide the Engineering Department evidence of 
compliance with the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES); obtain a construction permit from the State Water Resource 
Control Board (SWRRCB); and, reference the WDID number on the 
improvement/grading plans. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Public Works Dept.  


35.  The Developer’s contractor is required to submit for a haul route 
permit for the hauling of material to and from the project site.  Said 
permit will include limitations of haul hours, number of loads per day 
and the posting of traffic control personnel at all approved 
entrances/exits onto public roads.  Hauled material shall be to/from an 
environmentally approved site. 


 


Prior to Issuance of 
Grading 


Permits/On-Going 


Public Works Dept.  


36.  When import/export of earthwork is required, Developer shall obtain 
approval for the import/export location from the City of Wildomar. 
Additionally, if either location was not previously approved by an 
Environmental Assessment, a Grading Environmental Assessment 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Public Works Dept.  







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 
shall be submitted to the Planning Director for review and comment 
and to the City Engineer for approval, prior to issuing a grading permit. 


37.  A licensed engineer shall prepare and submit a Water Quality 
Management Plan (WQMP) Applicability Checklist; determine if a WQMP 
is applicable for this project; and, sign and stamp the WQMP checklist 
with their license seal. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Public Works Dept.  


38.  Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, the applicant shall submit a 
Final Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP), in conformance with 
the requirements of the San Diego and/or Santa Ana Regional Water 
Quality Control Board.  Developer shall confirm the watershed 
requirements relative to their project location shall be approved by the 
City Engineer prior to issuance of a grading permit.  All storm water 
quality treatment devices shall be located outside of the ultimate public 
right of way.  The Developer shall design the storm water quality 
treatment devices to accommodate all project runoff, ensuring post-
construction flows and volumes do not exceed pre-construction levels, in 
accordance with City of Wildomar’s Hydrology Manual, Storm water 
Quality Best Management Practice Design Handbook, Improvement 
Standards, and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.  These BMP’s 
shall be consistent with the Final WQMP and installed and maintained to 
the satisfaction of the City Engineer.  The project shall use the following 
hydromodification criteria for the project site: “The runoff flow rate, 
volume, velocity, and duration for the post development condition of the 
Priority Development Project do not exceed the pre-development (i.e. 
naturally occurring) condition for the 2-year, 24 hour and 10-year, 24-
hour rainfall events.  This condition must be substantiated by hydrologic 
modelling acceptable to City of Wildomar.” 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Public Works Dept.  







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


39.  This project is within a priority land use as defined by California 
Regional Water Quality Control Board San Diego Region Order No. 
R9-2017-0077 (Trash Amendments) and will be required to install, 
operate, and maintain full trash capture systems for all storm drains 
within or adjacent to the project. The Final WQMP shall include the 
design, specifications, and operation/maintenance procedures of the 
trash capture systems. The trash capture systems must comply with 
the Trash Amendments. Trash capture systems that will require City 
maintenance must receive approval from the City Engineer for their 
use, prior to acceptance of the Final WQMP, and shall be included in 
the Community Facilities District (CFD) maintenance costs. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Public Works Dept.  


40.  If the project location is within the Santa Ana River Watershed:  Prior to 
the issuance of a grading permit, the Developer is to provide the 
appropriate documentation that will allow this project a waiver for 
mitigation volume related to the Lake Elsinore sub watershed of the 
Santa Ana Watershed.  Please note the City is not a permittee in the 
MS4 permit for the Santa Ana River Watershed (Lake Elsinore) and is 
governed only by the MS4 permit for the Santa Margarita Watershed, 
therefore the Developer needs to provide evidence that this waiver 
has been approved by the Santa Ana Regional Water Quality Control 
Board.  Otherwise volume has to be addressed. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Public Works Dept.  


41.  A Grading Agreement and a Storm Water Management Facilities 
Agreement shall be approved by the City Engineer and/or City Council. Prior to Issuance of 


a Grading Permit 
Public Works Dept.  







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


42.  The Developer shall prepare and submit a comprehensive drainage 
study and plan that includes, but is not limited to: definition with 
mapping of the existing watersheds; a detailed pre- and post-project 
hydrologic and hydraulic analysis of the project and project impacts; 
definition of the local controlling 100-year frequency water levels 
existing and with project; the proposed method of flow conveyance to 
mitigate the potential project impacts with adequate supporting 
calculations; any proposed improvements to mitigate the impacts of 
increased runoff from the project and any change in runoff; including 
quality, quantity, volume, and duration in accordance with City of 
Wildomar’s Hydrology Manual, Improvement Standards, and to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer.  Specifically, the study will: 


a. Analyze the detention basin drainage area for a project using the 
Rational Method 100-year storm event for the pre-project and 
post-project. 


b. Analyze 4 hydrographs for the detention basin drainage area for 
a project using the Unit Hydrograph 100-year storm event for the 
1-hour, 3-hour, 6-hour, and 24-hour storm durations for post-
project condition. 


c. Using the Unit Hydrographs determine which duration provides 
the highest flow rate. Adjust parameters such as lag time, flow 
line roughness coefficient or other parameters to calibrate Unit 
Hydrograph model to provide results similar to the Rational 
Method. 


Using the calibrated Unit Hydrograph for the detention basin drainage 
area perform basin routing analysis to demonstrate that the outflow is 
less than the pre-project Rational Method flow rate. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Public Works Dept.  







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


43.  All retaining walls shall require a separate permit from the Building 
Department.  Retaining Wall plans shall be approved concurrent with 
Grading Plan approval.  The retaining wall calculations shall address 
earth and hydrostatic loads associated with adjacent water basins 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading or 


Building Permit 


Public Works Dept. 
and Building Dept. 


 


Prior to Issuance of Building Permits 


44.  Prior to the issuance of the first building permit, the final map shall be 
recorded, rough grading, precise grading, water quality treatment, and 
improvement plans shall be approved by the City Engineer and public 
improvements shall be constructed or secured by the applicant. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 


Public Works Dept. 
 


45.  Prior to the issuance of any building permit, applicant shall obtain a 
grading permit and/or approval to construct from the City Engineer. Prior to Issuance of 


a Building Permit 


Building Dept. 


Public Works Dept. 


 


46.  Water and sewer plans shall be approved by Elsinore Valley Municipal 
Water District (EVMWD) and City Engineer prior to issuance of a 
building permit.  All water and sewer plans to be reviewed by 
(EVMWD) shall be submitted to EVMWD.  The City of Wildomar shall 
be copied on the transmittal with a copy of the improvement plans and 
all correspondence.  Developer shall pay the appropriate plan review 
fees to EVMWD.  Estimate of Costs for water and sewer facilities shall 
be approved by EVMWD and the City.   


Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 


Public Works Dept. 
 


47.  Fire service improvement plans shall be approved by Riverside 
County Fire Department (RCFD) prior to issuance of all applicable 
building permits.  The City of Wildomar shall be copied on all FCFD 
transmittals with a copy of the improvement plans and all 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 


Building Dept. 


Fire Dept. 


 







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 
correspondence.  Developer shall pay the appropriate plan review 
fees to RCFD.  Estimate of Costs for fire service facilities shall be 
approved by RCFD and the City. 


48.  Prior to issuance of the 1st building permit, Developer shall enter into a 
maintenance agreement with the City to identify maintenance 
responsibilities for the variety of drainage facilities proposed for this 
development.  This agreement shall include, but not be limited to: 1) 
defining responsible parties for maintenance of underground and 
above ground retention basins, bio-basins, storm drain pipes and 
appurtenances, 2) shall establish a mechanism for future takeover of 
maintenance responsibilities of retention and bio-basins by City/CFD if 
deemed necessary, 3) establish access rights should City/CFD take 
over maintenance in future, 4) include manufacturers specification and 
maintenance instructions for the perpetual maintenance of said 
basins. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 


Public Works Dept. 
 


49.  The Developer shall submit landscaping and irrigation plans to the 
Planning Department for approval for landscaping within the public 
right-of-way. These plans shall include water usage calculations, 
estimate of irrigation and the location of all existing trees that will 
remain.   


Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 


Public Works Dept. 


Planning Dept. 


 


50.  Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall 
demonstrate compliance with the California Title 24. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 


Building Dept.  


51.  The Developer shall demonstrate that all development related fees, 
impact fees, and mitigation fees have been satisfactorily paid. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 


Building Dept. 
 







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


52.  The Developer shall pay the appropriate impact mitigation fee to the 
Riverside County Flood Control and Water Conservation District and 
provide the City receipt of payment. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 


Building Dept. 
 


53.  The Developer shall pay all necessary impact and mitigation fees 
required.  These fees include, but are not limited to, fees associated 
with Transportation Uniform Mitigation Fee (TUMF), Quimby (parkland 
in-lieu) Fee, and City Development Impact Fees. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit or 


Certificate of 
Occupancy 


Building Dept. 
 


Prior to Building Occupancy, Final Inspection or Surety Release 


54.  Prior to occupancy release, all public and private improvements 
required by the project conditions of approval and as shown on the 
approved project improvement plans, including onsite and offsite 
public street improvements, water, sewer and utility improvements, 
flood control improvements and onsite grading, storm water quality 
treatment improvements and landscaping, shall be 
constructed/installed and approved 


Prior to Occupancy 
Release 


Public Works Dept. 
 


55.  Prior to recordation of the final map, all above-ground utilities, 
including but not limited to communication and power that are 33KV in 
size or less, shall be undergrounded (or securities posted) by the 
Developer in accordance with City of Wildomar Municipal Code 
Section 16.40.010 requirements. The undergrounding of utilities shall 
be reflected on the project improvement plans. (amended by City 
Council on 2/13/19) 


Prior to Occupancy 
Release 


Public Works Dept. 
 







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


  


56.  Prior to occupancy release, flood control facilities shall be constructed 
per the approved plans in accordance with applicable standards. All 
required maintenance agreements shall be executed and 
easements/right of way conveyances recorded to the satisfaction of 
the governing agency and the City Engineer. 


Prior to Occupancy 
Release 


Public Works Dept. 
 


57.  The project Developer shall be required to pay its fair share cost of the 
traffic signal mitigation at the offsite intersection of Monte Vista Drive 
and Baxter Road as required in the approved Traffic Impact Analysis. 


Prior to Occupancy 
Release 


Public Works Dept. 


Building Dept. 


 


58.  The Developer shall install light emitting diode (LED) streetlights in 
accordance with the City of Wildomar Road Improvement Standards & 
Specification, Improvement Plan Check Policies and Guidelines, City 
Ordinances and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 


Prior to Occupancy 
Release 


Public Works Dept. 
 


59.  The Developer shall install all street name signs at intersections within 
or adjacent to the project, and/or replace street name signs in 
accordance with the City of Wildomar Standard Details and to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer. 


Prior to Occupancy 
Release 


Public Works Dept. 
 


60.  Prior to occupancy release, Developer shall construct the storm water 
quality treatment devices to accommodate all project runoff from in 
accordance with the approved WQMP to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer.  All storm water quality treatment devices shall be 
constructed outside of the ultimate public right of way.  Applicant shall 
provide for maintenance responsibilities in the project’s CC&R’s or 
execute a maintenance agreement with the City. 


Prior to Occupancy 
Release 


Public Works Dept. 
 







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


61.  The Developer shall provide letters addressed to the City of Wildomar 
from all applicable outside agencies (e.g., RCFCD, EVMWD, RCFD, 
Caltrans, etc.) involved in the approval and acceptance of 
improvements. 


Prior to Occupancy 
Release 


Public Works Dept. 


Building Dept. 


 


62.  The Developer shall annex into all applicable Maintenance Districts, 
Community Service Areas and Landscaping Maintenance District for 
landscaping, lighting, drainage and maintenance to the satisfaction of 
the City Engineer or otherwise form a District where one is not 
currently in place. 


Prior to Occupancy 
Release 


Public Works & 
Building Depts. 


 


63.  Prior to occupancy or surety release, permanent survey monuments 
shall be set at project boundaries, lot boundaries, the intersection of 
street centerlines, beginning and end of curves in centerlines, and at 
other locations designated on the final map.  All monuments shall be 
placed in accordance with standard survey practices. 


Prior to Occupancy 
Release 


Public Works Dept. 
 


64.  The applicant shall file a letter with the SWRCB or submit information 
to the SMART System stating that the construction activity is 
complete. A copy of this letter shall be submitted to the City prior to 
occupancy or surety release. 


Prior to Occupancy 
Release 


Public Works Dept. 
 


65.  Prior to occupancy release, Developer shall supply City and Property 
Owner’s/Home Owner’s Association copies of manufacturer’s 
specifications and maintenance instructions for the perpetual 
maintenance of the bio-basins, underground Storm Tech basins and 
above ground basins and appurtenances.   


Prior to Occupancy 
Release 


Public Works Dept. 
 







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


66.  Prior to occupancy release, the applicant shall post agency required 
no dumping messages on all catch basins and storm drain inlet 
facilities as required by the City Engineer.   


Prior to Occupancy 
Release 


Public Works Dept. 
 


RIVERSIDE COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT 


General Conditions 


1.  Fire Hydrants and Fire Flow: Provide or show there exist fire 
hydrant(s) capable of delivering required fire flow per the California 
Fire Code, Riverside County Fire Department within 600 feet to all 
portions of the proposed structures. The Riverside County Fire 
Department has a Technical Policy allowing this distance to increase 
based upon an upgraded sprinkler system in the home. Reference 
2016 California Fire Code (CFC) Section 507.5.1. 


On-Going Fire Department 


 


2.  Water Plans: If fire hydrants are required to be installed, 
applicant/developer shall furnish two copies of the water system fire 
hydrant plans to Fire Department for review and approval prior to 
building permit issuance.  Plans shall be signed by a registered civil 
engineer, and shall confirm hydrant type, location, spacing, and 
minimum fire flow.  Once plans are signed and approved by the local 
water authority, the originals shall be presented to the Fire Department 
for review and approval. Ref. CFC 105.4.1. 


On-Going Fire Department 
 


3.  Water system prior to combustibles on site: No combustible material 
shall be brought on site until the water system has been inspected and 
approved by the Riverside County Fire Department. 


On-Going Fire Department 


 







ATTACHMENT D – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Plot Plan No. 18-0034 (Business Park) 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


 
END 


4.  Blue Dot Reflectors: Blue retro-reflective pavement markers shall be 
installed to indicate the location of fire hydrants. On-Going Fire Department 


 


5.  Fire Department Access: Fire Department apparatus access shall be 
provided to within 150 feet of all portions of all buildings.  Driveway 
loops, fire apparatus access lanes and entrance curb radius should be 
designed to adequately allow access of emergency fire vehicles.  The 
Applicant shall include in the building plans the required fire lanes and 
include the appropriate lane printing and/or signs. 


On-Going Fire Department 


 


6.  Building Address Numbers: Display street numbers in a prominent 
location on the address side of buildings.  Numbers shall be legible, of 
a contrasting color, and adequately illuminated to be visible from street 
at all hours. 


On-Going Fire Department 


 


7.  Address: The address shall be posted per Riverside County Fire 
Department standards and will be clearly visible from public roadway. 
Ref. CFC 505.1 as amended by the City of Wildomar and the County 
of Riverside Fire Prevention Standard #07-01 Premises Identification. 


On-Going Fire Department 


 


8.  Knox Rapid Entry System: Gates shall be equipped with a Knox Rapid 
Entry System.  Contact the Riverside County Fire Department for 
further information. 


On-Going Fire Department 


 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


PLANNING DEPARTMENT CONDITIONS 


Standard Conditions 


1.  In compliance with Chapter 15094 of the CEQA Guidelines, a Notice 
of Determination (NOD) shall be filed with the Riverside County Clerk 
within five (5) working days of project approval by the City Council. 
The notice shall include the required California Department of Fish 
and Wildlife (Fish and Game Code Chapter 711.4.d.3) fee, and the 
Riverside County Clerk administrative fee (paid by the Applicant) in 
the amount of $2,404.75. Failure to pay the required fee will result in 
the project being deemed null and void (California Fish and Game 
Code Chapter 711.4(c)). The above fee shall be provided to the 
Planning Department no later than February 14, 2019 and is broken 
down as follows: 


a. California Department of Fish and Wildlife =  $2,354.75 


b. Riverside County Clerk Administrative Fee = $50.00 


February 14, 2019 Planning Department 


 


 


2.  The Applicant’s signature below, which shall be submitted to the 
Planning Department on or before February 27, 2019, hereby verifies 
the acceptance of the “Council Adopted Conditions of Approval” 
contained within this conditions of approval matrix. 


 


 


 


Applicant Signature     Date 


February 27, 2019 Planning Department 
 


  







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


3.  The Applicant shall indemnify, protect, defend, and hold harmless, the 
City, and/or any of its officials, officers, employees, agents, 
departments, agencies, and instrumentalities thereof, from any and all 
claims, demands, law suits, writs of mandamus, and other actions and 
proceedings (whether legal, equitable, declaratory, administrative or 
adjudicatory in nature), and alternative dispute resolutions procedures 
(including, but not limited to arbitrations, mediations, and other such 
procedures), (collectively “Actions”), brought against the City, and/or 
any of its officials, officers, employees, agents, departments, 
agencies, and instrumentalities thereof, that challenge, attack, or seek 
to modify, set aside, void, or annul, the any action of, or any permit or 
approval issued by, the City and/or any of its officials, officers, 
employees, agents, departments, agencies, and instrumentalities 
thereof (including actions approved by the voters of the City), for or 
concerning the project, whether such Actions are brought under the 
California Environmental Quality Act, the Planning and Zoning Law, 
the Subdivision Map Act, Code of Civil Procedure Chapter 1085 or 
1094.5, or any other state, federal, or local statute, law, ordinance, 
rule, regulation, or any decision of a court of competent jurisdiction. 
City shall promptly notify the Applicant of any Action brought and 
request that Applicant defend the City. It is expressly agreed that 
Applicant may select legal counsel providing the Applicant’s defense 
and the City shall have the right to approve separate legal counsel 
providing the City’s defense. The Applicant shall reimburse City for 
any attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses directly and necessarily 
incurred by the City in the course of the defense. Applicant agrees that 
City will forward monthly invoices to Applicant for attorneys’ fees, 
costs and expenses it has incurred related to its defense of any Action 


Ongoing Planning Department 
 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 
and Applicant agrees to timely payment within thirty (30) days of 
receipt of the invoice.  Within fourteen (14) days of an Action being 
filed, Applicant agrees to post adequate security or a cash deposit 
with City in an amount to cover the City’s estimated attorneys’ fees, 
costs and expenses incurred by City in the course of the defense in 
order to ensure timely payment of the City’s invoices. The amount of 
the security or cash deposit shall be determined by the City. City shall 
cooperate with Applicant in the defense of any Action.  


4.  Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034 shall not 
become effective until 30 days after the second reading of the 
Ordinance approving Change of Zone No. 18-0034 by the City 
Council.  No grading or building permits shall be issued until after the 
effective date of the change of zone.  


April 13, 2019 Planning Department 
 


5.  Within 30 days after approval of the second reading of the Ordinance 
approving Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034 by 
the City Council, the Applicant shall pay all applicable 
outstanding/negative deposit account balances (#18-0034).  Failure to 
pay the outstanding balance by the due date may result in delays in 
the processing building permits. 


May 13, 2019 
Planning Department 


 


6.  Approval of  Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034 
shall expire on February 13, 2022 (3 years after approval by the City 
Council) if grading and/or building permits have not been issued and 
substantial construction work has not commenced on the project site.  
For the purposes of this condition, the term “commenced” means 
either the beginning of substantial construction of facilities for the use 
that is authorized, which construction must thereafter be pursued 


February 13, 2022 Planning Department 
 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 
diligently to completion, or the actual occupancy of existing buildings 
or land under the terms of the authorized use.  The Applicant may 
submit a request for a one-year Extension of Time (EOT) for review 
and approval of the Planning Director in accordance with Chapter 
17.216.070 of the Wildomar Municipal Code.  Said extension of time 
application and fee must be submitted prior to the expiration date. If a 
request for an EOT has not been submitted by this deadline, then  
Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034shall 
automatically become null and void.  


7.  In accordance with Chapter 66020.d.1 of the Government Code, the 
Applicant has 90 days from project approval to file a protest of the 
imposition of fees, dedications, reservations, or other exactions being 
imposed on this project.  Notice is hereby given to the Applicant that 
the 90-day appeal period begins with the tentative approval date by 
City Council on February 13, 2019.  


May 13, 2019 Planning Department 
 


8.  Applicant hereby understands and agrees that failure to comply with 
all Conditions of Approval may result in the City Council taking action 
resulting in a modification to the Conditions of Approval and/or 
suspension or revocation of the plot plan. 


On-Going Planning Department 


 


9.  The project site shall be developed in accordance with the approved 
development plans for Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 
18-0034 as approved by the City Council on February 13, 2019. The 
Applicant may request a modification/revision to the approved project, 
if needed, in accordance with Chapter 17.228 of the Wildomar 
Municipal Code. 


Ongoing Planning Department 
 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


10.  The proposed Project shall comply with existing SCAQMD rules for 
the reduction of fugitive dust emissions in accordance with SCAQMD 
Rule 403. 


On-Going Planning Department 
 


11.  Erosion control-landscape plans, required for manufactured slopes 
greater than 3 feet in vertical height, are to be signed by a registered 
landscape architect and bonded.  Temporary erosion controls shall 
occur immediately upon establishing planting final grades to minimize 
erosion and to ensure slope coverage prior to the rainy season.  Prior 
to occupancy, the Applicant shall plant and irrigate all manufactured 
slopes steeper than a 4:1 (horizontal to vertical) ratio and 3 feet or 
greater in vertical height with grass or ground cover; slopes 15 feet or 
greater in vertical height shall be planted with additional shrubs or 
trees or as approved by the City Engineer. 


On-Going Planning Department 
 


12.  If human remains are encountered during grading activities, State 
Health and Safety Code Chapter 7050.5 states that no further 
disturbance shall occur until the Riverside County Coroner has made 
the necessary findings as to origin. Further, pursuant to Public 
Resource Code Chapter 5097.98(b) remains shall be left in place and 
free from disturbance until a final decision as to the treatment and 
disposition has been made.  If the Riverside County Coroner 
determines the remains to be Native American, the Native American 
Heritage Commission shall be contacted within a reasonable 
timeframe. Subsequently, the Native American Heritage Commission 
shall identify the "most likely descendant."  The most likely 
descendant shall then make recommendations and engage in 
consultation concerning the treatment of the remains as provided in 
Public Resources Code Chapter 5097.98. 


On-Going Planning & 
Engineering Depts. 


 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


13.  The Applicant is prohibited from using any sort of blasting 
device/activity during all grading and/or construction operations. On-Going Planning Department  


14.  The proposed development approved by the City Council shall comply 
with the standards and requirements of the City’s Light Pollution 
Ordinance in accordance with Chapter 8.64 of the Wildomar Municipal 
Code.   


On-Going Planning Department  


15.  As required by Chapter 8.56 of the WMC, subsequent development on 
the site will need to comply with the County of Riverside, Department 
of Environmental Health, Local Enforcement Agency (LEA) for all 
activities related to potential hazardous materials. 


On-Going Planning Department  


16.  The Applicant shall be required to provide at least one (1) 220 volt 
electric vehicle plug in fixture in each enclosed garage.  This 
information shall be provided on the construction drawings when they 
are submitted to the Building Department.  


On-Going 
Planning & Building 


Departments 
 


17.  The Applicant shall provide EV charging stations, EV parking spaces, 
and bike racks/spaces within the business park development area 
(i.e., Lots 81 – 84 of TTM 374176) in accordance with the current Cal-
Green building code standards and requirements at the time of 
construction drawing submittals. This information shall be reflected on 
the construction drawings submitted to the Building Official prior to the 
issuance of building permits. 


On-Going 
Planning & Building 


Departments 
 


18.  All plot plans which permit the construction of more than one structure 
on a single legally divided parcel shall, in addition to all other 
requirements, be subject to a condition which prohibits the sale of any 
existing or subsequently constructed structures on the parcel until the 


On-Going 
Planning & Building 


Departments 
 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 
parcel is divided and a final map recorded in accordance with Title 16 
(Subdivisions) in such a manner that each building is located on a 
separate legally divided parcel. 


Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) Mitigation Measures 


Biological Resources 


19.  BIO-1 Vegetation clearing/grubbing, ground disturbance (e.g., 
grading, earthmoving, excavation, use of heavy equipment), and 
construction activities that may directly (e.g., grading) or indirectly 
(e.g., noise) affect protected nesting avian species shall be timed to 
avoid the typical avian nesting season (February 15 to August 31 for 
songbirds; January 15 to August 31 for raptors). If such activities are 
scheduled to occur during the nesting season, a qualified biologist 
shall conduct a preconstruction survey for nesting raptors and other 
protected avian species within 500 feet of proposed disturbance 
activities. The preconstruction survey shall be conducted no more 
than 14 days prior to the start of vegetation clearing/grubbing. As 
determined necessary by the biologist, surveys for nesting birds may 
be required to continue during grading/construction to address the 
potential for new arrivals and unique species’ breeding seasons. The 
necessity and timing of these continued surveys shall be determined 
by the biologist in coordination with the City, the Western Riverside 
County Regional Conservation Authority, and participating wildlife 
agencies as needed. 


If raptors or other protected avian nests are identified during the above 
surveys, the qualified biologist shall notify the City, the Western 
Riverside County Regional. Conservation Authority, and participating 


No more than 14 
days prior to any 
vegetation removal 
or ground-
disturbing activities 


City of Wildomar 
Public Works & 
Planning Depts. 


 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 
wildlife agencies, and an appropriate no-disturbance buffer shall be 
imposed (to be determined by the biologist) within which no vegetation 
clearing/grubbing, ground disturbance, and construction activities shall 
take place (generally 500 feet in all directions for raptors; other avian 
species may have species-specific requirements) until the young have 
fledged and are no longer reliant upon the nest or parental care for 
survival, as determined by the biologist. 


20.  BIO-2 Due to the presence of potentially suitable habitat on the 
project site and in adjacent off-site areas, a 30-day preconstruction 
survey for burrowing owl is required pursuant to the MSHCP. If 
burrowing owls are determined present during the 30-day 
preconstruction survey, occupied burrows shall be avoided to the 
greatest extent feasible, following the guidelines in the Staff Report on 
Burrowing Owl Mitigation published by California Department of Fish 
and Wildlife (2012) including, but not limited to, conducting 
preconstruction surveys, avoiding occupied burrows during the nesting 
and non-breeding seasons, implementing a worker awareness 
program, biological monitoring, establishing avoidance buffers, and 
flagging burrows for avoidance with visible markers. If occupied 
burrows cannot be avoided, acceptable methods may be used to 
exclude burrowing owl either temporarily or permanently, pursuant to 
a Burrowing Owl Exclusion Plan that shall be prepared and 
implemented to the approval of the City and the Western Riverside 
County Regional Conservation Authority. 


No more than 14 
days prior to any 
vegetation removal 
or ground-
disturbing activities 


City of Wildomar 
Public Works & 
Planning Depts. 


 


21.  BIO-3 The following construction-related best management practices 
(BMPs) shall be implemented during vegetation clearing/grubbing, 
ground disturbance (e.g., grading, earthmoving, excavation, use of 


Prior to any 
vegetation removal 
or ground-


City of Wildomar 
Public Works & 
Planning Depts. 


 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 
heavy equipment), and construction activities to avoid impacts to 
potentially occurring special-status wildlife species: 


• Prior to vegetation clearing/grubbing, a biological monitor shall 
conduct a preconstruction meeting with the construction crew to 
identify appropriate access route(s) in and out of the construction 
area and to review project boundaries.  Prior to vegetation 
clearing/grubbing, a biological monitor shall inspect the limits of 
protective fencing along the work limits adjacent to on/off-site 
habitats to remain. Following construction, a qualified biologist shall 
ensure temporarily disturbed vegetated areas are returned to pre-
project contours using a local native plant hydroseed mix.  


disturbing activities. 


Cultural Resources 


22.  CUL-1 To address the possibility that historical, archaeological, 
and/or tribal cultural resources (collectively referred to as “cultural 
resources” in these mitigation measures) may be encountered during 
grading or construction, a qualified professional archaeologist shall 
monitor all construction activities that could potentially impact cultural 
resources (e.g., grading, excavation, and/or trenching). The Pechanga 
Band of Luiseño Indians may assign individuals to monitor all grading, 
excavation, and groundbreaking activities as well, and the tribal 
monitors shall be allowed on-site during any construction activities that 
could potentially impact cultural resources. However, monitoring may 
be discontinued as soon the qualified professional and the appropriate 
tribe(s) are satisfied that construction will not disturb cultural 
resources.  


During any ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Planning Department 
and Building and 
Safety Department 


 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


23.  CUL-2 At least 30 days but no more than 60 days prior to the 
issuance of any grading permit, the project archaeologist shall file a 
pre-grading report with the City to document the proposed 
methodology for grading activity observation which will be determined 
in consultation with the tribe(s) that intend to assign tribal monitors 
pursuant to mitigation measure CUL-1. The archaeologist and the 
tribal monitor(s) will have the authority to temporarily halt and redirect 
grading activities in order to evaluate the significance of any cultural 
resources discovered on the project site. 


Thirty days (30) 
prior to any ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


 


City of Wildomar 
Public Works 
Department and 
Planning Department 


 


24.  CUL-3 At least 30 days but no more than 60 days prior to the 
issuance of any grading permit, the project applicant shall contact the 
Pechanga Band of Luiseño Indians with notification of the proposed 
grading and shall enter into a Tribal Cultural Resources Treatment 
and Monitoring Agreement with the tribe. The agreements shall 
include, but not be limited to, outlining provisions and requirements for 
addressing the handling of tribal cultural resources; project grading 
and development scheduling; terms of compensation for tribal 
monitors; treatment and final disposition of any tribal cultural 
resources, including but not limited to sacred sites, burial goods, and 
human remains, discovered on the site; and establishing on-site 
monitoring provisions and/or requirements for professional tribal 
monitors during all ground-disturbing activities. The terms of the 
agreements shall not conflict with any of these mitigation measures. A 
copy of the signed agreement shall be provided to the Planning 
Director and the Building Official prior to the issuance of the first 
grading permit. 


During any ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


 


City of Wildomar 
Public Works 
Department and 
Planning Department 


 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


  


25.  CUL-4 If during grading or construction activities, cultural resources 
are discovered on the project site, work shall be halted immediately 
within 50 feet of the discovery and the resources shall be evaluated by 
the archaeologist and the tribal monitor(s). Any cultural resources that 
are discovered shall be evaluated and a final report prepared by the 
archaeologist. The report shall include a list of the resources 
discovered; documentation of each site/locality; interpretation of the 
resources identified; a determination of whether the resources are 
historical resources, unique or non-unique archeological resources, 
and/or tribal cultural resources; and the method of preservation and/or 
recovery for the identified resources. If the archaeologist, in 
consultation with the tribes, determines the cultural resources to be 
either historic resources or unique archaeological resources, 
avoidance and/or mitigation will be required pursuant to and 
consistent with CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(c) and Public 
Resources Code Section 21083.2. Further ground disturbance shall 
not resume within the area of the discovery until the City, project 
applicant, project archaeologist, and consulting tribe(s) reach an 
agreement regarding the appropriate treatment of the cultural 
resources, which may include avoidance or appropriate mitigation. 
Pursuant to California Public Resources Code Section 21083.2(b), 
avoidance is the preferred method of preservation for archaeological 
and cultural resources. Work may continue outside of the buffer area 
and will be monitored by additional tribal monitors, if needed as 
determined by the project archaeologist and the consulting tribe(s).  


During any ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Public Works 
Department and 
Planning Department 


 


 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


26.  CUL-5 In the event that cultural resources are discovered during the 
course of grading (inadvertent discoveries), the following shall be 
carried out for final disposition of the discoveries:  


a) The landowner(s) shall agree to relinquish ownership of all 
recovered tribal cultural resources to the consulting tribe(s), 
including sacred items and all artifacts as part of the required 
treatment for impacts to cultural resources.  


b) One or more of the following treatment, in order of preference 
below, with (i) being the preferred treatment and (ii) being the 
secondary preferred treatment, shall be employed with the 
agreement of all Parties. Evidence of such agreement shall be 
provided to the City:  


i. Preservation in place of the cultural resources, if feasible. 
Preservation in place means avoiding the resources, leaving 
them in place they were found with no development affecting 
the integrity of the resources.  


ii. On-site relocation to a preservation area shall be 
accomplished as requested by the consulting tribe(s). The 
preservation area location shall be governed by measures 
and provisions to protect the preservation area from any 
future impacts in perpetuity. Relocation shall not occur until 
all legally required cataloging and basic recordation have 
been completed. No recordation of sacred items is permitted 
without the written consent of the consulting tribe(s).  


c) Only if (i) and (ii) above cannot be employed, curation shall be 
arranged with an appropriate qualified repository that meets 
federal standards per 36 CFR Part 79. The cultural resources 


During any ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


 


City of Wildomar 
Public Works 
Department and 
Planning Department 


 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


  


would be professionally curated and made available to other 
archeologists/researchers/tribal governments for further research 
and culturally appropriate use. The collections and associated 
records shall be transferred to a curation facility meeting the above 
federal standards to be accompanied by a curation agreement, 
and payment of any fees necessary for permanent curation. 


27.  CUL-6 Construction personnel involved in excavation and grading 
activities shall be informed of the possibility of discovering fossils at 
any location and the protocol to be followed if fossils are found. A 
professional meeting the Society of Vertebrate Paleontology’s 
standards shall provide the preconstruction training. The City shall 
ensure the grading plan notes include specific reference to the 
potential discovery of fossils. If potentially unique paleontological 
resources (fossils) are inadvertently discovered during project 
construction, work shall be halted immediately within 50 feet of the 
discovery, the City shall be notified, and a professional paleontologist 
shall be retained to determine the significance of the discovery. The 
paleontologist shall establish procedures for paleontological resource 
surveillance throughout project construction and shall establish, in 
cooperation with the project applicant, procedures for temporarily 
halting or redirecting work to permit sampling, identification, and 
evaluation of fossils. Excavated finds shall be offered to a State-
designated repository such as the Museum of Paleontology at the 
University of California, Berkeley, or the California Academy of 
Sciences.  


During any ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities  


City of Wildomar 
Public Works 
Department and 
Planning Department 


 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


28.  CUL-7 If human remains are encountered, California Health and 
Safety Code Section 7050.5 states that no further disturbance shall 
occur until the county coroner has made the necessary findings as to 
origin. Further, pursuant to California Public Resources Code Section 
5097.98(b), remains shall be left in place and free from disturbance 
until a final decision as to the treatment and disposition has been 
made. If the Riverside County Coroner determines the remains to be 
Native American, the Native American Heritage Commission shall be 
contacted within 24 hours. Subsequently, the Native American 
Heritage Commission shall identify the most likely descendant and 
notify them of discovery. The most likely descendant shall then make 
recommendations and engage in consultations concerning the 
treatment of the remains as provided in Public Resources Code 
Section 5097.98. 


 


During any ground-
disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Public Works 
Department and 
Planning Department 


 


Geology/Soils 


29.  GEO-1 The project applicant shall incorporate the recommendations 
of the preliminary geotechnical/geological Public Works study 
prepared by Soils Southwest (2018a; Appendix 5.0) into project plans 
related to the proposed project. The project’s building plans shall 
demonstrate that they incorporate all applicable recommendations of 
the design-level geotechnical study and comply with all applicable 
requirements of the latest adopted version of the California Building 
Code. A licensed professional engineer shall prepare the plans, 
including those that pertain to soil Public Works, structural 
foundations, pipeline excavation, and installation. All on-site soil Public 
Works activities shall be conducted under the supervision of a 


Prior to any 
ground-disturbing 
construction 
activities 


City of Wildomar 
Planning Department 
and Building and 
Safety Department 


 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 
licensed geotechnical engineer or certified Public Works geologist. All 
plans will be subject to the approval of the City Engineer. 


Hazards and Hazardous Materials 


30.  HAZ-1 Prior to the issuance of building permits, the project applicant 
shall demonstrate, to the satisfaction of the City Building Official and 
the Riverside County Fire Chief, compliance with the 2016 California 
Building Code or the most recent edition of the 2016 California Fire 
Code (Part 9 of Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations), 
including those regulations pertaining to materials and construction 
methods intended to mitigate wildfire exposure as described in the 
2016 California Building Code and California Residential Code (or 
most recent edition); specifically California Building Code Chapter 7A; 
California Residential Code Section R327; California Residential Code 
Section R337; California Referenced Standards Code Chapter 12-7A; 
and California Fire Code Chapter 49. 


Prior to issuance of 
building permits  


City of Wildomar 
Building Department 
and Riverside County 


Fire Department 


 


31.  HAZ-2 Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the 
applicant shall demonstrate, to the satisfaction of the City Building 
Official and the County Fire Chief, compliance with the vegetation 
management requirements prescribed in California Fire Code Section 
4906, including California Government Code Section 51182. 


Prior to issuance of 
certificate of 
occupancy 


City of Wildomar 
Building Department 
and Riverside County 


Fire Department 


 


Noise 


32.  NOI-1: Construction Noise Impacts. In addition to adherence to the 
City of Wildomar’s policies found in the General Plan Noise Element 
and the Municipal Code limiting the construction hours of operation, 
the following measures shall be implemented to reduce construction 


During each 
construction phase 
or any ground-
breaking activity 


Planning and Public 
Works Departments 


 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


  


noise and vibrations emanating from the proposed project: 


1. During all project site excavation and grading on-site, 
construction contractors shall equip all construction equipment, 
fixed or mobile, with properly operating and maintained mufflers, 
consistent with manufacturers’ standards. 


2. The contractor shall place all stationary construction equipment 
so that emitted noise is directed away from the noise-sensitive 
receptors nearest the project site. 


3. Equipment shall be shut off and not left to idle when not in use. 


4. The contractor shall locate equipment staging in areas that will 
create the greatest distance between construction-related 
noise/vibration sources and sensitive receptors nearest the 
project site during all project construction. 


5. Jackhammers, pneumatic equipment, and all other portable 
stationary noise sources shall be shielded, and noise shall be 
directed away from sensitive receptors. 


6. The contractor shall limit the use of heavy equipment or vibratory 
rollers and soil compressors within 25 feet of existing structures 
to the greatest degree possible. 


Transportation/Traffic 


33.  TRA-1 Traffic Signal. The project applicant shall install a traffic 
signal at Monte Vista Drive / Project North Access ‐#6 (on “New” 
Street). The applicant shall also ensure that, at project buildout, all 
traffic signals within the study area function as a coordinated system. 


Prior to Occupancy 
Permits 


Planning and Public 
Works Departments 


 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


Tribal Cultural Resources 


34.  Refer to mitigation measures CUL-1 through CUL-5 and CUL-7 for 
implementation of applicable mitigation measures related to tribal 
cultural resources. 


CUL-1 through 
CUL-5 and CUL-7 


Planning and Public 
Works Departments 


 


Prior to Issuance of Grading Permits 


35.  Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, the Applicant shall submit a 
haul permit for any import of material to the site or export of material 
off-site for review and approval by the City Engineer and Planning 
Director. The request for a haul permit shall include a haul route plan 
addressing the limitations of haul hours, number of loads per day and 
the posting of traffic control personnel at all approved entrances/exits 
onto public roads. This haul permit shall be in place prior to the 
issuance of the grading permit and the mobilization of equipment on 
the project site.  If the proposed material source or disposal site does 
not have an approved environmental assessment, a grading 
environmental assessment shall be submitted for review and approval 
by the Planning Director prior to the issuance of the haul permit. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Planning and Public 
Works Departments 


 


36.  Prior to the issuance of a grading permit for the single family 
residential portion of the project, the Applicant shall submit two (2) 
sets of final/detailed landscape and irrigation plans prepared by a 
registered landscape architect to the Planning Director and City’s 
Landscape Architect for review and approval.   


Prior to Issuance of 
Grading Permits 


Planning Department 


 


37.  Prior to the issuance of a grading permit for the business park 
development portion of the project, the Applicant shall submit two (2) 
sets of final/detailed landscape and irrigation plans prepared by a 


Prior to Issuance of Planning Department  







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 
registered landscape architect to the Planning Director and City’s 
Landscape Architect for review and approval.   


Grading Permits 


38.  The following special landscape requirements/conditions shall be 
applied to the landscape and irrigation plans required under Planning 
Condition No. 34 & 35 above: 


a) Provide separate slope planting design and plant palette from 
non-slope areas. Use various spreading groundcovers on 
slopes to provide 100% coverage and slope erosion control 
within 1 year. 


b) Provide a Basin landscape design to show a list/palette of 
shrubs that go in the basin area slopes and bottom if 
applicable. 


c) Tubular Steel Fencing shall be provided as designed and 
shown on the approved plans. 


d) Provide enhanced paving area with pavers or stamped color 
concrete at project entries.   


e) Provide accent trees at project interior corners, corridors and 
end of streets/cul-de-sacs per the approved conceptual 
landscape plans. 


f) The proposed picnic shelter, pool area, tot-lot/basketball court 
area and dog park shall be designed to be consistent with the 
approved plans. 


g) Vertical/screening type trees at end of buildings shall be 
designed to be consistent with the approved plans. 


h) Provide vertical theme trees and or Date Palms at pool area, 
(18’BTH Min.) 


Prior to Issuance of 
Grading Permits 


Planning Department 


 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


  


i) All site amenities, benches, tot-lots, trash receptacles, etc., shall 
be designed to be consistent with the approved plans. 


j) Accent trees 36”-box and 48”-box shall be provided at end of 
streets, corners, etc., per the approved plans.  


Prior to Issuance of Building Permits 


39.  Prior to issuance of building permits for Plot Plan No. 18-0034, the 
Applicant shall submit a detailed/final photometric analysis for review 
and approval by the Planning and Building departments.  The 
proposed development approved by the City Council shall comply with 
the standards and requirements of the City’s Light Pollution Ordinance 
in accordance with Chapter 8.64 of the Wildomar Municipal Code.  


Prior to Issuance of 
Building Permits 


Planning & Building 
Departments 


 


40.  Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the Applicant shall prepare a 
comprehensive sign program for the project for review and approval 
by the Planning Director.  The sign program shall be consistent with all 
applicable provisions of Chapter 17.252 (Sign Regulations) of the 
Wildomar Municipal Code.  


Prior to Issuance of 
Building Permits 


Planning Department  


Prior to Issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy 


41.  Prior to the issuance of occupancy permits, all required landscape 
planting and irrigation shall be inspected, and installed consistent with 
the approved construction plans and shall be in a condition acceptable 
to the Planning Director, or his designee.  All plants shall be healthy 
and free of weeds, disease, or pests.  The irrigation system shall be 
properly constructed and in good working order which may be verified 
via an irrigation audit. . 


Prior to the 
Issuance of 


Occupancy Permits 
Planning Department 


 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


  


42.  Prior to the issuance of occupancy permits, the following conditions 
shall be satisfied: 


• Performance securities, in the amount determined by the City 
Landscape Architect and Planning Director, shall be provided to 
guarantee the adequate maintenance of the landscaping materials 
and irrigation system in accordance with the approved plans for a 
period of one (1) year from the date of final clearance of the 
installed landscaping by the City.  Acceptable forms of security 
shall be limited to cash deposit, cash bonds, or irrevocable letters 
of credit.  The performance securities shall be released one (1) 
year after final clearance of the installed landscaping by the City, 
upon written request by the owner, if the landscaping has been 
adequately maintained in accordance with the approved 
landscape plans.  A deposit to cover re-inspection of the 
landscape, at the current City rate shall be posted with the 
Planning Department prior to re-inspection for maintenance bond 
release. 


• The project landscape contractor shall provide the City with the 
Landscape Installation Certification of Completion stating that the 
landscaping was installed per the approved plans.  The City will 
review the Certificate and conduct inspections to ensure that the 
landscape installation is in compliance with the approved 
landscape plans. 


Prior to the 
Issuance of 


Occupancy Permits 
Planning Department  







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


PUBLIC WORKS/ENGINEERING/BUILDING DEPARTMENT CONDITIONS 


General Requirements/Conditions 


1.  The project shall comply with all conditions of approval for Tentative 
Tract Map No. 37476 to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. On-Going Public Works Dept. 


 


2.  The project shall comply with all mitigation measures identified in the 
approved Traffic Impact Analysis to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer. 


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 


3.  The Developer shall obtain City approval for any modifications or 
revisions to the approval of this project.  Deviations not identified on 
the plans may not be approved by the City, potentially resulting in the 
need for the project to be redesigned.  Amended entitlement approvals 
may be necessary as a result. 


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 


4.  Should Developer elect to develop this project in phases, appropriate 
phasing plans shall be submitted for review and approval by the City 
Engineer and Community Development Director. 


On-Going 


Public Works Dept. & 
Planning Dept. 


 


5.  The project site shall accommodate for construction of future drainage 
Line “C” by Riverside County Flood Control and Water Conservation 
District (RCFC&WCD) to the satisfaction of the City Engineer and 
RCFC&WCD.  Developer shall coordinate final engineering design 
with RCFC&WCD prior to project plan submittal to the City for plan 
checking. 


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


6.  No grading shall be performed without the prior issuance of a grading 
permit by the City. Prior to Issuance of 


Grading 
Permits/On-Going 


Public Works Dept. 
 


7.  Prior to issuance of any permits, the Developer shall provide a current 
Title Report and show all easements, rights-of-way, and 
encumbrances to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director.  If the 
Developer is different than the owner identified in the Title Report then 
a notarized letter authorizing the Developer to improve the property 
shall be provided. 


Prior to Issuance of 
any permits. 


Public Works Dept. 


Building Dept. 


 


8.  All grading shall conform to the California Building Code, Ordinance 
457, and all other relevant laws, rules, and regulations governing 
grading in the City of Wildomar.  The Developer shall obtain a grading 
permit from the Building Department for any grading which includes 50 
or more cubic yards. 


On-Going 
Public Works Dept. 


Building Dept. 


 


9.  All necessary measures to control dust shall be implemented by the 
Developer during grading to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. A 
PM10 plan may be required at the time a grading permit is issued. 


Prior to Issuance of 
Grading 


Permits/On-Going 


Public Works Dept. 
 


10.  Graded slopes shall be limited to a maximum steepness ratio of 2:1 
(horizontal to vertical) unless otherwise approved by the City 
Engineer.  Contour grade to mimic natural slopes in the area. 


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


11.  Grading in excess of 199 cubic yards will require a grading agreement 
and a performance security to be posted with the City.  Grading 
Agreements require City Council Approval unless authority is 
delegated to the City Engineer. 


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 


12.  The Developer/owner or contractor shall apply for an Encroachment 
Permit for work performed within the public right of way.  Compliance 
with current environmental regulations applies and additional studies 
and/or permits may be required. 


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 


13.  Storm water and non-storm water discharges from the project site 
shall be mitigated in conformance with the applicable Regional Water 
Quality Control Board permit(s) and/or site specific SWPPP prior to 
entering into the MS4s. 


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 


14.  For commercial/industrial projects, the Developer shall submit a 
Business Registration application to the city for approval.  The 
Business Registration shall indicate that this business in required to 
submit a Storm water Compliance Deposit to the City for ongoing 
Commercial/Industrial Inspection requirements of the City’s MS4 
permit (NPDES Inspection).  The requirement for storm water 
compliance deposits and NPDES inspections are recurring for the 
duration of the conditional use permit.  The Developer/applicant shall 
also provide to the Planning Department, as part of the Business’ 
Statement of Operations, a copy of the educational materials, 
business’ handbook, training or similar documents describing the 
business’ best management practices for storm water pollution 
prevention.  


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


15.  The Developer shall provide all tenants/employees/homeowners with 
educational materials regarding Best Management Practices for 
Stormwater Pollution Prevention.  Educational materials are available 
on the Riverside County Flood Control and Water Conservation 
District’s website.   


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 


16.  The commercial portion of the project shall include recycling facilities 
per current California State Standards and to the satisfaction of the 
City Engineer. 


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 


17.  The Developer shall dedicate, design and construct all improvements 
in accordance the City of Wildomar Road Improvement Standards & 
Specification, Improvement Plan Check Policies and Guidelines, as 
further conditioned herein and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 


18.  The Developer shall be responsible for all costs associated with off-
site right-of-way acquisition, including any costs associated with the 
eminent domain process, if necessary. 


 


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 


19.  Erosion control – landscape plans, required for manufactured slopes 
greater than 3 feet in vertical height, are to be signed by a registered 
landscape architect and bonded.  The soils engineer shall review the 
erosion control plans for conformance with the Geotechnical Report’s 
Findings and Recommendations.  Erosion control shall be placed 
within 30 days of meeting final grades to minimize erosion and to 
ensure slope coverage prior to the rainy season.  The Developer shall 
plant & irrigate all manufactured slopes steeper than a 4:1 (horizontal 
to vertical) ratio and 3 feet or greater in vertical height with soil 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading 


Permit/On-Going 


Public Works Dept. 


Planning Dept. 


 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 
stabilizers and ground cover; slopes 15 feet or greater in vertical 
height shall be planted with additional shrubs or trees or as approved 
by the City Engineer and City Planner. 


20.  Should this project lie within any assessment/benefit district, the 
project proponent shall, prior to acceptance of improvements, make 
application for and pay for their reapportionment of the assessments 
or pay the unit fees in the benefit district unless said fees are 
otherwise deferred or covered under the City’s Community Facility 
District (CFD Services). 


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 


21.  The Developer shall annex into the City’s Community Facility District 
(CFD Services) and/or Landscape Lighting & Maintenance District and 
pay associated costs for annexation.  Should this project lie within any 
assessment/benefit district that duplicates the services to be covered 
under CFD Services then the Developer shall de-annex from said 
assessment/benefit district. 


Prior to Map 
Recordation 


Public Works Dept. 
 


22.  The Developer shall design and construct all driveways in accordance 
with the City of Wildomar Improvement Standards. On-Going Public Works Dept. 


 


23.  The improvement plans for the required public improvements must be 
prepared and shall be based upon a design profile extending a 
minimum of 300 feet beyond the project boundaries at a grade and 
alignment as approved by the City Engineer. 


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 


24.  Improvement Plans for underground utilities (e.g., Water, sewer, 
electrical, telecommunications, etc.) to be placed in public right of way 
or easement that will be owned and maintained by other entities shall 
be reviewed by the City.  The City shall have a place on the Title 


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


  


Sheet to accept the plans with a statement “The city’s acceptance is 
limited to the placement of utilities relative to public infrastructure 
clearances, uses and future plans within the right of way.”  The plans 
shall be attached to a city Encroachment Permit. 


25.  All flood control plans to be reviewed by the City or the Riverside 
County Flood Control District (RCFCD) shall be submitted through the 
City of Wildomar, unless otherwise directed by the City Engineer.  For 
projects requiring RCFCD review the Developer shall pay the 
appropriate fees to RCFCD. 


On-Going Public Works Dept. 
 


26.  The storm drain proposed to be constructed in Monte Vista Drive shall 
require an encroachment permit from the City.  Plans shall be 
submitted for review and approval prior to issuance of the permit. 


On-going 


Prior to Issuance of 
Encroachment 


Permits 


Public Works Dept. 
 


27.  The Developer shall submit to the City Engineer, traffic control plans 
for construction located in a public right of way to ensure the continued 
flow of traffic during construction.  


On-going 


Prior to Issuance of 
Encroachment 


Permits 


Public Works Dept. 
 


28.  Cross lot drainage is undesirable and will not be allowed without 
justification and approval by the City Engineer. On-going Public Works Dept. 


 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


Prior to the Issuance of Grading Permits 


29.  Prior to issuance of a grading permit, the Developer shall submit a 
grading and erosion control plan for review and approval by the City 
Engineer.   


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Public Works Dept.  


30.  Prior to issuance of a grading permit, the Developer shall submit 
drainage plans and plans for bio-basins and retention basins for 
review and approval by the City Engineer.   


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Public Works Dept.  


31.  The Developer shall submit a geotechnical soils report to the City 
Engineer for review and approval prior to issuance of grading permit.  
The findings and recommendations shall reflect current conditions and 
the report shall be no older than one (1) year.  All grading shall be in 
conformance with the recommendations of the geotechnical/soils 
reports as approved by City of Wildomar. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Public Works Dept.  


32.  Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, it shall be the sole 
responsibility of the applicant to obtain any and all easements and/or 
permissions necessary to perform the grading required for the project. 
A notarized letter of permission from all affected property owners or 
easement holders, or encroachment permit, is required for all off-site 
grading. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Public Works Dept.  


33.  The project specific SWPPP and an Erosion/Sediment Control plan 
shall be approved by the City Engineer. Prior to Issuance of 


a Grading Permit 
Public Works Dept.  







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


34.  The Developer shall provide the Engineering Department evidence of 
compliance with the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES); obtain a construction permit from the State Water Resource 
Control Board (SWRRCB); and, reference the WDID number on the 
improvement/grading plans. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Public Works Dept.  


35.  The Developer’s contractor is required to submit for a haul route 
permit for the hauling of material to and from the project site.  Said 
permit will include limitations of haul hours, number of loads per day 
and the posting of traffic control personnel at all approved 
entrances/exits onto public roads.  Hauled material shall be to/from an 
environmentally approved site. 


Prior to Issuance of 
Grading 


Permits/On-Going 


Public Works Dept.  


36.  When import/export of earthwork is required, Developer shall obtain 
approval for the import/export location from the City of Wildomar. 
Additionally, if either location was not previously approved by an 
Environmental Assessment, a Grading Environmental Assessment 
shall be submitted to the Planning Director for review and comment 
and to the City Engineer for approval, prior to issuing a grading permit. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Public Works Dept.  


37.  A licensed engineer shall prepare and submit a Water Quality 
Management Plan (WQMP) Applicability Checklist; determine if a WQMP 
is applicable for this project; and, sign and stamp the WQMP checklist 
with their license seal. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Public Works Dept.  


38.  Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, the applicant shall submit a 
Final Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP), in conformance with 
the requirements of the San Diego and/or Santa Ana Regional Water 
Quality Control Board.  Developer shall confirm the watershed 
requirements relative to their project location shall be approved by the 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Public Works Dept.  







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 
City Engineer prior to issuance of a grading permit.  All storm water 
quality treatment devices shall be located outside of the ultimate public 
right of way.  The Developer shall design the storm water quality 
treatment devices to accommodate all project runoff, ensuring post-
construction flows and volumes do not exceed pre-construction levels, in 
accordance with City of Wildomar’s Hydrology Manual, Storm water 
Quality Best Management Practice Design Handbook, Improvement 
Standards, and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.  These BMP’s 
shall be consistent with the Final WQMP and installed and maintained to 
the satisfaction of the City Engineer.  The project shall use the following 
hydromodification criteria for the project site: “The runoff flow rate, 
volume, velocity, and duration for the post development condition of the 
Priority Development Project do not exceed the pre-development (i.e. 
naturally occurring) condition for the 2-year, 24 hour and 10-year, 24-
hour rainfall events.  This condition must be substantiated by hydrologic 
modelling acceptable to City of Wildomar.” 


39.  This project is within a priority land use as defined by California 
Regional Water Quality Control Board San Diego Region Order No. 
R9-2017-0077 (Trash Amendments) and will be required to install, 
operate, and maintain full trash capture systems for all storm drains 
within or adjacent to the project. The Final WQMP shall include the 
design, specifications, and operation/maintenance procedures of the 
trash capture systems. The trash capture systems must comply with 
the Trash Amendments. Trash capture systems that will require City 
maintenance must receive approval from the City Engineer for their 
use, prior to acceptance of the Final WQMP, and shall be included in 
the Community Facilities District (CFD) maintenance costs. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Public Works Dept.  







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


40.  If the project location is within the Santa Ana River Watershed:  Prior to 
the issuance of a grading permit, the Developer is to provide the 
appropriate documentation that will allow this project a waiver for 
mitigation volume related to the Lake Elsinore sub watershed of the 
Santa Ana Watershed.  Please note the City is not a permittee in the 
MS4 permit for the Santa Ana River Watershed (Lake Elsinore) and is 
governed only by the MS4 permit for the Santa Margarita Watershed, 
therefore the Developer needs to provide evidence that this waiver 
has been approved by the Santa Ana Regional Water Quality Control 
Board.  Otherwise volume has to be addressed. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Public Works Dept.  


41.  A Grading Agreement and a Storm Water Management Facilities 
Agreement shall be approved by the City Engineer and/or City Council. Prior to Issuance of 


a Grading Permit 
Public Works Dept.  


42.  The Developer shall prepare and submit a comprehensive drainage 
study and plan that includes, but is not limited to: definition with 
mapping of the existing watersheds; a detailed pre- and post-project 
hydrologic and hydraulic analysis of the project and project impacts; 
definition of the local controlling 100-year frequency water levels 
existing and with project; the proposed method of flow conveyance to 
mitigate the potential project impacts with adequate supporting 
calculations; any proposed improvements to mitigate the impacts of 
increased runoff from the project and any change in runoff; including 
quality, quantity, volume, and duration in accordance with City of 
Wildomar’s Hydrology Manual, Improvement Standards, and to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer.  Specifically, the study will: 


a. Analyze the detention basin drainage area for a project using the 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading Permit 


Public Works Dept.  







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


  


Rational Method 100-year storm event for the pre-project and 
post-project. 


b. Analyze 4 hydrographs for the detention basin drainage area for 
a project using the Unit Hydrograph 100-year storm event for the 
1-hour, 3-hour, 6-hour, and 24-hour storm durations for post-
project condition. 


c. Using the Unit Hydrographs determine which duration provides 
the highest flow rate. Adjust parameters such as lag time, flow 
line roughness coefficient or other parameters to calibrate Unit 
Hydrograph model to provide results similar to the Rational 
Method. 


Using the calibrated Unit Hydrograph for the detention basin drainage 
area perform basin routing analysis to demonstrate that the outflow is 
less than the pre-project Rational Method flow rate. 


43.  All retaining walls shall require a separate permit from the Building 
Department.  Retaining Wall plans shall be approved concurrent with 
Grading Plan approval.  The retaining wall calculations shall address 
earth and hydrostatic loads associated with adjacent water basins 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Grading or 


Building Permit 


Public Works Dept. 
and Building Dept. 


 


Prior to Issuance of Building Permits 


44.  Prior to the issuance of the first building permit, the final map shall be 
recorded, rough grading, precise grading, water quality treatment, and 
improvement plans shall be approved by the City Engineer and public 
improvements shall be constructed or secured by the applicant. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 


Public Works Dept. 
 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


45.  Prior to the issuance of any building permit, applicant shall obtain a 
grading permit and/or approval to construct from the City Engineer. Prior to Issuance of 


a Building Permit 


Building Dept. and 
Public Works Dept. 


 


46.  Water and sewer plans shall be approved by Elsinore Valley Municipal 
Water District (EVMWD) and City Engineer prior to issuance of a 
building permit.  All water and sewer plans to be reviewed by 
(EVMWD) shall be submitted to EVMWD.  The City of Wildomar shall 
be copied on the transmittal with a copy of the improvement plans and 
all correspondence.  Developer shall pay the appropriate plan review 
fees to EVMWD.  Estimate of Costs for water and sewer facilities shall 
be approved by EVMWD and the City.   


Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 


Public Works Dept. 
 


47.  Fire service improvement plans shall be approved by Riverside 
County Fire Department (RCFD) prior to issuance of all applicable 
building permits.  The City of Wildomar shall be copied on all FCFD 
transmittals with a copy of the improvement plans and all 
correspondence.  Developer shall pay the appropriate plan review 
fees to RCFD.  Estimate of Costs for fire service facilities shall be 
approved by RCFD and the City. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 


Building Dept. 


Fire Dept. 


 


48.  Prior to issuance of the 1st building permit, Developer shall enter into a 
maintenance agreement with the City to identify maintenance 
responsibilities for the variety of drainage facilities proposed for this 
development.  This agreement shall include, but not be limited to: 1) 
defining responsible parties for maintenance of underground and 
above ground retention basins, bio-basins, storm drain pipes and 
appurtenances, 2) shall establish a mechanism for future takeover of 
maintenance responsibilities of retention and bio-basins by City/CFD if 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 


Public Works Dept. 
 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 
deemed necessary, 3) establish access rights should City/CFD take 
over maintenance in future, 4) include manufacturers specification and 
maintenance instructions for the perpetual maintenance of said 
basins. 


49.  The Developer shall submit landscaping and irrigation plans to the 
Planning Department for approval for landscaping within the public 
right-of-way. These plans shall include water usage calculations, 
estimate of irrigation and the location of all existing trees that will 
remain.   


Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 


Public Works Dept. 


Planning Dept. 


 


50.  Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall 
demonstrate compliance with the California Title 24. Prior to Issuance of 


a Building Permit 
Building Dept. 


 


51.  The Developer shall demonstrate that all development related fees, 
impact fees, and mitigation fees have been satisfactorily paid. Prior to Issuance of 


a Building Permit 
Building Dept. 


 


52.  The Developer shall pay the appropriate impact mitigation fee to the 
Riverside County Flood Control and Water Conservation District and 
provide the City receipt of payment. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit 


Building Dept. 
 


53.  The Developer shall pay all necessary impact and mitigation fees 
required.  These fees include, but are not limited to, fees associated 
with Transportation Uniform Mitigation Fee (TUMF), Quimby (parkland 
in-lieu) Fee, and City Development Impact Fees. 


Prior to Issuance of 
a Building Permit or 


Certificate of 
Occupancy 


Building Dept. 
 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


Prior to Building Occupancy, Final Inspection or Surety Release 


54.  Prior to occupancy release, all public and private improvements 
required by the project conditions of approval and as shown on the 
approved project improvement plans, including onsite and offsite 
public street improvements, water, sewer and utility improvements, 
flood control improvements and onsite grading, storm water quality 
treatment improvements and landscaping, shall be 
constructed/installed and approved 


Prior to Occupancy 
Release 


Public Works Dept. 
 


55.  Prior to recordation of the final map, all above-ground utilities, 
including but not limited to communication and power that are 33KV in 
size or less, shall be undergrounded (or securities posted) by the 
Developer in accordance with City of Wildomar Municipal Code 
Section 16.40.010 requirements. The undergrounding of utilities shall 
be reflected on the project improvement plans. (amended by City 
Council on 2/13/19) 


Prior to Occupancy 
Release 


Public Works Dept. 
 


56.  Prior to occupancy release, flood control facilities shall be constructed 
per the approved plans in accordance with applicable standards. All 
required maintenance agreements shall be executed and 
easements/right of way conveyances recorded to the satisfaction of 
the governing agency and the City Engineer. 


Prior to Occupancy 
Release 


Public Works Dept. 
 


57.  The project Developer shall be required to pay its fair share cost of the 


traffic signal mitigation at the offsite intersection of Monte Vista Drive 
and Baxter Road as required in the approved Traffic Impact Analysis. 


Prior to Occupancy 
Release 


Public Works Dept. 


Building Dept. 


 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


58.  The Developer shall install light emitting diode (LED) streetlights in 
accordance with the City of Wildomar Road Improvement Standards & 
Specification, Improvement Plan Check Policies and Guidelines, City 
Ordinances and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 


Prior to Occupancy 
Release 


Public Works Dept. 
 


59.  The Developer shall install all street name signs at intersections within 
or adjacent to the project, and/or replace street name signs in 
accordance with the City of Wildomar Standard Details and to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer. 


Prior to Occupancy 
Release 


Public Works Dept. 
 


60.  Prior to occupancy release, Developer shall construct the storm water 
quality treatment devices to accommodate all project runoff from in 
accordance with the approved WQMP to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer.  All storm water quality treatment devices shall be 
constructed outside of the ultimate public right of way.  Applicant shall 
provide for maintenance responsibilities in the project’s CC&R’s or 
execute a maintenance agreement with the City. 


Prior to Occupancy 
Release 


Public Works Dept. 
 


61.  The Developer shall provide letters addressed to the City of Wildomar 
from all applicable outside agencies (e.g., RCFCD, EVMWD, RCFD, 
Caltrans, etc.) involved in the approval and acceptance of 
improvements. 


Prior to Occupancy 
Release 


Public Works Dept. 


Building Dept. 


 


62.  The Developer shall annex into all applicable Maintenance Districts, 
Community Service Areas and Landscaping Maintenance District for 
landscaping, lighting, drainage and maintenance to the satisfaction of 
the City Engineer or otherwise form a District where one is not 
currently in place. 


Prior to Occupancy 
Release 


Public Works & 
Building Depts. 


 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


63.  Prior to occupancy or surety release, permanent survey monuments 
shall be set at project boundaries, lot boundaries, the intersection of 
street centerlines, beginning and end of curves in centerlines, and at 
other locations designated on the final map.  All monuments shall be 
placed in accordance with standard survey practices. 


Prior to Occupancy 
Release 


Public Works Dept. 
 


64.  The applicant shall file a letter with the SWRCB or submit information 
to the SMART System stating that the construction activity is 
complete. A copy of this letter shall be submitted to the City prior to 
occupancy or surety release. 


Prior to Occupancy 
Release 


Public Works Dept. 
 


65.  Prior to occupancy release, Developer shall supply City and Property 
Owner’s/Home Owner’s Association copies of manufacturer’s 
specifications and maintenance instructions for the perpetual 
maintenance of the bio-basins, underground Storm Tech basins and 
above ground basins and appurtenances.   


Prior to Occupancy 
Release 


Public Works Dept. 
 


66.  Prior to occupancy release, the applicant shall post agency required 
no dumping messages on all catch basins and storm drain inlet 
facilities as required by the City Engineer.   


Prior to Occupancy 
Release 


Public Works Dept. 
 


RIVERSIDE COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT 


General Conditions 


1.  Fire Hydrants and Fire Flow: Provide or show there exist fire 
hydrant(s) capable of delivering required fire flow per the California 
Fire Code, Riverside County Fire Department within 600 feet to all 
portions of the proposed structures. The Riverside County Fire 
Department has a Technical Policy allowing this distance to increase 


On-Going Fire Department 


 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 
based upon an upgraded sprinkler system in the home. Reference 
2016 California Fire Code (CFC) Section 507.5.1. 


2.  Water Plans: If fire hydrants are required to be installed, 
applicant/developer shall furnish two copies of the water system fire 
hydrant plans to Fire Department for review and approval prior to 
building permit issuance.  Plans shall be signed by a registered civil 
engineer, and shall confirm hydrant type, location, spacing, and 
minimum fire flow.  Once plans are signed and approved by the local 
water authority, the originals shall be presented to the Fire Department 
for review and approval. Ref. CFC 105.4.1. 


On-Going Fire Department 
 


3.  Water system prior to combustibles on site: No combustible material 
shall be brought on site until the water system has been inspected and 
approved by the Riverside County Fire Department. 


On-Going Fire Department 
 


4.  Blue Dot Reflectors: Blue retro-reflective pavement markers shall be 
installed to indicate the location of fire hydrants. On-Going Fire Department 


 


5.  Fire Department Access: Fire Department apparatus access shall be 
provided to within 150 feet of all portions of all buildings.  Driveway 
loops, fire apparatus access lanes and entrance curb radius should be 
designed to adequately allow access of emergency fire vehicles.  The 
Applicant shall include in the building plans the required fire lanes and 
include the appropriate lane printing and/or signs. 


On-Going Fire Department 


 


6.  Building Address Numbers: Display street numbers in a prominent 
location on the address side of buildings.  Numbers shall be legible, of 
a contrasting color, and adequately illuminated to be visible from street 
at all hours. 


On-Going Fire Department 


 







ATTACHMENT E – EXHIBIT 1 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


“The Village at Monte Vista” Project  - Final Site Plan of Development/Plot Plan No. 18-0034/ 


APN’s: 367-140-008;  367-140-010 & 367-140-012 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Approval Date: 


February 13, 2019 


Plot Plan No. 18-0034 Expiration Date: 


February 13, 2022 
 


Conditions of Approval 
Timing/ 


Implementation 


Enforcement/ 


Monitoring Dept. 


Verification 
(Date and 
Signature) 


 


 
 
 
END 
 


7.  Address: The address shall be posted per Riverside County Fire 
Department standards and will be clearly visible from public roadway. 
Ref. CFC 505.1 as amended by the City of Wildomar and the County 
of Riverside Fire Prevention Standard #07-01 Premises Identification. 


On-Going Fire Department 


 


8.  Knox Rapid Entry System: Gates shall be equipped with a Knox Rapid 
Entry System.  Contact the Riverside County Fire Department for 
further information. 


On-Going Fire Department 


 







RIV #4833-9648-5472 v2 2 SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


EXHIBIT “E”
LIEN AGREEMENT


NOT USED







ATTACHMENT B


Tract Map No. 31667 
McVicar Culvert Cooperative Agreement
Offsite Public Improvement Agreement


Surety Bonds
Public Improvement Cost Estimate


ATTACHMENT D







1 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


NO FEE DOCUMENT
Government Code §6103
RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:


CITY OF WILDOMAR
23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201
Wildomar, CA  92595
Attn: City Clerk 


The Above Space For Recorder’s 
Use Only


Project Name:  Summerhill 2, Tract 37476
Project Address:  34400 Monte Vista Drive  
APN:  367-140-008, 367-140-010 & 
          367-140-012
Project No.:  21-0122


OFFSITE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


This Public Improvement Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into this 12th day of 
January, 2022 by and between the City of Wildomar, a California municipal corporation 
(“City”) and KB Home Coastal Inc., a California corporation, (“Principal”).  City and 
Principal may be individual or collectively referred to as a “party” or the “parties” to this 
Agreement.


RECITALS


A. Principal owns the real property located at APNs 367-140-008, 367-140-
010 and 367-140-012, in the City of Wildomar, California, which is more particularly 
described in Exhibit “A” to this Agreement (“Property”).


B. Principal has applied for and obtained certain development approvals from 
the City to develop the Property.  The development approvals and City ordinances 
require Principal to construct certain public improvements and dedicate those public 
improvements to the City after construction is complete.


C. This Agreement memorializes the understanding between the parties 
regarding the terms and conditions under which Principal will construct and City will 
accept the required public improvements.


OPERATIVE PROVISIONS


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants 
made by the parties and contained here and other consideration, the value and 
adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:


1. Construction of Improvements.  The Principal agrees to construct and 







2 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


install on the Property, at the Principal’s own cost and expense, the public 
improvements shown on the improvement plans submitted by Principal and approved 
by the City as referenced and contained within this Public Improvement Agreement 
(“Required Improvements”). Prior to commencing any work, Principal shall, at its sole 
cost and expense, obtain all necessary permits and approvals and give all necessary 
and incidental notices required for the lawful construction of the Required Improvements 
and performance of Principal’s obligations under this Agreement.  The Required 
Improvements shall be constructed in accordance with all approved maps, plans, 
specifications, standard drawings, and special amendments thereto on file with City, as 
well as all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations, codes, 
standards, and other requirements applicable at the time work is actually commenced.  
Principal shall complete the construction of the Required Improvements within twelve 
months of the date of this Agreement.


a. Standard of Performance.  Principal and its contractors, if any, shall 
perform all work required to construct the Required Improvements under this Agreement 
in a skillful and workmanlike manner, and consistent with the standards generally 
recognized as being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the State of 
California.  Principal represents and maintains that it or its contractors shall be skilled in 
the professional calling necessary to perform the work.  Principal warrants that all of its 
employees and contractors shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the work 
assigned to them, and that they shall have all licenses, permits, qualifications and 
approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to perform the work, and that 
such licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals shall be maintained throughout the 
term of this Agreement.


b. Alterations to Improvements.  All work shall be done and 
improvements made and completed as shown on approved plans and specifications, 
and any subsequent alterations thereto.  If during the course of construction and 
installation of the Required Improvements it is determined that the public interest 
requires alterations in the Required Improvements, Developer shall undertake such 
design and construction changes as may be reasonably required by City.  Any and all 
alterations in the plans and specifications and the Required Improvements to be 
completed may be accomplished without giving prior notice thereof to Developer’s 
surety for this Agreement.


c. Fees and Charges.  Principal shall, at its sole cost and expense, 
pay all fees, charges, and taxes arising out of construction of the Required 
Improvements, including, but not limited to, all plan check, design review, engineering, 
inspection, and other service fees, and any impact or connection fees established by 
City ordinance, resolution, regulation, or policy, or as established by City or as required 
by other governmental agencies having jurisdiction over the Required Improvements.


2. Commencement of Work.  The Principal shall notify the City Engineer of 
the commencement of work on the Required Improvements.


3. Completion of Improvements.  Upon satisfactory completion of all 
Required Improvements as determined by the City Engineer or his or her designee 







3 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


(hereafter the “City Engineer”), Principal shall offer to dedicate the Required 
Improvements to the City, and City agrees to accept that offer of dedication in 
accordance with its policies and procedures and the terms of this Agreement.  


4. Title to Required Improvements.  The City shall not accept the Required 
Improvements unless they are constructed in conformity with the approved plans and 
specifications, approved modifications, if any, the approved final or parcel map, and City 
Improvement Standards and Specifications, to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.  
Until such time as the Required Improvements are accepted by the City, Principal shall 
retain title and shall be responsible for, and bear the risk of loss to, any of the 
improvements constructed or installed.  Title to and ownership of the Required 
Improvements shall vest absolutely in the City upon completion and acceptance in 
writing of such Required Improvements by City.  The City shall not accept the Required 
Improvements unless title to the Required Improvements is entirely free from lien.  Prior 
to acceptance, Principal shall supply the City with appropriate lien releases, at no cost 
to and in a form acceptable to the City.


a. Developer’s Notice of Completion.  Upon the acceptance of the 
Required Improvements by City, Principal shall file with the Recorder’s Office of the 
County of Riverside a notice of completion for the accepted Required Improvements in 
accordance with Article 2 of Chapter 4 of Title 2 of Part 6 of Division 4 of the Civil Code, 
at which time the accepted Required Improvements shall become the sole and 
exclusive property of City without payment therefor.


b. City Acceptance of Public Improvements.  Issuance by City of 
occupancy permits for any buildings or structures located on the Property shall not be 
construed in any manner to constitute City’s acceptance or approval of any Required 
Improvements.  


c. Developer’s Obligation to Provide As-Built or Record Drawings.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, City may not accept any Required Improvements unless 
and until Principal provides one (1) set of “as-built” or record drawings or plans to the 
City Engineer for all such Required Improvements.  The drawings shall be certified and 
shall reflect the condition of the Required Improvements as constructed, with all 
changes incorporated therein.


5. Extension of Time to Complete Improvements.


a. The City Engineer may extend the date for completing the Required 
Improvements. Extensions shall be granted only upon a showing of good cause by the 
Principal.  The City Engineer shall be the sole and final judge as to whether good cause 
has been shown.


b. Requests for extension of the completion date shall be in writing 
and delivered to the City Engineer in the manner hereinafter specified for service of 
notices.  An extension of time, if any, shall be granted only in writing, and an oral 
extension shall not be valid or binding on the City.







4 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


c. In the event the City Engineer extends the time of completion of the 
Required Improvements, such extension may be granted without notice by the City to 
the Principal’s surety and shall in no way release any guarantee or security given by the 
Principal pursuant to this Agreement, or relieve or release those providing an 
improvement security pursuant to this Agreement.  The surety or sureties, if any, in 
executing the securities shall be deemed to have expressly agreed to any such 
extension of time.


d. In granting any extension of time, the City may require new or 
amended improvement security to reflect increases in the estimated costs of 
constructing the Required Improvements or impose other conditions to protect its 
interests and ensure the timely completion of the Required Improvements.


6. Inspection.  Principal shall at all times maintain proper facilities and safe 
access for inspection of the Required Improvements by City and to the shops wherein 
any work is in preparation.  Upon completion of the work, the Principal may request a 
final inspection by the City Engineer or his designee.  If the City Engineer or the 
designated representative determines that the work has been completed in accordance 
with this Agreement, then the City Engineer shall certify the completion of the Required 
Improvements to the City.  No improvements shall be finally accepted unless all aspects 
of the work have been inspected and determined to have been completed in 
accordance with the Improvement Plans and City standards.  Principal shall bear all 
costs of plan check, inspection and certification.


7. Maintenance of Improvements.  City shall not be responsible or liable for 
the maintenance or care of the Required Improvements until City formally approves and 
accepts them in accordance with its policies and procedures.  City shall exercise no 
control over the Required Improvements until approved and accepted.  Any use by any 
person of the Required Improvements, or any portion thereof, shall be at the sole and 
exclusive risk of the Principal at all times prior to City’s acceptance of the Required 
Improvements.  Principal shall maintain all the Required Improvements in a state of 
good repair until they are completed by Principal and approved and accepted by City, 
and until the security for the performance of this Agreement is released.  Maintenance 
shall include, but shall not be limited to, repair of pavement, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, 
signals, parkways, water mains, and sewers; maintaining all landscaping in a vigorous 
and thriving condition reasonably acceptable to City; removal of debris from sewers and 
storm drains; and sweeping, repairing, and maintaining in good and safe condition all 
streets and street improvements.  It shall be Principal’s responsibility to initiate all 
maintenance work, but if it shall fail to do so, it shall promptly perform such maintenance 
work when notified to do so by City.  If Principal fails to properly prosecute its 
maintenance obligation under this section, City may do all work necessary for such 
maintenance and the cost thereof shall be the responsibility of Principal and its surety 
under this Agreement.  City shall not be responsible or liable for any damages or injury 
of any nature in any way related to or caused by the Required Improvements or their 
condition prior to acceptance.  Until final acceptance of the Required Improvements, 
Principal shall give good and adequate warning to the public of each and every 
dangerous condition existing on the Property, and will take reasonable actions to protect 
the public from such dangerous conditions.







5 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


8. Superintendence by Principal.  Principal shall require each contractor and 
subcontractor to have a competent foreman on the job at all times when that contractor 
or subcontractor, or any employee or agent thereof, is performing work on the Required 
Improvements.  In addition, Principal shall maintain an office with a telephone and 
Principal or a person authorized to make decisions and to act for Principal in Principal’s 
absence shall be available on the job site within three (3) hours of being called at such 
office by the City during the hours of 9:00 A.M. through 5:00 P.M., Monday through 
Friday, or any other day or time when work is being performed on the Required 
Improvements.


9. Injury to Public Improvements, Public Property or Public Utilities Facilities.  
Principal shall replace or repair, or have replaced or repaired, all public improvements, 
public utility facilities, and surveying or subdivision monuments which are destroyed or 
damaged in the performance of any work under this Agreement.  Principal shall bear the 
entire cost of replacement or repairs of any and all public or private utility property 
damaged or destroyed in the performance of any work done under this Agreement, 
whether such property is owned by the United States or any agency thereof, or the 
State of California, or any agency or political subdivision thereof, or by the City or any 
public or private utility corporation or by any combination of such owners.  Any repair or 
replacement shall be to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.


10. Warranty.  If, within a period of one year after final acceptance by the City 
of the Required Improvements, any improvement or part of any improvement furnished 
and/or installed or constructed, or caused to be installed or constructed by Principal, or 
any of the work done under this Agreement materially fails to fulfill any of the 
requirements of this Agreement or the specifications referred to herein, Principal shall 
without delay and without any cost to City, repair, replace or reconstruct any defective 
or otherwise unsatisfactory part or parts of the improvements.  If the Principal fails to act 
promptly or in accordance with this requirement, or if the exigencies of the situation 
require repairs or replacements to be made before the Principal can be notified, then 
the City may, at its option, make the necessary repairs or replacements or perform the 
necessary work, and Principal shall pay to City the actual cost of such repairs plus 
fifteen percent (15%) within thirty (30) days of the date of billing for such work by City.  
As to any Required Improvements which have been repaired, replaced, or 
reconstructed during the Warranty, Principal and its surety hereby agree to extend the 
Warranty for an additional one (1) year period following City’s acceptance of the 
repaired, replaced, or reconstructed Required Improvements.  Nothing herein shall 
relieve Principal from any other liability it may have under federal, state, or local law to 
repair, replace, or reconstruct any Required Improvement following expiration of the 
Warranty or any extension thereof.  Principal’s warranty obligation under this section 
shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.


11. Defense, Indemnification and Hold Harmless.  Principal shall defend, 
indemnify, and hold harmless City, its elected officials, officers, employees, and agents 
from any and all actual or alleged claims, demands, causes of action, liability, loss, 
damage, or injury, to property or persons, including wrongful death, whether imposed by 
a court of law or by administrative action of any federal, state, or local governmental 
body or agency, arising out of or incident to any acts, omissions, negligence, or willful 







6 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


misconduct of Principal, its personnel, employees, agents, or contractors in connection 
with or arising out of construction or maintenance of the Required Improvements, or 
performance of this Agreement.  This indemnification includes, without limitation, the 
payment of all penalties, fines, judgments, awards, decrees, attorneys’ fees, and related 
costs or expenses, and the reimbursement of City, its elected officials, officers, 
employees, and/or agents for all legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them.  
This indemnification excludes only such portion of any claim, demand, cause of action, 
liability, loss, damage, penalty, fine, or injury, to property or persons, including wrongful 
death, which is caused solely and exclusively by the gross negligence or willful 
misconduct of City as determined by a court or administrative body of competent 
jurisdiction.  Principal’s obligation to indemnify City shall survive the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement, and shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, 
received by City, its elected officials, officers, employees, or agents.


12. Security.  


a. Required Security.  Concurrently with the execution of this 
Agreement, the Principal shall furnish the City with:


(1) Faithful Performance Security.  Principal shall provide faithful 
performance security to secure faithful performance of this Agreement (“faithful 
performance” security).  This security shall be in the amount of one hundred percent 
(100%) of the total estimated cost of the Required Improvements, as determined by the 
City Engineer, which total cost is in the amount of  $1,928,500.00 (One Million Nine 
Hundred Twenty Eight Thousand Five Hundred and No/100 Dollars).


(2) Payment Security.  Principal shall also provide payment 
security to secure payment to the contractors, subcontractors, laborers, material men, 
and other persons furnishing labor, materials, or equipment for the work (“payment 
security”).  This security shall be in the amount of fifty percent (50%) of the total 
estimated cost of the Required Improvements, as determined by the City Engineer, 
which total cost is in the amount of $964,250.00 (Nine Hundred Sixty-Four Thousand 
Two Hundred Fifty and No/100 Dollars), and shall secure the obligations set forth in 
Title 1 (commencing with Section 8000) through Title 3 (commencing with Section 9000) 
of Part 6 of Division 4 of the Civil Code of the State of California.


(3) Guarantee and Warranty Security.  Principal shall also file 
with this Agreement a “guarantee and warranty security” in the amount of ten percent 
(10%) of the total estimated cost of the Required Improvements, as determined by the 
City Engineer, which total cost is in the amount of $192,850.00 (One Hundred Ninety-
Two Thousand Eight Hundred Fifty and No/Dollars) to guarantee and warrant the 
Required Improvements for a period of one year following their completion and 
acceptance against any defective work or labor done, or defective materials furnished.


(4) Monument Security.  Principal shall also file with this 
Agreement a “monument security” in the amount of one hundred percent (100%) of the 
total estimated cost of the installation of survey monuments, as determined by the City 







7 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


Engineer, which total cost is in the amount of  Not Applicable, to guarantee and secure 
the placement of such monuments.


b. Additional Requirements.  


(1) Any bonds submitted as security pursuant to this section 
shall be furnished by companies who are authorized and licensed by the Insurance 
Commissioner of the State of California as “admitted surety insurers,” to act as surety 
upon bonds and undertakings.  The company shall maintain in this State at least one 
office for the conduct of its business.  Bonds must be approved by the City.  The 
premiums for said bonds shall be paid by Principal.  


(2) The bonds shall be furnished on the forms enclosed 
following this Agreement and shall be satisfactory to the City.    


(3) The surety (or sureties) shall furnish reports as to the 
financial conditions from time to time as requested by the City.  


(4) Alternative forms of security will be allowed upon approval of 
the City Engineer and shall be approved as to form by the City Attorney.  All required 
securities shall be in a form approved by the City Attorney.


(5) No change, alteration, or addition to the terms of this 
Agreement or the plans and specifications incorporated herein shall in any manner 
affect the obligation of the sureties.


(6) The securities shall be irrevocable, shall not be limited as to 
time (except as to the one-year guarantee and warranty period) and shall provide that 
they may be released, in whole or part, only upon the written approval of the City 
Engineer and as provided in this Agreement.  All securities provided pursuant to this 
Agreement shall expressly obligate the surety for any extension of time authorized by 
the City for Principal’s completion of the Required Improvements, whether or not the 
surety is given notice of such an extension by the City.


(7) The Attorney-in-Fact (resident agent) who executes the 
securities on behalf of the surety company must attach a copy of his/her Power of 
Attorney as evidence of his authority.  A notary shall acknowledge the power as of the 
date of the execution of the surety bond that it covers.


c. Principal’s Liability.  While no action of Principal shall be required in 
order for City to realize on its security under any security instrument, Principal agrees to 
cooperate with City to facilitate City’s realization under any security instrument, and to 
take no action to prevent City from such realization under any Security instrument.  
Notwithstanding the giving of any security instrument or the subsequent expiration of 
any security instrument or any failure by any surety or financial institution to perform its 
obligations with respect thereto, Principal shall be personally liable for performance 
under this Agreement and for payment of the cost of the labor and materials for the 
improvements required to be constructed or installed hereby and shall, within ten (10) 







8 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


days after written demand therefor, deliver to City such substitute security as City shall 
require satisfying the requirements in this Section 12.


d. Release of Security.


(1) Guarantee and Warranty Security.  Any unused portion of 
the guarantee and warranty security may be released one year after acceptance of the 
Required Improvements by the City.  The amount to be released shall first be reduced 
by the amount deemed necessary by the City to correct any defects in the Required 
Improvements that are known or believed by the City to exist at the end of the 
guarantee and warranty period. Any unreleased portion of the guarantee and warranty 
security shall remain in full force and effect unless and until the City notifies Principal in 
writing that the necessary repairs have been made to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer and that the warranty period has been successfully completed.


(2) Payment Security.  The payment security may be released 
thirty-five (35) days after passage of the time within which claims of lien are required to 
be recorded pursuant to Article 2 of Chapter 4 of Title 2 of Part 6 of Division 4 of the 
Civil Code (commencing with Section 8410), but in no event shall such security be 
released prior to one hundred and twenty (120) days after acceptance of the Required 
Improvements by the City.  The amount to be released shall first be reduced by the total 
of all claims on which an action has been filed and notice thereof given in writing to the 
City.  City expressly may require the surety not to release the amount of security 
deemed necessary by City to assure payment of reasonable expenses and fees, 
including reasonable attorney’s fees.


(3) Faithful Performance Security.  The faithful performance 
security may be released upon acceptance of the Required Improvements by the City.


(4) Monument Security.  The monument security may be 
released by written authorization of the City Engineer after all required monuments are 
accepted by the City Engineer, and City has received written acknowledgment of 
payment in full from the engineer or surveyor who set the monuments.


13. Insurance.


a. Types; Amounts.  Developer shall procure and maintain, and shall 
require its contractors to procure and maintain, during construction of any Public 
Improvement pursuant to this Agreement, insurance of the types and in the amounts 
described below.  If any of the Required Insurance contains a general aggregate limit, 
such insurance shall apply separately to this Agreement or be no less than two times 
the specified occurrence limit. 


(1) General Liability.  Developer and its contractors shall 
procure and maintain Commercial General Liability Insurance no less broad than 
Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CG 00 01 or equivalent form, with a combined 
single limit of not less than $3,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, 
and property damage. The General Aggregate shall be twice the occurrence limit or 
shall apply separately to each project. If Developer maintains higher limits than the 







9 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


specified minimum limits, City requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher 
limits maintained by Developer. The General Liability policy shall not contain a 
Contractors' Warranty or other similar language which eliminates or restricts insurance 
because of a subcontractor's failure to carry specific insurance or to supply evidence of 
such insurance


(2) Business Automobile Liability.  Developer and its 
contractors shall procure and maintain business automobile liability insurance, or 
equivalent form, with a combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence.  Such insurance shall include coverage for the ownership, operation, 
maintenance, use, loading, or unloading of any vehicle owned, hired, and non owned by 
the insured or for which the insured is responsible.


(3) Workers’ Compensation.  Developer and its contractors 
shall procure and maintain workers’ compensation insurance with limits as required by 
the Labor Code of the State of California and  Employers Liability with limits of 
$1,000,000 per Accident; $1,000,000 Disease per employee; $1,000,000 Disease per 
policy at all times during which insured retains employees.


(4) Professional Liability.  For any consultant or other 
professional who will engineer or design the Public Improvements, liability insurance for 
errors and omissions with limits not less than $1,000,000 per claim. Such insurance 
shall be endorsed to include contractual liability.  Coverage applicable to the work 
performed under this agreement shall be continued for five (5) years after completion of 
the work . Such continuation coverage may be provided by one of the following: (1) 
renewal of the existing policy; (2) an extended reporting period endorsement; or (3) 
replacement insurance with a retroactive date no later than the commencement of the 
work under this agreement.


(5) Pollution Liability. Minimum Limits: $1,000,000 per 
Pollution Incident; $1,000,000 Aggregate; Coverage shall apply to pollution incidents at 
or from any location at which Developer and its contractors are performing work under 
this agreement. Any deductible or self-insured retention shall be shown on the 
Certificate of Insurance.  If the deductible or self-insured retention exceeds $25,000 it 
shall be approved in advance by the City.  Developer and its contractors are responsible 
for any deductible or self-insured retention and shall fund it upon the City’s written 
request, regardless of whether Developer and its contractors have a claim against the 
insurance or are named as a party in any action involving the City. The City, its elected 
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be endorsed as an additional 
insured for liability arising out of ongoing and completed operations by or on behalf of 
the Developer and its contractors.  Additional insured status shall continue for one (1) 
year after completion of the work. The insurance provided to the additional insureds 
shall apply on a primary and non-contributory basis with respect to any insurance or 
self-insurance program maintained by them. If the insurance is on a Claims-Made basis, 
the retroactive date shall be no later than the commencement of work. The insurance 
shall be continued for one (1) year after completion of the work.  If the insurance is on a 
Claims-Made basis, the continuation coverage may be provided by: (a) renewal of the 







10 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


existing policy; (b) an extended reporting period endorsement; or (c) replacement 
insurance with a retroactive date no later than the commencement of the work.


b. Deductibles.  Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be 
declared to and approved by City.  At the option of City, either: (a) the insurer shall 
reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects City, its 
elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers; or (b) Developer and its 
contractors shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to City guaranteeing 
payment of losses and related investigation costs, claims, and administrative and 
defense expenses.


c. Additional Insured; Separation of Insureds.  The Required 
Insurance (except Workers’ Compensation and Professional Liability) shall name City, 
its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers as additional insureds 
with respect to work performed by or on behalf of Developer or its contractors, including 
materials, parts, or equipment furnished in connection therewith City shall be endorsed 
as an additional insured for liability arising out of ongoing and completed operations by 
or on behalf of the contractor. City shall continue to be an additional insured for 
completed operations for (1) year after completion of the work.   The policy shall cover 
inter-insured suits and include a “Separation of Insureds” or “severability” clause which 
treats each insured separately and shall contain no special limitations on the scope of 
its protection to City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.


d. Primary Insurance; Waiver of Subrogation.  The General 
Liability Insurance provided to the additional insured shall be primary to, and non 
contributory with, any insurance or self insurance program maintained by the City, its 
elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.  All policies for the 
Required Insurance shall provide that the insurance company waives all right of 
recovery by way of subrogation against City, its elected officials, officers, employees, 
agents and volunteers.


e. Certificates; Verification.  Developer and its contractors shall 
furnish City with original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage 
for the Required Insurance.  The certificates and endorsements for each insurance 
policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its 
behalf.  All certificates and endorsements must be received and approved by City 
before work pursuant to this Agreement can begin.  City reserves the right to require 
complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any time.


f. Term; Cancellation Notice.  Developer and its contractors shall 
maintain the Required Insurance for the term of this Agreement and shall replace any 
certificate, policy, or endorsement which will expire prior to that date. Developer shall 
provide immediate written notice if (1) any of the required insurance policies is 
terminated; (2) the limits of any of the required polices are reduced; (3) or the deductible 
or self insured retention is increased.  In the event of any cancellation or reduction in 
coverage or limits of any insurance, Developer shall forthwith obtain and submit proof of 
substitute insurance.  Should Developer fail to immediately procure other insurance, as 







11 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


specified, to substitute for any canceled policy, the City may procure such insurance at 
Developer’s sole cost and expense.


g. Insurer Rating.  Unless approved in writing by City, all Required 
Insurance shall placed with insurers licensed to do business in the State of California 
and with a current A.M. Best rating of at least A:VIII.


14. Principal Not Agent of City.  Neither Principal nor any of Principal’s agents, 
contractors, or subcontractors are or shall be considered to be agents of the City in 
connection with the performance of Principal’s obligations under this Agreement.


15. Default; Notice; Remedies.


a. Notice.  If Principal neglects, refuses, or fails to fulfill or timely 
complete any obligation, term, or condition of this Agreement, or if City determines there 
is a violation of any federal, state, or local law, ordinance, regulation, code, standard, or 
other requirement, City may at any time thereafter declare Principal to be in default or 
violation of this Agreement and make written demand upon Principal or its surety, or 
both, to immediately remedy the default or violation.  Principal shall commence the work 
required to remedy the default or violation within ten (10) days of the written demand 
from the City.  If the default or violation constitutes an immediate threat to the public 
health, safety, or welfare, City may provide the demand verbally, and Principal shall 
commence the required work within twenty-four (24) hours thereof.  Immediately upon 
City’s issuance of the demand to remedy the default, Principal and its surety shall be 
liable to City for all costs of construction and installation of the Required Improvements 
and all other administrative costs expenses as provided for in Section 9.0 of this 
Agreement.


b. Failure to Remedy; City Action.  If the work required to remedy the 
noticed default or violation is not diligently prosecuted to a substantial completion 
acceptable to City within a reasonable time designated by the City, City may complete 
all remaining work, arrange for the completion of all remaining work, and/or conduct 
such remedial activity as in its sole and absolute discretion it believes is required to 
remedy the default or violation.  All such work or remedial activity shall be at the sole 
and absolute cost, expense, and liability of Principal and its surety, without the necessity 
of giving any further notice to Principal or surety.  City’s right to take such actions shall 
in no way be limited by the fact that Principal or its surety may have constructed any, or 
none of the required or agreed upon Required Improvements at the time of City’s 
demand for performance.  In the event City elects to complete or arrange for completion 
of the remaining work and improvements, City may require all work by Principal or its 
surety to cease in order to allow adequate coordination by City.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, if conditions precedent for reversion to acreage can be met and if the 
interests of City will not be prejudiced thereby, City may also process a reversion to 
acreage and thereafter recover from Principal or its surety the full cost and expense 
incurred.


c. Other Remedies.  No action by City pursuant this section shall 
prohibit City from exercising any other right or pursuing any other legal or equitable 







12 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


remedy available under this Agreement or any federal, state, or local law.  City may 
exercise its rights and remedies independently or cumulatively, and City may pursue 
inconsistent remedies.  City may institute an action for damages, injunctive relief, or 
specific performance.


16. Notices.  All notices required under this Agreement shall be in writing, and 
delivered in person or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid.


Notices required to be given to City shall be addressed as follows:


City Engineer
City of Wildomar
23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201
Wildomar, CA  92595


Notices required to be given to Principal shall be addressed as follows:


KB Home Coastal Inc.
Heidi McBroom, Director of Forward Planning
36310 Inland Valley Drive
Wildomar, CA 92595


17. Authority to Execute.  Each of the signatories hereto represents and 
warrants that he or she is competent and authorized to enter into this Agreement on 
behalf of the Party for whom he or she purports to sign. Each Party hereto agrees to 
defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the other Parties hereto against all claims, suits, 
actions, and demands, including necessary expenses of investigation and reasonable 
attorneys' fees and costs, arising out of claims that its signatory was not competent or 
so authorized to execute this Agreement.


18. Attorney’s Fees. If any arbitration, lawsuit, or other legal action or 
proceeding is brought by one Party against the other Party in connection with this 
Agreement, the prevailing party, whether by final judgment or arbitration award, shall be 
entitled to and recover from the other party all attorney’s fees and costs.  Any judgment, 
order, or award entered in such legal action or proceeding shall contain a specific 
provision providing for the recovery of attorney’s fees and costs.


19. Assignment.  Principal shall not assign, hypothecate, or transfer, either 
directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein without prior written 
consent of City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and any assignee, 
hypothecatee, or transferee shall acquire no right or interest by reason of such 
attempted assignment, hypothecation, or transfer.  Unless specifically stated to the 
contrary in City’s written consent, any assignment, hypothecation, or transfer shall not 
release or discharge Developer from any duty or responsibility under this Agreement.


20. Compliance with Laws.  Principal, its agents, employees, contractors, and 
subcontractors shall comply with all federal, state and local laws in the performance of 
the work required by this Agreement including, but not limited to, obtaining all applicable 







13 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


permits and licenses.


21. Waiver.  City’s failure to insist upon strict compliance with any provision of 
this Agreement or to exercise any right or privilege provided herein, or City’s waiver of 
any breach of this Agreement, shall not relieve Principal of any of its obligations under 
this Agreement, whether of the same or similar type.  The foregoing shall be true 
whether City’s actions are intentional or unintentional.  Principal agrees to waive, as a 
defense, counterclaim or set off, any and all defects, irregularities or deficiencies in the 
authorization, execution or performance of the Required Improvements or this 
Agreement, as well as the laws, rules, regulations, ordinances or resolutions of City with 
regards to the authorization, execution or performance of the Required Improvements or 
this Agreement.


22. No Vesting of Rights.  Entering into this Agreement shall not be construed 
to vest Principal’s rights with respect to any change in any zoning or building law or 
ordinance.


23. Approvals by City; Amendment.  No amendment to or modification of this 
Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and approved by the Principal and by 
the City. The Parties agree that the requirement for written modifications cannot be 
waived and that any attempted waiver shall be void. The City’s City Manager may, but is 
not required to, make minor amendments not affecting substantive terms without further 
authorization from the City Council. The City Council hereby authorizes the City 
Manager to execute any such amendments as required by this Agreement or that do not 
otherwise reduce City’s rights under this Agreement.  All other amendments shall be 
approved by the City Council. 


24. Construction and Interpretation.  It is agreed and acknowledged by 
Principal that the provisions of this Agreement have been arrived at through negotiation, 
and that Principal has had a full and fair opportunity to revise the provisions of this 
Agreement and to have such provisions reviewed by legal counsel.  Therefore, the 
normal rule of construction that any ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting 
party shall not apply in construing or interpreting this Agreement.


25. Successors and Assigns -- Covenant Running With the Land.  This 
Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, the successors and 
assigns of the respective parties.  The Agreement shall be recorded in the Office of the 
Recorder of Riverside County and shall constitute a covenant running with the land and 
an equitable servitude upon the subject property.


26. Actions.  Any action by any party to this Agreement, or any action 
concerning a security furnished pursuant thereto, shall be brought in the appropriate 
court of competent jurisdiction within the County of Riverside, State of California, 
notwithstanding any other provision of law which may provide that such action may be 
brought in some other location.  The law governing this Agreement is the law of the 
State of California.


27. Integration.  This Agreement is an integrated agreement.  It supersedes all 







14 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral.


28. Construction; References; Captions.  It being agreed the Parties or their 
agents have participated in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this 
Agreement shall be construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for 
or against any Party.  Any term referencing time, days, or period for performance shall 
be deemed calendar days and not work days.  All references to Principal include all 
personnel, employees, agents, and subcontractors of Principal, except as otherwise 
specified in this Agreement.  All references to City include its elected officials, officers, 
employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  
The captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for convenience and ease of 
reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope, content, or 
intent of this Agreement.


29. Severability.  If any provision in this Agreement is held by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 
shall continue in full force without being impaired.


30. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterpart originals, 
which taken together, shall constitute one and the same instrument.


31. Effective Date of Agreement.  This Agreement shall not become effective 
until the date it has been formally approved by the City and executed by the appropriate 
authorities of City and Principal.


32. Relationship Between The Parties.  The Parties hereby mutually agree 
that neither this Agreement, nor any other related entitlement, permit, nor approval 
issued by City for the Property shall operate to create the relationship of partnership, 
joint venture, or agency between City and Principal.  Principal’s contractors and 
subcontractors are exclusively and solely under the control and dominion of Principal.  
Nothing herein shall be deemed to make Principal or its contractors an agent or 
contractor of City.


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as follows: 







15 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


CITY OF WILDOMAR


 
Gary Nordquist
City Manager


PRINCIPAL:


Name:  Heidi McBroom
Title: Director of Forward Planning


Name:  
Title:


ATTEST:


___________________________
Janet Morales
City Clerk


APPROVED AS TO FORM


___________________________
Thomas D. Jex
City Attorney


NOTE: SIGNATURES SHALL BE DULY NOTARIZED, AND APPROPRIATE ATTESTATIONS 
SHALL BE INCLUDED AS MAY BE REQUIRED BY THE BYLAWS, ARTICLES OF 
INCORPORATION, OR OTHER RULES OR REGULATIONS APPLICABLE TO T BUSINESS 
ENTITY.







16 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


EXHIBIT “A”


LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY


BEING A DIVISION OF A PORTION OF THE SOUTH HALF
OF LOT 178 OF SEDCO TRACT NO. 1 AS SHOWN BY MAP ON FILE 


IN BOOK 10 PAGES 58-75, INCLUSIVE OF MAPS, RECORDS OF 
RIVERSIDE COUNTY, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, SITUATED IN


SECTION 26, T6S, R4W, S.B.M.


APNs: 367-140-008, 367-140-010, 367-140-012







1 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


EXHIBIT “B”


SURETY BONDS AND OTHER SECURITY


As evidence of understanding the provisions contained in this Agreement, and of the 
Principal’s intent to comply with same, the Principal has submitted the below described 
security in the amounts required by this Agreement, and has affixed the appropriate 
signatures thereto:


PERFORMANCE SECURITY: $ 1,928,500.00
Surety:
Attorney-in-
fact:
Address:


PAYMENT SECURITY: $1,667,5   964,250.00
Surety:
Attorney-in-
fact:
Address:


MONUMENT SECURITY: $ Not Applicable
Amount deposited per Cash Receipt 
No.


Date:







1 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


BOND NO. ___________________
INITIAL PREMIUM:  ___________________


SUBJECT TO RENEWAL


CITY OF WILDOMAR


OFFSITE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS


FORM OF PERFORMANCE BOND


KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:


WHEREAS the City of Wildomar, California (“City”) and KB Home Coastal Inc., 
(“Principal”), have executed an agreement for work consisting of, but not limited to, the 
furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidentals for all grading, 
roads, paving, curbs and gutters, pathways, storm drains, sanitary sewers, utilities, 
drainage facilities, traffic controls, landscaping, street lights, and all other required 
facilities for Summerhill 2, Tract 37476 Offisite Public Improvements  (“Public 
Improvements”);


WHEREAS, the Public Improvements to be performed by Principal are more 
particularly set forth in that certain Public Improvement Agreement dated January 12, 
2022 (“Improvement Agreement”);


WHEREAS, the Improvement Agreement is hereby referred to and incorporated 
herein by reference; and


WHEREAS, Principal is required by the Improvement Agreement to provide a 
good and sufficient bond for performance of the Improvement Agreement, and to 
guarantee and warranty the Public Improvements constructed thereunder.


NOW, THEREFORE, Principal and _________________________________ 
(“Surety”), a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of 
__________, and duly authorized to transact surety business under the laws of the 
State of California, are held and firmly bound unto City in the sum of 
___________________________________ Dollars ($____________), said sum being 
not less than one hundred percent (100%) of the total cost of the Public Improvements 
as set forth in the Improvement Agreement, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors and 
administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.


THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such, that if Principal, his or its 
heirs, executors, administrators, successors or assigns, shall in all things stand to and 
abide by, and well and truly keep and perform the covenants, conditions, agreements, 
guarantees, and warranties in the Improvement Agreement and any alteration thereof 
made as therein provided, to be kept and performed at the time and in the manner 
therein specified and in all respects according to their intent and meaning, and to 
indemnify and save harmless City, its officers, employees, and agents, as stipulated in 







2 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


the Improvement Agreement, then this obligation shall become null and void; otherwise 
it shall be and remain in full force and effect.


As part of the obligation secured hereby, and in addition to the face amount 
specified therefor, there shall be included costs and reasonable expenses and fees, 
including reasonable attorney’s fees, incurred by City in successfully enforcing such 
obligation, all to be taxed as costs and included in any judgment rendered.


Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, 
extension of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the Improvement Agreement, or 
to any plans, profiles, and specifications related thereto, or to the Public Improvements 
to be constructed thereunder, shall in any way affect its obligations on this bond, and it 
does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration, or addition.


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the seal and signature of the Principal is hereto 
affixed, and the corporate seal and the name of the Surety is hereto affixed and attested 
by its duly authorized Attorney-in-Fact at _______________________, this _____ day 
of _______________, ______.


KB Home Coastal Inc.
Principal Surety


By: By:
Its:  Managing Member Attorney-In-Fact


(print name) (print name)


NOTE: APPROPRIATE NOTARIAL ACKNOWLEDGMENTS OF EXECUTION 
BY PRINCIPAL AND SURETY, AND A COPY OF THE POWER OF 
ATTORNEY TO LOCAL REPRESENTATIVES OF THE BONDING 
COMPANY MUST BE ATTACHED TO THIS BOND.







1 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


BOND NO. ___________________
INITIAL PREMIUM:  ___________________


SUBJECT TO RENEWAL


CITY OF WILDOMAR


OFFSITE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS


FORM OF LABOR AND MATERIAL BOND


KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:


WHEREAS the City of Wildomar California (“City”) and KB Home Coastal Inc., 
(“Principal”), have executed an agreement for work consisting of, but not limited to, the 
furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidentals for all grading, 
roads, paving, curbs and gutters, pathways, storm drains, sanitary sewers, utilities, 
drainage facilities, traffic controls, landscaping, street lights, and all other required 
facilities for Summerhill 2, Tract 37476 Offsite Public Improvements (“Public 
Improvements”);


WHEREAS, the Public Improvements to be performed by Principal are more 
particularly set forth in that certain Public Improvement Agreement dated January 12, 
2022 (“Improvement Agreement”);


WHEREAS, the Improvement Agreement is hereby referred to and incorporated 
herein by reference; and


WHEREAS, Principal is required to furnish a bond in connection with the 
Improvement Agreement providing that if Principal or any of its subcontractors shall fail 
to pay for any materials, provisions, or other supplies, or terms used in, upon, for, or 
about the performance of the Public Improvements, or for any work or labor done 
thereon of any kind, or for amounts due under the provisions of Title 1 (commencing 
with section 8000) through Title 3 (commencing with section 9000) of Part 6 of Division 
4 of the California Civil Code, with respect to such work or labor, that the Surety on this 
bond will pay the same together with a reasonable attorney’s fee in case suit is brought 
on the bond.


NOW, THEREFORE, Principal and _________________________ (“Surety”), a 
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of _________________, 
and duly authorized to transact business under the laws of the State of California, are 
held and firmly bound unto City and to any and all material men, persons, companies or 
corporations furnishing materials, provisions, and other supplies used in, upon, for or 
about the performance of the Public Improvements, and all persons, companies or 
corporations renting or hiring teams, or implements or machinery, for or contributing to 
the Public Improvements to be done, and all persons performing work or labor upon the 







2 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


same and all persons supplying both work and materials as aforesaid excepting the 
Principal, the sum of _________________________ Dollars ($_______________), said 
sum being not less than 50% of the total cost of the Public Improvements under the 
terms of the Improvement Agreement, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors and 
administrators, successors and assigns jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.


THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH that if the Principal, his or its 
subcontractors, heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns, shall fail to pay 
for any materials, provisions, or other supplies or machinery used in, upon, for or about 
the performance of the Public Improvements, or for work or labor thereon of any kind, or 
fail to pay any of the persons named in California Civil Code Section 9100, or amounts 
due under the Unemployment Insurance Code with respect to work or labor performed 
by any such claimant, or for any amounts required to be deducted, withheld, and paid 
over to the Employment Development Department from the wages of employees of the 
contractor and his subcontractors pursuant to Section 13020 of the Unemployment 
Insurance Code with respect to such work and labor, and all other applicable laws of the 
State of California and rules and regulations of its agencies, then said Surety will pay 
the same in or to an amount not exceeding the sum specified herein.


As part of the obligation secured hereby, and in addition to the face amount 
specified therefor, there shall be included costs and reasonable expenses and fees, 
including reasonable attorney’s fees, incurred by City in successfully enforcing such 
obligation, all to be taxed as costs and included in any judgment rendered.


It is hereby expressly stipulated and agreed that this bond shall inure to the 
benefit of any and all persons, companies, and corporations entitled to file claims under 
Title 1 (commencing with section 8000) through Title 3 (commencing with section 9000) 
of Part 6 of Division 4 of the California Civil Code, so as to give a right of action to them 
or their assigns in any suit brought upon this bond.


Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, 
extension of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the Improvement Agreement, or 
to any plans, profiles, and specifications related thereto, or to the Public Improvements 
to be constructed thereunder, shall in any way affect its obligations on this bond, and it 
does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration, or addition.







3 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the seal and signature of the Principal is hereto 
affixed, and the corporate seal and the name of the Surety is hereto affixed and attested 
by its duly authorized Attorney-in-Fact at _____________________, this _____ day of 
_______________, ______.


KB Home Coastal Inc.
Principal Surety


By: By:
Its:  Managing Member Attorney-In-Fact


(print name) (print name)


NOTE: APPROPRIATE NOTARIAL ACKNOWLEDGMENTS OF EXECUTION 
BY PRINCIPAL AND SURETY, AND A COPY OF THE POWER OF 
ATTORNEY TO LOCAL REPRESENTATIVES OF THE BONDING 
COMPANY MUST BE ATTACHED TO THIS BOND.







































CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #1.10 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date: January 12, 2022 


______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO: Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Dan York, Assistant City Manager 
 
PREPARED: Emily Stadnik, Land Development Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Villa Sienna Apartment Project (PP 13-0089): Onsite Public 


Improvement Agreement and Offsite Public Improvement Agreement 
 


STAFF REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the City Manager to execute the Onsite 
Public Improvement Agreement and Offsite Public Improvement Agreement with Villa 
Sienna Property, LLC. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Villa Sienna Apartment Project (Plot Plan No. 13-0089) (Project) is an approved plot 
plan for multi-family residential purposes located north of Prielipp Road, between 
Elizabeth Lane and Jana Lane, within the City of Wildomar. The Project was approved by 
the City’s Planning Commission on November 4, 2020 for the construction of 170 
apartment dwelling units.   The planned development will consist of 28 apartment 
buildings, pool and club house.  On November 7, 2018, an extension of time was 
approved by the Planning Commission.  With the approval of extension of time, the new 
deadline to begin construction on the project is November 12, 2021.  An aerial image of 
the project site and the surrounding area is provided in Attachment A and the project site 
plan is provided in Attachment B. The grading and public improvement plans for Villa 
Sienna Apartment Project have been reviewed and approved by the City.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
Public Improvement Agreements 
In order to complete onsite and offsite public improvements, the Developer is required to 
enter into an Onsite Public Improvement Agreement and Offsite Public Improvement 
Agreement (Attachments C and D respectively) with the City. The agreements identify the 
Developer’s obligations to the City in performing and completing the construction for 
onsite and offsite public improvements. The agreements also provide the City with bonds 
to ensure the Developer will fulfill his/her obligations and secure improvements. If the 
Developer fails to fulfill these obligations, the bonds will provide a mechanism for the City 
to ensure that the construction site is brought to a safe and acceptable condition. The 







security amounts are based on the Developer’s engineer’s construction cost estimates 
for the onsite and offsite public improvements.  
 
Staff is requesting that the City Council authorize the City Manager to execute the Onsite 
Improvement Agreement and Offsite Public Improvement Agreement. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There are no fiscal impacts to the City at this time. All costs related to this process are 
covered by developer deposits.  
 
 
Submitted by:      Approved by: 
Daniel A. York      Gary Nordquist 
Assistant City Manager,     City Manager 
Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 


A. Aerial Image of Villa Sienna Apartment Project 
B. Villa Sienna Apartment Project Site Plan 
C. Onsite Public Improvement Agreement, Surety Bonds, and Onsite Cost Estimate 
D. Offsite Public Improvement Agreement, Surety Bonds and Offsite Cost Estimate 


 







ATTACHMENT A


Aerial Image of Villa Siena Apartment Project
(highlighted in yellow)







ATTACHMENT B


Tract Map No. 31667 
McVicar Culvert Cooperative Agreement


Villa Siena Apartment Project
Site Plan







DW


S







ATTACHMENT B


Tract Map No. 31667 
McVicar Culvert Cooperative Agreement



Neva

Text Box

Onsite Public Improvement AgreementSurety BondsOnsite Cost Estimate



Neva

Text Box

ATTACHMENT C







1 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


NO FEE DOCUMENT
Government Code §6103
RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:


CITY OF WILDOMAR
23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201
Wildomar, CA  92595
Attn: City Clerk 


The Above Space For Recorder’s 
Use Only


Project Name:  Villa Siena Apartments
Project Address:  36485 Jana Lane  
APN:  380-290-029
Project No.:  21-0061


ONSITE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


This Public Improvement Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into this 12th day of 
January, 2022 by and between the City of Wildomar, a California municipal corporation 
(“City”) and Villa Siena Property, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Principal”).  
City and Principal may be individual or collectively referred to as a “party” or the 
“parties” to this Agreement.


RECITALS


A. Principal owns the real property located at APNs 380-290-029, in the City 
of Wildomar, California, which is more particularly described in Exhibit “A” to this 
Agreement (“Property”).


B. Principal has applied for and obtained certain development approvals from 
the City to develop the Property.  The development approvals and City ordinances 
require Principal to construct certain public improvements and dedicate those public 
improvements to the City after construction is complete.


C. This Agreement memorializes the understanding between the parties 
regarding the terms and conditions under which Principal will construct and City will 
accept the required public improvements.


OPERATIVE PROVISIONS


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants 
made by the parties and contained here and other consideration, the value and 
adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:







2 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


1. Construction of Improvements.  The Principal agrees to construct and 
install public improvements on Jana Lane at the Principal’s own cost and expense - said 
improvements shown on the onsite improvement plans submitted by Principal and 
approved by the City as referenced and contained within this Public Improvement 
Agreement (“Required Improvements”).  Prior to commencing any work, Principal shall, 
at its sole cost and expense, obtain all necessary permits and approvals and give all 
necessary and incidental notices required for the lawful construction of the Required 
Improvements and performance of Principal’s obligations under this Agreement.  The 
Required Improvements shall be constructed in accordance with all approved plans, 
specifications, standard drawings, and special amendments thereto on file with City, as 
well as all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations, codes, 
standards, and other requirements applicable at the time work is actually commenced.  
Principal shall complete the construction of the Required Improvements within twelve 
months of the date of this Agreement.


a. Standard of Performance.  Principal and its contractors, if any, shall 
perform all work required to construct the Required Improvements under this Agreement 
in a skillful and workmanlike manner, and consistent with the standards generally 
recognized as being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the State of 
California.  Principal represents and maintains that it or its contractors shall be skilled in 
the professional calling necessary to perform the work.  Principal warrants that all of its 
employees and contractors shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the work 
assigned to them, and that they shall have all licenses, permits, qualifications and 
approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to perform the work, and that 
such licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals shall be maintained throughout the 
term of this Agreement.


b. Alterations to Improvements.  All work shall be done and 
improvements made and completed as shown on approved plans and specifications, 
and any subsequent alterations thereto.  If during the course of construction and 
installation of the Required Improvements it is determined that the public interest 
requires alterations in the Required Improvements, Developer shall undertake such 
design and construction changes as may be reasonably required by City.  Any and all 
alterations in the plans and specifications and the Required Improvements to be 
completed may be accomplished without giving prior notice thereof to Developer’s 
surety for this Agreement.


c. Fees and Charges.  Principal shall, at its sole cost and expense, 
pay all fees, charges, and taxes arising out of construction of the Required 
Improvements, including, but not limited to, all plan check, design review, engineering, 
inspection, and other service fees, and any impact or connection fees established by 
City ordinance, resolution, regulation, or policy, or as established by City or as required 
by other governmental agencies having jurisdiction over the Required Improvements.


2. Commencement of Work.  The Principal shall notify the City Engineer of 
the commencement of work on the Required Improvements.


3. Completion of Improvements.  Upon satisfactory completion of all 







3 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


Required Improvements as determined by the City Engineer or his or her designee 
(hereafter the “City Engineer”), Principal shall offer to dedicate the Required 
Improvements to the City, and City agrees to accept that offer of dedication in 
accordance with its policies and procedures and the terms of this Agreement.  


4. Title to Required Improvements.  The City shall not accept the Required 
Improvements unless they are constructed in conformity with the approved plans and 
specifications, approved modifications, if any, and City Improvement Standards and 
Specifications, to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.  Until such time as the Required 
Improvements are accepted by the City, Principal shall retain title and shall be 
responsible for, and bear the risk of loss to, any of the improvements constructed or 
installed.  Title to and ownership of the Required Improvements shall vest absolutely in 
the City upon completion and acceptance in writing of such Required Improvements by 
City.  The City shall not accept the Required Improvements unless title to the Required 
Improvements is entirely free from lien.  Prior to acceptance, Principal shall supply the 
City with appropriate lien releases, at no cost to and in a form acceptable to the City.


a. Developer’s Notice of Completion.  Upon the acceptance of the 
Required Improvements by City, Principal shall file with the Recorder’s Office of the 
County of Riverside a notice of completion for the accepted Required Improvements in 
accordance with Article 2 of Chapter 4 of Title 2 of Part 6 of Division 4 of the Civil Code, 
at which time the accepted Required Improvements shall become the sole and 
exclusive property of City without payment therefor.


b. City Acceptance of Public Improvements.  Issuance by City of 
occupancy permits for any buildings or structures located on the Property shall not be 
construed in any manner to constitute City’s acceptance or approval of any Required 
Improvements.  


c. Developer’s Obligation to Provide As-Built or Record Drawings.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, City may not accept any Required Improvements unless 
and until Principal provides one (1) set of “as-built” or record drawings or plans to the 
City Engineer for all such Required Improvements.  The drawings shall be certified and 
shall reflect the condition of the Required Improvements as constructed, with all 
changes incorporated therein.


5. Extension of Time to Complete Improvements.


a. The City Engineer may extend the date for completing the Required 
Improvements. Extensions shall be granted only upon a showing of good cause by the 
Principal.  The City Engineer shall be the sole and final judge as to whether good cause 
has been shown.


b. Requests for extension of the completion date shall be in writing 
and delivered to the City Engineer in the manner hereinafter specified for service of 
notices.  An extension of time, if any, shall be granted only in writing, and an oral 
extension shall not be valid or binding on the City.







4 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


c. In the event the City Engineer extends the time of completion of the 
Required Improvements, such extension may be granted without notice by the City to 
the Principal’s surety and shall in no way release any guarantee or security given by the 
Principal pursuant to this Agreement, or relieve or release those providing an 
improvement security pursuant to this Agreement.  The surety or sureties, if any, in 
executing the securities shall be deemed to have expressly agreed to any such 
extension of time.


d. In granting any extension of time, the City may require new or 
amended improvement security to reflect increases in the estimated costs of 
constructing the Required Improvements or impose other conditions to protect its 
interests and ensure the timely completion of the Required Improvements.


6. Inspection.  Principal shall at all times maintain proper facilities and safe 
access for inspection of the Required Improvements by City and to the shops wherein 
any work is in preparation.  Upon completion of the work, the Principal may request a 
final inspection by the City Engineer or his designee.  If the City Engineer or the 
designated representative determines that the work has been completed in accordance 
with this Agreement, then the City Engineer shall certify the completion of the Required 
Improvements to the City.  No improvements shall be finally accepted unless all aspects 
of the work have been inspected and determined to have been completed in 
accordance with the Improvement Plans and City standards.  Principal shall bear all 
costs of plan check, inspection and certification.


7. Maintenance of Improvements.  City shall not be responsible or liable for 
the maintenance or care of the Required Improvements until City formally approves and 
accepts them in accordance with its policies and procedures.  City shall exercise no 
control over the Required Improvements until approved and accepted.  Any use by any 
person of the Required Improvements, or any portion thereof, shall be at the sole and 
exclusive risk of the Principal at all times prior to City’s acceptance of the Required 
Improvements.  Principal shall maintain all the Required Improvements in a state of 
good repair until they are completed by Principal and approved and accepted by City, 
and until the security for the performance of this Agreement is released.  Maintenance 
shall include, but shall not be limited to, repair of pavement, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, 
signals, parkways, water mains, and sewers; maintaining all landscaping in a vigorous 
and thriving condition reasonably acceptable to City; removal of debris from sewers and 
storm drains; and sweeping, repairing, and maintaining in good and safe condition all 
streets and street improvements.  It shall be Principal’s responsibility to initiate all 
maintenance work, but if it shall fail to do so, it shall promptly perform such maintenance 
work when notified to do so by City.  If Principal fails to properly prosecute its 
maintenance obligation under this section, City may do all work necessary for such 
maintenance and the cost thereof shall be the responsibility of Principal and its surety 
under this Agreement.  City shall not be responsible or liable for any damages or injury 
of any nature in any way related to or caused by the Required Improvements or their 
condition prior to acceptance.  Until final acceptance of the Required Improvements, 
Principal shall give good and adequate warning to the public of each and every 
dangerous condition existing on the Property, and will take reasonable actions to protect 
the public from such dangerous conditions.







5 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


8. Superintendence by Principal.  Principal shall require each contractor and 
subcontractor to have a competent foreman on the job at all times when that contractor 
or subcontractor, or any employee or agent thereof, is performing work on the Required 
Improvements.  In addition, Principal shall maintain an office with a telephone and 
Principal or a person authorized to make decisions and to act for Principal in Principal’s 
absence shall be available on the job site within three (3) hours of being called at such 
office by the City during the hours of 9:00 A.M. through 5:00 P.M., Monday through 
Friday, or any other day or time when work is being performed on the Required 
Improvements.


9. Injury to Public Improvements, Public Property or Public Utilities Facilities.  
Principal shall replace or repair, or have replaced or repaired, all public improvements, 
public utility facilities, and surveying or subdivision monuments which are destroyed or 
damaged in the performance of any work under this Agreement.  Principal shall bear the 
entire cost of replacement or repairs of any and all public or private utility property 
damaged or destroyed in the performance of any work done under this Agreement, 
whether such property is owned by the United States or any agency thereof, or the 
State of California, or any agency or political subdivision thereof, or by the City or any 
public or private utility corporation or by any combination of such owners.  Any repair or 
replacement shall be to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.


10. Warranty.  If, within a period of one year after final acceptance by the City 
of the Required Improvements, any improvement or part of any improvement furnished 
and/or installed or constructed, or caused to be installed or constructed by Principal, or 
any of the work done under this Agreement materially fails to fulfill any of the 
requirements of this Agreement or the specifications referred to herein, Principal shall 
without delay and without any cost to City, repair, replace or reconstruct any defective 
or otherwise unsatisfactory part or parts of the improvements.  If the Principal fails to act 
promptly or in accordance with this requirement, or if the exigencies of the situation 
require repairs or replacements to be made before the Principal can be notified, then 
the City may, at its option, make the necessary repairs or replacements or perform the 
necessary work, and Principal shall pay to City the actual cost of such repairs plus 
fifteen percent (15%) within thirty (30) days of the date of billing for such work by City.  
As to any Required Improvements which have been repaired, replaced, or 
reconstructed during the Warranty, Principal and its surety hereby agree to extend the 
Warranty for an additional one (1) year period following City’s acceptance of the 
repaired, replaced, or reconstructed Required Improvements.  Nothing herein shall 
relieve Principal from any other liability it may have under federal, state, or local law to 
repair, replace, or reconstruct any Required Improvement following expiration of the 
Warranty or any extension thereof.  Principal’s warranty obligation under this section 
shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.


11. Defense, Indemnification and Hold Harmless.  Principal shall defend, 
indemnify, and hold harmless City, its elected officials, officers, employees, and agents 
from any and all actual or alleged claims, demands, causes of action, liability, loss, 
damage, or injury, to property or persons, including wrongful death, whether imposed by 
a court of law or by administrative action of any federal, state, or local governmental 
body or agency, arising out of or incident to any acts, omissions, negligence, or willful 







6 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


misconduct of Principal, its personnel, employees, agents, or contractors in connection 
with or arising out of construction or maintenance of the Required Improvements, or 
performance of this Agreement.  This indemnification includes, without limitation, the 
payment of all penalties, fines, judgments, awards, decrees, attorneys’ fees, and related 
costs or expenses, and the reimbursement of City, its elected officials, officers, 
employees, and/or agents for all legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them.  
This indemnification excludes only such portion of any claim, demand, cause of action, 
liability, loss, damage, penalty, fine, or injury, to property or persons, including wrongful 
death, which is caused solely and exclusively by the gross negligence or willful 
misconduct of City as determined by a court or administrative body of competent 
jurisdiction.  Principal’s obligation to indemnify City shall survive the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement, and shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, 
received by City, its elected officials, officers, employees, or agents.


12. Security.  


a. Required Security.  Concurrently with the execution of this 
Agreement, the Principal shall furnish the City with:


(1) Faithful Performance Security.  Principal shall provide faithful 
performance security to secure faithful performance of this Agreement (“faithful 
performance” security).  This security shall be in the amount of one hundred percent 
(100%) of the total estimated cost of the Required Improvements, as determined by the 
City Engineer, which total cost is in the amount of  $2,009,500.00 (Two Million Nine 
Thousand Five Hundred and No/100 Dollars).


(2) Payment Security.  Principal shall also provide payment 
security to secure payment to the contractors, subcontractors, laborers, material men, 
and other persons furnishing labor, materials, or equipment for the work (“payment 
security”).  This security shall be in the amount of fifty percent (50%) of the total 
estimated cost of the Required Improvements, as determined by the City Engineer, 
which total cost is in the amount of $1,004,750.00 (One Million Four Thousand Seven 
Hundred Fifty and No/100 Dollars), and shall secure the obligations set forth in Title 1 
(commencing with Section 8000) through Title 3 (commencing with Section 9000) of 
Part 6 of Division 4 of the Civil Code of the State of California.


(3) Guarantee and Warranty Security.  Principal shall also file 
with this Agreement a “guarantee and warranty security” in the amount of ten percent 
(10%) of the total estimated cost of the Required Improvements, as determined by the 
City Engineer, which total cost is in the amount of $200,950.00 (Two Hundred 
Thousand Nine Hundred Fifty and No/100 Dollars) to guarantee and warrant the 
Required Improvements for a period of one year following their completion and 
acceptance against any defective work or labor done, or defective materials furnished.


(4) Monument Security.  Principal shall also file with this 
Agreement a “monument security” in the amount of one hundred percent (100%) of the 
total estimated cost of the installation of survey monuments, as determined by the City 







7 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


Engineer, which total cost is in the amount of  Not Applicable to guarantee and secure 
the placement of such monuments.


b. Additional Requirements.  


(1) Any bonds submitted as security pursuant to this section 
shall be furnished by companies who are authorized and licensed by the Insurance 
Commissioner of the State of California as “admitted surety insurers,” to act as surety 
upon bonds and undertakings.  The company shall maintain in this State at least one 
office for the conduct of its business.  Bonds must be approved by the City.  The 
premiums for said bonds shall be paid by Principal.  


(2) The bonds shall be furnished on the forms enclosed 
following this Agreement and shall be satisfactory to the City.    


(3) The surety (or sureties) shall furnish reports as to the 
financial conditions from time to time as requested by the City.  


(4) Alternative forms of security will be allowed upon approval of 
the City Engineer and shall be approved as to form by the City Attorney.  All required 
securities shall be in a form approved by the City Attorney.


(5) No change, alteration, or addition to the terms of this 
Agreement or the plans and specifications incorporated herein shall in any manner 
affect the obligation of the sureties.


(6) The securities shall be irrevocable, shall not be limited as to 
time (except as to the one-year guarantee and warranty period) and shall provide that 
they may be released, in whole or part, only upon the written approval of the City 
Engineer and as provided in this Agreement.  All securities provided pursuant to this 
Agreement shall expressly obligate the surety for any extension of time authorized by 
the City for Principal’s completion of the Required Improvements, whether or not the 
surety is given notice of such an extension by the City.


(7) The Attorney-in-Fact (resident agent) who executes the 
securities on behalf of the surety company must attach a copy of his/her Power of 
Attorney as evidence of his authority.  A notary shall acknowledge the power as of the 
date of the execution of the surety bond that it covers.


c. Principal’s Liability.  While no action of Principal shall be required in 
order for City to realize on its security under any security instrument, Principal agrees to 
cooperate with City to facilitate City’s realization under any security instrument, and to 
take no action to prevent City from such realization under any Security instrument.  
Notwithstanding the giving of any security instrument or the subsequent expiration of 
any security instrument or any failure by any surety or financial institution to perform its 
obligations with respect thereto, Principal shall be personally liable for performance 
under this Agreement and for payment of the cost of the labor and materials for the 
improvements required to be constructed or installed hereby and shall, within ten (10) 







8 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


days after written demand therefor, deliver to City such substitute security as City shall 
require satisfying the requirements in this Section 12.


d. Release of Security.


(1) Guarantee and Warranty Security.  Any unused portion of 
the guarantee and warranty security may be released one year after acceptance of the 
Required Improvements by the City.  The amount to be released shall first be reduced 
by the amount deemed necessary by the City to correct any defects in the Required 
Improvements that are known or believed by the City to exist at the end of the 
guarantee and warranty period. Any unreleased portion of the guarantee and warranty 
security shall remain in full force and effect unless and until the City notifies Principal in 
writing that the necessary repairs have been made to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer and that the warranty period has been successfully completed.


(2) Payment Security.  The payment security may be released 
thirty-five (35) days after passage of the time within which claims of lien are required to 
be recorded pursuant to Article 2 of Chapter 4 of Title 2 of Part 6 of Division 4 of the 
Civil Code (commencing with Section 8410), but in no event shall such security be 
released prior to one hundred and twenty (120) days after acceptance of the Required 
Improvements by the City.  The amount to be released shall first be reduced by the total 
of all claims on which an action has been filed and notice thereof given in writing to the 
City.  City expressly may require the surety not to release the amount of security 
deemed necessary by City to assure payment of reasonable expenses and fees, 
including reasonable attorney’s fees.


(3) Faithful Performance Security.  The faithful performance 
security may be released upon acceptance of the Required Improvements by the City.


(4) Monument Security.  The monument security may be 
released by written authorization of the City Engineer after all required monuments are 
accepted by the City Engineer, and City has received written acknowledgment of 
payment in full from the engineer or surveyor who set the monuments.


13. Insurance.


a. Types; Amounts.  Developer shall procure and maintain, and shall 
require its contractors to procure and maintain, during construction of any Public 
Improvement pursuant to this Agreement, insurance of the types and in the amounts 
described below.  If any of the Required Insurance contains a general aggregate limit, 
such insurance shall apply separately to this Agreement or be no less than two times 
the specified occurrence limit. 


(1) General Liability.  Developer and its contractors shall 
procure and maintain Commercial General Liability Insurance no less broad than 
Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CG 00 01 or equivalent form, with a combined 
single limit of not less than $3,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, 
and property damage. The General Aggregate shall be twice the occurrence limit or 
shall apply separately to each project. If Developer maintains higher limits than the 







9 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


specified minimum limits, City requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher 
limits maintained by Developer. The General Liability policy shall not contain a 
Contractors' Warranty or other similar language which eliminates or restricts insurance 
because of a subcontractor's failure to carry specific insurance or to supply evidence of 
such insurance


(2) Business Automobile Liability.  Developer and its 
contractors shall procure and maintain business automobile liability insurance, or 
equivalent form, with a combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence.  Such insurance shall include coverage for the ownership, operation, 
maintenance, use, loading, or unloading of any vehicle owned, hired, and non owned by 
the insured or for which the insured is responsible.


(3) Workers’ Compensation.  Developer and its contractors 
shall procure and maintain workers’ compensation insurance with limits as required by 
the Labor Code of the State of California and  Employers Liability with limits of 
$1,000,000 per Accident; $1,000,000 Disease per employee; $1,000,000 Disease per 
policy at all times during which insured retains employees.


(4) Professional Liability.  For any consultant or other 
professional who will engineer or design the Public Improvements, liability insurance for 
errors and omissions with limits not less than $1,000,000 per claim. Such insurance 
shall be endorsed to include contractual liability.  Coverage applicable to the work 
performed under this agreement shall be continued for five (5) years after completion of 
the work . Such continuation coverage may be provided by one of the following: (1) 
renewal of the existing policy; (2) an extended reporting period endorsement; or (3) 
replacement insurance with a retroactive date no later than the commencement of the 
work under this agreement.


(5) Pollution Liability. Minimum Limits: $1,000,000 per 
Pollution Incident; $1,000,000 Aggregate; Coverage shall apply to pollution incidents at 
or from any location at which Developer and its contractors are performing work under 
this agreement. Any deductible or self-insured retention shall be shown on the 
Certificate of Insurance.  If the deductible or self-insured retention exceeds $25,000 it 
shall be approved in advance by the City.  Developer and its contractors are responsible 
for any deductible or self-insured retention and shall fund it upon the City’s written 
request, regardless of whether Developer and its contractors have a claim against the 
insurance or are named as a party in any action involving the City. The City, its elected 
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be endorsed as an additional 
insured for liability arising out of ongoing and completed operations by or on behalf of 
the Developer and its contractors.  Additional insured status shall continue for one (1) 
year after completion of the work. The insurance provided to the additional insureds 
shall apply on a primary and non-contributory basis with respect to any insurance or 
self-insurance program maintained by them. If the insurance is on a Claims-Made basis, 
the retroactive date shall be no later than the commencement of work. The insurance 
shall be continued for one (1) year after completion of the work.  If the insurance is on a 
Claims-Made basis, the continuation coverage may be provided by: (a) renewal of the 







10 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


existing policy; (b) an extended reporting period endorsement; or (c) replacement 
insurance with a retroactive date no later than the commencement of the work.


b. Deductibles.  Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be 
declared to and approved by City.  At the option of City, either: (a) the insurer shall 
reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects City, its 
elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers; or (b) Developer and its 
contractors shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to City guaranteeing 
payment of losses and related investigation costs, claims, and administrative and 
defense expenses.


c. Additional Insured; Separation of Insureds.  The Required 
Insurance (except Workers’ Compensation and Professional Liability) shall name City, 
its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers as additional insureds 
with respect to work performed by or on behalf of Developer or its contractors, including 
materials, parts, or equipment furnished in connection therewith City shall be endorsed 
as an additional insured for liability arising out of ongoing and completed operations by 
or on behalf of the contractor. City shall continue to be an additional insured for 
completed operations for (1) year after completion of the work.   The policy shall cover 
inter-insured suits and include a “Separation of Insureds” or “severability” clause which 
treats each insured separately and shall contain no special limitations on the scope of 
its protection to City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.


d. Primary Insurance; Waiver of Subrogation.  The General 
Liability Insurance provided to the additional insured shall be primary to, and non 
contributory with, any insurance or self insurance program maintained by the City, its 
elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.  All policies for the 
Required Insurance shall provide that the insurance company waives all right of 
recovery by way of subrogation against City, its elected officials, officers, employees, 
agents and volunteers.


e. Certificates; Verification.  Developer and its contractors shall 
furnish City with original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage 
for the Required Insurance.  The certificates and endorsements for each insurance 
policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its 
behalf.  All certificates and endorsements must be received and approved by City 
before work pursuant to this Agreement can begin.  City reserves the right to require 
complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any time.


f. Term; Cancellation Notice.  Developer and its contractors shall 
maintain the Required Insurance for the term of this Agreement and shall replace any 
certificate, policy, or endorsement which will expire prior to that date. Developer shall 
provide immediate written notice if (1) any of the required insurance policies is 
terminated; (2) the limits of any of the required polices are reduced; (3) or the deductible 
or self insured retention is increased.  In the event of any cancellation or reduction in 
coverage or limits of any insurance, Developer shall forthwith obtain and submit proof of 
substitute insurance.  Should Developer fail to immediately procure other insurance, as 







11 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


specified, to substitute for any canceled policy, the City may procure such insurance at 
Developer’s sole cost and expense.


g. Insurer Rating.  Unless approved in writing by City, all Required 
Insurance shall placed with insurers licensed to do business in the State of California 
and with a current A.M. Best rating of at least A:VIII.


14. Principal Not Agent of City.  Neither Principal nor any of Principal’s agents, 
contractors, or subcontractors are or shall be considered to be agents of the City in 
connection with the performance of Principal’s obligations under this Agreement.


15. Default; Notice; Remedies.


a. Notice.  If Principal neglects, refuses, or fails to fulfill or timely 
complete any obligation, term, or condition of this Agreement, or if City determines there 
is a violation of any federal, state, or local law, ordinance, regulation, code, standard, or 
other requirement, City may at any time thereafter declare Principal to be in default or 
violation of this Agreement and make written demand upon Principal or its surety, or 
both, to immediately remedy the default or violation.  Principal shall commence the work 
required to remedy the default or violation within ten (10) days of the written demand 
from the City.  If the default or violation constitutes an immediate threat to the public 
health, safety, or welfare, City may provide the demand verbally, and Principal shall 
commence the required work within twenty-four (24) hours thereof.  Immediately upon 
City’s issuance of the demand to remedy the default, Principal and its surety shall be 
liable to City for all costs of construction and installation of the Required Improvements 
and all other administrative costs expenses as provided for in Section 9.0 of this 
Agreement.


b. Failure to Remedy; City Action.  If the work required to remedy the 
noticed default or violation is not diligently prosecuted to a substantial completion 
acceptable to City within a reasonable time designated by the City, City may complete 
all remaining work, arrange for the completion of all remaining work, and/or conduct 
such remedial activity as in its sole and absolute discretion it believes is required to 
remedy the default or violation.  All such work or remedial activity shall be at the sole 
and absolute cost, expense, and liability of Principal and its surety, without the necessity 
of giving any further notice to Principal or surety.  City’s right to take such actions shall 
in no way be limited by the fact that Principal or its surety may have constructed any, or 
none of the required or agreed upon Required Improvements at the time of City’s 
demand for performance.  In the event City elects to complete or arrange for completion 
of the remaining work and improvements, City may require all work by Principal or its 
surety to cease in order to allow adequate coordination by City.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, if conditions precedent for reversion to acreage can be met and if the 
interests of City will not be prejudiced thereby, City may also process a reversion to 
acreage and thereafter recover from Principal or its surety the full cost and expense 
incurred.


c. Other Remedies.  No action by City pursuant this section shall 
prohibit City from exercising any other right or pursuing any other legal or equitable 







12 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


remedy available under this Agreement or any federal, state, or local law.  City may 
exercise its rights and remedies independently or cumulatively, and City may pursue 
inconsistent remedies.  City may institute an action for damages, injunctive relief, or 
specific performance.


16. Notices.  All notices required under this Agreement shall be in writing, and 
delivered in person or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid.


Notices required to be given to City shall be addressed as follows:


City Engineer
CITY OF WILDOMAR
23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201
Wildomar, CA  92595


Notices required to be given to Principal shall be addressed as follows:


Villa Siena Property, LLC
Attn:  Bing Chen
27271 Las Ramblas, Suite 100
Mission Viejo, CA 92601


17. Authority to Execute.  Each of the signatories hereto represents and 
warrants that he or she is competent and authorized to enter into this Agreement on 
behalf of the Party for whom he or she purports to sign. Each Party hereto agrees to 
defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the other Parties hereto against all claims, suits, 
actions, and demands, including necessary expenses of investigation and reasonable 
attorneys' fees and costs, arising out of claims that its signatory was not competent or 
so authorized to execute this Agreement.


18. Attorney’s Fees. If any arbitration, lawsuit, or other legal action or 
proceeding is brought by one Party against the other Party in connection with this 
Agreement, the prevailing party, whether by final judgment or arbitration award, shall be 
entitled to and recover from the other party all attorney’s fees and costs.  Any judgment, 
order, or award entered in such legal action or proceeding shall contain a specific 
provision providing for the recovery of attorney’s fees and costs.


19. Assignment.  Principal shall not assign, hypothecate, or transfer, either 
directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein without prior written 
consent of City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and any assignee, 
hypothecatee, or transferee shall acquire no right or interest by reason of such 
attempted assignment, hypothecation, or transfer.  Unless specifically stated to the 
contrary in City’s written consent, any assignment, hypothecation, or transfer shall not 
release or discharge Developer from any duty or responsibility under this Agreement.


20. Compliance with Laws.  Principal, its agents, employees, contractors, and 
subcontractors shall comply with all federal, state and local laws in the performance of 
the work required by this Agreement including, but not limited to, obtaining all applicable 







13 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


permits and licenses.


21. Waiver.  City’s failure to insist upon strict compliance with any provision of 
this Agreement or to exercise any right or privilege provided herein, or City’s waiver of 
any breach of this Agreement, shall not relieve Principal of any of its obligations under 
this Agreement, whether of the same or similar type.  The foregoing shall be true 
whether City’s actions are intentional or unintentional.  Principal agrees to waive, as a 
defense, counterclaim or set off, any and all defects, irregularities or deficiencies in the 
authorization, execution or performance of the Required Improvements or this 
Agreement, as well as the laws, rules, regulations, ordinances or resolutions of City with 
regards to the authorization, execution or performance of the Required Improvements or 
this Agreement.


22. No Vesting of Rights.  Entering into this Agreement shall not be construed 
to vest Principal’s rights with respect to any change in any zoning or building law or 
ordinance.


23. Approvals by City; Amendment.  No amendment to or modification of this 
Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and approved by the Principal and by 
the City. The Parties agree that the requirement for written modifications cannot be 
waived and that any attempted waiver shall be void. The City’s City Manager may, but is 
not required to, make minor amendments not affecting substantive terms without further 
authorization from the City Council. The City Council hereby authorizes the City 
Manager to execute any such amendments as required by this Agreement or that do not 
otherwise reduce City’s rights under this Agreement.  All other amendments shall be 
approved by the City Council. 


24. Construction and Interpretation.  It is agreed and acknowledged by 
Principal that the provisions of this Agreement have been arrived at through negotiation, 
and that Principal has had a full and fair opportunity to revise the provisions of this 
Agreement and to have such provisions reviewed by legal counsel.  Therefore, the 
normal rule of construction that any ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting 
party shall not apply in construing or interpreting this Agreement.


25. Successors and Assigns -- Covenant Running With the Land.  This 
Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, the successors and 
assigns of the respective parties.  The Agreement shall be recorded in the Office of the 
Recorder of Riverside County and shall constitute a covenant running with the land and 
an equitable servitude upon the subject property.


26. Actions.  Any action by any party to this Agreement, or any action 
concerning a security furnished pursuant thereto, shall be brought in the appropriate 
court of competent jurisdiction within the County of Riverside, State of California, 
notwithstanding any other provision of law which may provide that such action may be 
brought in some other location.  The law governing this Agreement is the law of the 
State of California.


27. Integration.  This Agreement is an integrated agreement.  It supersedes all 







14 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral.


28. Construction; References; Captions.  It being agreed the Parties or their 
agents have participated in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this 
Agreement shall be construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for 
or against any Party.  Any term referencing time, days, or period for performance shall 
be deemed calendar days and not work days.  All references to Principal include all 
personnel, employees, agents, and subcontractors of Principal, except as otherwise 
specified in this Agreement.  All references to City include its elected officials, officers, 
employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  
The captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for convenience and ease of 
reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope, content, or 
intent of this Agreement.


29. Severability.  If any provision in this Agreement is held by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 
shall continue in full force without being impaired.


30. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterpart originals, 
which taken together, shall constitute one and the same instrument.


31. Effective Date of Agreement.  This Agreement shall not become effective 
until the date it has been formally approved by the City and executed by the appropriate 
authorities of City and Principal.


32. Relationship Between The Parties.  The Parties hereby mutually agree 
that neither this Agreement, nor any other related entitlement, permit, nor approval 
issued by City for the Property shall operate to create the relationship of partnership, 
joint venture, or agency between City and Principal.  Principal’s contractors and 
subcontractors are exclusively and solely under the control and dominion of Principal.  
Nothing herein shall be deemed to make Principal or its contractors an agent or 
contractor of City.


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as follows: 







15 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


CITY OF WILDOMAR


 
Gary Nordquist
City Manager


PRINCIPAL:


Villa Siena Property, LLC


Name: Bing Chen 
Title:   Managing Director


Name:  
Title:


ATTEST:


___________________________
Janet Morales
City Clerk


APPROVED AS TO FORM


___________________________
Thomas D. Jex
City Attorney


NOTE: SIGNATURES SHALL BE DULY NOTARIZED, AND APPROPRIATE ATTESTATIONS 
SHALL BE INCLUDED AS MAY BE REQUIRED BY THE BYLAWS, ARTICLES OF 
INCORPORATION, OR OTHER RULES OR REGULATIONS APPLICABLE TO T BUSINESS 
ENTITY.







16 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


EXHIBIT “A”


LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY







1 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


EXHIBIT “B”


SURETY BONDS AND OTHER SECURITY


As evidence of understanding the provisions contained in this Agreement, and of the 
Principal’s intent to comply with same, the Principal has submitted the below described 
security in the amounts required by this Agreement, and has affixed the appropriate 
signatures thereto:


PERFORMANCE SECURITY: $ 2,009,500.00
Surety:
Attorney-in-
fact:
Address:


PAYMENT SECURITY: $1,667,5   1,004,750.00
Surety:
Attorney-in-
fact:
Address:


MONUMENT SECURITY: $ Not Applicable
Amount deposited per Cash Receipt 
No.


Date:







1 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


BOND NO. ___________________
INITIAL PREMIUM:  ___________________


SUBJECT TO RENEWAL
CITY OF WILDOMAR


ONSITE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS


FORM OF PERFORMANCE BOND


KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:


WHEREAS the City of Wildomar, California (“City”) and Villa Siena Property, LLC 
(“Principal”), have executed an agreement for work consisting of, but not limited to, the 
furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidentals for all grading, 
roads, paving, curbs and gutters, pathways, storm drains, sanitary sewers, utilities, 
drainage facilities, traffic controls, landscaping, street lights, and all other required 
facilities for Villa Siena Apartments Onsite Public Improvements (“Public 
Improvements”);


WHEREAS, the Public Improvements to be performed by Principal are more 
particularly set forth in that certain Public Improvement Agreement dated January 12, 
2022 (“Improvement Agreement”);


WHEREAS, the Improvement Agreement is hereby referred to and incorporated 
herein by reference; and


WHEREAS, Principal is required by the Improvement Agreement to provide a 
good and sufficient bond for performance of the Improvement Agreement, and to 
guarantee and warranty the Public Improvements constructed thereunder.


NOW, THEREFORE, Principal and _________________________________ 
(“Surety”), a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of 
__________, and duly authorized to transact surety business under the laws of the 
State of California, are held and firmly bound unto City in the sum of 
___________________________________ Dollars ($____________), said sum being 
not less than one hundred percent (100%) of the total cost of the Public Improvements 
as set forth in the Improvement Agreement, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors and 
administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.


THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such, that if Principal, his or its 
heirs, executors, administrators, successors or assigns, shall in all things stand to and 
abide by, and well and truly keep and perform the covenants, conditions, agreements, 
guarantees, and warranties in the Improvement Agreement and any alteration thereof 
made as therein provided, to be kept and performed at the time and in the manner 
therein specified and in all respects according to their intent and meaning, and to 
indemnify and save harmless City, its officers, employees, and agents, as stipulated in 







2 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


the Improvement Agreement, then this obligation shall become null and void; otherwise 
it shall be and remain in full force and effect.


As part of the obligation secured hereby, and in addition to the face amount 
specified therefor, there shall be included costs and reasonable expenses and fees, 
including reasonable attorney’s fees, incurred by City in successfully enforcing such 
obligation, all to be taxed as costs and included in any judgment rendered.


Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, 
extension of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the Improvement Agreement, or 
to any plans, profiles, and specifications related thereto, or to the Public Improvements 
to be constructed thereunder, shall in any way affect its obligations on this bond, and it 
does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration, or addition.


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the seal and signature of the Principal is hereto 
affixed, and the corporate seal and the name of the Surety is hereto affixed and attested 
by its duly authorized Attorney-in-Fact at _______________________, this _____ day 
of _______________, ______.


Villa Siena Property, LLC
Principal Surety


By: By:
Its:  Managing Member Attorney-In-Fact


(print name) (print name)


NOTE: APPROPRIATE NOTARIAL ACKNOWLEDGMENTS OF EXECUTION 
BY PRINCIPAL AND SURETY, AND A COPY OF THE POWER OF 
ATTORNEY TO LOCAL REPRESENTATIVES OF THE BONDING 
COMPANY MUST BE ATTACHED TO THIS BOND.







1 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


BOND NO. ___________________
INITIAL PREMIUM:  ___________________


SUBJECT TO RENEWAL
CITY OF WILDOMAR


ONSITE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS


FORM OF LABOR AND MATERIAL BOND


KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:


WHEREAS the City of Wildomar California (“City”) and Villa Siena Property, LLC 
(“Principal”), have executed an agreement for work consisting of, but not limited to, the 
furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidentals for all grading, 
roads, paving, curbs and gutters, pathways, storm drains, sanitary sewers, utilities, 
drainage facilities, traffic controls, landscaping, street lights, and all other required 
facilities for Villa Siena Apartments Onsite Public Improvements (“Public 
Improvements”);


WHEREAS, the Public Improvements to be performed by Principal are more 
particularly set forth in that certain Public Improvement Agreement dated January 12, 
2022 (“Improvement Agreement”);


WHEREAS, the Improvement Agreement is hereby referred to and incorporated 
herein by reference; and


WHEREAS, Principal is required to furnish a bond in connection with the 
Improvement Agreement providing that if Principal or any of its subcontractors shall fail 
to pay for any materials, provisions, or other supplies, or terms used in, upon, for, or 
about the performance of the Public Improvements, or for any work or labor done 
thereon of any kind, or for amounts due under the provisions of Title 1 (commencing 
with section 8000) through Title 3 (commencing with section 9000) of Part 6 of Division 
4 of the California Civil Code, with respect to such work or labor, that the Surety on this 
bond will pay the same together with a reasonable attorney’s fee in case suit is brought 
on the bond.


NOW, THEREFORE, Principal and _________________________ (“Surety”), a 
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of _________________, 
and duly authorized to transact business under the laws of the State of California, are 
held and firmly bound unto City and to any and all material men, persons, companies or 
corporations furnishing materials, provisions, and other supplies used in, upon, for or 
about the performance of the Public Improvements, and all persons, companies or 
corporations renting or hiring teams, or implements or machinery, for or contributing to 
the Public Improvements to be done, and all persons performing work or labor upon the 
same and all persons supplying both work and materials as aforesaid excepting the 







2 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


Principal, the sum of _________________________ Dollars ($_______________), said 
sum being not less than 50% of the total cost of the Public Improvements under the 
terms of the Improvement Agreement, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors and 
administrators, successors and assigns jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.


THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH that if the Principal, his or its 
subcontractors, heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns, shall fail to pay 
for any materials, provisions, or other supplies or machinery used in, upon, for or about 
the performance of the Public Improvements, or for work or labor thereon of any kind, or 
fail to pay any of the persons named in California Civil Code Section 9100, or amounts 
due under the Unemployment Insurance Code with respect to work or labor performed 
by any such claimant, or for any amounts required to be deducted, withheld, and paid 
over to the Employment Development Department from the wages of employees of the 
contractor and his subcontractors pursuant to Section 13020 of the Unemployment 
Insurance Code with respect to such work and labor, and all other applicable laws of the 
State of California and rules and regulations of its agencies, then said Surety will pay 
the same in or to an amount not exceeding the sum specified herein.


As part of the obligation secured hereby, and in addition to the face amount 
specified therefor, there shall be included costs and reasonable expenses and fees, 
including reasonable attorney’s fees, incurred by City in successfully enforcing such 
obligation, all to be taxed as costs and included in any judgment rendered.


It is hereby expressly stipulated and agreed that this bond shall inure to the 
benefit of any and all persons, companies, and corporations entitled to file claims under 
Title 1 (commencing with section 8000) through Title 3 (commencing with section 9000) 
of Part 6 of Division 4 of the California Civil Code, so as to give a right of action to them 
or their assigns in any suit brought upon this bond.


Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, 
extension of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the Improvement Agreement, or 
to any plans, profiles, and specifications related thereto, or to the Public Improvements 
to be constructed thereunder, shall in any way affect its obligations on this bond, and it 
does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration, or addition.







3 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the seal and signature of the Principal is hereto 
affixed, and the corporate seal and the name of the Surety is hereto affixed and attested 
by its duly authorized Attorney-in-Fact at _____________________, this _____ day of 
_______________, ______.


Villa Siena Property, LLC
Principal Surety


By: By:
Its:  Managing Member Attorney-In-Fact


(print name) (print name)


NOTE: APPROPRIATE NOTARIAL ACKNOWLEDGMENTS OF EXECUTION 
BY PRINCIPAL AND SURETY, AND A COPY OF THE POWER OF 
ATTORNEY TO LOCAL REPRESENTATIVES OF THE BONDING 
COMPANY MUST BE ATTACHED TO THIS BOND.







































ATTACHMENT B


Tract Map No. 31667 
McVicar Culvert Cooperative Agreement



Neva

Text Box

Offsite Public Improvement AgreementSurety BondsOffsite Cost Estimate



Neva

Text Box

ATTACHMENT D







1 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


NO FEE DOCUMENT
Government Code §6103
RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:


CITY OF WILDOMAR
23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201
Wildomar, CA  92595
Attn: City Clerk 


The Above Space For Recorder’s 
Use Only


Project Name:  Villa Siena Apartments
Project Address:  36485 Jana Lane  
APN:  380-290-029
Project No.:  21-0061


OFFSITE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


This Public Improvement Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into this 12th day of 
January, 2022 by and between the City of Wildomar, a California municipal corporation 
(“City”) and Villa Siena Property, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Principal”).  
City and Principal may be individual or collectively referred to as a “party” or the 
“parties” to this Agreement.


RECITALS


A. Principal owns the real property located at APNs 380-290-029, in the City 
of Wildomar, California, which is more particularly described in Exhibit “A” to this 
Agreement (“Property”).


B. Principal has applied for and obtained certain development approvals from 
the City to develop the Property.  The development approvals and City ordinances 
require Principal to construct certain public improvements and dedicate those public 
improvements to the City after construction is complete.


C. This Agreement memorializes the understanding between the parties 
regarding the terms and conditions under which Principal will construct and City will 
accept the required public improvements.


OPERATIVE PROVISIONS


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants 
made by the parties and contained here and other consideration, the value and 
adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:







2 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


1. Construction of Improvements.  The Principal agrees to construct and 
install public improvements on Jana Lane at the Principal’s own cost and expense - said 
improvements shown on the offsite improvement plans submitted by Principal and 
approved by the City as referenced and contained within this Public Improvement 
Agreement (“Required Improvements”).  Prior to commencing any work, Principal shall, 
at its sole cost and expense, obtain all necessary permits and approvals and give all 
necessary and incidental notices required for the lawful construction of the Required 
Improvements and performance of Principal’s obligations under this Agreement.  The 
Required Improvements shall be constructed in accordance with all approved plans, 
specifications, standard drawings, and special amendments thereto on file with City, as 
well as all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations, codes, 
standards, and other requirements applicable at the time work is actually commenced.  
Principal shall complete the construction of the Required Improvements within twelve 
months of the date of this Agreement.


a. Standard of Performance.  Principal and its contractors, if any, shall 
perform all work required to construct the Required Improvements under this Agreement 
in a skillful and workmanlike manner, and consistent with the standards generally 
recognized as being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the State of 
California.  Principal represents and maintains that it or its contractors shall be skilled in 
the professional calling necessary to perform the work.  Principal warrants that all of its 
employees and contractors shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the work 
assigned to them, and that they shall have all licenses, permits, qualifications and 
approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to perform the work, and that 
such licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals shall be maintained throughout the 
term of this Agreement.


b. Alterations to Improvements.  All work shall be done and 
improvements made and completed as shown on approved plans and specifications, 
and any subsequent alterations thereto.  If during the course of construction and 
installation of the Required Improvements it is determined that the public interest 
requires alterations in the Required Improvements, Developer shall undertake such 
design and construction changes as may be reasonably required by City.  Any and all 
alterations in the plans and specifications and the Required Improvements to be 
completed may be accomplished without giving prior notice thereof to Developer’s 
surety for this Agreement.


c. Fees and Charges.  Principal shall, at its sole cost and expense, 
pay all fees, charges, and taxes arising out of construction of the Required 
Improvements, including, but not limited to, all plan check, design review, engineering, 
inspection, and other service fees, and any impact or connection fees established by 
City ordinance, resolution, regulation, or policy, or as established by City or as required 
by other governmental agencies having jurisdiction over the Required Improvements.


2. Commencement of Work.  The Principal shall notify the City Engineer of 
the commencement of work on the Required Improvements.


3. Completion of Improvements.  Upon satisfactory completion of all 







3 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


Required Improvements as determined by the City Engineer or his or her designee 
(hereafter the “City Engineer”), Principal shall offer to dedicate the Required 
Improvements to the City, and City agrees to accept that offer of dedication in 
accordance with its policies and procedures and the terms of this Agreement.  


4. Title to Required Improvements.  The City shall not accept the Required 
Improvements unless they are constructed in conformity with the approved plans and 
specifications, approved modifications, if any, and City Improvement Standards and 
Specifications, to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.  Until such time as the Required 
Improvements are accepted by the City, Principal shall retain title and shall be 
responsible for, and bear the risk of loss to, any of the improvements constructed or 
installed.  Title to and ownership of the Required Improvements shall vest absolutely in 
the City upon completion and acceptance in writing of such Required Improvements by 
City.  The City shall not accept the Required Improvements unless title to the Required 
Improvements is entirely free from lien.  Prior to acceptance, Principal shall supply the 
City with appropriate lien releases, at no cost to and in a form acceptable to the City.


a. Developer’s Notice of Completion.  Upon the acceptance of the 
Required Improvements by City, Principal shall file with the Recorder’s Office of the 
County of Riverside a notice of completion for the accepted Required Improvements in 
accordance with Article 2 of Chapter 4 of Title 2 of Part 6 of Division 4 of the Civil Code, 
at which time the accepted Required Improvements shall become the sole and 
exclusive property of City without payment therefor.


b. City Acceptance of Public Improvements.  Issuance by City of 
occupancy permits for any buildings or structures located on the Property shall not be 
construed in any manner to constitute City’s acceptance or approval of any Required 
Improvements.  


c. Developer’s Obligation to Provide As-Built or Record Drawings.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, City may not accept any Required Improvements unless 
and until Principal provides one (1) set of “as-built” or record drawings or plans to the 
City Engineer for all such Required Improvements.  The drawings shall be certified and 
shall reflect the condition of the Required Improvements as constructed, with all 
changes incorporated therein.


5. Extension of Time to Complete Improvements.


a. The City Engineer may extend the date for completing the Required 
Improvements. Extensions shall be granted only upon a showing of good cause by the 
Principal.  The City Engineer shall be the sole and final judge as to whether good cause 
has been shown.


b. Requests for extension of the completion date shall be in writing 
and delivered to the City Engineer in the manner hereinafter specified for service of 
notices.  An extension of time, if any, shall be granted only in writing, and an oral 
extension shall not be valid or binding on the City.







4 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


c. In the event the City Engineer extends the time of completion of the 
Required Improvements, such extension may be granted without notice by the City to 
the Principal’s surety and shall in no way release any guarantee or security given by the 
Principal pursuant to this Agreement, or relieve or release those providing an 
improvement security pursuant to this Agreement.  The surety or sureties, if any, in 
executing the securities shall be deemed to have expressly agreed to any such 
extension of time.


d. In granting any extension of time, the City may require new or 
amended improvement security to reflect increases in the estimated costs of 
constructing the Required Improvements or impose other conditions to protect its 
interests and ensure the timely completion of the Required Improvements.


6. Inspection.  Principal shall at all times maintain proper facilities and safe 
access for inspection of the Required Improvements by City and to the shops wherein 
any work is in preparation.  Upon completion of the work, the Principal may request a 
final inspection by the City Engineer or his designee.  If the City Engineer or the 
designated representative determines that the work has been completed in accordance 
with this Agreement, then the City Engineer shall certify the completion of the Required 
Improvements to the City.  No improvements shall be finally accepted unless all aspects 
of the work have been inspected and determined to have been completed in 
accordance with the Improvement Plans and City standards.  Principal shall bear all 
costs of plan check, inspection and certification.


7. Maintenance of Improvements.  City shall not be responsible or liable for 
the maintenance or care of the Required Improvements until City formally approves and 
accepts them in accordance with its policies and procedures.  City shall exercise no 
control over the Required Improvements until approved and accepted.  Any use by any 
person of the Required Improvements, or any portion thereof, shall be at the sole and 
exclusive risk of the Principal at all times prior to City’s acceptance of the Required 
Improvements.  Principal shall maintain all the Required Improvements in a state of 
good repair until they are completed by Principal and approved and accepted by City, 
and until the security for the performance of this Agreement is released.  Maintenance 
shall include, but shall not be limited to, repair of pavement, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, 
signals, parkways, water mains, and sewers; maintaining all landscaping in a vigorous 
and thriving condition reasonably acceptable to City; removal of debris from sewers and 
storm drains; and sweeping, repairing, and maintaining in good and safe condition all 
streets and street improvements.  It shall be Principal’s responsibility to initiate all 
maintenance work, but if it shall fail to do so, it shall promptly perform such maintenance 
work when notified to do so by City.  If Principal fails to properly prosecute its 
maintenance obligation under this section, City may do all work necessary for such 
maintenance and the cost thereof shall be the responsibility of Principal and its surety 
under this Agreement.  City shall not be responsible or liable for any damages or injury 
of any nature in any way related to or caused by the Required Improvements or their 
condition prior to acceptance.  Until final acceptance of the Required Improvements, 
Principal shall give good and adequate warning to the public of each and every 
dangerous condition existing on the Property, and will take reasonable actions to protect 
the public from such dangerous conditions.







5 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


8. Superintendence by Principal.  Principal shall require each contractor and 
subcontractor to have a competent foreman on the job at all times when that contractor 
or subcontractor, or any employee or agent thereof, is performing work on the Required 
Improvements.  In addition, Principal shall maintain an office with a telephone and 
Principal or a person authorized to make decisions and to act for Principal in Principal’s 
absence shall be available on the job site within three (3) hours of being called at such 
office by the City during the hours of 9:00 A.M. through 5:00 P.M., Monday through 
Friday, or any other day or time when work is being performed on the Required 
Improvements.


9. Injury to Public Improvements, Public Property or Public Utilities Facilities.  
Principal shall replace or repair, or have replaced or repaired, all public improvements, 
public utility facilities, and surveying or subdivision monuments which are destroyed or 
damaged in the performance of any work under this Agreement.  Principal shall bear the 
entire cost of replacement or repairs of any and all public or private utility property 
damaged or destroyed in the performance of any work done under this Agreement, 
whether such property is owned by the United States or any agency thereof, or the 
State of California, or any agency or political subdivision thereof, or by the City or any 
public or private utility corporation or by any combination of such owners.  Any repair or 
replacement shall be to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.


10. Warranty.  If, within a period of one year after final acceptance by the City 
of the Required Improvements, any improvement or part of any improvement furnished 
and/or installed or constructed, or caused to be installed or constructed by Principal, or 
any of the work done under this Agreement materially fails to fulfill any of the 
requirements of this Agreement or the specifications referred to herein, Principal shall 
without delay and without any cost to City, repair, replace or reconstruct any defective 
or otherwise unsatisfactory part or parts of the improvements.  If the Principal fails to act 
promptly or in accordance with this requirement, or if the exigencies of the situation 
require repairs or replacements to be made before the Principal can be notified, then 
the City may, at its option, make the necessary repairs or replacements or perform the 
necessary work, and Principal shall pay to City the actual cost of such repairs plus 
fifteen percent (15%) within thirty (30) days of the date of billing for such work by City.  
As to any Required Improvements which have been repaired, replaced, or 
reconstructed during the Warranty, Principal and its surety hereby agree to extend the 
Warranty for an additional one (1) year period following City’s acceptance of the 
repaired, replaced, or reconstructed Required Improvements.  Nothing herein shall 
relieve Principal from any other liability it may have under federal, state, or local law to 
repair, replace, or reconstruct any Required Improvement following expiration of the 
Warranty or any extension thereof.  Principal’s warranty obligation under this section 
shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.


11. Defense, Indemnification and Hold Harmless.  Principal shall defend, 
indemnify, and hold harmless City, its elected officials, officers, employees, and agents 
from any and all actual or alleged claims, demands, causes of action, liability, loss, 
damage, or injury, to property or persons, including wrongful death, whether imposed by 
a court of law or by administrative action of any federal, state, or local governmental 
body or agency, arising out of or incident to any acts, omissions, negligence, or willful 







6 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


misconduct of Principal, its personnel, employees, agents, or contractors in connection 
with or arising out of construction or maintenance of the Required Improvements, or 
performance of this Agreement.  This indemnification includes, without limitation, the 
payment of all penalties, fines, judgments, awards, decrees, attorneys’ fees, and related 
costs or expenses, and the reimbursement of City, its elected officials, officers, 
employees, and/or agents for all legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them.  
This indemnification excludes only such portion of any claim, demand, cause of action, 
liability, loss, damage, penalty, fine, or injury, to property or persons, including wrongful 
death, which is caused solely and exclusively by the gross negligence or willful 
misconduct of City as determined by a court or administrative body of competent 
jurisdiction.  Principal’s obligation to indemnify City shall survive the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement, and shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, 
received by City, its elected officials, officers, employees, or agents.


12. Security.  


a. Required Security.  Concurrently with the execution of this 
Agreement, the Principal shall furnish the City with:


(1) Faithful Performance Security.  Principal shall provide faithful 
performance security to secure faithful performance of this Agreement (“faithful 
performance” security).  This security shall be in the amount of one hundred percent 
(100%) of the total estimated cost of the Required Improvements, as determined by the 
City Engineer, which total cost is in the amount of  $1,061,000.00 (One Million Sixty-
One Thousand and No/100 Dollars).


(2) Payment Security.  Principal shall also provide payment 
security to secure payment to the contractors, subcontractors, laborers, material men, 
and other persons furnishing labor, materials, or equipment for the work (“payment 
security”).  This security shall be in the amount of fifty percent (50%) of the total 
estimated cost of the Required Improvements, as determined by the City Engineer, 
which total cost is in the amount of $530,500.00 (Five Hundred Thirty Thousand Five 
Hundred and No/100 Dollars), and shall secure the obligations set forth in Title 1 
(commencing with Section 8000) through Title 3 (commencing with Section 9000) of 
Part 6 of Division 4 of the Civil Code of the State of California.


(3) Guarantee and Warranty Security.  Principal shall also file 
with this Agreement a “guarantee and warranty security” in the amount of ten percent 
(10%) of the total estimated cost of the Required Improvements, as determined by the 
City Engineer, which total cost is in the amount of $106,100.00 (One Hundred Six 
Thousand One Hundred and No/100 Dollars) to guarantee and warrant the Required 
Improvements for a period of one year following their completion and acceptance 
against any defective work or labor done, or defective materials furnished.


(4) Monument Security.  Principal shall also file with this 
Agreement a “monument security” in the amount of one hundred percent (100%) of the 
total estimated cost of the installation of survey monuments, as determined by the City 







7 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


Engineer, which total cost is in the amount of  Not Applicable to guarantee and secure 
the placement of such monuments.


b. Additional Requirements.  


(1) Any bonds submitted as security pursuant to this section 
shall be furnished by companies who are authorized and licensed by the Insurance 
Commissioner of the State of California as “admitted surety insurers,” to act as surety 
upon bonds and undertakings.  The company shall maintain in this State at least one 
office for the conduct of its business.  Bonds must be approved by the City.  The 
premiums for said bonds shall be paid by Principal.  


(2) The bonds shall be furnished on the forms enclosed 
following this Agreement and shall be satisfactory to the City.    


(3) The surety (or sureties) shall furnish reports as to the 
financial conditions from time to time as requested by the City.  


(4) Alternative forms of security will be allowed upon approval of 
the City Engineer and shall be approved as to form by the City Attorney.  All required 
securities shall be in a form approved by the City Attorney.


(5) No change, alteration, or addition to the terms of this 
Agreement or the plans and specifications incorporated herein shall in any manner 
affect the obligation of the sureties.


(6) The securities shall be irrevocable, shall not be limited as to 
time (except as to the one-year guarantee and warranty period) and shall provide that 
they may be released, in whole or part, only upon the written approval of the City 
Engineer and as provided in this Agreement.  All securities provided pursuant to this 
Agreement shall expressly obligate the surety for any extension of time authorized by 
the City for Principal’s completion of the Required Improvements, whether or not the 
surety is given notice of such an extension by the City.


(7) The Attorney-in-Fact (resident agent) who executes the 
securities on behalf of the surety company must attach a copy of his/her Power of 
Attorney as evidence of his authority.  A notary shall acknowledge the power as of the 
date of the execution of the surety bond that it covers.


c. Principal’s Liability.  While no action of Principal shall be required in 
order for City to realize on its security under any security instrument, Principal agrees to 
cooperate with City to facilitate City’s realization under any security instrument, and to 
take no action to prevent City from such realization under any Security instrument.  
Notwithstanding the giving of any security instrument or the subsequent expiration of 
any security instrument or any failure by any surety or financial institution to perform its 
obligations with respect thereto, Principal shall be personally liable for performance 
under this Agreement and for payment of the cost of the labor and materials for the 
improvements required to be constructed or installed hereby and shall, within ten (10) 







8 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


days after written demand therefor, deliver to City such substitute security as City shall 
require satisfying the requirements in this Section 12.


d. Release of Security.


(1) Guarantee and Warranty Security.  Any unused portion of 
the guarantee and warranty security may be released one year after acceptance of the 
Required Improvements by the City.  The amount to be released shall first be reduced 
by the amount deemed necessary by the City to correct any defects in the Required 
Improvements that are known or believed by the City to exist at the end of the 
guarantee and warranty period. Any unreleased portion of the guarantee and warranty 
security shall remain in full force and effect unless and until the City notifies Principal in 
writing that the necessary repairs have been made to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer and that the warranty period has been successfully completed.


(2) Payment Security.  The payment security may be released 
thirty-five (35) days after passage of the time within which claims of lien are required to 
be recorded pursuant to Article 2 of Chapter 4 of Title 2 of Part 6 of Division 4 of the 
Civil Code (commencing with Section 8410), but in no event shall such security be 
released prior to one hundred and twenty (120) days after acceptance of the Required 
Improvements by the City.  The amount to be released shall first be reduced by the total 
of all claims on which an action has been filed and notice thereof given in writing to the 
City.  City expressly may require the surety not to release the amount of security 
deemed necessary by City to assure payment of reasonable expenses and fees, 
including reasonable attorney’s fees.


(3) Faithful Performance Security.  The faithful performance 
security may be released upon acceptance of the Required Improvements by the City.


(4) Monument Security.  The monument security may be 
released by written authorization of the City Engineer after all required monuments are 
accepted by the City Engineer, and City has received written acknowledgment of 
payment in full from the engineer or surveyor who set the monuments.


13. Insurance.


a. Types; Amounts.  Developer shall procure and maintain, and shall 
require its contractors to procure and maintain, during construction of any Public 
Improvement pursuant to this Agreement, insurance of the types and in the amounts 
described below.  If any of the Required Insurance contains a general aggregate limit, 
such insurance shall apply separately to this Agreement or be no less than two times 
the specified occurrence limit. 


(1) General Liability.  Developer and its contractors shall 
procure and maintain Commercial General Liability Insurance no less broad than 
Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CG 00 01 or equivalent form, with a combined 
single limit of not less than $3,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, 
and property damage. The General Aggregate shall be twice the occurrence limit or 
shall apply separately to each project. If Developer maintains higher limits than the 







9 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


specified minimum limits, City requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher 
limits maintained by Developer. The General Liability policy shall not contain a 
Contractors' Warranty or other similar language which eliminates or restricts insurance 
because of a subcontractor's failure to carry specific insurance or to supply evidence of 
such insurance


(2) Business Automobile Liability.  Developer and its 
contractors shall procure and maintain business automobile liability insurance, or 
equivalent form, with a combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence.  Such insurance shall include coverage for the ownership, operation, 
maintenance, use, loading, or unloading of any vehicle owned, hired, and non owned by 
the insured or for which the insured is responsible.


(3) Workers’ Compensation.  Developer and its contractors 
shall procure and maintain workers’ compensation insurance with limits as required by 
the Labor Code of the State of California and  Employers Liability with limits of 
$1,000,000 per Accident; $1,000,000 Disease per employee; $1,000,000 Disease per 
policy at all times during which insured retains employees.


(4) Professional Liability.  For any consultant or other 
professional who will engineer or design the Public Improvements, liability insurance for 
errors and omissions with limits not less than $1,000,000 per claim. Such insurance 
shall be endorsed to include contractual liability.  Coverage applicable to the work 
performed under this agreement shall be continued for five (5) years after completion of 
the work . Such continuation coverage may be provided by one of the following: (1) 
renewal of the existing policy; (2) an extended reporting period endorsement; or (3) 
replacement insurance with a retroactive date no later than the commencement of the 
work under this agreement.


(5) Pollution Liability. Minimum Limits: $1,000,000 per 
Pollution Incident; $1,000,000 Aggregate; Coverage shall apply to pollution incidents at 
or from any location at which Developer and its contractors are performing work under 
this agreement. Any deductible or self-insured retention shall be shown on the 
Certificate of Insurance.  If the deductible or self-insured retention exceeds $25,000 it 
shall be approved in advance by the City.  Developer and its contractors are responsible 
for any deductible or self-insured retention and shall fund it upon the City’s written 
request, regardless of whether Developer and its contractors have a claim against the 
insurance or are named as a party in any action involving the City. The City, its elected 
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be endorsed as an additional 
insured for liability arising out of ongoing and completed operations by or on behalf of 
the Developer and its contractors.  Additional insured status shall continue for one (1) 
year after completion of the work. The insurance provided to the additional insureds 
shall apply on a primary and non-contributory basis with respect to any insurance or 
self-insurance program maintained by them. If the insurance is on a Claims-Made basis, 
the retroactive date shall be no later than the commencement of work. The insurance 
shall be continued for one (1) year after completion of the work.  If the insurance is on a 
Claims-Made basis, the continuation coverage may be provided by: (a) renewal of the 







10 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


existing policy; (b) an extended reporting period endorsement; or (c) replacement 
insurance with a retroactive date no later than the commencement of the work.


b. Deductibles.  Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be 
declared to and approved by City.  At the option of City, either: (a) the insurer shall 
reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects City, its 
elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers; or (b) Developer and its 
contractors shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to City guaranteeing 
payment of losses and related investigation costs, claims, and administrative and 
defense expenses.


c. Additional Insured; Separation of Insureds.  The Required 
Insurance (except Workers’ Compensation and Professional Liability) shall name City, 
its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers as additional insureds 
with respect to work performed by or on behalf of Developer or its contractors, including 
materials, parts, or equipment furnished in connection therewith City shall be endorsed 
as an additional insured for liability arising out of ongoing and completed operations by 
or on behalf of the contractor. City shall continue to be an additional insured for 
completed operations for (1) year after completion of the work.   The policy shall cover 
inter-insured suits and include a “Separation of Insureds” or “severability” clause which 
treats each insured separately and shall contain no special limitations on the scope of 
its protection to City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.


d. Primary Insurance; Waiver of Subrogation.  The General 
Liability Insurance provided to the additional insured shall be primary to, and non 
contributory with, any insurance or self insurance program maintained by the City, its 
elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.  All policies for the 
Required Insurance shall provide that the insurance company waives all right of 
recovery by way of subrogation against City, its elected officials, officers, employees, 
agents and volunteers.


e. Certificates; Verification.  Developer and its contractors shall 
furnish City with original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage 
for the Required Insurance.  The certificates and endorsements for each insurance 
policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its 
behalf.  All certificates and endorsements must be received and approved by City 
before work pursuant to this Agreement can begin.  City reserves the right to require 
complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any time.


f. Term; Cancellation Notice.  Developer and its contractors shall 
maintain the Required Insurance for the term of this Agreement and shall replace any 
certificate, policy, or endorsement which will expire prior to that date. Developer shall 
provide immediate written notice if (1) any of the required insurance policies is 
terminated; (2) the limits of any of the required polices are reduced; (3) or the deductible 
or self insured retention is increased.  In the event of any cancellation or reduction in 
coverage or limits of any insurance, Developer shall forthwith obtain and submit proof of 
substitute insurance.  Should Developer fail to immediately procure other insurance, as 







11 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


specified, to substitute for any canceled policy, the City may procure such insurance at 
Developer’s sole cost and expense.


g. Insurer Rating.  Unless approved in writing by City, all Required 
Insurance shall placed with insurers licensed to do business in the State of California 
and with a current A.M. Best rating of at least A:VIII.


14. Principal Not Agent of City.  Neither Principal nor any of Principal’s agents, 
contractors, or subcontractors are or shall be considered to be agents of the City in 
connection with the performance of Principal’s obligations under this Agreement.


15. Default; Notice; Remedies.


a. Notice.  If Principal neglects, refuses, or fails to fulfill or timely 
complete any obligation, term, or condition of this Agreement, or if City determines there 
is a violation of any federal, state, or local law, ordinance, regulation, code, standard, or 
other requirement, City may at any time thereafter declare Principal to be in default or 
violation of this Agreement and make written demand upon Principal or its surety, or 
both, to immediately remedy the default or violation.  Principal shall commence the work 
required to remedy the default or violation within ten (10) days of the written demand 
from the City.  If the default or violation constitutes an immediate threat to the public 
health, safety, or welfare, City may provide the demand verbally, and Principal shall 
commence the required work within twenty-four (24) hours thereof.  Immediately upon 
City’s issuance of the demand to remedy the default, Principal and its surety shall be 
liable to City for all costs of construction and installation of the Required Improvements 
and all other administrative costs expenses as provided for in Section 9.0 of this 
Agreement.


b. Failure to Remedy; City Action.  If the work required to remedy the 
noticed default or violation is not diligently prosecuted to a substantial completion 
acceptable to City within a reasonable time designated by the City, City may complete 
all remaining work, arrange for the completion of all remaining work, and/or conduct 
such remedial activity as in its sole and absolute discretion it believes is required to 
remedy the default or violation.  All such work or remedial activity shall be at the sole 
and absolute cost, expense, and liability of Principal and its surety, without the necessity 
of giving any further notice to Principal or surety.  City’s right to take such actions shall 
in no way be limited by the fact that Principal or its surety may have constructed any, or 
none of the required or agreed upon Required Improvements at the time of City’s 
demand for performance.  In the event City elects to complete or arrange for completion 
of the remaining work and improvements, City may require all work by Principal or its 
surety to cease in order to allow adequate coordination by City.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, if conditions precedent for reversion to acreage can be met and if the 
interests of City will not be prejudiced thereby, City may also process a reversion to 
acreage and thereafter recover from Principal or its surety the full cost and expense 
incurred.


c. Other Remedies.  No action by City pursuant this section shall 
prohibit City from exercising any other right or pursuing any other legal or equitable 







12 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


remedy available under this Agreement or any federal, state, or local law.  City may 
exercise its rights and remedies independently or cumulatively, and City may pursue 
inconsistent remedies.  City may institute an action for damages, injunctive relief, or 
specific performance.


16. Notices.  All notices required under this Agreement shall be in writing, and 
delivered in person or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid.


Notices required to be given to City shall be addressed as follows:


City Engineer
CITY OF WILDOMAR
23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201
Wildomar, CA  92595


Notices required to be given to Principal shall be addressed as follows:


Villa Siena Property, LLC
Attn:  Bing Chen
27271 Las Ramblas, Suite 100
Mission Viejo, CA 92601


17. Authority to Execute.  Each of the signatories hereto represents and 
warrants that he or she is competent and authorized to enter into this Agreement on 
behalf of the Party for whom he or she purports to sign. Each Party hereto agrees to 
defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the other Parties hereto against all claims, suits, 
actions, and demands, including necessary expenses of investigation and reasonable 
attorneys' fees and costs, arising out of claims that its signatory was not competent or 
so authorized to execute this Agreement.


18. Attorney’s Fees. If any arbitration, lawsuit, or other legal action or 
proceeding is brought by one Party against the other Party in connection with this 
Agreement, the prevailing party, whether by final judgment or arbitration award, shall be 
entitled to and recover from the other party all attorney’s fees and costs.  Any judgment, 
order, or award entered in such legal action or proceeding shall contain a specific 
provision providing for the recovery of attorney’s fees and costs.


19. Assignment.  Principal shall not assign, hypothecate, or transfer, either 
directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein without prior written 
consent of City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and any assignee, 
hypothecatee, or transferee shall acquire no right or interest by reason of such 
attempted assignment, hypothecation, or transfer.  Unless specifically stated to the 
contrary in City’s written consent, any assignment, hypothecation, or transfer shall not 
release or discharge Developer from any duty or responsibility under this Agreement.


20. Compliance with Laws.  Principal, its agents, employees, contractors, and 
subcontractors shall comply with all federal, state and local laws in the performance of 
the work required by this Agreement including, but not limited to, obtaining all applicable 







13 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


permits and licenses.


21. Waiver.  City’s failure to insist upon strict compliance with any provision of 
this Agreement or to exercise any right or privilege provided herein, or City’s waiver of 
any breach of this Agreement, shall not relieve Principal of any of its obligations under 
this Agreement, whether of the same or similar type.  The foregoing shall be true 
whether City’s actions are intentional or unintentional.  Principal agrees to waive, as a 
defense, counterclaim or set off, any and all defects, irregularities or deficiencies in the 
authorization, execution or performance of the Required Improvements or this 
Agreement, as well as the laws, rules, regulations, ordinances or resolutions of City with 
regards to the authorization, execution or performance of the Required Improvements or 
this Agreement.


22. No Vesting of Rights.  Entering into this Agreement shall not be construed 
to vest Principal’s rights with respect to any change in any zoning or building law or 
ordinance.


23. Approvals by City; Amendment.  No amendment to or modification of this 
Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and approved by the Principal and by 
the City. The Parties agree that the requirement for written modifications cannot be 
waived and that any attempted waiver shall be void. The City’s City Manager may, but is 
not required to, make minor amendments not affecting substantive terms without further 
authorization from the City Council. The City Council hereby authorizes the City 
Manager to execute any such amendments as required by this Agreement or that do not 
otherwise reduce City’s rights under this Agreement.  All other amendments shall be 
approved by the City Council. 


24. Construction and Interpretation.  It is agreed and acknowledged by 
Principal that the provisions of this Agreement have been arrived at through negotiation, 
and that Principal has had a full and fair opportunity to revise the provisions of this 
Agreement and to have such provisions reviewed by legal counsel.  Therefore, the 
normal rule of construction that any ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting 
party shall not apply in construing or interpreting this Agreement.


25. Successors and Assigns -- Covenant Running With the Land.  This 
Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, the successors and 
assigns of the respective parties.  The Agreement shall be recorded in the Office of the 
Recorder of Riverside County and shall constitute a covenant running with the land and 
an equitable servitude upon the subject property.


26. Actions.  Any action by any party to this Agreement, or any action 
concerning a security furnished pursuant thereto, shall be brought in the appropriate 
court of competent jurisdiction within the County of Riverside, State of California, 
notwithstanding any other provision of law which may provide that such action may be 
brought in some other location.  The law governing this Agreement is the law of the 
State of California.


27. Integration.  This Agreement is an integrated agreement.  It supersedes all 







14 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral.


28. Construction; References; Captions.  It being agreed the Parties or their 
agents have participated in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this 
Agreement shall be construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for 
or against any Party.  Any term referencing time, days, or period for performance shall 
be deemed calendar days and not work days.  All references to Principal include all 
personnel, employees, agents, and subcontractors of Principal, except as otherwise 
specified in this Agreement.  All references to City include its elected officials, officers, 
employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  
The captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for convenience and ease of 
reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope, content, or 
intent of this Agreement.


29. Severability.  If any provision in this Agreement is held by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 
shall continue in full force without being impaired.


30. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterpart originals, 
which taken together, shall constitute one and the same instrument.


31. Effective Date of Agreement.  This Agreement shall not become effective 
until the date it has been formally approved by the City and executed by the appropriate 
authorities of City and Principal.


32. Relationship Between The Parties.  The Parties hereby mutually agree 
that neither this Agreement, nor any other related entitlement, permit, nor approval 
issued by City for the Property shall operate to create the relationship of partnership, 
joint venture, or agency between City and Principal.  Principal’s contractors and 
subcontractors are exclusively and solely under the control and dominion of Principal.  
Nothing herein shall be deemed to make Principal or its contractors an agent or 
contractor of City.


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as follows: 







15 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


CITY OF WILDOMAR


 
Gary Nordquist
City Manager


PRINCIPAL:


Villa Siena Property, LLC


Name:  Bing Chen
Title:  Managing Director 


Name:  
Title:


ATTEST:


___________________________
Janet Morales
City Clerk


APPROVED AS TO FORM


___________________________
Thomas D. Jex
City Attorney


NOTE: SIGNATURES SHALL BE DULY NOTARIZED, AND APPROPRIATE ATTESTATIONS 
SHALL BE INCLUDED AS MAY BE REQUIRED BY THE BYLAWS, ARTICLES OF 
INCORPORATION, OR OTHER RULES OR REGULATIONS APPLICABLE TO T BUSINESS 
ENTITY.







16 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


EXHIBIT “A”


LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY







1 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


EXHIBIT “B”


SURETY BONDS AND OTHER SECURITY


As evidence of understanding the provisions contained in this Agreement, and of the 
Principal’s intent to comply with same, the Principal has submitted the below described 
security in the amounts required by this Agreement, and has affixed the appropriate 
signatures thereto:


PERFORMANCE SECURITY: $ 1,061,000.00
Surety:
Attorney-in-
fact:
Address:


PAYMENT SECURITY: $1,667,5   530,500.00
Surety:
Attorney-in-
fact:
Address:


MONUMENT SECURITY: $ Not Applicable
Amount deposited per Cash Receipt 
No.


Date:







1 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


BOND NO. ___________________
INITIAL PREMIUM:  ___________________


SUBJECT TO RENEWAL
CITY OF WILDOMAR


OFFSITE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS


FORM OF PERFORMANCE BOND


KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:


WHEREAS the City of Wildomar, California (“City”) and Villa Siena Property, LLC 
(“Principal”), have executed an agreement for work consisting of, but not limited to, the 
furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidentals for all grading, 
roads, paving, curbs and gutters, pathways, storm drains, sanitary sewers, utilities, 
drainage facilities, traffic controls, landscaping, street lights, and all other required 
facilities for Villa Siena Apartments Offsite Public Improvements (“Public 
Improvements”);


WHEREAS, the Public Improvements to be performed by Principal are more 
particularly set forth in that certain Public Improvement Agreement dated January 12, 
2022 (“Improvement Agreement”);


WHEREAS, the Improvement Agreement is hereby referred to and incorporated 
herein by reference; and


WHEREAS, Principal is required by the Improvement Agreement to provide a 
good and sufficient bond for performance of the Improvement Agreement, and to 
guarantee and warranty the Public Improvements constructed thereunder.


NOW, THEREFORE, Principal and _________________________________ 
(“Surety”), a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of 
__________, and duly authorized to transact surety business under the laws of the 
State of California, are held and firmly bound unto City in the sum of 
___________________________________ Dollars ($____________), said sum being 
not less than one hundred percent (100%) of the total cost of the Public Improvements 
as set forth in the Improvement Agreement, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors and 
administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.


THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such, that if Principal, his or its 
heirs, executors, administrators, successors or assigns, shall in all things stand to and 
abide by, and well and truly keep and perform the covenants, conditions, agreements, 
guarantees, and warranties in the Improvement Agreement and any alteration thereof 
made as therein provided, to be kept and performed at the time and in the manner 
therein specified and in all respects according to their intent and meaning, and to 
indemnify and save harmless City, its officers, employees, and agents, as stipulated in 







2 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


the Improvement Agreement, then this obligation shall become null and void; otherwise 
it shall be and remain in full force and effect.


As part of the obligation secured hereby, and in addition to the face amount 
specified therefor, there shall be included costs and reasonable expenses and fees, 
including reasonable attorney’s fees, incurred by City in successfully enforcing such 
obligation, all to be taxed as costs and included in any judgment rendered.


Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, 
extension of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the Improvement Agreement, or 
to any plans, profiles, and specifications related thereto, or to the Public Improvements 
to be constructed thereunder, shall in any way affect its obligations on this bond, and it 
does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration, or addition.


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the seal and signature of the Principal is hereto 
affixed, and the corporate seal and the name of the Surety is hereto affixed and attested 
by its duly authorized Attorney-in-Fact at _______________________, this _____ day 
of _______________, ______.


Villa Siena Property, LLC
Principal Surety


By: By:
Its:  Managing Member Attorney-In-Fact


(print name) (print name)


NOTE: APPROPRIATE NOTARIAL ACKNOWLEDGMENTS OF EXECUTION 
BY PRINCIPAL AND SURETY, AND A COPY OF THE POWER OF 
ATTORNEY TO LOCAL REPRESENTATIVES OF THE BONDING 
COMPANY MUST BE ATTACHED TO THIS BOND.







1 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


BOND NO. ___________________
INITIAL PREMIUM:  ___________________


SUBJECT TO RENEWAL
CITY OF WILDOMAR


OFFSITE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS


FORM OF LABOR AND MATERIAL BOND


KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:


WHEREAS the City of Wildomar California (“City”) and Villa Siena Property, LLC 
(“Principal”), have executed an agreement for work consisting of, but not limited to, the 
furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidentals for all grading, 
roads, paving, curbs and gutters, pathways, storm drains, sanitary sewers, utilities, 
drainage facilities, traffic controls, landscaping, street lights, and all other required 
facilities for Villa Siena Apartments Offsite Public Improvements (“Public 
Improvements”);


WHEREAS, the Public Improvements to be performed by Principal are more 
particularly set forth in that certain Public Improvement Agreement dated January 12, 
2022 (“Improvement Agreement”);


WHEREAS, the Improvement Agreement is hereby referred to and incorporated 
herein by reference; and


WHEREAS, Principal is required to furnish a bond in connection with the 
Improvement Agreement providing that if Principal or any of its subcontractors shall fail 
to pay for any materials, provisions, or other supplies, or terms used in, upon, for, or 
about the performance of the Public Improvements, or for any work or labor done 
thereon of any kind, or for amounts due under the provisions of Title 1 (commencing 
with section 8000) through Title 3 (commencing with section 9000) of Part 6 of Division 
4 of the California Civil Code, with respect to such work or labor, that the Surety on this 
bond will pay the same together with a reasonable attorney’s fee in case suit is brought 
on the bond.


NOW, THEREFORE, Principal and _________________________ (“Surety”), a 
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of _________________, 
and duly authorized to transact business under the laws of the State of California, are 
held and firmly bound unto City and to any and all material men, persons, companies or 
corporations furnishing materials, provisions, and other supplies used in, upon, for or 
about the performance of the Public Improvements, and all persons, companies or 
corporations renting or hiring teams, or implements or machinery, for or contributing to 
the Public Improvements to be done, and all persons performing work or labor upon the 
same and all persons supplying both work and materials as aforesaid excepting the 







2 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


Principal, the sum of _________________________ Dollars ($_______________), said 
sum being not less than 50% of the total cost of the Public Improvements under the 
terms of the Improvement Agreement, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors and 
administrators, successors and assigns jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.


THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH that if the Principal, his or its 
subcontractors, heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns, shall fail to pay 
for any materials, provisions, or other supplies or machinery used in, upon, for or about 
the performance of the Public Improvements, or for work or labor thereon of any kind, or 
fail to pay any of the persons named in California Civil Code Section 9100, or amounts 
due under the Unemployment Insurance Code with respect to work or labor performed 
by any such claimant, or for any amounts required to be deducted, withheld, and paid 
over to the Employment Development Department from the wages of employees of the 
contractor and his subcontractors pursuant to Section 13020 of the Unemployment 
Insurance Code with respect to such work and labor, and all other applicable laws of the 
State of California and rules and regulations of its agencies, then said Surety will pay 
the same in or to an amount not exceeding the sum specified herein.


As part of the obligation secured hereby, and in addition to the face amount 
specified therefor, there shall be included costs and reasonable expenses and fees, 
including reasonable attorney’s fees, incurred by City in successfully enforcing such 
obligation, all to be taxed as costs and included in any judgment rendered.


It is hereby expressly stipulated and agreed that this bond shall inure to the 
benefit of any and all persons, companies, and corporations entitled to file claims under 
Title 1 (commencing with section 8000) through Title 3 (commencing with section 9000) 
of Part 6 of Division 4 of the California Civil Code, so as to give a right of action to them 
or their assigns in any suit brought upon this bond.


Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, 
extension of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the Improvement Agreement, or 
to any plans, profiles, and specifications related thereto, or to the Public Improvements 
to be constructed thereunder, shall in any way affect its obligations on this bond, and it 
does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration, or addition.







3 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the seal and signature of the Principal is hereto 
affixed, and the corporate seal and the name of the Surety is hereto affixed and attested 
by its duly authorized Attorney-in-Fact at _____________________, this _____ day of 
_______________, ______.


Villa Siena Property, LLC
Principal Surety


By: By:
Its:  Managing Member Attorney-In-Fact


(print name) (print name)


NOTE: APPROPRIATE NOTARIAL ACKNOWLEDGMENTS OF EXECUTION 
BY PRINCIPAL AND SURETY, AND A COPY OF THE POWER OF 
ATTORNEY TO LOCAL REPRESENTATIVES OF THE BONDING 
COMPANY MUST BE ATTACHED TO THIS BOND.







































 
Change of Zone No. 2021-01 January 12, 2022 
Wildomar Zoning Consistency Program Page 1 


CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #2.2 


PUBLIC HEARING 
Meeting Date: January 12, 2022 


 


TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council  
 
FROM: Abdu Lachgar, AICP, Associate Planner 


Miles Barker, Assistant Planner, PlaceWorks, Inc. 
Matthew Bassi, Planning Director 


 
SUBJECT: Change of Zone No. 2021-01 (Zoning Consistency Program): City Council 


review of Change of Zone No. 2021-01 to change the existing zoning 
designations for 259 parcels in accordance with Government Code Section 
65860 


STAFF REPORT 


RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Commission recommends the City Council take the following actions: 
 


1. Adopt a Resolution entitled: 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2022 - ____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING AN ADDENDUM TO THE 
2003 GENERAL PLAN PROJECT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 


REPORT (SCH# 2002051143) IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 
15164 OF THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT 


(CEQA) GUIDELINES FOR THE CITY’S ZONING CONSISTENCY 
PROGRAM (CHANGE OF ZONE NO. 2021-01) 


 
2. Introduce for first reading an Ordinance entitled: 


 
ORDINANCE NO ____ 


AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA APPROVING CHANGE OF ZONE NO. 
2021-01 (ZONING CONSISTENCY PROGRAM) TO CHANGE THE 


EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION FOR 259 PROPERTIES TO 
MATCH THEIR EXISTING GENERAL PLAN LAND USE 


DESIGNATIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT CODE 
65860 


 
 
 







 
Change of Zone No. 2021-01 January 12, 2022 
Wildomar Zoning Consistency Program Page 2 


PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION: 
The Planning Commission reviewed the Change of Zone No. 2021-01 (Zoning 
Consistency Program) at its December 1, 2021 meeting.  Staff provided a detailed power 
point presentation, including background information about the program and staff’s work 
effort to bring this important project forward for Commission and Council review.  There 
were 3 public speakers in support of the project.   
 
Comments from the Commission were very supportive, and they expressed an 
understanding how important the proposed zone changes are and the benefits to property 
owners (and applicant’s) moving forward.  After Commission deliberations, they voted 4-
0-1 (Strong Absent) to adopt PC Resolutions No. 2021-28 and 2021-09 recommending 
City Council approval of the Zoning Consistency Program. 


BACKGROUND: 
In 2003, the County of Riverside (County) adopted a comprehensive update to its General 
Plan (RCIP), which included the unincorporated Wildomar community.  At the time of 
adoption, the County planned to initiate a zoning consistency program to rezone all land 
in Wildomar to be consistent with the newly adopted General Plan update.  However, the 
County never completed the effort.  Just prior to incorporation, the County Board of 
Supervisors adopted a new land use map/plan (GPA 884 in 2007) for Wildomar 
community that went through extensive public participation and review.  Again, the County 
was unable to prepare a zoning consistency program for the new land use map. 
 
Upon incorporation on July 1, 2008, the City Council adopted the Riverside County 
General Plan with all its county-wide goals and policies.  This includes the 2007 land use 
map.  At this time, the City also inherited a zoning map and all its zoning designations 
from the County.  Since the County was unable to initiate a zoning consistency program,  
the City basically inherited a significant number of parcels that had inconsistent zoning 
designations.  
 
After incorporation, the County no longer had land use jurisdiction in the City, and 
because of fiscal challenges and nearly constant legal challenges, the City was unable to 
begin its own Zoning Consistency Program.  However, the City recently received a large 
SB 2 grant from the state Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) 
which now gives the city the ability to prepare this Zoning Consistency Program.  Our aim 
is to ensure that each property in the city has a zoning district that aligns with the General 
Plan land use designation, and addresses technical issues, such as map errors.  
 
As the Council knows, each property in Wildomar has a general plan land use designation 
and a corresponding zoning district (e.g., Residential, Commercial, Industrial) as 
illustrated on the City’s official Zoning Map. Currently, each property owner in the city 
requesting development on a parcel that has a discrepancy between the General Plan 
Land Use Map and the Zoning Map must concurrently process a Change of Zone to 
accommodate their development proposal. This adds complexity and cost to every 
development project.  







 
Change of Zone No. 2021-01 January 12, 2022 
Wildomar Zoning Consistency Program Page 3 


ANALYSIS: 
As part of the work to complete the zoning consistency update, PlaceWorks conducted a 
geographic information system (GIS) data analysis of inconsistencies between the City’s 
current Zoning Map and the General Plan Land Use Map.  Additionally, property owner 
outreach and field verification were used to create a table and map of parcels that are 
eligible for rezoning.  Thereafter, the City held meetings with Council Members in each 
district to evaluate which parcels were suitable for rezoning based on the preliminary 
analyses. 
 
The City also sent individualized notice letters to landowners affected by the rezoning to 
give them information on the project, including an interactive online map showing all 
affected parcels, and ask whether they were in favor or opposition to the change. The 
City received 19 calls and 12 emails in favor of rezoning, and 2 calls and 5 emails against 
rezoning. All remaining landowners that received notices were in favor of rezoning. The 
landowners in opposition to this change were still given consideration as part of the overall 
project. As a result, 259 parcels were recommended to move forward with the zoning 
consistency update. 
 
The proposed project will align the zoning districts for 259 parcels as shown on the City 
Zoning Map with the General Plan land use designations shown on the Land Use Map. 
The proposed changes are consistent with the General Plan as evaluated in the General 
Plan EIR. The zoning districts that will be applied to the properties identified for rezoning 
include the following:  


• R-2 Multiple-Family Dwellings (refer to Chapter 17.36 of the Municipal Code) 


• R-3 General Residential (refer to Chapter 17.44 of the Municipal Code) 


• R-5 Open Area Combined Zone (refer to Chapter 17.64 of the Municipal Code) 


• R-R Rural Residential (refer to Chapter 17.16 of the Municipal Code) 


• C-1/C-P General Commercial (refer to Chapter 17.72 of the Municipal Code) 


• C-P-S Scenic Highway Commercial (refer to Chapter 17.76 of the Municipal Code) 


• I-P Industrial Park (refer to Chapter 17.88 of the Municipal Code) 


• M-SC Manufacturing Service Commercial (refer to Chapter 17.92 of the Municipal 
Code) 


 
The recommended zoning changes will not change the existing land use pattern, as 
established by the General Plan land use map.  While the change in zone district for the 
affected parcels will change the allowable uses, the development potential and physical 
impacts are already addressed for similarly designated and zoned properties in the City.  
Further, development policies such as the development code and engineering design 
standards, apply to all development in every zone district and are both consistent with, 
and designed to achieve the goals of the General Plan and the support the conclusions 
in the EIR.  
 
  







 
Change of Zone No. 2021-01 January 12, 2022 
Wildomar Zoning Consistency Program Page 4 


SB 166 “No Net Loss” 
Government Code Section 65863 requires that the City ensure that changes to the 
general plan land use designation or zone district do not affect the inventory of sites 
identified in the Housing Element. None of the sites identified for rezoning are reducing 
the density from the numbers anticipated in the Housing Element.  Two sites identified in 
the proposed project are also identified in Table HNA-24 of the 2021 – 2029 Housing 
Element.  These include APNs 380-270-015 and 380-290-016. APN 380-270-015 is 
currently zoned R-R (Rural Residential) which would allow for 1 unit; the proposed 
rezoning is R-2 ( Multiple-Family Dwellings) and would allow for  22 units.  APN 380-290-
016 is currently zoned R-R (Rural Residential) which would allow for 1 unit; the proposed 
rezoning is R-3 (General Residential) and would allow for 38 units.   
 
Combined, the rezoning of these properties would increase the number of units currently 
allowed in the zoning to a total of 60 units.  As the proposed project does not change the 
land use designation the change in zoning does not increase the amount of housing 
already allowed by the General Plan. 
 
SB 330 Housing Accountability Act 
In addition to SB 166, Government Code Section 66300(b) (SB 330) places the following 
restriction on the City’s ability to rezone property. 
 


66300(b) (1):  Notwithstanding any other law except as provided in subdivision (i), 
with respect to land where housing is an allowable use, an affected county or an 
affected city shall not enact a development policy, standard, or condition that would 
have any of the following effects: 
 


(A) Changing the general plan land use designation, specific plan land use 
designation, or zoning of a parcel or parcels of property to a less intensive use 
or reducing the intensity of land use within an existing general plan land use 
designation, specific plan land use designation, or zoning district below what 
was allowed under the land use designation and zoning ordinances of the 
affected county or affected city, as applicable, as in effect on January 1, 2018, 
except as otherwise provided in clause (ii) of subparagraph (B). For purposes 
of this subparagraph, “less intensive use” includes, but is not limited to, 
reductions to height, density, or floor area ratio, new or increased open space 
or lot size requirements, or new or increased setback requirements, minimum 
frontage requirements, or maximum lot coverage limitations, or anything that 
would lessen the intensity of housing. 


 
None of the rezone sites included in the proposed project would result in fewer housing 
units than can currently be provided in the City.  Currently, the 259 parcels allow for a 
total of 863 housing units (i.e., 3.3 persons/household).  Rezoning these parcels would 
increase the number of allowable units for a total of 927 units which represents an 
increase of 64 housing units.  The 259 parcels proposed for rezoning will align with the 
underlying General Plan land use designations.  Where these land use designations do 
not allow housing to be developed, the prohibitions of SB 330 do not apply.  Parcels 







 
Change of Zone No. 2021-01 January 12, 2022 
Wildomar Zoning Consistency Program Page 5 


rezoned from residential to commercial and industrial uses to comply with the land use 
designations of the General Plan are not considered land where housing is an allowable 
use.  Furthermore, the Zoning Consistency update does not impact residential capacity 
in the city because housing would not be allowed for development on sites where 
residential zoning is inconsistent with the General Plan Land Use Map. 
 
Further, Government Code 65589.5(j)(4) states: 
 


(4) For purposes of this section, a proposed housing development project is not 
inconsistent with the applicable zoning standards and criteria, and shall not require 
a rezoning, if the housing development project is consistent with the objective 
general plan standards and criteria but the zoning for the project site is inconsistent 
with the general plan. If the local agency has complied with paragraph (2), the local 
agency may require the proposed housing development project to comply with the 
objective standards and criteria of the zoning which is consistent with the general 
plan, however, the standards and criteria shall be applied to facilitate and 
accommodate development at the density allowed on the site by the general plan 
and proposed by the proposed housing development project. 
 


As a result, even if the proposed project is denied, landowners may be able to rely upon 
the General Plan land use designation for housing projects. 


CEQA DETERMINATION: 
Public Resources Code Section 21166 and CEQA Guidelines Sections 15162 through 
15164 set forth the criteria for determining whether a subsequent EIR, subsequent 
negative declaration, or addendum should be prepared in support of further agency action 
on the project. In determining whether an addendum is the appropriate document to 
analyze the modifications to the project as a result of approving  a Change of Zone No. 
2021-01 (Zoning Consistency Program), CEQA Guidelines Section 15164 (Addendum to 
an EIR or Negative Declaration) states, “The lead agency or a responsible agency shall 
prepare an addendum to a previously certified EIR if some changes or additions are 
necessary but none of the conditions described in Section 15162 calling for preparation 
of a subsequent EIR have occurred.”  Under the CEQA Guidelines, a subsequent EIR or 
negative declaration is to be prepared if any of the following criteria are met.  
 


(a) When an EIR has been certified or negative declaration adopted for a 
project, no subsequent EIR shall be prepared for that project unless the 
lead agency determines, on the basis of substantial evidence in the light 
of the whole record, one or more of the following: 


 
(1) Substantial changes are proposed in the project which will require 


major revisions of the previous EIR or negative declaration due to 
the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a 
substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant 
effects; 


 







 
Change of Zone No. 2021-01 January 12, 2022 
Wildomar Zoning Consistency Program Page 6 


The proposed project will align the zoning districts as shown on the City Zoning Map with 
the General Plan land use designations shown on the Land Use Map. The proposed 
changes are consistent with the General Plan as evaluated in the General Plan EIR and 
adopted by the City upon incorporation. Consequently, the changes to zoning districts 
would not change the conclusions of the EIR and would not require revisions to the 
General Plan EIR due to new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase 
in the severity of previously identified significant effects. 


 
(2) Substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances under 


which the project is undertaken which will require major revisions of 
the previous EIR or negative declaration due to the involvement of 
new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the 
severity of previously identified significant effects; or 


 
The General Plan was adopted on July 1, 2008. Since that time, the City has not changed 
the existing city boundaries, or adopted a new General Plan. The project does not 
propose any annexation of land, nor does it increase the intensity of development beyond 
that previously identified in the General Plan EIR. No substantial changes in the physical 
or regulatory environment have occurred since certification of the General Plan EIR. 
 


(3) New information of substantial importance, which was not known and 
could not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence 
at the time the previous EIR was certified as complete or the negative 
declaration was adopted, shows any of the following: 


 
(A) The project will have one or more significant effects not 


discussed in the previous EIR or negative declaration; 
 
The policies and mitigation measures identified in the General Plan EIR would continue 
to apply to all development in the city and would have the same mitigating effect as 
disclosed in the General Plan EIR. There is no new information that was not known and 
could not have been known at the time the General Plan EIR was certified demonstrating 
that the project would have one or more significant effects not discussed in the previous 
EIR. Therefore, no new impacts would occur as a result of future development. Because 
a development project must be consistent with the General Plan, zoning, and 
development standards of the City, the resulting impacts would be the same as those 
disclosed in the certified General Plan EIR. 
 


(B) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially 
more severe than shown in the previous EIR; 


 
The proposed project would have the same significant impacts as those disclosed in the 
General Plan EIR. The General Plan policies and mitigation measures identified in the 
General Plan EIR to reduce physical environmental effects would apply to all new 
development, including parcels rezoned as part of this project. These policies and 
mitigation measures would have the same mitigating effect as disclosed in the General 







 
Change of Zone No. 2021-01 January 12, 2022 
Wildomar Zoning Consistency Program Page 7 


Plan EIR. There is no new information that would demonstrate that significant effects 
examined would be substantially more severe than shown in the certified General Plan 
EIR.  
 


(C) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be 
feasible would in fact be feasible and would substantially reduce 
one or more significant effects of the project, but the project 
proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or 
alternative; or 


 
The proposed project will align the zoning districts on the City of Wildomar Zoning Map 
with the General Plan Land Use Map as evaluated by the General Plan EIR and adopted 
by the City upon incorporation. All policies and mitigation measures identified in the 
General Plan EIR would continue to apply to all development in the city and would have 
the same mitigating effect as disclosed in the General Plan EIR. The proposed project 
would not change the assumptions described in the General Plan EIR, and therefore 
would not substantially change the conclusions of the EIR or require new mitigation 
measures. 
 


(D) Mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably 
different from those analyzed in the previous EIR would 
substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the 
environment, but the project proponents decline to adopt the 
mitigation measure or alternative. 


 
The proposed project does not make any changes to the land use designations or map, 
and there is no need to modify the mitigation measures contained in the General Plan 
EIR.  


(b) If changes to a project or its circumstances occur or new information becomes 
available after adoption of a negative declaration, the lead agency shall prepare 
a subsequent EIR if required under subdivision (a). Otherwise, the lead agency 
shall determine whether to prepare a subsequent negative declaration, and 
addendum, or no further documentation. 


 
The proposed zoning changes would not result in an increase of developable acres or 
overall development intensity and the resulting impacts would be the same as those 
disclosed in the certified General Plan EIR. Therefore, no new mitigation measures or 
alternatives to the proposed project would be required. 


REQUIRED CHANGE OF ZONE FINDING 
In accordance with California Government Code, Section 65860 and Chapter 17.280 of 
the Wildomar Municipal Code, the following finding is offered for Council consideration in 
approving of Change of Zone No. 2021-01 (Zoning Consistency Program) to the City 
Council. 
 


A. The proposed change of zone is consistent with the City of Wildomar General Plan. 







 
Change of Zone No. 2021-01 January 12, 2022 
Wildomar Zoning Consistency Program Page 8 


Evidence:  The proposed change of zone is consistent with the City of Wildomar 
General Plan in that the proposed project intends to change the existing zoning 
designation for 259 properties to match the existing General Plan land use 
designations.  Once the changes are approved and implemented, each of the 
goals and policies in the land use designation will be supported by the new zoning 
designations.  


FISCAL IMPACTS: 
The Zoning Consistency project will not have a fiscal impact on the city’s general fund. 
The City received an SB 2 grant from the state Department of Housing and Community 
Development (HCD) that will cover all costs associated with this project. 


PUBLIC NOTICING: 
In accordance with the Wildomar Municipal Code, the Planning Department on January 
1, 2022, published a legal notice in the Press Enterprise, a local newspaper of general 
circulation, notifying the general public of the public hearing for the proposed Zoning 
Change No.  2021-01 to be held on January 12, 2022.  In addition, the Planning 
Department on December 29, 2021 sent individual public hearing notices to each of the 
259 affected property owners notifying them of the January 12, 2022 City Council 
meeting.  


Respectfully Submitted,   Reviewed By, 
Gary Nordquist     Thomas D. Jex 
City Manager     City Attorney 


ATTACHMENTS: 
A. City Council Resolution No. 2022 - ____ 


Exhibit 1 – Addendum to the 2003 General Plan EIR 
B. City Council Ordinance No. ____ 


Exhibit 1 - Property List of Rezone Sites 
C. General Plan Land Use Map-Parcels with Inconsistent Zoning 
D. Zoning Map-Parcels with Inconsistent Zoning 
E. Zoning Consistency Map-Proposed Zone Change Parcels 
F. Zoning Consistency Property Owner Notification Letter  
G. SB 166 “No Net Loss” Zone Changes Map 
H. Existing and Proposed Zoning - Unit Capacity Table 


INCORPORATED HEREIN BY REFERENCE THE FOLLOWING: 
• City of Wildomar General Plan and General Plan EIR 
• City of Wildomar Zoning Ordinance (Title 17, Zoning) 


 
 
 







ATTACHMENT A 
 


Council Resolution for 
Addendum to General Plan EIR 


 
  







RESOLUTION NO. 2022-____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING AN ADDENDUM 
TO THE 2003 GENERAL PLAN PROJECT 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT (SCH# 2002051143) 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 15164 OF THE 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) 
GUIDELINES FOR THE CITY’S ZONING CONSISTENCY 
PROGRAM (CHANGE OF ZONE NO. 2021-01) 


WHEREAS, the City Council, upon recommendation from the Planning 
Commission, adopted Council Resolution No. 08-01 on July 1, 2008 certifying the final 
Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2002051143) and Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Program for the 2003 General Plan Update project; and 


WHEREAS, the City prepared an Addendum to the General Plan EIR attached as 
Exhibit A to this Resolution, that evaluates the potential environmental impacts of the 
proposed zone change; and in accordance with Section 15164 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines; and 


WHEREAS, based on that evaluation, the City Council has concluded, that the EIR 
for the 2003 General Plan Update project fully analyzed and mitigated, where feasible, all 
potentially significant environmental impacts, if any, that could result from approval of the 
Zoning Consistency update; and therefore, determined that no subsequent EIR is 
required under CEQA Guideline 15162 and approval of the Addendum in accordance with 
CEQA Guideline 15164 is appropriate; and 


WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 17.192.040 of the Wildomar Municipal 
Code, the Planning Department on December 29, 2021 published a legal notice in the 
“Press Enterprise”, a local newspaper of general circulation, notifying the general public 
of the of the January 12, 2022 City Council meeting where the City Council would make 
a decision on the proposed Addendum; and  


WHEREAS, in accordance with Chapter 17.08 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, 
the City Council conducted the duly noticed public hearing on January 12, 2022 to discuss 
and make a decision on the proposed Addendum; and  


NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Wildomar, does hereby resolve, 
determine and order as follows: 
 
CEQA FINDINGS.   


The City Council, in light of the whole record before it, including but not limited to, 
the Addendum to the 2003 General Plan Environmental Impact Report for the Zoning 
Consistency update and all documents incorporated by reference therein, any comments 
received and responses provided, and other substantial evidence (within the meaning of 
Public Resources Code § 21080(e) and § 21082.2) within the record and/or provided at 
the public hearing, determines as follows: 







That subsequent EIR is not required under CEQA Guideline Section 15162 based 
upon the following: 


(1) Substantial changes are not proposed in the Zoning Consistency update 
which would require major revisions of the previous 2003 General Plan 
Environmental Impact Report due to the involvement of new significant 
environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously 
identified significant effects. 


(2) Substantial changes have not occurred in the Zoning Consistency update 
with respect to the circumstances under which the original 2003 General Plan 
project Environmental Impact Report was undertaken which would require 
major revisions of this original EIR due to the involvement of new significant 
environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously 
identified significant effects. 


(3) No new information for the Zoning Consistency update of substantial 
importance has come to light, which was not known and could not have been 
known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the 2003 General 
Plan project Environmental Impact Report was certified showing any of the 
following: 


(A) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the 
previous EIR; 


(B) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more 
severe than shown in the previous EIR; 


(C) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible 
would in fact be feasible, and would substantially reduce one or more 
significant effects of the project, but the project proponents decline to 
adopt the mitigation measure or alternative; or 


(D) Mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably different 
from those analyzed in the previous EIR would substantially reduce 
one or more significant effects on the environment, but the project 
proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative. 


SECTION 2. CITY COUNCIL ACTION. 
Based on the foregoing findings, and on substantial evidence in the whole of the 


record, the City Council hereby adopts this Resolution approving an Addendum to the 
2003 General Plan Project Environmental Impact Report for Change of Zone No. 2021-
01 (Zoning Consistency Program), attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference 
as Exhibit 1. 
  







 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of January, 2022. 
 
 
 
 


_____________________________ 
Ben J. Benoit 
Mayor 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________  ______________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales, CMC 
City Attorney      City Clerk 
 
 
 


  







Exhibit 1  
CEQA Addendum to 2003 General Plan EIR 


 







November 2021 | General Plan EIR Addendum 


ADDENDUM TO THE GENERAL PLAN EIR 
 SCH No. 2002051143 


 


ZONING CONSISTENCY UPDATE 
(Change of Zone No. 2021-01) 


City of Wildomar 


Prepared for: 


City of Wildomar 
Contact: Matthew Bassi, 


Planning Director 
23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201 


Wildomar, California 92595 
951.677.7751 


 
Prepared by: 


PlaceWorks 
Contact: Miles Barker, Project Planner 


303 MacArthur Place, Suite 1100 
Santa Ana, California 92707 


714.966.9220 
info@placeworks.com 
www.placeworks.com 


 











A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  Z O N I N G  C O N S I S T E N C Y  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


Table of Contents 


November 2021 Page i 


Section  Page 


1. ADDENDUM TO THE ADOPTED GENERAL PLAN EIR ............................................................... 1 


1.1 BACKGROUND .................................................................................................................................................... 1 


1.2 PURPOSE OF AN EIR ADDENDUM ........................................................................................................... 1 


1.3 PROJECT DESCRIPTION ................................................................................................................................. 3 


1.4 GENERAL PLAN EIR ........................................................................................................................................ 9 


2. CEQA ANALYSIS .......................................................................................................................... 11 


2.1 ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS ................................................................................................................... 11 


2.2 FINDINGS ........................................................................................................................................................... 12 


   


Tables Page 


TABLE 1 EXISTING PARCELS WITH ZONING INCONSISTENT WITH THE GENERAL PLAN .......... 8 
TABLE 2 EXISTING AND PROPOSED ZONING DISTRICT (ZONING CLASSIFICATIONS) ................. 8 
TABLE 3 EXISTING AND PROPOSED ZONING DISTRICT (GENERAL) ...................................................... 8 
TABLE 4 GENERAL PLAN EIR SIGNIFICANT AND UNAVOIDABLE IMPACTS AND IMPACTS OF 


THE PROPOSED PROJECT ............................................................................................................................. 9 


Figures  Page 


FIGURE 1 CITY OF WILDOMAR GENERAL PLAN LAND USE MAP (PARCELS WITH 
INCONSISTENT ZONING) ............................................................................................................................. 4 


FIGURE 2 CITY OF WILDOMAR EXISTING ZONING MAP (PARCELS WITH INCONSISTENT 
ZONING)................................................................................................................................................................ 5 


FIGURE 3 CITY OF WILDOMAR ZONING CONSISTENCY MAP (PROPOSED ZONING DISTRICTS 
FOR INCONSISTENT PARCELS) .................................................................................................................. 6 


 


Appendices Page 


APPENDIX A: LIST OF PROPERTIES ...................................................................................................................................... A-1 


  







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  Z O N I N G  C O N S I S T E N C Y  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


Table of Contents 


Page ii November 2021 


This page intentionally left blank. 


 


 







 


November 2021 Page 1 


1. Addendum to the Adopted General Plan EIR 
1.1 BACKGROUND 
In 2003, the County of  Riverside (County) adopted its General Plan and planned to initiate a Zoning 
Consistency Program to rezone all land in the area that became the City of  Wildomar (City) to be consistent 
with the newly adopted General Plan. A Zoning Consistency Program aims to ensure that each property in the 
city has a zoning district that aligns with the General Plan land use designation, and addresses technical issues, 
such as map errors. The County did not complete the rezoning effort before the City incorporated on July 1, 
2008. Upon incorporation the City adopted the Riverside County General Plan thereby inheriting several parcels 
with zoning that did not match the General Plan. As the County no longer had land use jurisdiction, and because 
of  City fiscal challenges and nearly constant legal challenge during the first few years of  the new City, the City 
of  Wildomar (City) was unable to begin the Zoning Consistency Program.   


Each property in Wildomar has a unique land use designation in the General Plan and a corresponding zoning 
district (e.g., Residential, Commercial, Industrial) illustrated on the City’s official Zoning Map. Currently, each 
property owner in the city requesting development on a parcel that has zoning that differs from the General 
Plan Land Use Map must process a Change of  Zone to accommodate their development proposal. This adds 
complexity and cost to every development project and was a key reason why the SB-2 Grant was approved by 
the state. 


In 2020 the City was awarded an SB-2 Grant from the State Department of  Housing and Community 
Development (HCD). One of  the projects of  the SB-2 Grant is for the City to complete the Zoning 
Consistency Program to bring properties into compliance with the General Plan. 


This document serves as the environmental documentation for the City’s update to the Zoning Map to bring 
the identified parcels into compliance with the General Plan. This addendum to the General Plan 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR), certified on June 17, 2003 (State Clearinghouse Number 2002051143), 
demonstrates that the analysis in the General Plan EIR adequately addresses the potential physical impacts 
associated with implementation of  the proposed project and that none of  the conditions described in the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines, Section 15162, exist and preparation of  a 
subsequent EIR or negative declaration is not necessary. 


1.2 PURPOSE OF AN EIR ADDENDUM 
According to CEQA Guidelines Section 15164(a), an addendum shall be prepared if  some changes or additions 
to a previously adopted EIR are necessary, but none of  the conditions enumerated in CEQA Guidelines 
Sections 15162(a)(1) to (3) calling for the preparation of  subsequent EIR have occurred. As stated in CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15162 (Subsequent EIRs and Negative Declarations): 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  Z O N I N G  C O N S I S T E N C Y  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted General Plan EIR 


Page 2 November 2021 


When an EIR has been certified or negative declaration adopted for a project, no subsequent EIR 
shall be prepared for that project unless the lead agency determines, on the basis of  substantial 
evidence in the light of  the whole record, one or more of  the following: 


(1) Substantial changes are proposed in the project which will require major revisions of the 
previous EIR or negative declaration due to the involvement of new significant environmental 
effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects; 


(2) Substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances under which the project is 
undertaken which will require major revisions of the previous EIR or negative declaration due 
to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the 
severity of previously identified significant effects; or 


(3) New information of substantial importance, which was not known and could not have been 
known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the previous EIR was certified as 
complete or negative declaration was adopted, shows any of the following: 


(a) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the previous EIR or 
negative declaration; 


(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than shown in 
the previous EIR; 


(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in fact be 
feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the project, but 
the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative; or 


(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably different from those analyzed 
in the previous EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the 
environment, but the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or 
alternative. 


The proposed project would not trigger any of  the conditions outlined in CEQA Guidelines Sections 
15162(a)(1) to (3) because these changes would not result in new significant environmental effects or a 
substantial increase in the severity of  previously identified significant effects requiring major revisions to the 
General Plan EIR. The following analysis provides the substantial evidence required by CEQA Guidelines 
Section 15164(e) to support the finding that a subsequent EIR is not required and an addendum to the General 
Plan EIR is the appropriate environmental document to address changes to the project. 


As stated in CEQA Guidelines Section 15164 (Addendum to an EIR): 


(a) The lead agency or responsible agency shall prepare an addendum to a previously certified 
EIR if some changes or additions are necessary but none of the conditions described in 
Section 15162 calling for preparation of a subsequent EIR have occurred. 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  Z O N I N G  C O N S I S T E N C Y  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted General Plan EIR 


November 2021 Page 3 


(b) An addendum to an adopted negative declaration may be prepared if only minor technical 
changes or additions are necessary or none of the conditions described in Section 15162 
calling for the preparation of a subsequent EIR or negative declaration have occurred. 


(c) An addendum need not be circulated for public review but can be included in or attached 
to the final EIR or adopted negative declaration. 


(d) The decision-making body shall consider the addendum with the final EIR or adopted 
negative declaration prior to making a decision on the project. 


(e) A brief explanation of the decision not to prepare a subsequent EIR pursuant to Section 
15162 should be included in an addendum to an EIR, the lead agency's findings on the 
project, or elsewhere in the record. The explanation must be supported by substantial 
evidence. 


A copy of  this addendum, and all supporting documentation, may be reviewed or obtained at the City of  
Wildomar Planning Department, 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Wildomar, California 92595. 


1.3 PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
As part of  the work for this project, a geographic information system (GIS) data analysis of  inconsistencies 
between the City’s current Zoning Map and the General Plan Land Use Map was conducted. Property owner 
outreach and field verification were used to create a table and map of  parcels that are eligible for rezoning. 
Thereafter, the City held meetings with Council Members of  all districts to evaluate which parcels were suitable 
for rezoning based on the preliminary analyses. The City sent notice letters to landowners affected by the 
rezoning to ask whether they were in favor or opposition to the change. The City received 19 calls and 12 emails 
in favor of  rezoning, and 2 calls and 5 emails against rezoning. The landowners in opposition to this change 
were removed from consideration. All remaining landowners that received notices were in favor of  rezoning. 
As a result, 259 parcels were recommended to move forward with the zoning consistency update. The results 
of  the outreach, study, and verification process are shown in Tables 1 through 3, and Figures 1 through 3.  


The proposed project would amend the City’s Zoning Map and adopt an ordinance that identifies the parcels 
being rezoned to be consistent with their existing General Plan land use designations shown on the Land Use 
Map. Figure 1 shows the land use designations of  the parcels with inconsistent zoning districts. Figure 2 shows 
the existing zoning districts of  those parcels. Figure 3 shows the proposed zoning districts of  the parcels that 
will align their zoning districts with the General Plan land use designations. 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  Z O N I N G  C O N S I S T E N C Y  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted General Plan EIR 


Page 4 November 2021 


Figure 1 City of Wildomar General Plan Land Use Map (Parcels with Inconsistent Zoning) 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  Z O N I N G  C O N S I S T E N C Y  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted General Plan EIR 


November 2021 Page 5 


Figure 2 City of Wildomar Existing Zoning Map (Parcels with Inconsistent Zoning) 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  Z O N I N G  C O N S I S T E N C Y  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted General Plan EIR 


Page 6 November 2021 


Figure 3 City of Wildomar Zoning Consistency Map (Proposed Zoning Districts for 
Inconsistent Parcels) 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  Z O N I N G  C O N S I S T E N C Y  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted General Plan EIR 


November 2021 Page 7 


The proposed changes are consistent with the General Plan as evaluated in the General Plan EIR. The zoning 
districts that will be applied to the properties identified for rezoning include the following:  


• C-1/C-P General Commercial (refer to Chapter 17.72 of  the Municipal Code) 


• C-P-S Scenic Highway Commercial (refer to Chapter 17.76 of  the Municipal Code) 


• I-P Industrial Park (refer to Chapter 17.88 of  the Municipal Code) 


• M-SC Manufacturing Service Commercial (refer to Chapter 17.92 of  the Municipal Code) 


• R2 Multiple-Family Dwellings (refer to Chapter 17.36 of  the Municipal Code) 


• R3 General Residential (refer to Chapter 17.44 of  the Municipal Code) 


• R5 Open Area Combined Zone (refer to Chapter 17.64 of  the Municipal Code) 


• RR Rural Residential (refer to Chapter 17.16 of  the Municipal Code) 


As shown in Table 3.B of  the General Plan EIR, the buildout projections are based on land use designations 
rather than zone districts. The City of  Wildomar is part of  the Elsinore Area Plan which was analyzed in the 
General Plan EIR. The land use designations identified in Table 1 are consistent with the land use designations 
identified in the buildout projections of  the General Plan EIR and would remain unchanged as the proposed 
project intends to rezone properties and align the zoning districts with the General Plan land use designations. 
A detailed summary of  the properties identified for rezoning is provided in Appendix A to this Addendum. 
The properties contain information regarding the APN, acreage, council district, existing zoning district and 
General Plan Land Use designation, and proposed zoning district.  


As shown in Table 1, 754.24 acres (259 parcels) were identified as having zoning that are not consistent with 
the overlying General Plan Designation. Of  the total, 210 parcels are zoned (RR) Rural Residential district. Of  
these parcels, 123 are in the Commercial Retail General Plan land use designation and 54 are in the Business 
Park General Plan land use designation. Therefore, these parcels would be rezoned to the C-1/C-P and C-P-S 
zoning districts to reflect the General Plan land use designations. As shown in Table 2, the proposed zoning 
changes would not result in a net increase of  developable acres compared to that analyzed in the General Plan 
EIR.   


Table 3 shows that 754.24 acres (259 parcels) currently have a zoning designation for either commercial, 
industrial, or residential and would be rezoned to align with the General Plan Land Use map. Overall, the 
redesignations would increase non-residential zoning designations (i.e., commercial and industrial) by 432.1 
acres and decrease residential zoning designations by 432.1 acres.  


The zoning changes will not change the existing land use pattern, as established by the General Plan and 
evaluated in the General Plan EIR. The proposed project will change what is currently permitted on 
inconsistently zoned properties and bring them into compliance with the General Plan. While the change in 
zone district for the affected parcels will change the allowable uses, the development potential and impacts are 
already addressed for each zone district by the General Plan EIR. In most cases there are development standards 
for any new permitted use which are independent from CEQA review. However, development policies, 
programs, ordinances, and permits that define the development process would still apply. 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  Z O N I N G  C O N S I S T E N C Y  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted General Plan EIR 


Page 8 November 2021 


Table 1: Existing Parcels with Zoning Inconsistent with the General Plan 


Zoning District Land Use Designation 
Parcel 
Count Acres 


Commercial – C-1/C-P (General Commercial) Residential – MHDR (Medium High Density Residential) 7 3.65 
Residential – VLDR (Very Low Density Residential) 1 1.26 
Industrial – LI (Light Industrial) 4 12.06 


Commercial – C-P-S (Scenic Highway Commercial) Residential – LDR (Low Density Residential) 4 3.36 
Industrial – LI (Light Industrial) 1 3.01 


Industrial – I-P (Industrial Park) Residential – MHDR (Medium High Density Residential) 1 4.54 
Industrial – M-SC (Manufacturing Service Commercial)  CR (Commercial Retail) 1 3.40 


Residential – MDR (Medium Density Residential) 2 20.93 
Residential – R-1-15000 Residential – LDR (Low Density Residential) 2 11.51 
Residential – R3 (General Residential) Commercial – BP (Business Park) 1 4.26 
Residential – R4 (Planned Residential) Industrial – LI (Light Industrial) 4 8.72 
Residential – RR (Rural Residential)  Commercial – BP (Business Park) 54 140.48 


CR (Commercial Retail) 123 275.57 
Industrial – LI (Light Industrial) 15 36.81 
Residential – MHDR (Medium High Density Residential) 17 39.29 
Residential – VHDR (Very High Density Residential) 1 0.1 


Residential – RT (Mobile Home Subdivision/ 
Mobile Home Park) Open Space – OSR (Open Space Recreational) 22 185.29 


Total - 259 754.24 


Table 2: Existing and Proposed Zoning District (Zoning Classifications) 


Zoning District 


Existing Proposed Difference 
Parcel 
Count Acres 


Parcel 
Count Acres 


Parcel 
Count Acres 


Commercial – C-1/C-P (General Commercial) 12 16.97 84 122.20 72 105.23 
Commercial – C-P-S (Scenic Highway Commercial) 5 6.36 40 156.78 35 150.42 
Industrial – I-P (Industrial Park) 1 4.54 8 28.61 7 24.07 
Industrial – M-SC (Manufacturing Service Commercial)  3 24.34 70 176.72 67 152.38 
Residential – R-1-15000 2 11.51 0 0 -2 -11.51 
Residential – R2 (Multiple-Family Dwellings) 0 0 3 3.87 3 3.87 
Residential – R3 (General Residential) 1 4.26 20 42.46 19 38.2 
Residential – R4 (Planned Residential) 3 8.72 0 0 -3 -8.72 
Residential – R5 (Open Area Combined Zone) 0 0 22 185.29 22 185.29 
Residential – RR (Rural Residential)  210 492.25 12 38.31 -198 -453.94 
Residential – RT (Mobile Home Subdivision/Mobile Home Park) 22 185.29 0 0 -22 -185.29 
Total 259 754.24 259 754.24 0 0 


Table 3: Existing and Proposed Zoning District (General) 


Zoning District 


Existing Proposed Difference 


Parcel Count Acres Parcel Count Acres Parcel Count Acres 
Commercial 17 23.33 124 278.98 107 255.65 
Industrial 4 28.88 78 205.33 74 176.45 
Residential 238 702.03 57 269.93 -181 -432.1 
Total 259 754.24 259 754.24 0 0 


 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  Z O N I N G  C O N S I S T E N C Y  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


Addendum to the Adopted General Plan EIR 


November 2021 Page 9 


1.4 GENERAL PLAN EIR 
The General Plan EIR found that, with the implementation of  policies and actions from the General Plan and mitigation measures identified in the EIR, 
there would be less than significant impacts related to cultural resources, energy, flood and dam inundation hazards, geology and soils, hazardous materials, 
mineral resources, noise, parks and recreation, and public services. 


Table 4 below lists the significant and unavoidable impact determinations of  the General Plan EIR and compares the resulting impacts of  the proposed 
project to those determinations. The General Plan EIR determined that implementation of  the General Plan would result in significant and unavoidable 
impacts to land use/agriculture, aesthetics/visual resources, air quality, biological resources, transportation and circulation, and water resources. As 
described below, the proposed project would be within the scope of  analysis of  the General Plan update identified in the EIR. The proposed project 
would incorporate all applicable mitigation measures for significant and unavoidable impacts identified in Table 4 and would not create a new significant 
impact or a substantial increase in the severity of  previously identified effects. 


Table 4: General Plan EIR Significant and Unavoidable Impacts and Impacts of the Proposed Project 


Environmental Topic Significant and Unavoidable Impact Determination Resulting Impact of the Proposed Project 
Land Use/Agriculture Impact 4.2.2 The proposed General Plan update will result in the 


conversion of prime farmlands, unique farmlands, or farmlands of 
statewide importance to a variety of non-agricultural uses. 


The proposed project will result in zoning changes for property already designated for residential, industrial, 
and commercial land uses, thereby making these zoning changes consistent with the existing General Plan 
land use designation. The proposed project would not result in in the conversion of prime farmlands, unique 
farmlands, or farmlands of statewide importance to a variety of non-agricultural uses. Therefore, the 
proposed project would not create a new significant impact or a substantial increase in the severity of 
previously identified effects. No major revisions to the General Plan EIR would be required.  


Aesthetics/Visual Resources Impact 4.4.3 Implementation of the proposed General Plan would result in 
conversion of open space areas to urban land use. 


The proposed project will result in zoning changes for property already designated for residential, industrial, 
and commercial land uses, thereby making these zoning changes consistent with the existing General Plan 
land use designation. The proposed project would not result in in the conversion of open space areas to 
urban land use.  Therefore, the proposed project would not create a new significant impact or a substantial 
increase in the severity of previously identified effects. No major revisions to the General Plan EIR would 
be required. 


Air Quality Impact 4.5.1 Air quality impacts would occur during site preparation, 
including grading and equipment exhaust. Major sources of fugitive dust 
are a result of grading and site preparation during construction vehicles 
and equipment and generated by construction vehicles and equipment 
traveling over exposed surfaces, as well as by soil disturbances from 
grading and filling. Blowing dust is also of concern in the dry desert areas 
where PM10 standards are exceeded by soil disturbance during grading, 
and vehicular travel over unpaved roads. 


Impact 4.5.2 Long-term air emission impacts will occur from stationary 
sources related to the estimated development proposed through 
implementation of the proposed General Plan. 


The proposed project will result in zoning changes for property already designated for residential, industrial, 
and commercial land uses, thereby making these zoning changes consistent with the existing General Plan 
land use designation. The proposed project’s air quality emissions would be within the scope of analysis of 
the General Plan update identified in the EIR. Future construction as a result of the proposed project would 
be subject to South Coast Air Quality Management District’s Air Quality Management Plan as well as the 
District’s Rules 403 and 1113. Rule 403 is intended to reduce PM10 emissions from any transportation, 
handling, construction, or storage activity that has the potential to generate fugitive dust. Rule 1113 is 
intended to limit the volatile organic compounds of architectural coatings used in the South Coast Air Basin. 
All applicable mitigation measures would continue to apply. Therefore, the proposed project would not 
create a new significant impact or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified effects. No 
major revisions to the General Plan EIR would be required. 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  Z O N I N G  C O N S I S T E N C Y  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


1. Addendum to the Adopted General Plan EIR 


Page 10 November 2021 


Environmental Topic Significant and Unavoidable Impact Determination Resulting Impact of the Proposed Project 
Impact 4.5.3 The proposed General Plan would result in changes in 
regional vehicular traffic trips and associated VMT. 


The proposed project will result in zoning changes for property already designated for residential, industrial, 
and commercial land uses, thereby making these zoning changes consistent with the existing General Plan 
land use designation. The proposed project’s air quality emissions would be within the scope of analysis of 
the General Plan update identified in the EIR. All applicable mitigation measures would continue to apply. 
As the proposed project intends to align zoning districts with the General Plan land use designations, the 
proposed project would not create a new significant impact or a substantial increase in the severity of 
previously identified effects. No major revisions to the General Plan EIR would be required. 


Biological Resources Impact 4.6.1 Implementation of the proposed General Plan will result in 
the direct mortality of individuals of listed, proposed, or candidate species 
or loss of habitat occupied by such species. 


Impact 4.6.2 Alteration or loss of habitat of listed proposed, or candidate 
species that inhibits or compromises recovery efforts that could otherwise 
lead or contribute to the delisting of the species. 


Impact 4.6.3 Implementation of the proposed General Plan would cause 
direct loss of sensitive habitat. 


Impact 4.6.4 Implementation of the proposed General Plan would cause 
habitat fragmentation resulting in isolation of sensitive habitat patches 
creating a “checkerboard” pattern of small habitat patches of limited 
biological value. 


Impact 4.6.5 Implementation of the proposed General Plan would cause 
fragmentation of habitat that constricts, inhibits, or eliminates wildlife 
movement. 


Impact 4.6.7 Implementation of the proposed General Plan would result in 
alteration of habitat or natural processes that would result in the direct or 
indirect mortality of listed, proposed, or candidate species or that would 
result in loss, fragmentation, or isolation of sensitive habitat(s). 


The proposed project will result in zoning changes for property already designated for residential, industrial, 
and commercial land uses, thereby making these zoning changes consistent with the existing General Plan 
land use designation. The proposed project would not result in impacts to any species, identified as 
candidate, sensitive, special status, or sensitive habitat. Future construction as a result of the proposed 
project would be subject to the Western Riverside County Multiple Special Habitat Conservation Plan,  
preconstruction surveys, and fees as required by Section 3.42.070 (Western Riverside County Multiple 
Species Habitat Conservation Plan Mitigation Fees) and Section 3.43.070 (Stephen’s Kangaroo Rat Habitat 
Conservation Mitigation Fee Area) of the Wildomar Municipal Code. Development policies, programs, 
ordinances, and permits that define the development process would still apply. All applicable mitigation 
measures would continue to apply. Therefore, the proposed project would not create a new significant 
impact or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified effects. No major revisions to the 
General Plan EIR would be required. 


Transportation and Circulation Impact 4.16.1 Future growth occurring as the result of implementing the 
proposed 2002 Riverside County General Plan will increase area-wide 
traffic volumes with the potential to degrade roadway and freeway 
performance below applicable performance standards. 


The proposed project will result in zoning changes for property already designated for residential, industrial, 
and commercial land uses, thereby making these zoning changes consistent with the existing General Plan 
land use designation. The proposed project would not increase area-wide traffic volumes. Future 
construction as a result of the proposed project would be subject to development impact fees (Wildomar 
Municipal Code Section 3.44) and shall demonstrate payment of the Western Riverside Transportation 
Uniform Mitigation Fee (Wildomar Municipal Code Section 3.40). All applicable mitigation measures would 
continue to apply. Therefore, the proposed project would not create a new significant impact or a substantial 
increase in the severity of previously identified effects. No major revisions to the General Plan EIR would 
be required. 


Water Resources  Impact 4.17.1 The population increases projected for Riverside County will 
increase the demand for water beyond that which currently exists. A 
significant impact will occur when and where the demand for water 
exceeds supply. 


The proposed project will result in zoning changes for property already designated for residential, industrial, 
and commercial land uses, thereby making these zoning changes consistent with the existing General Plan 
land use designation. The proposed project would not increase the demands for water beyond that which 
currently exists. Future construction as a result of the proposed project would be subject to the City’s Water 
Efficient Landscape Ordinance (Ordinance No. 46) and the California Green Building Code. All applicable 
mitigation measures would continue to apply. Therefore, the proposed project would not create a new 
significant impact or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified effects. No major revisions 
to the General Plan EIR would be required. 


 







 


November 2021 Page 11 


2. CEQA Analysis 
2.1 ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS 
The General Plan contains policies related to land use, circulation, multi-purpose open space, safety, noise, 
housing, air quality, and administration. As previously described in Section 1.2, the General Plan EIR addresses 
potentially significant impacts related to land use/agriculture, population and housing, aesthetics/visual 
resources, air quality, biological resources, cultural resources, energy, flood and dam inundation hazards, geology 
and soils, hazardous materials, mineral resources, noise, parks and recreation, public services, transportation 
and circulation, and water resources. The policies of  the General Plan and the existing development standards 
apply to all development in the General Plan Planning Area and would continue to apply to the land that is the 
subject of  the proposed project. As discussed in Section 1.4, the zoning changes are intended to align the 
zoning districts of  the Zoning Map with the General Plan Land Use Map. 


As shown in Table 2, the proposed zoning consistency changes would not result in a net increase of  developable 
acres compared to that analyzed in the General Plan EIR, because the parcels in question were already allowed 
for development. Notably, these parcels were already zoned and allowed for either commercial, industrial, or 
residential uses.  


As shown in Table 3, there would be an increase of  land zoned for non-residential (i.e., commercial and 
industrial uses). Proposed commercial rezoning accounts for 255.65 acres (107 parcels) of  land and industrial 
rezoning accounts for 176.45 acres (74 parcels) of  land. In contrast, land zoned for residential would decrease 
by 432.1 acres. While R2 (Multiple-Family Dwellings), R3 (General Residential), and R5 (Open Area Combined 
Zone) zoned land increased by 227.36 acres (44 parcels), collectively, R-1-15000, R4 (Planned Residential), RR 
(Rural Residential) and RT (Mobile Home Subdivision/Mobile Home Park) zoned land decreased by 659.46 
acres (225 parcels). Overall, zoning districts for residential decreased by 432.1 acres on 181 parcels.  


None of  the sites identified for rezoning are reducing the density from the numbers identified in the Housing 
Element. Two sites identified for residential rezoning are also identified in the 2021 – 2029 Housing Element. 
These include APNs 380-270-015 and 380-290-016. Combined, the rezoning of  these properties would increase 
the number of  units currently allowed in the zoning to a total of  60 units. Moreover, none of  the sites included 
in the proposed project would result in fewer housing units than can currently be provided in the city. Currently, 
the 259 parcels allow for a total of  863 housing units. Rezoning these parcels would increase the number of  
allowable units for a total of  927 units which represents an increase of  64 housing units. Furthermore, the 
Zoning Consistency Update does not impact residential capacity in the city because housing would not be 
allowed for development on sites where residential zoning is inconsistent with the General Plan Land Use Map. 
Accordingly, the proposed Zoning Consistency Update is consistent with the “no net loss” requirements of  SB 
330 (Housing Crisis Act of  2019). 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  Z O N I N G  C O N S I S T E N C Y  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


2. CEQA Analysis 


Page 12 November 2021 


The General Plan EIR considered land use designations and the general pattern of  future development. While 
zoning districts are not specifically evaluated in the General Plan EIR, state law requires that the land use 
designation and zone districts be consistent. Zoning districts contain more development restrictions than the 
broader land use designation. As such, when the EIR evaluated the land use designations, more development 
was assumed than the underlying zoning might allow resulting in a more conservative environmental analysis. 
Because the General Plan EIR evaluated a less restrictive land use pattern than the existing zone district(s) 
provides, the environmental evaluation is conservatively broad. Further, development policies such as the 
development code and engineering design standards, apply to all development in every zone district and are 
both consistent with, and designed to achieve the goals of  the General Plan and the support the conclusions 
in the EIR. For these reasons, the changes to zoning districts on these parcels would not change the conclusions 
of  the General Plan EIR.   


2.2 FINDINGS 
The discussion in this addendum confirms that the proposed project has been evaluated for significant impacts 
pursuant to CEQA.  


There are no substantial changes in the circumstances or new information that was not known and could not 
have been known at the time of  the adoption of  the General Plan EIR. As a result, and for the reasons explained 
in this addendum, the project would not cause any new significant environmental impacts or substantially 
increase the severity of  significant environmental impacts disclosed in the General Plan EIR. Thus, the 
proposed project does not trigger any of  the conditions in CEQA Guidelines Section 15162 requiring 
preparation of  a subsequent EIR, and the appropriate environmental document as authorized by CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15164(b) is an addendum. Accordingly, this EIR addendum has been prepared. 


The following identifies the standards in CEQA Guidelines Section 15162 as they relate to the project.  


1. No substantial changes are proposed in the project which would require major revisions of the 
EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in 
the severity of previously identified significant effects. 


The proposed project will align the zoning districts as shown on the City Zoning Map with the General 
Plan land use designations shown on the Land Use Map. The proposed changes are consistent with the 
General Plan as evaluated in the General Plan EIR and adopted by the City upon incorporation. 
Consequently, the changes to zoning districts would not change the conclusions of  the EIR and would not 
require revisions to the General Plan EIR due to new significant environmental effects or a substantial 
increase in the severity of  previously identified significant effects. 


2. There is no new information of substantial importance, which was not known and could not have 
been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the previous EIR was certified 
as complete demonstrating that the project will have one or more significant effects not discussed 
in the previous EIR. 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  Z O N I N G  C O N S I S T E N C Y  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


2. CEQA Analysis 


November 2021 Page 13 


The policies and mitigation measures identified in the General Plan EIR would continue to apply to all 
development in the city and would have the same mitigating effect as disclosed in the General Plan EIR. 
There is no new information that was not known and could not have been known at the time the General 
Plan EIR was certified demonstrating that the project would have one or more significant effects not 
discussed in the previous EIR. Therefore, no new impacts would occur because of  future development. 
Because a development project must be consistent with the General Plan, zoning, and development 
standards of  the City, the resulting impacts would be the same as those disclosed in the certified General 
Plan EIR. 


3. There is no new information of substantial importance, which was not known and could not have 
been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the previous EIR was certified 
as complete demonstrating that significant effects previously examined will be substantially more 
severe than shown in the previous EIR. 


The proposed project would have the same significant impacts as those disclosed in the General Plan EIR. 
The General Plan policies and mitigation measures identified in the General Plan EIR to reduce physical 
environmental effects would apply to all new development, including parcels rezoned as part of  this project. 
These policies would have the same mitigating effect as disclosed in the General Plan EIR. There is no new 
information that would demonstrate that significant effects examined would be substantially more severe 
than shown in the certified General Plan EIR.  


4. There is no new information of  substantial importance, which was not known and could not have 
been known with the exercise of  reasonable diligence at the time the previous EIR was certified 
as complete demonstrating that mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be 
feasible would in fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects 
of  the project, but the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative. 


The proposed project will align the zoning districts on the City of  Wildomar Zoning Map with the General 
Plan Land Use Map as evaluated by the General Plan EIR and adopted by the City upon incorporation. All 
policies and mitigation measures identified in the General Plan EIR would continue to apply to all 
development in the city and would have the same mitigating effect as disclosed in the General Plan EIR. 
The proposed project would not change the assumptions described in the General Plan EIR, and therefore 
would not substantially change the conclusions of  the EIR or require new mitigation measures. 


5. There is no new information of substantial importance, which was not known and could not have 
been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the previous EIR was certified 
as complete demonstrating that mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably 
different from those analyzed in the previous EIR would substantially reduce one or more 
significant effects on the environment, but the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation 
measure or alternative.  


The proposed project changes would not result in an increase of  developable acres or overall development 
intensity and the resulting impacts would be the same as those disclosed in the certified General Plan EIR. 
Therefore, no new mitigation measures or alternatives to the proposed project would be required. 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  Z O N I N G  C O N S I S T E N C Y  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


2. CEQA Analysis 


Page 14 November 2021 


This page intentionally left blank. 







 


 


Appendix A 
List of Properties 


  











A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  Z O N I N G  C O N S I S T E N C Y  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


Appendix A: List of Properties 


November 2021 Page A-1 


APN Acres Council District Existing Zoning Proposed Zoning Existing GPLU 
366-160-033 0.50 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
366-160-042 0.51 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
366-021-011 0.40 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
366-160-064 0.54 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
366-160-043 0.54 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
367-300-025 2.23 2 R-R M-SC LI 
366-390-020 0.46 1 R-R C-P-S CR 
367-020-039 4.98 4 R-R M-SC LI 
367-020-040 3.45 4 R-R M-SC LI 
362-250-017 3.75 5 R-R I-P BP 
362-250-019 4.15 5 R-R I-P BP 
366-210-048 1.50 1 R-R C-P-S CR 
367-180-040 5.66 2 R-R C-P-S CR 
367-100-018 2.05 2 R-R C-P-S CR 
366-021-002 0.20 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
365-103-023 0.20 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
368-210-034 0.26 4 C-P-S R-R LDR 
380-290-018 4.54 5 I-P R-3 MHDR 
366-160-041 0.51 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
366-023-007 0.79 1 C-1/C-P R-R MHDR 
380-290-012 2.38 5 R-R M-SC BP 
380-290-013 2.28 5 R-R M-SC BP 
367-040-033 0.51 2 R-R C-P-S CR 
367-040-034 0.57 2 R-R C-P-S CR 
367-040-035 0.55 2 R-R C-P-S CR 
367-040-036 0.64 2 R-R C-P-S CR 
380-290-004 4.76 5 R-R R-3 MHDR 
365-051-026 0.31 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
366-160-047 0.65 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
380-270-017 1.20 5 R-R R-2 MHDR 
367-130-019 2.69 2 R-R C-P-S CR 
367-210-034 1.07 2 R-R M-SC BP 
367-210-008 7.15 2 R-R M-SC BP 
367-210-035 1.05 2 R-R M-SC BP 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  Z O N I N G  C O N S I S T E N C Y  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


Appendix A: List of Properties 


Page A-2 November 2021 


APN Acres Council District Existing Zoning Proposed Zoning Existing GPLU 
367-210-007 2.48 2 R-R M-SC BP 
367-210-039 0.83 2 R-R M-SC BP 
367-210-040 0.84 2 R-R M-SC BP 
367-210-041 0.85 2 R-R M-SC BP 
367-210-043 3.75 2 R-R M-SC BP 
380-140-009 2.60 5 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
367-020-021 0.55 4 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
367-300-026 2.40 2 R-R M-SC LI 
367-300-027 2.38 2 R-R M-SC LI 
380-290-026 2.75 5 R-R R-3 MHDR 
366-033-015 1.31 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
376-150-008 0.73 3 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
380-140-013 2.80 5 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
370-060-015 1.14 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
376-330-020 2.38 2 R-R M-SC BP 
380-290-025 2.44 5 R-R R-3 MHDR 
370-090-030 0.06 4 C-1/C-P M-SC LI 
366-150-034 0.13 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
366-150-035 0.49 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
367-300-001 5.21 2 R-R M-SC LI 
367-210-012 0.50 2 R-R M-SC BP 
366-160-063 0.58 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
368-060-004 1.06 4 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
368-060-005 1.19 4 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
365-051-014 0.19 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
370-090-037 0.05 4 R-R M-SC LI 
362-100-060 0.17 2 R-T R-5 OS-R 
362-100-064 15.22 2 R-T R-5 OS-R 
362-100-066 0.22 2 R-T R-5 OS-R 
362-140-047 4.67 2 R-T R-5 OS-R 
362-201-020 0.14 2 R-T R-5 OS-R 
362-100-065 1.31 2 R-T R-5 OS-R 
362-491-013 1.96 2 R-T R-5 OS-R 
362-100-062 14.87 2 R-T R-5 OS-R 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  Z O N I N G  C O N S I S T E N C Y  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


Appendix A: List of Properties 


November 2021 Page A-3 


APN Acres Council District Existing Zoning Proposed Zoning Existing GPLU 
362-140-017 1.27 2 R-T R-5 OS-R 
362-221-018 2.97 2 R-T R-5 OS-R 
362-100-058 5.14 2 R-T R-5 OS-R 
362-100-059 3.70 2 R-T R-5 OS-R 
362-140-020 12.02 2 R-T R-5 OS-R 
362-140-045 66.65 2 R-T R-5 OS-R 
362-201-017 1.82 2 R-T R-5 OS-R 
362-201-019 1.02 2 R-T R-5 OS-R 
362-212-019 1.10 2 R-T R-5 OS-R 
362-301-017 23.95 2 R-T R-5 OS-R 
362-302-011 20.71 2 R-T R-5 OS-R 
362-311-025 1.86 2 R-T R-5 OS-R 
362-311-026 0.98 2 R-T R-5 OS-R 
362-321-028 3.55 2 R-T R-5 OS-R 
366-390-018 0.63 1 R-R C-P-S CR 
366-130-021 0.73 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
367-210-037 2.11 2 R-R M-SC BP 
368-030-025 0.89 4 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
366-150-004 1.91 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
370-060-019 1.87 1 R-R M-SC LI 
367-020-030 0.55 4 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
367-020-026 0.55 4 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
366-390-028 0.66 1 R-R C-P-S CR 
380-110-003 2.40 3 R-R C-P-S CR 
380-290-005 2.51 5 R-R R-3 MHDR 
367-130-042 3.09 2 R-R C-P-S CR 
366-024-016 0.23 1 C-1/C-P R-R MHDR 
376-330-022 5.58 2 R-R M-SC BP 
367-020-017 1.44 4 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
367-020-037 1.04 4 R-R M-SC LI 
368-210-033 0.25 4 C-P-S R-R LDR 
367-040-030 2.33 2 R-R C-P-S CR 
366-160-040 1.85 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
366-140-012 0.17 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  Z O N I N G  C O N S I S T E N C Y  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


Appendix A: List of Properties 


Page A-4 November 2021 


APN Acres Council District Existing Zoning Proposed Zoning Existing GPLU 
362-250-015 2.27 5 R-R I-P BP 
366-160-046 0.63 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
380-140-004 2.26 5 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
376-330-014 2.99 2 R-R M-SC BP 
366-160-039 1.89 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
380-140-010 3.29 5 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
366-033-028 1.50 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
370-400-005 0.59 4 C-1/C-P R-3 MHDR 
370-400-006 0.61 4 C-1/C-P R-3 MHDR 
370-400-008 0.60 4 C-1/C-P R-3 MHDR 
376-320-004 2.54 2 R-R M-SC BP 
380-290-010 1.05 5 R-R M-SC BP 
366-160-009 0.91 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
376-320-005 2.50 2 R-R M-SC BP 
376-320-006 2.50 2 R-R M-SC BP 
366-160-005 0.89 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
380-290-014 2.26 5 R-R R-3 MHDR 
367-020-014 0.55 4 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
366-390-022 0.46 1 R-R C-P-S CR 
367-020-024 0.55 4 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
366-390-021 0.45 1 R-R C-P-S CR 
366-290-007 0.14 1 R-R C-P-S CR 
366-290-008 6.03 1 R-R C-P-S CR 
380-290-015 2.48 5 R-R R-3 MHDR 
366-160-048 0.73 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
365-103-022 0.18 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
366-160-035 0.50 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
380-140-005 1.70 5 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
380-290-006 2.25 5 R-R R-3 MHDR 
367-180-044 1.44 2 R-R C-P-S CR 
370-060-018 4.64 1 R-R M-SC LI 
366-160-034 0.51 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
370-340-001 3.62 4 C-1/C-P M-SC LI 
367-210-038 1.95 2 R-R M-SC BP 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  Z O N I N G  C O N S I S T E N C Y  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


Appendix A: List of Properties 


November 2021 Page A-5 


APN Acres Council District Existing Zoning Proposed Zoning Existing GPLU 
362-250-013 2.00 5 R-R I-P BP 
380-270-014 1.66 5 R-R C-P-S CR 
380-220-001 8.62 5 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
380-230-002 21.60 5 R-R C-P-S CR 
380-230-003 29.80 5 R-R C-P-S CR 
380-230-004 29.36 5 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
380-270-003 5.02 5 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
367-020-015 1.10 4 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
366-160-052 0.70 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
366-021-001 0.33 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
365-103-024 0.19 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
380-270-004 4.64 5 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
367-020-028 0.55 4 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
376-330-021 4.55 2 R-R M-SC BP 
376-330-009 1.41 2 R-R M-SC BP 
376-330-018 3.16 2 R-R M-SC BP 
380-280-005 2.24 5 R-4 M-SC LI 
380-250-005 4.63 5 R-R I-P BP 
376-150-011 0.62 3 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
376-320-001 32.81 2 R-R C-P-S CR 
376-320-002 4.92 2 R-R M-SC BP 
376-330-004 0.44 2 R-R M-SC BP 
376-330-005 7.07 2 R-R M-SC BP 
376-150-005 0.50 3 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
376-330-006 2.59 2 R-R M-SC BP 
366-130-005 0.25 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
366-130-023 0.42 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
370-060-046 0.41 1 R-R M-SC LI 
367-020-042 1.35 4 R-R M-SC LI 
368-030-055 4.39 4 R-1-15000 R-R LDR 
368-030-056 7.12 4 R-1-15000 R-R LDR 
376-320-003 5.15 2 R-R M-SC BP 
376-150-001 1.44 3 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
380-270-016 0.79 5 R-R R-2 MHDR 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  Z O N I N G  C O N S I S T E N C Y  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


Appendix A: List of Properties 


Page A-6 November 2021 


APN Acres Council District Existing Zoning Proposed Zoning Existing GPLU 
366-023-006 0.23 1 C-1/C-P R-R MHDR 
370-400-007 0.59 4 C-1/C-P R-3 MHDR 
370-090-038 4.64 4 C-1/C-P M-SC LI 
366-390-029 0.61 1 R-R C-P-S CR 
365-103-025 0.19 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
367-210-005 1.55 2 R-R M-SC BP 
367-210-006 0.36 2 R-R M-SC BP 
380-270-001 4.94 5 R-R C-P-S CR 
380-270-002 4.96 5 R-R C-P-S CR 
380-270-005 4.11 5 R-R C-P-S CR 
380-270-006 4.62 5 R-R C-P-S CR 
380-270-007 4.73 5 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
366-160-045 0.61 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
366-390-023 0.45 1 R-R C-P-S CR 
380-250-004 4.74 5 R-R I-P BP 
366-160-053 0.52 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
367-300-002 3.40 2 M-SC C-P-S CR 
376-330-011 2.09 2 R-R M-SC BP 
366-390-019 0.59 1 R-R C-P-S CR 
380-290-011 1.07 5 R-R M-SC BP 
366-033-023 0.44 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
366-160-044 0.68 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
367-210-011 0.51 2 R-R M-SC BP 
367-020-029 0.55 4 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
376-160-022 0.10 3 R-R R-3 VHDR 
380-150-016 0.51 5 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
362-250-021 2.57 5 R-R M-SC BP 
362-250-022 2.46 5 R-R M-SC BP 
362-250-023 2.11 5 R-R M-SC BP 
362-250-024 3.08 5 R-R M-SC BP 
376-330-007 2.37 2 R-R M-SC BP 
380-270-008 4.68 5 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
380-270-010 2.38 5 R-R C-P-S CR 
366-150-003 2.04 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  Z O N I N G  C O N S I S T E N C Y  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


Appendix A: List of Properties 


November 2021 Page A-7 


APN Acres Council District Existing Zoning Proposed Zoning Existing GPLU 
366-140-013 0.88 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
376-330-012 2.95 2 R-R M-SC BP 
366-160-036 0.57 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
366-033-022 0.56 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
367-210-010 0.60 2 R-R M-SC BP 
380-140-008 2.23 5 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
380-210-006 4.79 5 M-SC R-R MDR 
366-210-046 0.74 1 R-R C-P-S CR 
366-021-003 0.24 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
376-330-010 1.40 2 R-R M-SC BP 
376-330-013 2.34 2 R-R M-SC BP 
376-330-019 2.34 2 R-R M-SC BP 
376-330-008 2.41 2 R-R M-SC BP 
380-290-027 0.79 5 R-R R-3 MHDR 
368-200-014 1.26 3 C-1/C-P R-R VLDR 
376-150-010 0.69 3 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
376-150-013 0.61 3 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
380-210-014 16.14 5 M-SC R-R MDR 
362-250-018 4.07 5 R-R I-P BP 
380-290-002 4.26 5 R-3 M-SC BP 
380-280-003 2.25 5 R-R R-3 MHDR 
370-060-032 2.26 1 R-R M-SC LI 
362-240-035 5.16 5 R-R M-SC BP 
380-290-016 1.98 5 R-R R-3 MHDR 
380-290-017 2.59 5 R-R R-3 MHDR 
380-290-009 1.11 5 R-R M-SC BP 
367-020-041 0.79 4 R-R M-SC LI 
380-150-020 1.12 5 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
366-210-047 0.87 1 R-R C-P-S CR 
380-130-010 1.06 3 C-P-S R-R LDR 
380-130-011 1.79 3 C-P-S R-R LDR 
380-270-015 1.88 5 R-R R-2 MHDR 
380-270-011 2.41 5 R-R C-P-S CR 
380-270-012 2.36 5 R-R C-P-S CR 







A D D E N D U M  T O  T H E  G E N E R A L  P L A N  E I R  F O R  T H E  Z O N I N G  C O N S I S T E N C Y  U P D A T E  
C I T Y  O F  W I L D O M A R  


Appendix A: List of Properties 


Page A-8 November 2021 


APN Acres Council District Existing Zoning Proposed Zoning Existing GPLU 
366-210-038 2.17 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
380-270-009 2.32 5 R-R C-P-S CR 
380-250-009 3.01 5 C-P-S I-P LI 
380-280-006 3.43 5 R-4 M-SC LI 
380-280-007 3.05 5 R-4 M-SC LI 
367-020-027 0.55 4 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
366-160-015 0.29 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
380-280-019 2.02 5 R-R R-3 MHDR 
370-060-048 3.76 1 R-R M-SC LI 
370-090-039 3.73 4 C-1/C-P M-SC LI 
380-260-012 0.62 5 R-R C-P-S CR 
366-130-038 0.43 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
366-210-002 1.13 1 R-R C-P-S CR 
367-020-020 0.55 4 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
367-020-023 0.55 4 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
380-280-001 2.06 5 R-R R-3 MHDR 
367-020-025 0.55 4 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
376-320-007 2.34 2 R-R M-SC BP 
365-103-021 0.19 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 
366-390-030 2.13 1 R-R C-P-S CR 
380-280-002 4.27 5 R-R R-3 MHDR 


 







ATTACHMENT B 
 


Council Ordinance 
for 


Change of Zone 2021-01 
  







ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA APPROVING CHANGE OF 
ZONE NO. 2021-01 (ZONING CONSISTENCY PROGRAM) 
TO CHANGE THE EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION FOR 
259 PROPERTIES TO MATCH THEIR EXISTING GENERAL 
PLAN LAND USE DESIGNATIONS IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT CODE 65860 


WHEREAS, in 2008 the City of Wildomar adopted the Riverside County General 
upon incorporation and thereby inherited a large number of parcels with inconsistent 
zoning; and  


WHEREAS, upon incorporation, the County of Riverside no longer had land use 
jurisdiction, and because of City fiscal challenges and nearly constant legal challenge, 
the City of Wildomar was unable to begin the Zoning Consistency Program to resolve the 
zoning inconsistencies; and 


WHEREAS, the Planning Department has prepared a Change of Zone No. 2021-
01 (Zoning Consistency Program) as part of the City’s Zoning Consistency update in 
accordance with Government Code 65860; and 


WHEREAS, in 2020, the City of Wildomar was awarded an SB-2 Grant which was 
used to complete the Zoning Consistency Program to rezone the properties that are 
inconsistent with General Plan Land Use Map; and  


WHEREAS, Change of Zone for properties shown in Exhibit 1 to this resolution is 
necessary to make the subject properties consistent with the existing General Plan land 
use designation in accordance with State law; and 


WHEREAS, the change of zone would enable the affected property owners to 
enjoy the land uses promised by their respective land use designations; and 


WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on December 1, 2021 
for Change of Zone No. 2021-01, and adopted PC Resolution No. 2021-29 
recommending City Council approval of Change of Zone No. 2021-01; and  


WHEREAS, the Planning Department on December 29, 2021 sent individual public 
hearing notices to each of the 259 affected property owners in accordance with state law 
notifying them of the January 12, 2022 City Council meeting where the City Council would 
review and make a decision on the proposed Change of Zone No. 2021-01 (Zoning 
Consistency Program); and  


WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 17.280.040 of the Wildomar Municipal 
Code, the Planning Department, on January 1, 2022, published a legal notice in the Press 
Enterprise, a local newspaper of general circulation, notifying the general public of the 
City Council public hearing set for January 12, 2022, regarding Change of Zone No. 2021-
01; and  







WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 17.280.040 of the Wildomar Municipal 
Code, the City Council conducted a duly noticed public hearing on January 12, 2022, at 
which time interested persons had an opportunity to testify in support of, or opposition to 
Change of Zone No. 2021-01, and at which time the City Council received public 
testimony concerning Change of Zone No. 2021-01. 


THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR HEREBY DOES ORDAIN 
AS FOLLOWS:  


SECTION 1.  CEQA ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION 
The approval of Change of Zone No. 2021-01 is in compliance with requirements 


of the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), in that on January 12, 2022, at a 
duly noticed public hearing, the City Council adopted an addendum to the 2003 General 
Plan Project Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2002051143) in accordance with 
Section 15164 of the CEQA Guidelines reflecting its independent judgment and analysis 
and documenting the environmental impacts and mitigation measures related to the 
proposed Change of Zone No. 2021-01 (Zoning Consistency Program).  The documents 
comprising the City’s environmental review for the project are on file and available for 
public review at Wildomar City Hall, 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite 201, Wildomar, CA 
92595. 


SECTION 2.  REQUIRED CHANGE OF ZONE FINDINGS 
In accordance with California Government Code, Section 65860 and Chapter 


17.280 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, the following finding is offered for City Council 
consideration in approving Change of Zone No. 2021-01 (Zoning Consistency Program). 


 
A. The proposed change of zone is consistent with the City of Wildomar General Plan. 


 
Evidence:  The proposed change of zone is consistent with the City of Wildomar 
General Plan in that the proposed project intends to change the existing zoning 
designation for 259 properties to match the existing General Plan land use 
designations.  Once the changes are approved and implemented, each of the goals 
and policies in the land use designation will be supported by the new zoning 
designations.  


SECTION 3.   AMENDMENT TO THE ZONING MAP 
The City Council, based on the findings above, hereby adopts said Ordinance 


approving Change of Zone No. 2021-01 (Zoning Consistency Program) for the 259 
properties as illustrated and attached hereto in Exhibit 1 to this Ordinance. 


SECTION 4.   EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE ORDINANCE. 
This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and operation thirty (30) days 


after its second reading and adoption. 
  







SECTION 5.  SEVERABILITY. 
If any section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 


Ordinance is, for any reason, held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any 
court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this Ordinance.  The City Council hereby declares that it would have adopted 
this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or 
portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, 
subdivisions, sentences, clauses, phrases, or portions thereof be declared invalid or 
unconstitutional. 


SECTION 6.  CITY CLERK ACTION. 
The City Clerk is authorized and directed to cause this Ordinance to be published 


within fifteen (15) days after its passage in a newspaper of general circulation and 
circulated within the City in accordance with Government Code Section 36933(a) or, to 
cause this Ordinance to be published in the manner required by law using the alternative 
summary and pasting procedure authorized under Government Code Section 39633(c). 


INTRODUCED FOR FIRST READING this 12th day of January, 2022. 


 
 
 
       _______________________________ 


Ben J. Benoit 
Mayor 


 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________   ________________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales, CMC 
City Attorney      City Clerk 
 







Exhibit 1  
Property List of Rezone Sites 


 







 
Zoning Consistency Program – Property List of Rezone Sites 


Parcel 
Numbers APN 


Property 
Size (Acres) 


City 
Council 
District Property Owner(s) 


Existing 
Zoning 


Proposed 
Zoning 


Existing 
GP LU 


 


1 
       


366-160-033 0.5 1 A GOMEZ MALDONADO LUIS R-R C-1/C-P CR 


2 
       


366-160-042 0.51 1 ADAM BINDER R-R C-1/C-P CR 


3 
       


366-021-011 0.4 1 ALICE M. ROMERO R-R C-1/C-P CR 


4 
       


366-160-064 0.54 1 ALMA R. BARAJAS R-R C-1/C-P CR 


5 
       


366-160-043 0.54 1 ANTONIO RAMIREZ MORALES R-R C-1/C-P CR 


6 
       


367-300-025 2.23 2 BARRET W. HILZER R-R M-SC LI 


7 
       


366-390-020 0.46 1 BASSAM ALSALEK R-R C-P-S CR 


8 


   
BEIGEL MARC SUBTRUST C/U/T 
BEIGEL ERNIE J LIVING TRUST 


DATED 08/ 


   


367-020-039 4.98 4 R-R M-SC LI 


9 


   
BEIGEL MARC SUBTRUST C/U/T 
BEIGEL ERNIE J LIVING TRUST 


DATED 08/ 


   


367-020-040 3.45 4 R-R M-SC LI 


10 
       


362-250-017 3.75 5 BENECKE SHEILA R-R I-P BP 


11 
       


362-250-019 4.15 5 BENECKE SHEILA R-R I-P BP 


12 366-210-048 1.5 1 BRANDON ROTELLINI R-R C-P-S CR 







 
Zoning Consistency Program – Property List of Rezone Sites 


Parcel 
Numbers APN 


Property 
Size (Acres) 


City 
Council 
District Property Owner(s) 


Existing 
Zoning 


Proposed 
Zoning 


Existing 
GP LU 


 


13 367-180-040 5.66 2 BRIAN M. JOHNSON R-R C-P-S CR 


14 
       


367-100-018 2.05 2 BUNDY CANYON ACRES R-R C-P-S CR 


15 
       


366-021-002 0.2 1 CARLOS ALBERTO BELTRAN R-R C-1/C-P CR 


16 
       


365-103-023 0.2 1 CARLOS BEJAR R-R C-1/C-P CR 


17 
       


368-210-034 0.26 4 CARLOS F. ARROYO C-P-S R-R LDR 


18 
       


380-290-018 4.54 5 CAROL L. CLOSE I-P R-3 MHDR 


19 
       


366-160-041 0.51 1 CAROLINA ALEGRIA OSORNIO R-R C-1/C-P CR 


20 
       


366-023-007 0.79 1 CECILIA E. MONTANO C-1/C- P R-R MHDR 


21 
       


380-290-012 2.38 5 CHANG LANG LIAO R-R M-SC BP 


22 
       


380-290-013 2.28 5 CHANG LANG LIAO R-R M-SC BP 


23 
       


367-040-033 0.51 2 CHARLES E. SMITH R-R C-P-S CR 


24 
       


367-040-034 0.57 2 CHARLES E. SMITH R-R C-P-S CR 


25 367-040-035 0.55 2 CHARLES E. SMITH R-R C-P-S CR 







 
Zoning Consistency Program – Property List of Rezone Sites 


Parcel 
Numbers APN 


Property 
Size (Acres) 


City 
Council 
District Property Owner(s) 


Existing 
Zoning 


Proposed 
Zoning 


Existing 
GP LU 


 


26 
       


367-040-036 0.64 2 CHARLES E. SMITH R-R C-P-S CR 


27 
       


380-290-004 4.76 5 CHEN FAMILY TRUST 6/28/07 R-R R-3 MHDR 


28 
       


365-051-026 0.31 1 CITY OF WILDOMAR R-R C-1/C-P CR 


29 
       


366-160-047 0.65 1 CLYDE BUSHAW R-R C-1/C-P CR 


 


30 380-270-017 1.2 5 COIL MARSHA K R-R R-2 MHDR 


31 
       


367-130-019 2.69 2 COREY SHAY R-R C-P-S CR 


32 


       


367-210-034 1.07 2 
CORNERSTONE COMMUNITY CH 


OF WILDOMAR R-R M-SC BP 


33 


       


367-210-008 7.15 2 
CORNERSTONE COMMUNITY CH 


OF WILDOMAR R-R M-SC BP 


34 


       


367-210-035 1.05 2 
CORNERSTONE COMMUNITY CH 


OF WILDOMAR R-R M-SC BP 


35 


       


367-210-007 2.48 2 
CORNERSTONE COMMUNITY 


CHURCH OF WILDOMAR R-R M-SC BP 


36 367-210-039 0.83 2 
CORNERSTONE COMMUNITY 


CHURCH OF WILDOMAR 
   


R-R M-SC BP 


       







 
Zoning Consistency Program – Property List of Rezone Sites 


Parcel 
Numbers APN 


Property 
Size (Acres) 


City 
Council 
District Property Owner(s) 


Existing 
Zoning 


Proposed 
Zoning 


Existing 
GP LU 


 


37 367-210-040 0.84 2 
CORNERSTONE COMMUNITY 


CHURCH OF WILDOMAR R-R M-SC BP 


38 


       


367-210-041 0.85 2 
CORNERSTONE COMMUNITY 


CHURCH OF WILDOMAR R-R M-SC BP 


39 367-210-043 3.75 2 
CORNERSTONE COMMUNITY 


CHURCH OF WILDOMAR R-R M-SC BP 


 


40 380-140-009 2.6 5 CT GRAT LM R-R C-1/C-P CR 


41 
       


367-020-021 0.55 4 D & P PROP R-R C-1/C-P CR 


42 
       


367-300-026 2.4 2 D & P PROP R-R M-SC LI 


43 
       


367-300-027 2.38 2 D & P PROP R-R M-SC LI 


 


44 380-290-026 2.75 5 DA FUND 1 R-R R-3 MHDR 


45 
       


366-033-015 1.31 1 DARWISH MR TRUST DTD 8/15/2019 R-R C-1/C-P CR 


46 
       


376-150-008 0.73 3 DAVID ALLEN LAKS R-R C-1/C-P CR 


  







 
Zoning Consistency Program – Property List of Rezone Sites 


Parcel 
Numbers APN 


Property 
Size (Acres) 


City 
Council 
District Property Owner(s) 


Existing 
Zoning 


Proposed 
Zoning 


Existing 
GP LU 


 


47 
       


380-140-013 2.8 5 DAVID DONG IK LEE R-R C-1/C-P CR 


48 
       


370-060-015 1.14 1 DAVID ELEY R-R C-1/C-P CR 


49 376-330-020 2.38 2 DAVID LEE CLARK R-R M-SC BP 


50 
       


380-290-025 2.44 5 DAVID S. MORROW R-R R-3 MHDR 


51 
       


370-090-030 0.06 4 DEAN A. MACK C-1/C- P M-SC LI 


52 
       


366-150-034 0.13 1 DEBRA LOUISE LEONARD R-R C-1/C-P CR 


53 


       


366-150-035 0.49 1 
DEBRA LOUISE LEONARD-


BARKLEY R-R C-1/C-P CR 


54 


       


367-300-001 5.21 2 
DG RICKETTS PIPELINE CONTR & 


EQUIPMENT R-R M-SC LI 


55 
       


367-210-012 0.5 2 DINA GHOSHEH R-R M-SC BP 


56 
       


366-160-063 0.58 1 EDWARD LEE ORAN R-R C-1/C-P CR 


57 
       


368-060-004 1.06 4 ELAINE SIO GOKING R-R C-1/C-P CR 


58 368-060-005 1.19 4 ELAINE SIO GOKING R-R C-1/C-P CR 







 
Zoning Consistency Program – Property List of Rezone Sites 


Parcel 
Numbers APN 


Property 
Size (Acres) 


City 
Council 
District Property Owner(s) 


Existing 
Zoning 


Proposed 
Zoning 


Existing 
GP LU 


 


59 
       


365-051-014 0.19 1 ESTHER COLIMA R-R C-1/C-P CR 


60 
       


370-090-037 0.05 4 EVMWD R-R M-SC LI 


 


61 362-100-060 0.17 2 FARM MUTUAL WATER CO R-T R-5 OS-R 


62 
       


362-100-064 15.22 2 FARM MUTUAL WATER CO R-T R-5 OS-R 


63 
       


362-100-066 0.22 2 FARM MUTUAL WATER CO R-T R-5 OS-R 


64 
       


362-140-047 4.67 2 FARM MUTUAL WATER CO R-T R-5 OS-R 


65 
       


362-201-020 0.14 2 FARM MUTUAL WATER CO R-T R-5 OS-R 


66 
       


362-100-065 1.31 2 FARM PROP HOMEOWNERS ASSN R-T R-5 OS-R 


67 
       


362-491-013 1.96 2 FARM PROP HOMEOWNERS ASSN R-T R-5 OS-R 


68 
       


362-100-062 14.87 2 FARM PROP OWERNS ASSN R-T R-5 OS-R 


69 
       


362-140-017 1.27 2 FARM PROP OWNERS ASSN R-T R-5 OS-R 


  







 
Zoning Consistency Program – Property List of Rezone Sites 


Parcel 
Numbers APN 


Property 
Size (Acres) 


City 
Council 
District Property Owner(s) 


Existing 
Zoning 


Proposed 
Zoning 


Existing 
GP LU 


 


70 
       


362-221-018 2.97 2 FARM PROPERTY OWNERS ASSN R-T R-5 OS-R 


 


71 362-100-058 5.14 2 FARM PROPERTY OWNERS ASSN R-T R-5 OS-R 


72 
       


362-100-059 3.7 2 FARM PROPERTY OWNERS ASSN R-T R-5 OS-R 


73 
       


362-140-020 12.02 2 FARM PROPERTY OWNERS ASSN R-T R-5 OS-R 


74 362-140-045 66.65 2 FARM PROPERTY OWNERS ASSN R-T R-5 OS-R 


75 
       


362-201-017 1.82 2 FARM PROPERTY OWNERS ASSN R-T R-5 OS-R 


76 
       


362-201-019 1.02 2 FARM PROPERTY OWNERS ASSN R-T R-5 OS-R 


77 
       


362-212-019 1.1 2 FARM PROPERTY OWNERS ASSN R-T R-5 OS-R 


78 
       


362-301-017 23.95 2 FARM PROPERTY OWNERS ASSN R-T R-5 OS-R 


79 
       


362-302-011 20.71 2 FARM PROPERTY OWNERS ASSN R-T R-5 OS-R 


80 
       


362-311-025 1.86 2 FARM PROPERTY OWNERS ASSN R-T R-5 OS-R 


81 
       


362-311-026 0.98 2 FARM PROPERTY OWNERS ASSN R-T R-5 OS-R 


  







 
Zoning Consistency Program – Property List of Rezone Sites 


Parcel 
Numbers APN 


Property 
Size (Acres) 


City 
Council 
District Property Owner(s) 


Existing 
Zoning 


Proposed 
Zoning 


Existing 
GP LU 


 


82 
       


362-321-028 3.55 2 FARM PROPERTY OWNERS ASSN R-T R-5 OS-R 


83 
       


366-390-018 0.63 1 FELIPE MORALES R-R C-P-S CR 


84 
       


366-130-021 0.73 1 FERREE WILLIAM P R-R C-1/C-P CR 


85 
       


367-210-037 2.11 2 FRANK ROBERTS R-R M-SC BP 


86 368-030-025 0.89 4 FRAZEE & FRAZEE R-R C-1/C-P CR 


87 
       


366-150-004 1.91 1 GABRIEL AVILA R-R C-1/C-P CR 


88 
       


370-060-019 1.87 1 GARY A. MAXWELL R-R M-SC LI 


89 
       


367-020-030 0.55 4 GARY COREY R-R C-1/C-P CR 


90 
       


367-020-026 0.55 4 GARY L. COLLISTER R-R C-1/C-P CR 


91 
       


366-390-028 0.66 1 GEORGE CRUME R-R C-P-S CR 


92 
       


380-110-003 2.4 3 GEORGE MARKOU R-R C-P-S CR 


93 
       


380-290-005 2.51 5 GEORGES ZEITOUNE R-R R-3 MHDR 


  







 
Zoning Consistency Program – Property List of Rezone Sites 


Parcel 
Numbers APN 


Property 
Size (Acres) 


City 
Council 
District Property Owner(s) 


Existing 
Zoning 


Proposed 
Zoning 


Existing 
GP LU 


 


94 


       


367-130-042 3.09 2 
GIANT INLAND EMPIRE RV CENTER 


INC R-R C-P-S CR 


95 
       


366-024-016 0.23 1 GILMAR E. BAUTISTA C-1/C- P R-R MHDR 


96 
       


376-330-022 5.58 2 GLORIA EVANGELINE CARROLL R-R M-SC BP 


97 367-020-017 1.44 4 
GODDARD FAMILY TRUST DATED 


07/16/2020 R-R C-1/C-P CR 


98 367-020-037 1.04 4 GREGORY K. SMITH R-R M-SC LI 


99 
       


368-210-033 0.25 4 GUILLERMO ARROYO C-P-S R-R LDR 


100 


       


367-040-030 2.33 2 
HENDERSON JANET C FAMILY 


TRUST DATED 4/4/2005 R-R C-P-S CR 


101 
       


366-160-040 1.85 1 HERWOOD BUILDING SUPPLIES R-R C-1/C-P CR 


102 
       


366-140-012 0.17 1 HOA BENSON R-R C-1/C-P CR 


103 
       


362-250-015 2.27 5 HOWARD L. KANER R-R I-P BP 


104 
       


366-160-046 0.63 1 HUIBREGTSE ARDIS M ESTATE OF R-R C-1/C-P CR 


  







 
Zoning Consistency Program – Property List of Rezone Sites 


Parcel 
Numbers APN 


Property 
Size (Acres) 


City 
Council 
District Property Owner(s) 


Existing 
Zoning 


Proposed 
Zoning 


Existing 
GP LU 


 


105 
   IRA SERVICES TRUST COMPANY 


CFBO BRENDA DIANNE JENKINS 
   


380-140-004 2.26 5 R-R C-1/C-P CR 


106 
       


376-330-014 2.99 2 JACQUELINE P. HUEDA R-R M-SC BP 


107 
       


366-160-039 1.89 1 JAMES A. MARSHALL R-R C-1/C-P CR 


108 
       


380-140-010 3.29 5 JAMES DANG R-R C-1/C-P CR 


109 
       


366-033-028 1.5 1 JAMES MICHAEL PAYNE R-R C-1/C-P CR 


110 370-400-005 0.59 4 JANE R. SHEETS C-1/C- P R-3 MHDR 


111 370-400-006 0.61 4 JANE R. SHEETS C-1/C- P R-3 MHDR 


112 
       


370-400-008 0.6 4 JANE R. SHEETS C-1/C- P R-3 MHDR 


113 
       


376-320-004 2.54 2 JASON GONZALES R-R M-SC BP 


114 
       


380-290-010 1.05 5 JEFFREY MCCLAIN R-R M-SC BP 


115 
       


366-160-009 0.91 1 JEREMY V. MYERS R-R C-1/C-P CR 


116 
       


376-320-005 2.5 2 JESUS V. SALCEDO R-R M-SC BP 


  







 
Zoning Consistency Program – Property List of Rezone Sites 


Parcel 
Numbers APN 


Property 
Size (Acres) 


City 
Council 
District Property Owner(s) 


Existing 
Zoning 


Proposed 
Zoning 


Existing 
GP LU 


 


117 
       


376-320-006 2.5 2 JESUS V. SALCEDO R-R M-SC BP 


118 
       


366-160-005 0.89 1 JOHN CANCEL R-R C-1/C-P CR 


119 
       


380-290-014 2.26 5 JOHN JEFFERSON CARTER R-R R-3 MHDR 


120 
       


367-020-014 0.55 4 JOHN ZEPEDA R-R C-1/C-P CR 


121 
       


366-390-022 0.46 1 JORGE GARCIA R-R C-P-S CR 


122 367-020-024 0.55 4 JOSE ARAUZA R-R C-1/C-P CR 


123 
       


366-390-021 0.45 1 JOSE G. CENTENO CANELO R-R C-P-S CR 


124 
       


366-290-007 0.14 1 JOSEPH FOLEY R-R C-P-S CR 


125 366-290-008 6.03 1 JOSEPH FOLEY R-R C-P-S CR 


126 
       


380-290-015 2.48 5 JUAN CARLOS CARDENAS R-R R-3 MHDR 


127 
       


366-160-048 0.73 1 JUDY M. MCDONALD R-R C-1/C-P CR 


128 
       


365-103-022 0.18 1 JUVENTINO O. BEDOLLA R-R C-1/C-P CR 


  







 
Zoning Consistency Program – Property List of Rezone Sites 


Parcel 
Numbers APN 


Property 
Size (Acres) 


City 
Council 
District Property Owner(s) 


Existing 
Zoning 


Proposed 
Zoning 


Existing 
GP LU 


 


129 
       


366-160-035 0.5 1 KATHLEEN PIERCE WESSELS R-R C-1/C-P CR 


130 
       


380-140-005 1.7 5 KENNETH MATSUDA R-R C-1/C-P CR 


131 
       


380-290-006 2.25 5 KIMBERLY YEN HOANG R-R R-3 MHDR 


132 
       


367-180-044 1.44 2 KOLSY USA INC R-R C-P-S CR 


133 
       


370-060-018 4.64 1 LAKE ELSINORE AIRPORT R-R M-SC LI 


134 366-160-034 0.51 1 LANGE PETER R ESTATE OF R-R C-1/C-P CR 


135 
       


370-340-001 3.62 4 LARRY AGUILAR C-1/C- P M-SC LI 


136 
       


367-210-038 1.95 2 LAURIE LEE WILLIAMSON R-R M-SC BP 


137 
       


362-250-013 2 5 LESLIE L. BRILEY R-R I-P BP 


138 
       


380-270-014 1.66 5 LIONS LAIR ENTERPRISES R-R C-P-S CR 


139 380-220-001 8.62 5 LIONS LAIR ENTERPRISES INC R-R C-P-S CR 


140 
       


380-230-002 21.6 5 LIONS LAIR ENTERPRISES INC R-R C-P-S CR 


  







 
Zoning Consistency Program – Property List of Rezone Sites 


Parcel 
Numbers APN 


Property 
Size (Acres) 


City 
Council 
District Property Owner(s) 


Existing 
Zoning 


Proposed 
Zoning 


Existing 
GP LU 


 


141 
       


380-230-003 29.8 5 LIONS LAIR ENTERPRISES INC R-R C-P-S CR 


142 
       


380-230-004 29.36 5 LIONS LAIR ENTERPRISES INC R-R C-P-S CR 


143 
     


 


 
380-270-003 5.02 5 LIONS LAIR ENTERPRISES INC R-R C-P-S CR 


144 
       


367-020-015 1.1 4 LUIS M. SALCEDO R-R C-1/C-P CR 


145 
       


366-160-052 0.7 1 LUPE VILLA R-R C-1/C-P CR 


146 366-021-001 0.33 1 MARIO F. ZAVALA R-R C-1/C-P CR 


147 
       


365-103-024 0.19 1 MARIO VELA R-R C-1/C-P CR 


148 
       


380-270-004 4.64 5 MARK SMITH R-R C-1/C-P CR 


149 
       


367-020-028 0.55 4 MARSHALL FLECK R-R C-1/C-P CR 


150 
       


376-330-021 4.55 2 MAS PROP MANAGEMENT R-R M-SC BP 


151 
       


376-330-009 1.41 2 MAS PROPERTY MANAGEMENT R-R M-SC BP 


152 
       


376-330-018 3.16 2 MATHEW KRONQUIST R-R M-SC BP 


  







 
Zoning Consistency Program – Property List of Rezone Sites 


Parcel 
Numbers APN 


Property 
Size (Acres) 


City 
Council 
District Property Owner(s) 


Existing 
Zoning 


Proposed 
Zoning 


Existing 
GP LU 


 


153 


   
MATIENZO FAMILY REVOCABLE 


TRUST DATED 01/13/1990 & 
AMENDED ON 04 


   


380-280-005 2.24 5 R-4 M-SC LI 


154 
       


380-250-005 4.63 5 MAX LIN R-R I-P BP 


155 


       


376-150-011 0.62 3 
MCCANNA DELORES DARLENE 


ESTATE OF R-R C-1/C-P CR 


156 
       


376-320-001 32.81 2 MICHAEL G. SMITH R-R C-P-S CR 


157 
       


376-320-002 4.92 2 MICHAEL G. SMITH R-R M-SC BP 


158 
       


376-330-004 0.44 2 MICHAEL G. SMITH R-R M-SC BP 


159 
       


376-330-005 7.07 2 MICHAEL G. SMITH R-R M-SC BP 


160 
       


376-150-005 0.5 3 MICHAEL GERJI-RIHAN R-R C-1/C-P CR 


161 
       


376-330-006 2.59 2 MICHAEL GREGORY SMITH R-R M-SC BP 


162 
       


366-130-005 0.25 1 MICHEAL J. HUGHES R-R C-1/C-P CR 


163 
       


366-130-023 0.42 1 MICHEAL J. HUGHES R-R C-1/C-P CR 


  







 
Zoning Consistency Program – Property List of Rezone Sites 


Parcel 
Numbers APN 


Property 
Size (Acres) 


City 
Council 
District Property Owner(s) 


Existing 
Zoning 


Proposed 
Zoning 


Existing 
GP LU 


 


164 
       


370-060-046 0.41 1 MIGUEL ESPINOZA R-R M-SC LI 


165 
       


367-020-042 1.35 4 MILTON P. SECORD R-R M-SC LI 


166 
    


R-1- 15000 
  


368-030-055 4.39 4 MISSION HILLS R-R LDR 


167 
    


R-1- 15000 
  


368-030-056 7.12 4 MISSION HILLS R-R LDR 


168 
       


376-320-003 5.15 2 MITCHELL FORTIE R-R M-SC BP 


169 
       


376-150-001 1.44 3 MONTRASIER SCHUYLER R-R C-1/C-P CR 


170 380-270-016 0.79 5 MURRIETA COUNTY WATER DIST R-R R-2 MHDR 


171 
    


C-1/C- P 
  


366-023-006 0.23 1 NAPOLEON CHAGOLLA R-R MHDR 


172 
    


C-1/C- P 
  


370-400-007 0.59 4 NIDIA L. SHEETS R-3 MHDR 


173 
    


C-1/C- P 
  


370-090-038 4.64 4 NINA TRAN M-SC LI 


174 
       


366-390-029 0.61 1 NOE RAMIREZ ESPINOZA R-R C-P-S CR 


175 
       


365-103-025 0.19 1 NORMAN M. COOK R-R C-1/C-P CR 


  







 
Zoning Consistency Program – Property List of Rezone Sites 


Parcel 
Numbers APN 


Property 
Size (Acres) 


City 
Council 
District Property Owner(s) 


Existing 
Zoning 


Proposed 
Zoning 


Existing 
GP LU 


 


176 
       


367-210-005 1.55 2 OFELIA USTARIZ R-R M-SC BP 


177 
       


367-210-006 0.36 2 OFELIA USTARIZ R-R M-SC BP 


178 
       


380-270-001 4.94 5 OXMAN FAMILY TRUST R-R C-P-S CR 


179 
       


380-270-002 4.96 5 OXMAN FAMILY TRUST R-R C-P-S CR 


180 
       


380-270-005 4.11 5 OXMAN FAMILY TRUST  R-R C-P-S CR 


181 380-270-006 4.62 5 OXMAN FAMILY TRUST  
   


R-R C-P-S CR 


182 
       


380-270-007 4.73 5 OXMAN FAMILY TRUST  R-R C-P-S CR 


183 
       


366-160-045 0.61 1 PACIFICO REYNO R-R C-P-S CR 


184 
       


366-390-023 0.45 1 PARKER HY LIN R-R C-P-S CR 


185 
       


380-250-004 4.74 5 PLATINUM R-R I-P BP 


186 
       


366-160-053 0.52 1 RAFAEL SANDOVAL R-R C-1/C-P CR 


187 
       


367-300-002 3.4 2 RAJ KUMAR M-SC C-P-S CR 


  







 
Zoning Consistency Program – Property List of Rezone Sites 


Parcel 
Numbers APN 


Property 
Size (Acres) 


City 
Council 
District Property Owner(s) 


Existing 
Zoning 


Proposed 
Zoning 


Existing 
GP LU 


 


188 
       


376-330-011 2.09 2 RALPH M. PICI R-R M-SC BP 


189 
       


366-390-019 0.59 1 RAUL ESQUIVEL GONZALEZ R-R C-P-S CR 


190 
       


380-290-011 1.07 5 REAL WORK PROP R-R M-SC BP 


191 
       


366-033-023 0.44 1 RICARDO MADRIGAL R-R C-1/C-P CR 


192 
       


366-160-044 0.68 1 RICARDO P. SAMANO R-R C-1/C-P CR 


193 
       


367-210-011 0.51 2 RICKERL FAMILY TRUST  R-R M-SC BP 


194 
       


367-020-029 0.55 4 RIEM LAURETTA M ESTATE R-R C-1/C-P CR 


195 
       


376-160-022 0.1 3 RIVERSIDE COUNTY FLOOD CONT R-R R-3 VHDR 


196 
       


380-150-016 0.51 5 RIVERSIDE COUNTY FLOOD CONT R-R C-1/C-P CR 


197 
       


362-250-021 2.57 5 ROBERT C BENECKE CO INC R-R M-SC BP 


198 
       


362-250-022 2.46 5 ROBERT C BENECKE CO INC R-R M-SC BP 


199 
       


362-250-023 2.11 5 ROBERT C BENECKE CO INC R-R M-SC BP 


  







 
Zoning Consistency Program – Property List of Rezone Sites 


Parcel 
Numbers APN 


Property 
Size (Acres) 


City 
Council 
District Property Owner(s) 


Existing 
Zoning 


Proposed 
Zoning 


Existing 
GP LU 


 


200 
       


362-250-024 3.08 5 ROBERT C BENECKE CO INC R-R M-SC BP 


201 
       


376-330-007 2.37 2 ROBERT DAVID LYSIAK R-R M-SC BP 


202 
       


380-270-008 4.68 5 ROBERT E. GLASSER R-R C-1/C-P CR 


203 
       


380-270-010 2.38 5 ROBERT E. GLASSER R-R C-P-S CR 


204 
       


366-150-003 2.04 1 ROBERT M. HARDING R-R C-1/C-P CR 


205 
       


366-140-013 0.88 1 ROBERT N. CHADE R-R C-1/C-P CR 


206 376-330-012 2.95 2 ROBERT V. CERVANTES R-R M-SC BP 


207 
       


366-160-036 0.57 1 ROBIN PATINO R-R C-1/C-P CR 


208 
       


366-033-022 0.56 1 RODOLFO ROSALES R-R C-1/C-P CR 


209 
       


367-210-010 0.6 2 RONALD L. HAIGH R-R M-SC BP 


210 


       


380-140-008 2.23 5 
RYAN IDA 2003 TRUST DTD 


4/28/2003 R-R C-1/C-P CR 


211 
       


380-210-006 4.79 5 S&C OIL INC M-SC R-R MDR 


       







 
Zoning Consistency Program – Property List of Rezone Sites 


Parcel 
Numbers APN 


Property 
Size (Acres) 


City 
Council 
District Property Owner(s) 


Existing 
Zoning 


Proposed 
Zoning 


Existing 
GP LU 


 
212 366-210-046 0.74 1 SALVADOR L. PEREZ R-R C-P-S CR 


213 
       


366-021-003 0.24 1 SALVADOR LEYVA R-R C-1/C-P CR 


214 
       


376-330-010 1.4 2 SAMAN A. MANNEH R-R M-SC BP 


215 
       


376-330-013 2.34 2 SAMAN A. MANNEH R-R M-SC BP 


216 
       


376-330-019 2.34 2 SAMAN A. MANNEH R-R M-SC BP 


217 
       


376-330-008 2.41 2 SAMAN ABU MANNEH R-R M-SC BP 


218 380-290-027 0.79 5 SAMAR G. HOUSEIN R-R R-3 MHDR 


219 
       


368-200-014 1.26 3 SARA RAMIREZ MERCADO C-1/C- P R-R VLDR 


220 
       


376-150-010 0.69 3 SAUL AYALA R-R C-1/C-P CR 


221 
       


376-150-013 0.61 3 SAUL AYALA R-R C-1/C-P CR 


222 380-210-014 16.14 5 
SE CALIF ASSN OF 7TH DAY 


ADVENTISTS M-SC R-R MDR 


223 
       


362-250-018 4.07 5 SHEILA BENECKE R-R I-P BP 


  







 
Zoning Consistency Program – Property List of Rezone Sites 


Parcel 
Numbers APN 


Property 
Size (Acres) 


City 
Council 
District Property Owner(s) 


Existing 
Zoning 


Proposed 
Zoning 


Existing 
GP LU 


 


224 
       


380-290-002 4.26 5 SHIBA YAMAMOTO & PARTNERS R-3 M-SC BP 


225 
       


380-280-003 2.25 5 SIMEON H. GONZALEZ R-R R-3 MHDR 


226 
       


370-060-032 2.26 1 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON  R-R M-SC LI 


227 
       


362-240-035 5.16 5 STEPHEN E. MACIE R-R M-SC BP 


228 
       


380-290-016 1.98 5 STEVE MORICO R-R R-3 MHDR 


229 
       


380-290-017 2.59 5 STEVE MORICO R-R R-3 MHDR 


230 
       


380-290-009 1.11 5 STEVE NAUERT R-R M-SC BP 


231 
       


367-020-041 0.79 4 STEVEN NGUYEN R-R M-SC LI 


232 
       


380-150-020 1.12 5 STEVEN WILLIAMS R-R C-1/C-P CR 


233 
       


366-210-047 0.87 1 SUSAN FOTHERGILL R-R C-P-S CR 


234 
       


380-130-010 1.06 3 TARI REA BRODERICK C-P-S R-R LDR 


235 
       


380-130-011 1.79 3 TARI REA BRODERICK C-P-S R-R LDR 


  







 
Zoning Consistency Program – Property List of Rezone Sites 


Parcel 
Numbers APN 


Property 
Size (Acres) 


City 
Council 
District Property Owner(s) 


Existing 
Zoning 


Proposed 
Zoning 


Existing 
GP LU 


 


236 


       


380-270-015 1.88 5 
TEMECULA VALLEY 


NEIGHBORHOOD CH NAZARENE R-R R-2 MHDR 


237 
       


380-270-011 2.41 5 THOMAS R. SALTARELLI R-R C-P-S CR 


238 
       


380-270-012 2.36 5 THOMAS R. SALTARELLI R-R C-P-S CR 


239 
   THOR IVAN MILLER & JOAN ROSE 


THOR REVOCABLE TRUST U/A 
   


366-210-038 2.17 1 R-R C-1/C-P CR 


240 
       


380-270-009 2.32 5 TIOGA PASS PROP R-R C-P-S CR 


241 


       


380-250-009 3.01 5 
UNIVERSAL HEALTH REALTY 


INCOME TRUST C-P-S I-P LI 


242 
       


380-280-006 3.43 5 VELUR HOLDINGS R-4 M-SC LI 


243 
       


380-280-007 3.05 5 VELUR HOLDINGS R-4 M-SC LI 


244 
       


367-020-027 0.55 4 VERNELE GREEN R-R C-1/C-P CR 


245 
       


366-160-015 0.29 1 VIC H. GONZALEZ R-R C-1/C-P CR 


246 
       


380-280-019 2.02 5 VICTORIA PAIGE LARAMORE R-R R-3 MHDR 


  







 
Zoning Consistency Program – Property List of Rezone Sites 


Parcel 
Numbers APN 


Property 
Size (Acres) 


City 
Council 
District Property Owner(s) 


Existing 
Zoning 


Proposed 
Zoning 


Existing 
GP LU 


 


247 


       


370-060-048 3.76 1 WHITESTONE PROP INC R-R M-SC LI 


248 


       


370-090-039 3.73 4 WHITESTONE PROP INC C-1/C- P M-SC LI 


249 


       


380-260-012 0.62 5 WILDOMAR INDUSTRIAL PARK R-R C-P-S CR 


250 


       


366-130-038 0.43 1 
WILDOMAR VALLEY WOOD 


PRODUCTS INC R-R C-1/C-P CR 


251 


       


366-210-002 1.13 1 WILLIAM CARL ZAMBONI R-R C-P-S CR 


252 


       


367-020-020 0.55 4 WILLIAM E. GOLDSTEIN R-R C-1/C-P CR 


253 


       


367-020-023 0.55 4 WILLIAM E. GOLDSTEIN R-R C-1/C-P CR 


254 380-280-001 2.06 5 WILLIAM H. HUGHES R-R R-3 MHDR 


255 


       


367-020-025 0.55 4 WILLIAM I. SUSKAWICZ R-R C-1/C-P CR 


256 


       


376-320-007 2.34 2 WILLIAM LYMON R-R M-SC BP 


257 


       


365-103-021 0.19 1 YARITZA ENCISO CASTILLO R-R C-1/C-P CR 


258 


       


366-390-030 2.13 1 YOKO REED R-R C-P-S CR 


259 380-280-002 4.27 5 ZAKLINA PETKOVSKI R-R R-3 MHDR 


 







ATTACHMENT C 
 


General Plan Land Use Map 
Parcels with Inconsistent Zoning 


 
 







Lake Elsinore


Palomar St


M
ur


rie
ta


 R
dCottonwoodCanyon


Rd


Jackson Ave


Bundy Canyon Rd


Clinton Keith Rd
Grand Ave


Nutm
eg


St


W
ild


om
ar 


Tr


Co
ryd


on
 Rd


M
ission Trl


15


15


Menifee


Wildomar


Murrieta


Lake Elsinore


Existing General Plan Land Use


CITY OF WILOMAR
ZONING CONSISTENCY STUDY


0 10.5


Miles


Wildomar City Boundary


CHANGE PARCELS
Existing General Plan Land Use


VLDR (Very Low Density Residential) 
LDR (Low Density Residential) 
MDR (Medium Density Residential)


MHDR (Medium High Density Residential)


VHDR (Very High Density Residential)


CR (Commercial Retail)


LI (Light Industrial)


PP (Business Park)


OS-R (Open Space Recreation)







ATTACHMENT D 
 


Zoning Map-Parcels with Inconsistent Zoning 
 







Lake Elsinore


Palomar St


M
ur


rie
ta


 R
dCottonwoodCanyon


Rd


Jackson Ave


Bundy Canyon Rd


Clinton Keith Rd
Grand Ave


Nutm
eg


St


W
ild


om
ar 


Tr


Co
ryd


on
 Rd


M
ission Trl


15


15


Menifee


Wildomar


Murrieta


Lake Elsinore


Lakeland
Village


Existing Zoning


CITY OF WILOMAR
ZONING CONSISTENCY STUDY


0 10.5


Miles


Wildomar City Boundary


CHANGE PARCELS
Existing Zoning


C-1/C-P (General Commercial)


C-P-S (Scenic Highway Commercial)


I-P (Industrial Park)


M-SC (Manufacturing Service Commercial)


R-R (Rural Residential)


R-T (Mobilehome Subdivision)


R-1 (One-Family Dwellings)


R-3 (General Residential)


R-4 (Planned Residential Zone)







ATTACHMENT E 


Zoning Consistency Map 
Proposed Zone Change Parcels 







Lake Elsinore


Palomar St


M
ur


rie
ta


 R
dCottonwoodCanyon


Rd


Jackson Ave


Bundy Canyon Rd


Clinton Keith Rd
Grand Ave


Nutm
eg


St


W
ild


om
ar 


Tr


Co
ryd


on
 Rd


M
ission Trl


15


15


Menifee


Wildomar


Murrieta


Lake Elsinore


Proposed Zoning


CITY OF WILOMAR
ZONING CONSISTENCY STUDY


0 10.5


Miles


Wildomar City Boundary


CHANGE PARCELS
Proposed Zoning


C-1/C-P (General Commercial)


C-P-S (Scenic Highway Commercial)


I-P (Industrial Park)


M-SC (Manufacturing Service Commercial)


R-R (Rural Residential)


R-T (Mobilehome Subdivision)


R-A (Residential Agriculture)


R-5 (Open Area Combining Zone)


R-1 (One-Family Dwellings)


R-2 (Multiple-Family Dwelling)
R-3 (General Residential)


R-4 (Planned Residential Zone)







ATTACHMENT F 


Zoning Consistency 
Property Owner Notification Letter 







Dustin Nigg, Mayor, District 2        23873 Clinton Keith Rd, Ste 201 


Ben J. Benoit, Mayor Pro Tem, District 1        Wildomar, CA 92595 


Bridgette Moore, Council Member, District 4    951.677.7751 Phone 


Joseph Morabito Council Member, District 3            951.698.1463 Fax 


Marsha Swanson, Council Member, District 5 


NOTICE OF CITY INITIATED ZONING MAP AMENDMENT AND 
ZONE CHANGE FOR YOUR PROPERTY 


July 26, 2021 


Name of Property Owner 
Property Owner Address 
City, State and Zip Code 


Subject: Zone Change Proposal for [add site address (if available) & APN here] 


Dear Property Owner, 


The City of Wildomar recently received a planning grant from the California Department of Housing and 
Community Development (HCD) to initiate the City’s “2021 Zoning Consistency Program.”  Title 17 
(Zoning) of the Wildomar Municipal Code includes goals and polices for the orderly growth and 
development of the City and outlines the various permitted land uses and development standards, such 
as building setbacks, building height, parking, etc. for each property in the City. 


Each property has a unique land use and zoning designation which the City inherited from the County of 
Riverside upon incorporation on July 1, 2008.  The zoning designations are divided into “zoning districts” 
(i.e., Residential, Commercial, Industrial, etc.) and are illustrated on the City’s official Zoning Map. As 
required by State zoning laws, the zoning on individual properties must have the same (or consistent) 
designation as the designation on the City’s General Plan Land Use Map. This is commonly referred to as 
“Consistent Zoning.” 


Our “Zoning Consistency Program” focuses on making sure that each property in the City has a zoning 
designation that matches the General Plan land use designation, and addresses technical issues, such as 
map errors or modifications. If your zoning designation does not match your General Plan land use 
designation, the City is required to amend the Zoning Map by having our City Council approve a Zone 
Change for your property. It is important to point out that in most cases if you want to construct a room 
addition or add a garage, you will still be able to do so.  


For example, if you have a residence and your zoning designation is residential, but the general plan 
designation is commercial, the zoning consistency program will change your zoning to commercial to 
match the general plan land use designation. In this case, you will still be able to expand your square 
footage (room addition, etc.) up to an additional 25 percent on your property. In some cases, this zoning 
consistency program may even result in an increase in property values based on your zone and location. 


Upon thorough review of each property in the City, our records indicate that your property identified above 
has a Zoning designation which is not consistent with the General Plan Land Use designation. Therefore, 
the City would like to change the Zoning on your property to match the land use designation. This Zone 
Change process normally costs $7,000; however, because of the HCD grant noted above, there will be no 
cost to you. 







Zoning Consistency Program 
Affected Property Owner Notification 
July 26, 2021 
Page 2 


We value your support in this effort as the City believes it will be beneficial.  If you do not want your property 
to be rezoned as part of the “Zoning Consistency Program,” we will take that into consideration when 
finalizing the overall zoning changes throughout the City. However, we respectfully request that you notify 
us as soon as convenient, but no later than Tuesday, August 31, 2021 to let us know of your position. The 
City will schedule Planning Commission and City Council meetings for later this year in order to adopt the 
zoning consistency changes. You will get a notice of public meeting once the schedule has been set. 


Our records indicate your property is in [add Council District].  Your property zoning designation is 
proposed to be changed from [CURRENT ZONE] to [NEW ZONE]. The City has developed an online tool 
where you can see the proposed zoning changes for your property as well as all other proposed zoning 
consistency changes in the City. The link to the tool is located below: 


http://arcg.is/1X095a 


If you have any questions or comments concerning the City’s “Zoning Consistency Program,” please 
contact Mr. Abdu Lachgar, AICP, Associate Planner at (951) 677-7751, Ext. 203, or via email at 
alachgar@Cityofwildomar.org.  He will be able to answer all your questions. Thank you in advance for your 
participation. 


Sincerely, 


Matthew C. Bassi 
Planning Director 


CC: Dustin Nigg, Mayor, District 2 
Ben J. Benoit, Mayor Pro Tem, District 1  
Bridgette Moore, Council Member, District 4  
Joseph Morabito Council Member, District 3 
Marsha Swanson, Council Member, District 5  
Gary Nordquist, City Manager 
Dan York, Assistant City Manager/Public Works Director 
Matthew Bassi, Planning Director  
Abdu Lachgar, AICP, Associate Planner 
Kimberly Davidson, Economic Development Director 



http://arcg.is/1X095a

mailto:alachgar@cityofwildomar.org





ATTACHMENT G 


SB 166 “No Net Loss” Zone Changes Map 







Brigin Pl


Colony
Dr


T aft Ct


Elizabeth
Ln


Da
yt


on
 A


ve


Sweetbay Dr


  Je
nn


ing
s Dr


Lincoln Ave


Sierra Oak Dr


Vi
lla


D
el


So
l


C
orte


Em
erado


W


ing Elm
Cir


Ced


ro


  O
ak


Cree
k Rd


Ke
nn


ad
in


e 
Dr


Bou
vie


r Ct


Ja
na


 L
n


G ingerbread
Dr


Madison Ave


Crystal
Aire


Ct


Arro
n C


t


Di
am


an
te


Ke
vin


 R
d


Jefferson Ave


Un
de


rw
oo


d Cir


Stab le Lane Rd


Nutm
eg


St


De Gem
a


Linda


Franklin Ave
Hi


dd
en


 S
pr


in
gs


 R
d


Ro
bar


ds
Way


En
gle


man
n Oak


St


Saratoga Springs Pl


Wym
an R d


Prielipp Rd
Jackson Ave


  N
utm


eg
St


Palomar St


15


Wildomar


Murrieta


380290016


380270015


Brigin Pl


Colony
Dr


T aft Ct


Elizabeth
Ln


Da
yt


on
 A


ve


Sweetbay Dr


  Je
nn


ing
s Dr


Lincoln Ave


Sierra Oak Dr


Vi
lla


D
el


So
l


C
orte


Em
erado


W


ing Elm
Cir


Ced


ro


  O
ak


Cree
k Rd


Ke
nn


ad
in


e 
Dr


Bou
vie


r Ct


Ja
na


 L
n


G ingerbread
Dr


Madison Ave


Crystal
Aire


Ct


Arro
n C


t


Di
am


an
te


Ke
vin


 R
d


Jefferson Ave


Un
de


rw
oo


d Cir


Stab le Lane Rd


Nutm
eg


St


De Gem
a


Linda


Franklin Ave
Hi


dd
en


 S
pr


in
gs


 R
d


Ro
bar


ds
Way


En
gle


man
n Oak


St


Saratoga Springs Pl


Wym
an R d


Prielipp Rd


Jackson Ave


  N
utm


eg
St


Palomar St


15


Wildomar


Murrieta


380290016


380270015


Existing RR Sites and Proposed Zoning


CITY OF WILOMAR
ZONING CONSISTENCY STUDY


0 0.50.25


Miles


Existing RR Sites
Zoning


R-R (Rural Residential)


R-2 (Multiple-Family Dwelling)
R-3 (General Residential)


Existing Zoning


Proposed Zoning







ATTACHMENT H 


Existing and Proposed Zoning – Unit Capacity Analysis Table 







Table 1. Existing Zoning Districts – Unit Capacity Analysis 
Existing Zoning 
District Unit Density Factor Parcel Count Total Acres 


Unit 
Counts 


Commercial – C-
1/C-P (General 
Commercial) 0 12 16.97 0 
Commercial – C-P-S 
(Scenic Highway 
Commercial) 0 5 6.36 0 
Industrial – I-P 
(Industrial Park) 0 1 4.54 0 
Industrial – M-SC 
(Manufacturing 
Service 
Commercial) 0 3 24.33 0 
R-1-15000 2 units per acre 2 11.51 23 
Residential – R3 
(General 
Residential) 20 units per acre 1 4.26 85 
Residential – R4 
(Planned 
Residential) 20 units per acre 3 8.72 174 
Residential – RR 
(Rural Residential) 1 unit per parcel 210 492.26 210 
Residential – RT 
(Mobile Home 
Subdivision/Mobile 
Home Park) 2 units per acre 22 185.29 371 


Total Parcels 259 Total Units 863 







Table 2. Proposed Zoning Districts – Unit Capacity Analysis 
Proposed Zoning 
District 


Unit Density 
Factor Parcel Count Total Acres Unit Counts 


Commercial – C-
1/C-P (General 
Commercial) 0 84 122.20 0 
Commercial – C-P-
S (Scenic Highway 
Commercial) 0 40 156.78 0 
Industrial – I-P 
(Industrial Park) 0 8 28.61 0 
Industrial – M-SC 
(Manufacturing 
Service 
Commercial) 0 70 176.72 0 
Residential – RR 
(Rural Residential) 1 unit per parcel 12 38.31 12 
Residential – R2 
(Multiple-Family 
Dwellings) 17 units per acre 3 3.87 66 
Residential – R3 
(General 
Residential) 20 units per acre 20 42.46 849 
Residential – R5 
(Open Area 
Combined Zone) 0 22 185.29 0 


Total Parcels 259 Unit Totals 927 







 
Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-04 January 12, 2022 
MFR Code Amendment Page 1 


CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #2.3 


PUBLIC HEARING 
Meeting Date: January 12, 2022 


 


TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM: Matthew Bassi, Planning Director  
 
SUBJECT: Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-04: City Council consideration of  


  a city-initiated Zoning Ordinance Amendment to modify Sections 17.36,  
  17.44 & 17.68 of the Wildomar Municipal Code 


STAFF REPORT 


RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Commission recommends the City Council introduce and approve the first 
reading of an Ordinance entitled: 
 


ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A GENERAL RULE EXEMPTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
SECTION 15061(B)(3) OF THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT 


(CEQA) GUIDELINES, AND APPROVAL OF ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 
NO. 2021-04 TO MODIFY SECTION 17.36 (MULTIPLE FAMILY DWELLING ZONE), 


17.44 (GENERAL RESIDENTIAL ZONE) AND 17.68 (RESIDENTIAL INCENTIVE 
ZONE) OF THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE RELATED TO MULTI-FAMILY 


DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 


DESCRIPTION: 
The planning department is proposing a code amendment that will update our 
development standards for the city’s three (3) multi-family zones to modify some of the 
objective zoning standards that apply to multi-family developments in the City.  The land 
uses and development standards for the R-2, R-3 and R-6 zones were inherited from 
Riverside County upon incorporation and have not been revised since changes the 
County made in the early 2000’s.  Thus, they do not reflect the current development and 
design trends being implemented in other jurisdictions.   
 
Implementation of the updated development standards basically relate to setbacks, 
building height, lot coverage, etc.  If approved as proposed, future multi-family residential 
projects will result in better designed projects that better take into consideration 
streetscape and aesthetic impacts on surrounding neighborhoods.  
 
 







 
Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-04 January 12, 2022 
MFR Code Amendment Page 2 


Planning Commission Review/Action: 
The Planning Commission reviewed the proposed code amendment at its December 1, 
2021 meeting.  There were no public speakers either for or against the proposed code 
amendment.  The Commission had no questions regarding the amendment.  After 
Commission discussion, they voted 4-0-1 (Strong Absent) to adopt PC Resolution No. 
2021-30 recommending City Council approval of Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 
2021-04. 


DISCUSSION: 
The proposed changes to the R-2, R-3 and R-6 multi-family development standards are 
outlined in a draft Ordinance as Exhibit 1 of Attachment A.  Staff has also provided a 
redline/strikeout version of the changes so the Council can see what the existing 
standards are and what is being proposed (refer to Attachment B).  Staff believes this 
code amendment is necessary to better address future multi-family developments, 
especially projects where State law limits the City’s discretionary review.  
 
SB 330 limits the ability of the City to amend its zoning standards in a manner that reduces 
the intensity of land use within an existing zoning district below what was allowed under 
zoning ordinance in effect on January 1, 2018, unless the Department of Housing and 
Community Development (HCD) approves the amendments, or the city makes other 
offsetting changes to development standards to ensure there is “no net loss in residential 
capacity.” The City has submitted the draft ordinance to HCD for their review and 
approval. 
 
City staff intends to wait to bring this Ordinance back to Council for 2nd reading and 
adoption until after HCD approval is received.  If HCD does not approve the Ordinance 
as presently drafted, City staff will make modifications to the draft Ordinance to address 
HCD’s concerns, or ensure that there is no net loss in residential capacity resulting from 
the Ordinance. If substantive modifications are made to the Ordinance, it will be brought 
back to Planning Commission for further review and recommendation prior to going to 
City Council. 


ENVIRONMENTAL/CEQA DISCUSSION: 
In accordance with the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code § 21000, et seq. (“CEQA”)), a review of the potential environmental 
impacts was conducted by the Planning Department for Zoning Ordinance Amendment 
No. 2021-04.  Based on this review, the Planning Department has determined that the 
adoption of the proposed amendment (which provides for only text changes) has no 
potential to impact the environment.  The proposed amendments do not change the 
permissible density of housing that may be built on a site; they pertain to the placement 
of the units on a site. Therefore, Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-04 meets the 
criteria to be exempt from CEQA pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3), which states that 
CEQA applies only to projects that have the potential for causing a significant effect on 
the environment, and where it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that 
the activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the activity is not 
subject to CEQA. 







 
Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-04 January 12, 2022 
MFR Code Amendment Page 3 


Given this, the Planning Commission is recommending the City Council make a 
determination that Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-04 has no potential to 
negatively impact the environment and recommend to the City Council adoption of the 
general rule exemption as stated above. 


ZOA NO. 2021-04 FINDINGS OF FACT: 
In accordance with the provisions of Chapter 17.280 of the Zoning Ordinance, the 
Planning Commission recommends the City Council make the following finding in support 
of approving Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-04. 
 
A. The proposed amendment is consistent with the City of Wildomar General Plan and 


Zoning Ordinance.  
 
Evidence:  The proposed amendment is consistent with the City of Wildomar 
General Plan in that the proposed amendment will establish updated development 
standards for the City’s multifamily residential zones while maintaining quality 
development opportunities in these zones, and continue to further important housing 
opportunities for all income segments of the community.  In addition, the updated 
development standards outlined in the amendment will not result in a reduction or 
create any impediments in the development intensity of the existing multifamily 
zones, thereby, maintaining compliance with the requirements of SB 330. The 
amendment is also consistent with the Zoning Ordinance in that the City is allowed 
to amend its development standards from time to time to address changes in the 
marketplace and to keep up with current multifamily development trends. 


PUBLIC NOTICING: 
In accordance with Chapter 17.04 and 17.280 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, the 
Planning Department on January 1, 2022 published a legal notice in the Press Enterprise, 
a local newspaper of general circulation, notifying the general public of the January 12, 
2022 City Council meeting where Council would discuss Zoning Ordinance Amendment 
No. 2021-04.  Since this code amendment is not a development project, the provisions of 
Ordinance 135 requiring public hearing sign boards do not apply. 


FISCAL IMPACTS: 
There are no fiscal impacts. 


Respectfully Submitted,    Reviewed By, 
Gary Nordquist     Thomas D. Jex 
City Manager      City Attorney 


ATTACHMENTS: 
A. City Council Ordinance for ZOA No. 2021-05 


INCORPORATED HEREIN BY REFERENCE THE FOLLOWING: 
• City of Wildomar General Plan and General Plan EIR 
• City of Wildomar Zoning Ordinance (Title 17 of the WMC) 


 







 


ATTACHMENT A 
 


Council Ordinance for ZOA 2021-04 
 
 







 


ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A GENERAL RULE 
EXEMPTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 15061(B)(3) 
OF THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT 
(CEQA) GUIDELINES, AND APPROVAL OF ZONING 
ORDINANCE AMENDMENT NO. 2021-04 TO MODIFY 
SECTION 17.36 (MULTIPLE FAMILY DWELLING ZONE), 17.44 
(GENERAL RESIDENTIAL ZONE) AND 17.68 (RESIDENTIAL 
INCENTIVE ZONE) OF THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE 
RELATED TO MULTI-FAMILY DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS.  


WHEREAS, in accordance with Chapter 17.280 of the Wildomar Municipal Code 
and California Government Code, Section 65800, et seq., the City Council has the 
authority to take action on the proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-04; and 


WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on December 1, 2021 
for Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-04, and adopted PC Resolution No. 2021-
30 recommending City Council approval of Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-04; 
and 


WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 17.280.040 of the Wildomar Municipal 
Code, the Planning Department, on January 1, 2022, published a legal notice in the Press 
Enterprise, a local newspaper of general circulation, notifying the general public of the 
City Council public hearing set for January 12, 2022 regarding Zoning Ordinance 
Amendment No. 2021-04; and  


WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 17.280.040 of the Wildomar Municipal 
Code, the City Council conducted a duly noticed public hearing on January 1, 2022, at 
which time interested persons had an opportunity to testify in support of, or opposition to 
Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-04, and at which time the City Council received 
public testimony concerning Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-04.  


THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR HEREBY DOES ORDAIN 
AS FOLLOWS:  


SECTION 1:  ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION.  
In accordance with the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act 


(Public Resources Code § 21000, et seq. (“CEQA”)), a review of the potential 
environmental impacts was conducted by the Planning Department for Zoning Ordinance 
Amendment No. 2021-04.  Based on this review, the Planning Department has 
determined that the adoption of the proposed amendment (which provides for only text 
changes) has no potential to impact the environment.  The proposed amendments do not 
change the permissible density of housing that may be built on a site; they pertain to the 



http://qcode.us/codes/othercode.php?state=ca&code=gov





 


placement of the units on a site. Therefore, Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-04 
meets the criteria to be exempt from CEQA pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3), which states 
that CEQA applies only to projects that have the potential for causing a significant effect 
on the environment, and where it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility 
that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the activity 
is not subject to CEQA.  Given this, the City Council hereby determines that Zoning 
Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-04 has no potential to negatively impact the 
environment and adopts the general rule exemption as stated above. 


SECTION 2.  REQUIRED ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT FINDING. 
In accordance with Chapter 17.280 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, the City 


Council, upon recommendation from the Planning Commission, hereby makes the 
following findings approving Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-04.  
 
A. The proposed amendment is consistent with the City of Wildomar General Plan and 


Zoning Ordinance. 
 


Evidence:  The proposed amendment is consistent with the City of Wildomar 
General Plan in that the proposed amendment will establish updated development 
standards for the City’s multifamily residential zones while maintaining quality 
development opportunities in these zones, and continue to further important housing 
opportunities for all income segments of the community.  In addition, the updated 
development standards outlined in the amendment will not result in a reduction or 
create any impediments in the development intensity of the existing multifamily 
zones, thereby, maintaining compliance with the requirements of SB 330. The 
amendment is also consistent with the Zoning Ordinance in that the City is allowed 
to amend its development standards from time to time to address changes in the 
marketplace and to keep up with current multifamily development trends.  


SECTION 3. AMENDMENT TO THE MUNICIPAL CODE 
 Section 17.36.010.E.1 (Multiple Family Dwelling Zone) is hereby amended to read 
as follows: 
 
1. Two-family dwellings, multiple-family dwellings, bungalow courts and apartment 


houses subject to the development standards outlined in Section 17.36.120 below. 


SECTION 4. AMENDMENT TO THE MUNICIPAL CODE 
Section 17.36 (Multiple Family Dwelling Zone) is hereby amended to add a new 


subsection (17.36.120) to read as follows: 
 


17.36.120 - Multi-Family Development Standards 
 
A. Development Objective.  The development objective of this section is to facilitate 


multi-family residential housing opportunities in the R-2 zone that exhibit consistency 
with these standards, the city’s multi-family objective design standards and 



http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_36-17_36_010&frames=on





 


guidelines and compliance with housing element goals that promote multi-family 
housing for all residents of Wildomar. 
 


B. Development Standards.  The following development standards are applicable to 
multi-family housing in the R-2 zone. To the extent that any of these standards 
conflict with the development standards in Section 17.36.020 through 17.36.110, the 
standards in this section shall prevail. 


 
1. Minimum Lot Size.  The minimum lot size shall be 7,200 square feet with a 


minimum width of 60 feet and a minimum depth of 120 feet.  
 


2. Maximum Building Height.  All buildings and structures shall not exceed 40 feet 
in height unless a height variance is approved in accordance with Section 
17.196 of the WMC. 


 
3. Minimum Building Setbacks.  The minimum building setbacks shall be as 


follows: 
 


a. Street Yard Setback.  All buildings and structures adjacent to a public or 
private street shall have a minimum setback of 20 feet for the first story, and 
25 feet for two-stories and above.  The first 10 feet of this setback must be 
landscaped.  
 


b. Side and Rear Yard Setback (not facing a street).  All buildings and 
structures shall have a minimum setback of 15 feet. If a building or structure 
is adjacent to a single family residential zone, the minimum setback shall 
be 20 feet. 


 
4. Lot Coverage.  The maximum lot coverage for all buildings and structures shall 


not exceed 50% of the net lot area. 
 


5. Distance between buildings.  All buildings or structures shall maintain a 15-foot 
distance between another building or structure on the same lot. 


 
6. Off-Street Parking.  Multi-family uses in the R-2 zone (such as apartments, 


townhomes, condominiums, etc.) shall comply with the parking requirements 
outlined in Section 17.188 of the Wildomar Municipal Code.  On-street parking 
shall not count towards meeting this requirement. 
 


C. Modifications.  For any property that was zoned R-2 as of the effective date of the 
ordinance adding this paragraph, a modification to one or more of the development 
standards in this section may be requested.  The applicant must show that the 
requested modification is necessary to be able to build the proposed development 
on the site at the proposed density.  However, under no circumstances shall a 
modification be granted that reduces the applicable development standard to below 
what was in place prior to the effective date of the ordinance adding this paragraph. 







 


A request for a modification of a development standard for a project shall be 
approved by the person or body that has the approval authority for the project 
permits and approvals. 


SECTION 5.  AMENDMENT TO THE MUNICIPAL CODE 
Section 17.44.020.A-G (R-3 General Residential Zone) of the Wildomar Municipal 


Code is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 


17.44.020 – Development Standards 
 
A. Development Objective.  The development objective of this section is to facilitate 


multi-family residential housing opportunities in the R-3 zone that exhibit 
consistency with these standards, the city’s multi-family objective design standards 
and guidelines and compliance with housing element goals that promote multi-
family housing for all residents of Wildomar. 


 
B. Development Standards.  The following development standards are applicable to 


multi-family housing in the R-3 zone.  
 


1. Minimum Lot Size.  The minimum lot size shall be 7,200 square feet with a 
minimum width of 60 feet and a minimum depth of 120 feet.  


 
2. Street Setback.  All buildings and structures adjacent to a public or private 


street shall have a minimum setback of 20 feet for the first story, and 25 feet 
for two-stories and above.  The first 10 feet of this setback must be landscaped. 


 
3. Side and Rear Yard Setback (not facing a street).  All buildings and structures 


shall have a minimum setback of 15 feet.  If a building or structure is adjacent 
to a single family residential zone, the minimum setback shall be 20 feet. 
 


4. Lot Coverage.  The maximum lot coverage for all buildings and structures shall 
not exceed 50% of the net lot area. 


 
5. The maximum ratio of floor area to lot area shall not be greater than two to one, 


not including basement floor area. 
 


6. Maximum Building Height.  All buildings and structures shall not exceed 50 feet 
in height unless a height variance is approved in accordance with Section 
17.196 of the WMC. 
 


7. Off-Street Parking. Multi-family uses in the R-3 zone (such as apartments, 
townhomes, condominiums, etc.) shall comply with the parking requirements 
outlined in Section 17.188 of the Wildomar Municipal Code.  On-street parking 
shall not count towards meeting this requirement.  
 







 


8. Distance between buildings.  All buildings or structures shall maintain a 15-foot 
distance between another building or structure on the same lot.  


C. For any property that was zoned R-3 as of the effective date of the ordinance adding 
this paragraph, a modification to one or more of the development standards in this 
section may be requested.  The applicant must show that the requested modification 
is necessary to be able to build the proposed development on the site at the 
proposed density.  However, under no circumstances shall a modification be granted 
that reduces the applicable development standard to below what was in place prior 
to the effective date of the ordinance adding this paragraph. A request for a 
modification of a development standard for a project shall be approved by the person 
or body that has the approval authority for the project permits and approvals. 


SECTION 6.  AMENDMENT TO THE MUNICIPAL CODE 
Section 17.68 (R-6 Residential Incentive Zone) of the Wildomar Municipal Code is 


hereby amended to add a new subsection (17.68.045) to read as follows:  
 


17.68.045  Development Standards for Multi-Family Uses 
 
A. Development Objective.  The development objective of this section is to facilitate 


multi-family residential housing opportunities in the R-6 zone that exhibit consistency 
with these standards, the city’s multi-family objective design standards and 
guidelines and compliance with housing element goals that promote multi-family 
housing for all residents of Wildomar. 


 
B. Development Standards. The following development standards are applicable to 


multi-family housing in the R-6 zone. To the extent that any of these standards 
conflict with the development standards in Section 17.68.040, the standards in this 
section shall prevail. 


 
1. Minimum Lot Size.  The minimum lot size shall be 7,200 square feet with a 


minimum width of 60 feet and a minimum depth of 120 feet.  
 
2. Street Yard Setback.  All buildings and structures adjacent to a public or 


private street shall have a minimum setback of 20 feet for the first story, and 
25 feet for two-stories and above.  The first 10 feet of this setback must be 
landscaped. 


 
3. Side and Rear Yard Setback (not facing a street).  All buildings and structures 


shall have a minimum setback of 15 feet.  If a building or structure is adjacent 
to a single family residential zone, the minimum setback shall be 20 feet.   


 
4. Lot Coverage.  The maximum lot coverage for all buildings and structures shall 


not exceed 50% of the net lot area. 
5. The maximum ratio of floor area to lot area shall not be greater than two to 


one, not including basement floor area. 
 







 


6. Maximum Building Height.  All buildings and structures shall not exceed 50 
feet in height unless a height variance is approved in accordance with Section 
17.196 of the WMC. 


7. Off-Street Parking. Multi-family uses in the R-6 zone (such as apartments, 
townhomes, condominiums, etc.) shall comply with the parking requirements 
outlined in Section 17.188 of the Wildomar Municipal Code.  On-street parking 
shall not count towards meeting this requirement.  


 
8. Distance between buildings.  No one-story building shall be closer than 10 feet 


to any other one-story building on the same lot, and no two-story building shall 
be closer than 15 feet to any other building on the same lot. 
 


C. For any property that was zoned R-6 as of the effective date of the ordinance adding 
this paragraph, a modification to one or more of the development standards in this 
section may be requested.  The applicant must show that the requested modification 
is necessary to be able to build the proposed development on the site at the 
proposed density.  However, under no circumstances shall a modification be granted 
that reduces the applicable development standard to below what was in place prior 
to the effective date of the ordinance adding this paragraph. A request for a 
modification of a development standard for a project shall be approved by the person 
or body that has the approval authority for the project permits and approvals. 


SECTION 7.  SEVERABILITY 
If any chapter, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 


ordinance, is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any 
court of competent jurisdiction, such decision will not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this ordinance. The City Council hereby declares that it would have adopted 
this ordinance, and each Chapter, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or 
portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more Sections, subsections, 
subdivisions, sentences, clauses, phrases, or portions thereof be declared invalid or 
unconstitutional.” 
 
SECTION 8.  EFFECTIVE DATE.   


This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its passage by the City 
Council. 


SECTION 9.  CITY CLERK ACTION 
The City Clerk is authorized and directed to cause this Ordinance to be published 


within fifteen (15) days after its passage in a newspaper of general circulation and 
circulated within the City in accordance with Government Code Chapter 36933(a) or, to 
cause this Ordinance to be published in the manner required by law using the alternative 
summary and posting procedure authorized under Government Code Chapter 39633(c). 
  







 


INTRODUCED AND APPROVED FOR FIRST READING this 12th, day of January, 2022. 
 
 
 


___________________________ 
Ben J. Benoit, 
Mayor 


 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________  ___________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales, CMC 
City Attorney      City Clerk 


 
  







 


ATTACHMENT B 
Strikeout Version of Proposed Ordinance Changes 


  







 


Chapter 17.36 R-2 (Multiple Family Dwelling Zone) 
 
 Existing text language (no changes proposed) 
 Strikeout Changes (to be deleted) 
 Revised/New language (to be added) 
 
17.36.010 - Uses permitted  -  the list of permitted uses will remain the same…no 
changes. 
 
17.36.020 through 17.36.110  -  These sections remain unchanged. 
 
17.36.120 - Multi-Family Development Standards 
 
A. Development Objective.  The development objective of this section is to facilitate 


multi-family residential housing opportunities in the R-2 zone that exhibit consistency 
with these standards, the city’s multi-family objective design standards and 
guidelines and compliance with housing element goals that promote multi-family 
housing for all residents of Wildomar. 
 


B. Development Standards.  The following development standards are applicable to 
multi-family housing in the R-2 zone. 


 
1. Minimum Lot Size.  The minimum lot size shall be 7,200 square feet with a 


minimum width of 60 feet and a minimum depth of 120 feet.  
 


2. Maximum Building Height.  All buildings and structures shall not exceed 40 feet 
in height unless a height variance is approved in accordance with Section 
17.196 of the WMC. 


 
3. Minimum Building Setbacks.  The minimum building setbacks shall be as 


follows: 
 


a. Street Yard Setback.  All buildings and structures adjacent to a public or 
private street shall have a minimum setback of 20 feet for the first story, and 
25 feet for two-stories and above.  The first 10 feet of this setback must be 
landscaped.  
 


b. Side and Rear Yard Setback (not facing a street).  All buildings and 
structures shall have a minimum setback of 15 feet.  If a building or structure 
is adjacent to a single family residential zone, the minimum setback shall 
be 20 feet. 


 
4. Lot Coverage.  The maximum lot coverage for all buildings and structures shall 


not exceed 50% of the net lot area. 
 



http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_36-17_36_010&frames=on

http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_36-17_36_010&frames=on





 


5. Distance between buildings.  All buildings or structures shall maintain a 15-foot 
distance between another building or structure on the same lot. 


 
6. Off-Street Parking.  Multi-family uses in the R-2 zone (such as apartments, 


townhomes, condominiums, etc.) shall comply with the parking requirements 
outlined in Section 17.188 of the Wildomar Municipal Code.  On-street parking 
shall not count towards meeting this requirement. 


 
  







 


Chapter 17.44 R-3 (General Residential Zone) 
 
 Existing text language (no changes proposed) 
 Strikeout Changes (to be deleted) 
 Revised/New language (to be added) 
 
17.44.020 – Development Standards 
The following development standards shall apply to all multi-family residential uses in the 
R-3 zone, except that planned residential developments shall comply with the 
development standards contained in Section 17.180.010. 
 
A. Development Objective.  The development objective of this section is to facilitate 


multi-family residential housing opportunities in the R-3 zone that exhibit consistency 
with these standards, the city’s multi-family objective design standards and 
guidelines and compliance with housing element goals that promote multi-family 
housing for all residents of Wildomar. 


 
B. Development Standards.  The following development standards are applicable to 


multi-family housing in the R-2 zone. 
 


1. Minimum Lot Size.  The minimum lot size shall be 7,200 square feet with a 
minimum width of 60 feet and a minimum depth of 120 feet.  
 


2. Street Setback.  The minimum front and rear yards shall be 10 feet for buildings 
that do not exceed 35 feet in height. Any portion of a building which exceeds 
35 feet in height shall be set back from the front and rear lot lines no less than 
10 feet plus two feet for each foot by which the height exceeds 35 feet. The 
front setback shall be measured from any existing or future street line as shown 
on any specific street plan of the City. The rear setback shall be measured from 
the existing rear lot line or from any recorded alley or easement; if the rear line 
adjoins a street, the rear setback requirement shall be the same as required for 
front setback.  All buildings and structures adjacent to a public or private street 
shall have a minimum setback of 20 feet for the first story, and 25 feet for two-
stories and above.  The first 10 feet of this setback must be landscaped. 
 


3. Side and Rear Yard Setback (not facing a street). The minimum side yard shall 
be five feet for buildings that do not exceed 35 feet in height. Any portion of a 
building which exceeds 35 feet in height shall be set back from each side lot 
line five feet plus two feet for each foot by which the height exceeds 35 feet; if 
the side yard adjoins a street, the side setback requirement shall be the same 
as required for a front setback. No structural encroachments shall be permitted 
in the front, side, or rear yard except as provided in Section 17.172.140.  All 
buildings and structures shall have a minimum setback of 15 feet.  If a building 
or structure is adjacent to a single family residential zone, the minimum setback 
shall be 20 feet. 
 



http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?cite=section_17.172.140&confidence=6





 


4. Lot Coverage.  The maximum lot coverage for all buildings and structures shall 
not exceed 50% of the net lot area. 


 
5. The maximum ratio of floor area to lot area shall not be greater than two to one, 


not including basement floor area. 
 


6. Maximum Building Height.  All buildings and structures shall not exceed 50 feet 
in height unless a height up to 75 feet is specifically permitted under the 
provisions of Section 17.172.230 unless a height variance is approved in 
accordance with Section 17.196 of the WMC. 
 


7. Off-Street Parking. Automobile storage space shall be provided as required by 
Chapter 17.188 Multi-family uses in the R-3 zone (such as apartments, 
townhomes, condominiums, etc.) shall comply with the parking requirements 
outlined in Section 17.188 of the Wildomar Municipal Code.  On-street parking 
shall not count towards meeting this requirement.  
 


8. Distance between buildings.  All buildings or structures shall maintain a 15-foot 
distance between another building or structure on the same lot.  


  



http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?cite=chapter_17.188&confidence=6





 


Chapter 17.68  -  R-6 (Residential Incentive Zone) 
 
 Existing text language (no changes proposed) 
 Strikeout Changes (to be deleted) 
 Revised/New language (to be added) 
 
17.68.010 – 17.68.040 and 17.68.050 – 17.68.060  -  remain the same…no changes. 
 
 
17.68.045  Development Standards for Multi-Family Uses 
Development Objective.  The development objective of this section is to facilitate multi-
family residential housing opportunities in the R-6 zone that exhibit consistency with these 
standards, the city’s multi-family objective design standards and guidelines and 
compliance with housing element goals that promote multi-family housing for all residents 
of Wildomar. 
 
A. Minimum Lot Size.  The minimum lot size shall be 7,200 square feet with a minimum 


width of 60 feet and a minimum depth of 120 feet.  
 


B. Street Yard Setback.  All buildings and structures adjacent to a public or private 
street shall have a minimum setback of 20 feet for the first story, and 25 feet for two-
stories and above.  The first 10 feet of this setback must be landscaped. 


 
C. Side and Rear Yard Setback (not facing a street).  All buildings and structures shall 


have a minimum setback of 15 feet.  If a building or structure is adjacent to a single 
family residential zone, the minimum setback shall be 20 feet.   


 
D. Lot Coverage.  The maximum lot coverage for all buildings and structures shall not 


exceed 50% of the net lot area. 
 


E. The maximum ratio of floor area to lot area shall not be greater than two to one, not 
including basement floor area. 


 
F. Maximum Building Height.  All buildings and structures shall not exceed 50 feet in 


height unless a height variance is approved in accordance with Section 17.196 of 
the WMC. 


 
G. Off-Street Parking. Multi-family uses in the R-6 zone (such as apartments, 


townhomes, condominiums, etc.) shall comply with the parking requirements 
outlined in Section 17.188 of the Wildomar Municipal Code.  On-street parking shall 
not count towards meeting this requirement.  


 
H. Distance between buildings.  No one-story building shall be closer than 10 feet to 


any other one-story building on the same lot, and no two-story building shall be 
closer than 15 feet to any other building on the same lot. 


 
End 



http://qcode.us/codes/wildomar/view.php?topic=17-17_36-17_36_010&frames=on





Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-05 January 12, 2022 
Water Efficient Landscape Code Amendment Page 1 


CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #2.4 


PUBLIC HEARING 
Meeting Date: January 12, 2022 


TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 


FROM: James Riley, Project Consultant, Municipal Consulting Services, LLC 
Matthew Bassi, Planning Director 


SUBJECT: Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 20201-05: City Council consideration an 
amendment to modify Chapter 17.276 (Water Efficient Landscapes) of the 
Wildomar Municipal Code 


STAFF REPORT 


RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Commission recommends the City Council introduce and approve the first 
reading of an Ordinance entitled: 


ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR, 


CALIFORNIA, ADOPTION OF AN EXEMPTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTIONS 
15061(B)(3) AND 15308 OF THE CEQA GUIDELINES AND APPROVAL OF ZONING 
ORDINANCE AMENDMENT NO. 2021-05 TO MODIFY CHAPTER 17.276 (WATER 


EFFICIENT LANDSCAPES) OF THE WILDOMAR MUNICIPAL CODE ESTABLISHING 
A NEW SUBSECTION TO ADDRESS SB 1383 STATE REQUIREMENTS 


DISCUSSION: 
The stated purpose of SB 1383 is to reduce organic waste disposal, recover edible food 
waste from the waste stream and reduce methane emissions. The goal of SB 1383 is to 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions to 40% below 1990 levels by the year 2030. To 
achieve this, the target is to reduce organic waste that ends up in the landfill by 50% by 
the year 2020 and 75% by the year 2025.  


In order to achieve the reduction of landfilled waste and to increase recovery, among 
other things, the State has mandated that jurisdictions adopt an ordinance or other 
enforceable requirement to comply with the mulch and composting provisions of the 
State’s Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance.  


Specifically, Section 18989.2 of the CalRecycle SB 1383 regulations (14 CRR § 18989.2), 
provides that “A jurisdiction shall adopt an ordinance or other enforceable requirement 
that requires compliance with Sections 492.6(a)(3)(B) (C), (D), and (G) of the Model 
Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance, Title 23, Division 2, Chapter 2.7 of the California 
Code of Regulations as amended September 15, 2015.”   







 
Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-05 January 12, 2022 
Water Efficient Landscape Code Amendment Page 2 


 
These provisions of the Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance generally require the 
following for applicable landscape installations: 
 For applicable landscape installations, compost at a rate of a minimum of four 


cubic yards per 1,000 square feet. 
 A minimum three inch (3″) layer of mulch shall be applied on all exposed soil 


surfaces of planting areas except in turf areas, creeping or rooting groundcovers, 
or direct seeding applications where mulch is contraindicated.  


 Organic mulch materials made from recycled or post-consumer shall take 
precedence over inorganic materials or virgin forest products unless the recycled 
post-consumer organic products are not locally available.  


 Soil amendments shall be incorporated according to recommendations of the soil 
report and what is appropriate for the plants selected. 


 
In accordance with Zoning Code section 17.280.010 and Government Code Section 
65800, et seq., the Planning Commission is being asked to review the proposed 
ordinance and provide a recommendation to the City Council. Staff recommends that the 
Planning Commission review the proposed Zoning Code ordinance to amend Chapter 
17.276 to comply with SB 1383 and recommend that the City Council approve and adopt 
the proposed ordinance. 


Planning Commission Review/Action: 
The Planning Commission reviewed the proposed code amendment at its December 1, 
2021 meeting.  There were no public speakers either for or against the proposed code 
amendment.  The Commission had no questions regarding the amendment.  After 
Commission discussion, they voted 4-0-1 (Strong Absent) to adopt PC Resolution No. 
2021-31 recommending City Council approval of Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 
2021-05. 


ENVIRONMENTAL/CEQA DISCUSSION: 
In accordance with the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code § 21000, et seq. (“CEQA”)), a review of the potential environmental 
impacts was conducted by the Planning Department for Zoning Ordinance Amendment 
No. 2021-05.  Based on this review, the Planning Department has determined that the 
adoption of the proposed amendment (which provides for only text changes) has no 
potential to impact the environment.  Therefore, Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-
05 meets the criteria to be exempt from CEQA pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) and 
15308, which states that that the water efficient landscape regulations, as provided for in 
the proposed ordinance, will not have a significant effect on the environment and that the 
new requirements, which represent actions by the City for the protection of the 
environment.  
CEQA applies only to projects that have the potential for causing a significant effect on 
the environment, and where it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that 
the activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the activity is not 







 
Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-05 January 12, 2022 
Water Efficient Landscape Code Amendment Page 3 


subject to CEQA.  Given this factor, Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-05 meets 
the criteria for a General Rule as stated above. 


ZOA NO. 2021-05 FINDINGS OF FACT: 
In accordance with the provisions of Chapter 17.280 of the Zoning Ordinance, the 
Planning Commission recommends the City Council make the following finding to 
approve Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-05. 
 
A. The proposed amendment is consistent with the City of Wildomar General Plan and 


Zoning Ordinance.  
 
Evidence:  The proposed amendment is consistent with the City of Wildomar 
General Plan in that the proposed amendment will improve upon the city’s existing 
water efficient landscape regulations in accordance with SB 1383. 


PUBLIC NOTICING: 
In accordance with Chapter 17.04 and 17.280 of the Wildomar Municipal Code, the 
Planning Department on January 1, 2022 published a legal notice in the Press Enterprise, 
a local newspaper of general circulation, notifying the general public of the January 12, 
2022 City Council hearing where the Council would discuss Zoning Ordinance 
Amendment No. 2021-05.  Since this code amendment is not a development project, the 
provisions of Ordinance 135 requiring public hearing sign boards do not apply. 


FISCAL IMPACTS: 
There are no fiscal impacts. 


Respectfully Submitted,    Reviewed By, 
Gary Nordquist     Thomas D. Jex 
City Manager      City Attorney 


ATTACHMENTS: 
A. City Council Ordinance for ZOA No. 2021-05 
 
 
INCORPORATED HEREIN BY REFERENCE THE FOLLOWING: 
• City of Wildomar General Plan and General Plan EIR 
• City of Wildomar Zoning Ordinance (Title 17 of the WMC) 


 
  







ATTACHMENT A 


City Council Ordinance 
for ZOA NO. 2021-05 







 


ORDINANCE NO. __ 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILDOMAR, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTION OF AN 
EXEMPTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTIONS 
15061(B)(3) AND 15308 OF THE CEQA GUIDELINES AND 
APPROVAL OF ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT NO. 
2021-05 TO MODIFY CHAPTER 17.276 (WATER 
EFFICIENT LANDSCAPES) OF THE WILDOMAR 
MUNICIPAL CODE ESTABLISHING A NEW SUBSECTION 
TO ADDRESS SB 1383 STATE REQUIREMENTS 


 WHEREAS, SB 1383, the Short-lived Climate Pollutant Reduction Act of 2016, 
requires the City to adopt and enforce an ordinance or enforceable mechanism to 
implement relevant provisions of SB 1383 Regulations.  


 WHEREAS, among the relevant SB 1383 Regulations, Section 18989.2 (14 CRR 
§ 18989.2), which provides that a jurisdiction must adopt an ordinance or other 
enforceable requirement to comply with the mulch and composting provisions of the 
State’s Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance.    


WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on December 1, 2021 
for Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-05, and adopted PC Resolution No. 2021-
31 recommending City Council approval of Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-05; 
and 


WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 17.280.040 of the Wildomar Municipal 
Code, the Planning Department, on January 1, 2022, published a legal notice in the Press 
Enterprise, a local newspaper of general circulation, notifying the general public of the 
City Council public hearing set for January 12, 2022, regarding Zoning Ordinance 
Amendment No. 2021-05; and  


 WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 17.280.040 of the Wildomar Municipal 
Code, the City Council conducted a duly noticed public hearing on January 12, 2022, at 
which time interested persons had an opportunity to testify in support of, or opposition to 
Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-05, and at which time the City Council received 
public testimony concerning Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-05. 


 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILDOMAR HEREBY DOES ORDAIN 
AS FOLLOWS:  


SECTION 1:  ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION.  
 In accordance with the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(Public Resources Code § 21000, et seq. (“CEQA”)), the City Council exercises its 
independent judgment and finds that Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-05 has no 







 


potential to impact the environment.  Therefore, Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-
05 meets the criteria to be exempt from CEQA pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) and 
15308, which states that that the water efficient landscape regulations, as provided for in 
the proposed ordinance, will not have a significant effect on the environment and that the 
new requirements, which represent actions by the City for the protection of the 
environment.  CEQA applies only to projects that have the potential for causing a 
significant effect on the environment, and where it can be seen with certainty that there 
is no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the 
environment, the activity is not subject to CEQA.  Given this factor, Zoning Ordinance 
Amendment No. 2021-05 meets the criteria for a General Rule as stated above. 


SECTION 2.  REQUIRED ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT FINDING. 
In accordance with the provisions of Chapter 17.280 of the Zoning Ordinance, the 


City Council, upon recommendation of the Planning Commission, hereby makes the 
following finding for approval of Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 2021-05. 
 
A. The proposed amendment is consistent with the City of Wildomar General Plan and 


Zoning Ordinance.  
 
Evidence:  The proposed amendment is consistent with the City of Wildomar 
General Plan in that the proposed amendment will improve upon the city’s existing 
water efficient landscape regulations in accordance with SB 1383. 


SECTION 3. AMENDMENT TO THE MUNICIPAL CODE 
Section 17.276.045 of the Wildomar Municipal Code is hereby added to Chapter 


17.276 (Water-Efficient Landscapes) to read as follows: 
 
17.276.045 Landscape Design Plan 
As applicable, all persons and/or entities subject to the State Model Water Efficient 
Landscape Ordinance (23 CCR, Division 2, Chapter 2.7) shall comply with Sections 
492.6(a)(3)(B), (C), (D), and (G), of the State Model Water Efficient Landscape 
Ordinance, as amended September 15, 2015, and as it may be amended in the future.” 


SECTION 4.  SEVERABILITY 
If any Chapter, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 


ordinance, is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any 
court of competent jurisdiction, such decision will not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this ordinance.  The City Council hereby declares that it would have adopted 
this ordinance, and each Chapter, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or 
portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more Sections, subsections, 
subdivisions, sentences, clauses, phrases, or portions thereof be declared invalid or 
unconstitutional.” 
 
  







 


SECTION 5.  EFFECTIVE DATE.   
This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its passage by the City 


Council. 


SECTION 6.  CITY CLERK ACTION 
The City Clerk is authorized and directed to cause this Ordinance to be published 


within fifteen (15) days after its passage in a newspaper of general circulation and 
circulated within the City in accordance with Government Code Chapter 36933(a) or, to 
cause this Ordinance to be published in the manner required by law using the alternative 
summary and posting procedure authorized under Government Code Chapter 39633(c). 


 INTRODUCED FOR FIRST READING this 12th day of January, 2022. 
 
 
 
 


_____________________ 
Ben J. Benoit 
Mayor 


 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________  ___________________________ 
Thomas D. Jex     Janet Morales, CMC 
City Attorney      City Clerk 
 


 







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #3.2 


GENERAL BUSINESS 
Meeting Date: January 12, 2022 


______________________________________________________________________ 


TO: Mayor and City Council Members 


FROM: Daniel Torres, Community Services Director 


SUBJECT: COVID-19 Update  


STAFF REPORT 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council receive and file the COVID-19 update and 
provide direction as desired. 


DISCUSSION: 
Staff will be providing an update on actions taken by the City in response to COVID-19 
and is requesting Council to provide direction as desired.  


FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 


Submitted By:  Approved By: 
Daniel Torres Gary Nordquist 
Community Services Director City Manager  


ATTACHMENTS: 
None. 







CITY OF WILDOMAR – CITY COUNCIL 
Agenda Item #3.3 


GENERAL BUSINESS 
Meeting Date: January 12, 2022 


______________________________________________________________________ 


TO: Mayor and City Council Members 


FROM: Dan York, Assistant City Manager 


SUBJECT: Legislative Platform 


STAFF REPORT 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council discuss and provide direction on Legislative 
Matters and direct staff to bring back a Legislative Platform at a future meeting. 


DISCUSSION: 
From time to time the city receives a request to write a letter or pass a resolution 
supporting or opposing legislation. In the past the city actively engaged in the 
restoration of lost vehicle license fee revenues.  Most recently members of the 
community expressed frustration of past legislation related to land use and housing.  
And a grass roots initiative related to local control on land use and housing is already 
underway.  Upcoming, staff anticipates legislative discussions to continue about land 
use and housing; and, on sales tax based on origin or destination.  The above list is a 
small sampling of topics considered by the legislature each year, many of which have 
future impacts on local government. 


The Agenda Item herein fosters discussion on the roll the city should play moving 
forward on the hundreds of legislative matters discussed and voted on each year. A 
Legislative Platform provides guidance on bills to track, letters to send, discussions to 
have with local representatives. Continued retention of a professional legislative 
representatives prioritizes their services and efforts on the matters most important to our 
community.  


FISCAL IMPACT: 
There is minimal cost for staff to prepare a basic legislative platform.  Legislative 
Representation is included in the adopted operating budget [100-410-4120-52115]. 


Submitted by: 
Daniel A. York 
Assistant City Manager  
Director of Public Works/City Engineer 







Agenda Item #4.1 


WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
ADJOURNED REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 


DECEMBER 15, 2021 


CALL TO ORDER THE WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
The Adjourned Regular meeting of December 15, 2021, of the Wildomar Cemetery 
District was conducted in-person at the Wildomar Council Chambers, 23873 
Clinton Keith Road, Suite 106, Wildomar, California, and was called to order by 
Chair Nigg at 8:37 p.m.  


District Roll Call showed the following: 


Members in attendance: Trustees Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Vice Chair Benoit, 
Chair Nigg 


Members absent: None 


Staff in attendance: Assistant General Manager York, District Counsel Jex, Clerk 
of the Board Morales, Planning Director Bassi, Administrative Services Director 
Howell, Project Consultant Riley, Economic Development Director Davidson, 
Cemetery District Manager Torres, Development Manager Stadnik. 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
There were no public comments. 


BOARD COMMUNICATIONS 
There were no board communications. 


APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED 
There were no changes to the agenda as presented. 


4.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 
A MOTION was made by Trustee Morabito seconded by Trustee Moore, to 
approve the Consent Calendar. 


MOTION carried, 5-0, by the following vote: 


YEA: Moore, Morabito, Swanson, Vice Chair Benoit, Chair Nigg 
NAY: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: None 







  
City of Wildomar 


Cemetery Minutes 
December 15, 2021 


 


  
 
 
4.1 Minutes – November 10, 2021 Regular Meeting 


Approved the Minutes as presented. 
 
4.2 Warrant Register 


Approved the following: 
 
1. Warrant Register dated 11-04-2021 in the amount of $7,717.25. 
2. Warrant Register dated 11-11-2021 in the amount of $796.97. 
3. Warrant Register dated 11-18-2021 in the amount of $3,929.00. 
4. Warrant Register dated 11-24-2021 in the amount of $262.01. 
 


4.3 Treasurer’s Report 
Approved the Treasurer’s Report for October 2021. 
 
 


5.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 There were no items scheduled. 
 
 
6.0 GENERAL BUSINESS 


There were no items scheduled. 
 
 


GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
Assistant General Manager York presented the report. 
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 There were no future agenda items added. 
 
 
ADJOURN THE WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT MEETING  
There being no further business, Chair Nigg declared the meeting adjourned at 
8:38 p.m. to an adjourned regular meeting on December 15, 2021.  
 
Submitted by:    Approved by: 
 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
Janet Morales, CMC   Ben J. Benoit 
Clerk of the Board    Chair 







 WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
Agenda Item #4.2 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date:  January 12, 2022 


______________________________________________________________________ 


TO:  Chairperson and Members of the Board of Trustees 


FROM: Robert Howell, Administrative Services Director 


SUBJECT: Warrant Register 


STAFF REPORT 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the following: 


1. Warrant Register dated 12-09-2021 in the amount of $1,315.61.
2. Warrant Register dated 12-16-2021 in the amount of $660.91.
3. Warrant Register dated 12-22-2021 in the amount of $1,109.44.


DISCUSSION: 
The Wildomar Cemetery District requires that the Trustees audit payments of demands 
and direct the General Manager to issue checks. The Warrant Registers are submitted 
for approval.  


FISCAL IMPACT: 
These Warrant Registers will have a budgetary impact in the amount and fiscal year noted 
in the recommendation section of this report. These costs are included in the Fiscal Year 
2021/22 Budget. 


Submitted by: Approved by: 
Robert Howell Gary Nordquist 
Administrative Services Director General Manager 


ATTACHMENTS: 
Voucher List 12/09/2021 
Voucher List 12/16/2021 
Voucher List 12/22/2021 







12/09/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


12:43:51PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214474 12/9/2021 000088  ACE HARDWARE 306265/3 CEMETERY DEPT SUPPLIES  40.64


Total :  40.64


 214475 12/9/2021 000367  CINTAS CORPORATION 4102756014 STAFF UNIFORM & TOWEL MAINTENANCE  80.98


 80.98STAFF UNIFORM & TOWEL MAINTENANCE4103279973


Total :  161.96


 214476 12/9/2021 000012  ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL, WATER DISTRICT11401134 10/17/21-11/16/21 CEMETERY WATER 


SERVICE


 557.74


Total :  557.74


 214477 12/9/2021 000941  FRONTIER 111921 11/19/21-12/18/21 CEMETERY 


VOICE/INTERNE


 65.98


Total :  65.98


 214478 12/9/2021 000186  RIGHTWAY 294843 11/22/21-12/19/21 CEMETERY RESTROOM 


MAIN


 411.25


Total :  411.25


 214479 12/9/2021 000094  STAUFFERS LAWN EQUIPMENT 271388 CEMETERY MAINTENANCE/REPAIR  78.04


Total :  78.04


Bank total :  1,315.61 6 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 1,315.61Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 6







12/16/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


12:39:33PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214508 12/16/2021 001730  ALEMAN, OLGA 112421 SELLING BACK PLOT - MOVING OUT OF 


CEMETE


 600.00


Total :  600.00


 214509 12/16/2021 000790  SPARKLETTS 120421 CEMETERY DRINKING WATER THROUGH 


12/04/21


 60.91


Total :  60.91


Bank total :  660.91 2 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 660.91Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 2







12/22/2021


Voucher List


City of Wildomar


1


 2:09:15PM


Page:


Bank code : wf


Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount


 214538 12/22/2021 000088  ACE HARDWARE 306282/3 CEMETERY DEPARTMENTAL SUPPLIES  21.46


 255.13CEMETERY DEPARTMENTAL SUPPLIES306285/3


Total :  276.59


 214539 12/22/2021 000367  CINTAS CORPORATION 4103954161 STAFF UNIFORM & TOWEL MAINTENANCE  94.03


 94.03STAFF UNIFORM & TOWEL MAINTENANCE4104634360


Total :  188.06


 214540 12/22/2021 000011  CR&R INC. 342241 DEC 2021 WASTE SERVICES - 3YD 


COMMERCIAL


 584.79


Total :  584.79


 214541 12/22/2021 000904  EMERGENCY RESPONSE SYSTEMS INC R61192 01/01/22-03/31/22 CEMETERY ALARM 


MONITOR


 60.00


Total :  60.00


Bank total :  1,109.44 4 Vouchers for bank code : wf


 1,109.44Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 4







WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT 
Agenda Item #4.3 


CONSENT CALENDAR 
Meeting Date:  January 12, 2022 


______________________________________________________________________ 


TO:  Chairperson and Members of the Board of Trustees 


FROM: Robert Howell, City Treasurer 


SUBJECT: Treasurer’s Report  


STAFF REPORT 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the Treasurer’s Report for 
November 2021. 


DISCUSSION: 
Attached is the Treasurer’s Report for Cash and Investments for the month of November 
2021.   


FISCAL IMPACT: 
None.   


Submitted by: Approved by: 
Robert Howell Gary Nordquist 
City Treasurer General Manager 


ATTACHMENTS: 
Treasurer’s Report 







PERCENT
OF DAYS STATED


BOOK VALUE FACE VALUE MARKET VALUE PORTFOLIO TO MAT. RATE


$ 266,892.46 $ 266,892.46 $ 266,892.46 100.00% 0 Variable


$ 266,892.46 $ 266,892.46 $ 266,892.46 100.00%


+ WITHDRAWALS/
BEGINNING DEPOSITS/ SALES/ ENDING STATED
BALANCE PURCHASES MATURITIES BALANCE RATE


$ 267,298.21 $ -                         $ (405.75) $ 266,892.46 Variable


$ 267,298.21 $ -                         $ (405.75) $ 266,892.46


$ 266,892.46              TOTAL INVESTMENT


Administrative Services Director


In compliance with the California Code Section 53646, as City Treasurer for the Wildomar Cemetery District, I hereby certify that sufficient 
investment liquidity and anticipated revenues are available to meet the District's expenditure requirements for the next six months.


I also certify that this report reflects all Government Agency pooled investments and all of the District's Bank Balances.


Robert Howell 1/5/2022
Robert Howell Date


TOTAL


 WILDOMAR CEMETERY DISTRICT
   TREASURER'S REPORT FOR


CASH AND INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO
November 2021


DISTRICT INVESTMENT


EDWARD JONES


ISSUER


ISSUER


EDWARD JONES


TOTAL





		01-12-2022 Agenda

		3.1 Staff Report AB 361

		3.1-1 Wildomar AB 361 Resolution

		0-2.1 SR Redistricting PH 3

		0-2.1-1 Wildomar-Presentation-PH3-1-12-22

		0-2.1-2 Redistricting Public Input through January 5, 2022_Redacted

		1

		2

		3

		4

		5

		6

		7

		8

		9

		10



		1.2 11-10-2021 Minutes

		1.3 Warrant Reg December 2021

		Meeting Date: January 12, 2022



		1.3-1 Warrant Reg December 2021 Voucher Listings

		120221 fy 22

		120921 fy 22

		121621 fy 22

		122221 fy 22



		1.4 Treasurers Report November 2021

		1.4-1 Treasurers Report November 2021 Detail

		T November 2021



		1.5 Ord No 209 - 2nd Reading CC Report 1-12-22

		The approval of General Plan Amendment No. 2021-04 (PA 21-0045) is in compliance with requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), in that on December 15, 2021, at a duly noticed public hearing, the City Council adopted the Initi...

		SECTION 2. Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan (MSHCP)

		SECTION 3. Change of Zone Findings

		SECTION 5. Effective Date of the Ordinance.

		SECTION 6  Severability.

		SECTION 7.  City Clerk Action



		1.6 SR - TR36672 Rough Grading Agreement

		1.6-1 Attachments combined

		1.7 Staff Report_Kosmont Hotel Study Agreement_1-12-2021

		1.7-1 Attachments_Kosmont Agreement for Services and Proposal_Hotel Study_1-12-2022

		SECTION 1. TERM OF AGREEMENT.

		SECTION 2. SCOPE OF SERVICES & SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE.

		(a) Scope of Services.  Service Provider agrees to perform the services set forth in Exhibit “A” “Scope of Services” (hereinafter, the “Services”) and made a part of this Agreement by this reference.

		(b) Schedule of Performance.  The Services shall be completed pursuant to the schedule specified in Exhibit “A.”  Should the Services not be completed pursuant to that schedule, the Service Provider shall be deemed to be in Default of this Agreement. ...



		SECTION 3. ADDITIONAL SERVICES.

		SECTION 4. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT.

		(a) Subject to any limitations set forth in this Agreement, City agrees to pay Service Provider the amounts specified in Exhibit “B” “Compensation” and made a part of this Agreement by this reference.  The total compensation, including reimbursement f...

		(b) Each month Service Provider shall furnish to City an original invoice for all work performed and expenses incurred during the preceding month.  The invoice shall detail charges by the following categories: labor (by sub-category), travel, material...

		(c) Except as to any charges for work performed or expenses incurred by Service Provider which are disputed by City, City will use its best efforts to cause Service Provider to be paid within forty-five (45) days of receipt of Service Provider’s corre...

		(d) Payment to Service Provider for work performed pursuant to this Agreement shall not be deemed to waive any defects in work performed by Service Provider.



		SECTION 5. INSPECTION AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE.

		SECTION 6. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.

		SECTION 7. SERVICE PROVIDER'S BOOKS AND RECORDS.

		(a) Service Provider shall maintain any and all documents and records demonstrating or relating to Service Provider’s performance of the Services.  Service Provider shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of account, invoices, vouchers, canceled che...

		(b) Any and all records or documents required to be maintained pursuant to this section shall be made available for inspection, audit and copying, at any time during regular business hours, upon request by City or its designated representative.  Copie...

		(c) Where City has reason to believe that any of the documents or records required to be maintained pursuant to this section may be lost or discarded due to dissolution or termination of Service Provider’s business, City may, by written request, requi...



		SECTION 8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.

		(a) Service Provider is and shall at all times remain a wholly independent contractor and not an officer, employee or agent of City.  Nothing in this Agreement may be construed to be inconsistent with this relationship or status.  Service Provider sha...

		(b) Service Provider shall perform all Services as an independent contractor of City and shall remain at all times as to City a wholly independent contractor with only such obligations as are consistent with that role.  Service provider shall be solel...

		(c) Neither Service Provider, nor any of Service Provider’s officers, employees or agents, shall obtain any privileges or rights to retirement, health care or any other benefits which may otherwise accrue to City’s employees.  Service Provider express...



		SECTION 9. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE.

		SECTION 10. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS; PERMITS AND LICENSES.

		SECTION 11. PREVAILING WAGE LAWS

		SECTION 12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

		SECTION 13. UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS.

		SECTION 14. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.

		(a) Service Provider covenants that neither it, nor any officer or principal of its firm, has or shall acquire any interest, directly or indirectly, which would conflict in any manner with the interests of City or which would in any way hinder Service...

		(b) City understands and acknowledges that Service Provider is, as of the date of execution of this Agreement, independently involved in the performance of non-related services for other governmental agencies and private parties.  Service Provider is ...

		(c) City understands and acknowledges that Service Provider will perform non-related services for other governmental agencies and private Parties following the completion of the Services under this Agreement.  Any such future service shall not be cons...



		SECTION 15. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; RELEASE OF INFORMATION.

		(a) All information gained or work product produced by Service Provider in performance of this Agreement shall be considered confidential, unless such information is in the public domain or already known to Service Provider.  Service Provider shall no...

		(b) Service Provider, its officers, employees, agents or subcontractors, shall not, without prior written authorization from the City Manager or unless requested by the City Attorney of City, voluntarily provide declarations, letters of support, testi...

		(c) If Service Provider, or any officer, employee, agent or subcontractor of Service Provider, provides any information or work product in violation of this Agreement, then City shall have the right to reimbursement and indemnity from Service Provide...



		SECTION 16. INDEMNIFICATION.

		(a) Indemnification for Professional Liability.  Where the law establishes a professional standard of care for Service Provider’s services, to the fullest extent permitted by law, Service Provider shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless Cit...

		(b) Indemnification for Other than Professional Liability.  Other than in the performance of professional services and to the full extent permitted by law, Service Provider shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless City, and any and all of it...

		(c) Indemnification from Sub-Service Providers.  Service Provider agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions identical to those set forth in this section from each and every sub-Service Provider or any other person or entity involv...

		(d) City’s Negligence.  The provisions of this section do not apply to claims occurring as a result of City’s sole negligence. The provisions of this section shall not release City from liability arising from gross negligence or willful acts or omissi...



		SECTION 17. INSURANCE.

		SECTION 18. ASSIGNMENT.

		SECTION 19. CONTINUITY OF PERSONNEL.

		SECTION 20. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT.

		(a) City may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, at any time by giving thirty (30) days written notice of termination to Service Provider.  In the event such notice is given, Service Provider shall cease immediately all work in progress.

		(b) Service Provider may terminate this Agreement for cause at any time upon thirty (30) days written notice of termination to City.

		(c) If either Service Provider or City fail to perform any material obligation under this Agreement, then, in addition to any other remedies, either Service Provider, or City may terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice.

		(d) Upon termination of this Agreement by either Service Provider or City, all property belonging exclusively to City which is in Service Provider’s possession shall be returned to City.  Service Provider shall furnish to City a final invoice for work...



		SECTION 21. DEFAULT.

		SECTION 22. EXCUSABLE DELAYS.

		SECTION 23. COOPERATION BY CITY.

		SECTION 24. NOTICES.

		SECTION 25. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE.

		SECTION 26. ADMINISTRATION AND IMPLEMENTATION.

		This Agreement shall be administered and executed by the City Manager or his or her designated representative.  The City Manager shall have the authority to issue interpretations and to make amendments to this Agreement, including amendments that comm...



		SECTION 27. BINDING EFFECT.

		SECTION 28. AMENDMENT.

		SECTION 29. WAIVER.

		SECTION 30. LAW TO GOVERN; VENUE.

		SECTION 31. ATTORNEYS FEES, COSTS AND EXPENSES.

		SECTION 32. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

		SECTION 33. SEVERABILITY.

		SECTION 34. CONFLICTING TERMS.



		1.8 Staff Report Re City Recovered Organics Procurement Policy 1-12-2022

		1.8-1 City of Wildomar Recovered Organic Waste Product Procurement Policy-January 12 2022

		CITY OF WILDOMAR RECOVERED ORGANIC WASTE PRODUCT PROCUREMENT POLICY

		Section 1.  Purpose

		Section 2.  Definitions

		Section 3.  Recovered Organic Waste Product Procurement

		3.1 Procurement Target

		3.2 Requirements for City Departments

		3.3 Requirements for Direct Service Providers



		Section 4.  Recycled-content Paper Procurement

		4.1 Requirements for City Departments

		4.2 Requirements for Vendors



		Section 5.  Recordkeeping Responsibilities

		Section 6.  Effective Date of Policy





		1.9 SR - TR37476 Improvement Agreements

		1.9-1 Attachments combined

		1. Construction of Improvements.  The Principal agrees to construct and install on the Property, at the Principal’s own cost and expense, the public improvements shown on the improvement plans submitted by Principal and approved by the City as referenced and contained within this Public Improvement Agreement (“Required Improvements”). Prior to commencing any work, Principal shall, at its sole cost and expense, obtain all necessary permits and approvals and give all necessary and incidental notices required for the lawful construction of the Required Improvements and performance of Principal’s obligations under this Agreement.  The Required Improvements shall be constructed in accordance with all approved maps, plans, specifications, standard drawings, and special amendments thereto on file with City, as well as all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations, codes, standards, and other requirements applicable at the time work is actually commenced.  Principal shall complete the construction of the Required Improvements within twelve months of the date of this Agreement.

		a. Standard of Performance.  Principal and its contractors, if any, shall perform all work required to construct the Required Improvements under this Agreement in a skillful and workmanlike manner, and consistent with the standards generally recognized as being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the State of California.  Principal represents and maintains that it or its contractors shall be skilled in the professional calling necessary to perform the work.  Principal warrants that all of its employees and contractors shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the work assigned to them, and that they shall have all licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to perform the work, and that such licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals shall be maintained throughout the term of this Agreement.

		b. Alterations to Improvements.  All work shall be done and improvements made and completed as shown on approved plans and specifications, and any subsequent alterations thereto.  If during the course of construction and installation of the Required Improvements it is determined that the public interest requires alterations in the Required Improvements, Developer shall undertake such design and construction changes as may be reasonably required by City.  Any and all alterations in the plans and specifications and the Required Improvements to be completed may be accomplished without giving prior notice thereof to Developer’s surety for this Agreement.

		c. Fees and Charges.  Principal shall, at its sole cost and expense, pay all fees, charges, and taxes arising out of construction of the Required Improvements, including, but not limited to, all plan check, design review, engineering, inspection, and other service fees, and any impact or connection fees established by City ordinance, resolution, regulation, or policy, or as established by City or as required by other governmental agencies having jurisdiction over the Required Improvements.



		2. Commencement of Work.  The Principal shall notify the City Engineer of the commencement of work on the Required Improvements.

		3. Completion of Improvements.  Upon satisfactory completion of all Required Improvements as determined by the City Engineer or his or her designee (hereafter the “City Engineer”), Principal shall offer to dedicate the Required Improvements to the City, and City agrees to accept that offer of dedication in accordance with its policies and procedures and the terms of this Agreement.

		4. Title to Required Improvements.  The City shall not accept the Required Improvements unless they are constructed in conformity with the approved plans and specifications, approved modifications, if any, the approved final or parcel map, and City Improvement Standards and Specifications, to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.  Until such time as the Required Improvements are accepted by the City, Principal shall retain title and shall be responsible for, and bear the risk of loss to, any of the improvements constructed or installed.  Title to and ownership of the Required Improvements shall vest absolutely in the City upon completion and acceptance in writing of such Required Improvements by City.  The City shall not accept the Required Improvements unless title to the Required Improvements is entirely free from lien.  Prior to acceptance, Principal shall supply the City with appropriate lien releases, at no cost to and in a form acceptable to the City.

		a. Developer’s Notice of Completion.  Upon the acceptance of the Required Improvements by City, Principal shall file with the Recorder’s Office of the County of Riverside a notice of completion for the accepted Required Improvements in accordance with Article 2 of Chapter 4 of Title 2 of Part 6 of Division 4 of the Civil Code, at which time the accepted Required Improvements shall become the sole and exclusive property of City without payment therefor.

		b. City Acceptance of Public Improvements.  Issuance by City of occupancy permits for any buildings or structures located on the Property shall not be construed in any manner to constitute City’s acceptance or approval of any Required Improvements.

		c. Developer’s Obligation to Provide As-Built or Record Drawings.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, City may not accept any Required Improvements unless and until Principal provides one (1) set of “as-built” or record drawings or plans to the City Engineer for all such Required Improvements.  The drawings shall be certified and shall reflect the condition of the Required Improvements as constructed, with all changes incorporated therein.



		5. Extension of Time to Complete Improvements.

		6. Inspection.  Principal shall at all times maintain proper facilities and safe access for inspection of the Required Improvements by City and to the shops wherein any work is in preparation.  Upon completion of the work, the Principal may request a final inspection by the City Engineer or his designee.  If the City Engineer or the designated representative determines that the work has been completed in accordance with this Agreement, then the City Engineer shall certify the completion of the Required Improvements to the City.  No improvements shall be finally accepted unless all aspects of the work have been inspected and determined to have been completed in accordance with the Improvement Plans and City standards.  Principal shall bear all costs of plan check, inspection and certification.

		7. Maintenance of Improvements.  City shall not be responsible or liable for the maintenance or care of the Required Improvements until City formally approves and accepts them in accordance with its policies and procedures.  City shall exercise no control over the Required Improvements until approved and accepted.  Any use by any person of the Required Improvements, or any portion thereof, shall be at the sole and exclusive risk of the Principal at all times prior to City’s acceptance of the Required Improvements.  Principal shall maintain all the Required Improvements in a state of good repair until they are completed by Principal and approved and accepted by City, and until the security for the performance of this Agreement is released.  Maintenance shall include, but shall not be limited to, repair of pavement, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, signals, parkways, water mains, and sewers; maintaining all landscaping in a vigorous and thriving condition reasonably acceptable to City; removal of debris from sewers and storm drains; and sweeping, repairing, and maintaining in good and safe condition all streets and street improvements.  It shall be Principal’s responsibility to initiate all maintenance work, but if it shall fail to do so, it shall promptly perform such maintenance work when notified to do so by City.  If Principal fails to properly prosecute its maintenance obligation under this section, City may do all work necessary for such maintenance and the cost thereof shall be the responsibility of Principal and its surety under this Agreement.  City shall not be responsible or liable for any damages or injury of any nature in any way related to or caused by the Required Improvements or their condition prior to acceptance.  Until final acceptance of the Required Improvements, Principal shall give good and adequate warning to the public of each and every dangerous condition existing on the Property, and will take reasonable actions to protect the public from such dangerous conditions.

		8. Superintendence by Principal.  Principal shall require each contractor and subcontractor to have a competent foreman on the job at all times when that contractor or subcontractor, or any employee or agent thereof, is performing work on the Required Improvements.  In addition, Principal shall maintain an office with a telephone and Principal or a person authorized to make decisions and to act for Principal in Principal’s absence shall be available on the job site within three (3) hours of being called at such office by the City during the hours of 9:00 A.M. through 5:00 P.M., Monday through Friday, or any other day or time when work is being performed on the Required Improvements.

		9. Injury to Public Improvements, Public Property or Public Utilities Facilities.  Principal shall replace or repair, or have replaced or repaired, all public improvements, public utility facilities, and surveying or subdivision monuments which are destroyed or damaged in the performance of any work under this Agreement.  Principal shall bear the entire cost of replacement or repairs of any and all public or private utility property damaged or destroyed in the performance of any work done under this Agreement, whether such property is owned by the United States or any agency thereof, or the State of California, or any agency or political subdivision thereof, or by the City or any public or private utility corporation or by any combination of such owners.  Any repair or replacement shall be to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

		10. Warranty.  If, within a period of one year after final acceptance by the City of the Required Improvements, any improvement or part of any improvement furnished and/or installed or constructed, or caused to be installed or constructed by Principal, or any of the work done under this Agreement materially fails to fulfill any of the requirements of this Agreement or the specifications referred to herein, Principal shall without delay and without any cost to City, repair, replace or reconstruct any defective or otherwise unsatisfactory part or parts of the improvements.  If the Principal fails to act promptly or in accordance with this requirement, or if the exigencies of the situation require repairs or replacements to be made before the Principal can be notified, then the City may, at its option, make the necessary repairs or replacements or perform the necessary work, and Principal shall pay to City the actual cost of such repairs plus fifteen percent (15%) within thirty (30) days of the date of billing for such work by City.  As to any Required Improvements which have been repaired, replaced, or reconstructed during the Warranty, Principal and its surety hereby agree to extend the Warranty for an additional one (1) year period following City’s acceptance of the repaired, replaced, or reconstructed Required Improvements.  Nothing herein shall relieve Principal from any other liability it may have under federal, state, or local law to repair, replace, or reconstruct any Required Improvement following expiration of the Warranty or any extension thereof.  Principal’s warranty obligation under this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

		11. Defense, Indemnification and Hold Harmless.  Principal shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless City, its elected officials, officers, employees, and agents from any and all actual or alleged claims, demands, causes of action, liability, loss, damage, or injury, to property or persons, including wrongful death, whether imposed by a court of law or by administrative action of any federal, state, or local governmental body or agency, arising out of or incident to any acts, omissions, negligence, or willful misconduct of Principal, its personnel, employees, agents, or contractors in connection with or arising out of construction or maintenance of the Required Improvements, or performance of this Agreement.  This indemnification includes, without limitation, the payment of all penalties, fines, judgments, awards, decrees, attorneys’ fees, and related costs or expenses, and the reimbursement of City, its elected officials, officers, employees, and/or agents for all legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them.  This indemnification excludes only such portion of any claim, demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, penalty, fine, or injury, to property or persons, including wrongful death, which is caused solely and exclusively by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of City as determined by a court or administrative body of competent jurisdiction.  Principal’s obligation to indemnify City shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement, and shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by City, its elected officials, officers, employees, or agents.

		12. Security.

		a. Required Security.  Concurrently with the execution of this Agreement, the Principal shall furnish the City with:

		(1) Faithful Performance Security.  Principal shall provide faithful performance security to secure faithful performance of this Agreement (“faithful performance” security).  This security shall be in the amount of one hundred percent (100%) of the total estimated cost of the Required Improvements, as determined by the City Engineer, which total cost is in the amount of  $1,928,500.00 (One Million Nine Hundred Twenty Eight Thousand Five Hundred and No/100 Dollars).

		(2) Payment Security.  Principal shall also provide payment security to secure payment to the contractors, subcontractors, laborers, material men, and other persons furnishing labor, materials, or equipment for the work (“payment security”).  This security shall be in the amount of fifty percent (50%) of the total estimated cost of the Required Improvements, as determined by the City Engineer, which total cost is in the amount of $964,250.00 (Nine Hundred Sixty-Four Thousand Two Hundred Fifty and No/100 Dollars), and shall secure the obligations set forth in Title 1 (commencing with Section 8000) through Title 3 (commencing with Section 9000) of Part 6 of Division 4 of the Civil Code of the State of California.

		(3) Guarantee and Warranty Security.  Principal shall also file with this Agreement a “guarantee and warranty security” in the amount of ten percent (10%) of the total estimated cost of the Required Improvements, as determined by the City Engineer, which total cost is in the amount of $192,850.00 (One Hundred Ninety-Two Thousand Eight Hundred Fifty and No/Dollars) to guarantee and warrant the Required Improvements for a period of one year following their completion and acceptance against any defective work or labor done, or defective materials furnished.

		(4) Monument Security.  Principal shall also file with this Agreement a “monument security” in the amount of one hundred percent (100%) of the total estimated cost of the installation of survey monuments, as determined by the City Engineer, which total cost is in the amount of  Not Applicable, to guarantee and secure the placement of such monuments.



		b. Additional Requirements.

		(1) Any bonds submitted as security pursuant to this section shall be furnished by companies who are authorized and licensed by the Insurance Commissioner of the State of California as “admitted surety insurers,” to act as surety upon bonds and undertakings.  The company shall maintain in this State at least one office for the conduct of its business.  Bonds must be approved by the City.  The premiums for said bonds shall be paid by Principal.

		(2) The bonds shall be furnished on the forms enclosed following this Agreement and shall be satisfactory to the City.

		(3) The surety (or sureties) shall furnish reports as to the financial conditions from time to time as requested by the City.

		(4) Alternative forms of security will be allowed upon approval of the City Engineer and shall be approved as to form by the City Attorney.  All required securities shall be in a form approved by the City Attorney.

		(5) No change, alteration, or addition to the terms of this Agreement or the plans and specifications incorporated herein shall in any manner affect the obligation of the sureties.

		(6) The securities shall be irrevocable, shall not be limited as to time (except as to the one-year guarantee and warranty period) and shall provide that they may be released, in whole or part, only upon the written approval of the City Engineer and as provided in this Agreement.  All securities provided pursuant to this Agreement shall expressly obligate the surety for any extension of time authorized by the City for Principal’s completion of the Required Improvements, whether or not the surety is given notice of such an extension by the City.

		(7) The Attorney-in-Fact (resident agent) who executes the securities on behalf of the surety company must attach a copy of his/her Power of Attorney as evidence of his authority.  A notary shall acknowledge the power as of the date of the execution of the surety bond that it covers.



		c. Principal’s Liability.  While no action of Principal shall be required in order for City to realize on its security under any security instrument, Principal agrees to cooperate with City to facilitate City’s realization under any security instrument, and to take no action to prevent City from such realization under any Security instrument.  Notwithstanding the giving of any security instrument or the subsequent expiration of any security instrument or any failure by any surety or financial institution to perform its obligations with respect thereto, Principal shall be personally liable for performance under this Agreement and for payment of the cost of the labor and materials for the improvements required to be constructed or installed hereby and shall, within ten (10) days after written demand therefor, deliver to City such substitute security as City shall require satisfying the requirements in this Section 12.

		d. Release of Security.

		(1) Guarantee and Warranty Security.  Any unused portion of the guarantee and warranty security may be released one year after acceptance of the Required Improvements by the City.  The amount to be released shall first be reduced by the amount deemed necessary by the City to correct any defects in the Required Improvements that are known or believed by the City to exist at the end of the guarantee and warranty period. Any unreleased portion of the guarantee and warranty security shall remain in full force and effect unless and until the City notifies Principal in writing that the necessary repairs have been made to the satisfaction of the City Engineer and that the warranty period has been successfully completed.

		(2) Payment Security.  The payment security may be released thirty-five (35) days after passage of the time within which claims of lien are required to be recorded pursuant to Article 2 of Chapter 4 of Title 2 of Part 6 of Division 4 of the Civil Code (commencing with Section 8410), but in no event shall such security be released prior to one hundred and twenty (120) days after acceptance of the Required Improvements by the City.  The amount to be released shall first be reduced by the total of all claims on which an action has been filed and notice thereof given in writing to the City.  City expressly may require the surety not to release the amount of security deemed necessary by City to assure payment of reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable attorney’s fees.

		(3) Faithful Performance Security.  The faithful performance security may be released upon acceptance of the Required Improvements by the City.

		(4) Monument Security.  The monument security may be released by written authorization of the City Engineer after all required monuments are accepted by the City Engineer, and City has received written acknowledgment of payment in full from the engineer or surveyor who set the monuments.





		13. Insurance.

		a. Types; Amounts.  Developer shall procure and maintain, and shall require its contractors to procure and maintain, during construction of any Public Improvement pursuant to this Agreement, insurance of the types and in the amounts described below.  If any of the Required Insurance contains a general aggregate limit, such insurance shall apply separately to this Agreement or be no less than two times the specified occurrence limit.

		(1) General Liability.  Developer and its contractors shall procure and maintain Commercial General Liability Insurance no less broad than Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CG 00 01 or equivalent form, with a combined single limit of not less than $3,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage. The General Aggregate shall be twice the occurrence limit or shall apply separately to each project. If Developer maintains higher limits than the specified minimum limits, City requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by Developer. The General Liability policy shall not contain a Contractors' Warranty or other similar language which eliminates or restricts insurance because of a subcontractor's failure to carry specific insurance or to supply evidence of such insurance

		(2) Business Automobile Liability.  Developer and its contractors shall procure and maintain business automobile liability insurance, or equivalent form, with a combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence.  Such insurance shall include coverage for the ownership, operation, maintenance, use, loading, or unloading of any vehicle owned, hired, and non owned by the insured or for which the insured is responsible.

		(3) Workers’ Compensation.  Developer and its contractors shall procure and maintain workers’ compensation insurance with limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of California and  Employers Liability with limits of $1,000,000 per Accident; $1,000,000 Disease per employee; $1,000,000 Disease per policy at all times during which insured retains employees.

		(4) Professional Liability.  For any consultant or other professional who will engineer or design the Public Improvements, liability insurance for errors and omissions with limits not less than $1,000,000 per claim. Such insurance shall be endorsed to include contractual liability.  Coverage applicable to the work performed under this agreement shall be continued for five (5) years after completion of the work . Such continuation coverage may be provided by one of the following: (1) renewal of the existing policy; (2) an extended reporting period endorsement; or (3) replacement insurance with a retroactive date no later than the commencement of the work under this agreement.

		(5) Pollution Liability. Minimum Limits: $1,000,000 per Pollution Incident; $1,000,000 Aggregate; Coverage shall apply to pollution incidents at or from any location at which Developer and its contractors are performing work under this agreement. Any deductible or self-insured retention shall be shown on the Certificate of Insurance.  If the deductible or self-insured retention exceeds $25,000 it shall be approved in advance by the City.  Developer and its contractors are responsible for any deductible or self-insured retention and shall fund it upon the City’s written request, regardless of whether Developer and its contractors have a claim against the insurance or are named as a party in any action involving the City. The City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be endorsed as an additional insured for liability arising out of ongoing and completed operations by or on behalf of the Developer and its contractors.  Additional insured status shall continue for one (1) year after completion of the work. The insurance provided to the additional insureds shall apply on a primary and non-contributory basis with respect to any insurance or self-insurance program maintained by them. If the insurance is on a Claims-Made basis, the retroactive date shall be no later than the commencement of work. The insurance shall be continued for one (1) year after completion of the work.  If the insurance is on a Claims-Made basis, the continuation coverage may be provided by: (a) renewal of the existing policy; (b) an extended reporting period endorsement; or (c) replacement insurance with a retroactive date no later than the commencement of the work.



		b. Deductibles.  Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by City.  At the option of City, either: (a) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers; or (b) Developer and its contractors shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to City guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation costs, claims, and administrative and defense expenses.

		c. Additional Insured; Separation of Insureds.  The Required Insurance (except Workers’ Compensation and Professional Liability) shall name City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers as additional insureds with respect to work performed by or on behalf of Developer or its contractors, including materials, parts, or equipment furnished in connection therewith City shall be endorsed as an additional insured for liability arising out of ongoing and completed operations by or on behalf of the contractor. City shall continue to be an additional insured for completed operations for (1) year after completion of the work.   The policy shall cover inter-insured suits and include a “Separation of Insureds” or “severability” clause which treats each insured separately and shall contain no special limitations on the scope of its protection to City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

		d. Primary Insurance; Waiver of Subrogation.  The General Liability Insurance provided to the additional insured shall be primary to, and non contributory with, any insurance or self insurance program maintained by the City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.  All policies for the Required Insurance shall provide that the insurance company waives all right of recovery by way of subrogation against City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers.

		e. Certificates; Verification.  Developer and its contractors shall furnish City with original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage for the Required Insurance.  The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.  All certificates and endorsements must be received and approved by City before work pursuant to this Agreement can begin.  City reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any time.

		f. Term; Cancellation Notice.  Developer and its contractors shall maintain the Required Insurance for the term of this Agreement and shall replace any certificate, policy, or endorse�ment which will expire prior to that date. Developer shall provide immediate written notice if (1) any of the required insurance policies is terminated; (2) the limits of any of the required polices are reduced; (3) or the deductible or self insured retention is increased.  In the event of any cancellation or reduction in coverage or limits of any insurance, Developer shall forthwith obtain and submit proof of substitute insurance.  Should Developer fail to immediately procure other insurance, as specified, to substitute for any canceled policy, the City may procure such insurance at Developer’s sole cost and expense.

		g. Insurer Rating.  Unless approved in writing by City, all Required Insurance shall placed with insurers licensed to do business in the State of California and with a current A.M. Best rating of at least A:VIII.



		14. Principal Not Agent of City.  Neither Principal nor any of Principal’s agents, contractors, or subcontractors are or shall be considered to be agents of the City in connection with the performance of Principal’s obligations under this Agreement.

		15. Default; Notice; Remedies.

		a. Notice.  If Principal neglects, refuses, or fails to fulfill or timely complete any obligation, term, or condition of this Agreement, or if City determines there is a violation of any federal, state, or local law, ordinance, regulation, code, standard, or other requirement, City may at any time thereafter declare Principal to be in default or violation of this Agreement and make written demand upon Principal or its surety, or both, to immediately remedy the default or violation.  Principal shall commence the work required to remedy the default or violation within ten (10) days of the written demand from the City.  If the default or violation constitutes an immediate threat to the public health, safety, or welfare, City may provide the demand verbally, and Principal shall commence the required work within twenty-four (24) hours thereof.  Immediately upon City’s issuance of the demand to remedy the default, Principal and its surety shall be liable to City for all costs of construction and installation of the Required Improvements and all other administrative costs expenses as provided for in Section 9.0 of this Agreement.

		b. Failure to Remedy; City Action.  If the work required to remedy the noticed default or violation is not diligently prosecuted to a substantial completion acceptable to City within a reasonable time designated by the City, City may complete all remaining work, arrange for the completion of all remaining work, and/or conduct such remedial activity as in its sole and absolute discretion it believes is required to remedy the default or violation.  All such work or remedial activity shall be at the sole and absolute cost, expense, and liability of Principal and its surety, without the necessity of giving any further notice to Principal or surety.  City’s right to take such actions shall in no way be limited by the fact that Principal or its surety may have constructed any, or none of the required or agreed upon Required Improvements at the time of City’s demand for performance.  In the event City elects to complete or arrange for completion of the remaining work and improvements, City may require all work by Principal or its surety to cease in order to allow adequate coordination by City.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if conditions precedent for reversion to acreage can be met and if the interests of City will not be prejudiced thereby, City may also process a reversion to acreage and thereafter recover from Principal or its surety the full cost and expense incurred.

		c. Other Remedies.  No action by City pursuant this section shall prohibit City from exercising any other right or pursuing any other legal or equitable remedy available under this Agreement or any federal, state, or local law.  City may exercise its rights and remedies independently or cumulatively, and City may pursue inconsistent remedies.  City may institute an action for damages, injunctive relief, or specific performance.



		16. Notices.  All notices required under this Agreement shall be in writing, and delivered in person or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid.

		17. Authority to Execute.  Each of the signatories hereto represents and warrants that he or she is competent and authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of the Party for whom he or she purports to sign. Each Party hereto agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the other Parties hereto against all claims, suits, actions, and demands, including necessary expenses of investigation and reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, arising out of claims that its signatory was not competent or so authorized to execute this Agreement.

		18. Attorney’s Fees. If any arbitration, lawsuit, or other legal action or proceeding is brought by one Party against the other Party in connection with this Agreement, the prevailing party, whether by final judgment or arbitration award, shall be entitled to and recover from the other party all attorney’s fees and costs.  Any judgment, order, or award entered in such legal action or proceeding shall contain a specific provision providing for the recovery of attorney’s fees and costs.

		19. Assignment.  Principal shall not assign, hypothecate, or transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein without prior written consent of City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and any assignee, hypothecatee, or transferee shall acquire no right or interest by reason of such attempted assignment, hypothecation, or transfer.  Unless specifically stated to the contrary in City’s written consent, any assignment, hypothecation, or transfer shall not release or discharge Developer from any duty or responsibility under this Agreement.

		20. Compliance with Laws.  Principal, its agents, employees, contractors, and subcontractors shall comply with all federal, state and local laws in the performance of the work required by this Agreement including, but not limited to, obtaining all applicable permits and licenses.

		21. Waiver.  City’s failure to insist upon strict compliance with any provision of this Agreement or to exercise any right or privilege provided herein, or City’s waiver of any breach of this Agreement, shall not relieve Principal of any of its obligations under this Agreement, whether of the same or similar type.  The foregoing shall be true whether City’s actions are intentional or unintentional.  Principal agrees to waive, as a defense, counterclaim or set off, any and all defects, irregularities or deficiencies in the authorization, execution or performance of the Required Improvements or this Agreement, as well as the laws, rules, regulations, ordinances or resolutions of City with regards to the authorization, execution or performance of the Required Improvements or this Agreement.

		22. No Vesting of Rights.  Entering into this Agreement shall not be construed to vest Principal’s rights with respect to any change in any zoning or building law or ordinance.

		23. Approvals by City; Amendment.  No amendment to or modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and approved by the Principal and by the City. The Parties agree that the requirement for written modifications cannot be waived and that any attempted waiver shall be void. The City’s City Manager may, but is not required to, make minor amendments not affecting substantive terms without further authorization from the City Council. The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute any such amendments as required by this Agreement or that do not otherwise reduce City’s rights under this Agreement.  All other amendments shall be approved by the City Council.

		24. Construction and Interpretation.  It is agreed and acknowledged by Principal that the provisions of this Agreement have been arrived at through negotiation, and that Principal has had a full and fair opportunity to revise the provisions of this Agreement and to have such provisions reviewed by legal counsel.  Therefore, the normal rule of construction that any ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party shall not apply in construing or interpreting this Agreement.

		25. Successors and Assigns -- Covenant Running With the Land.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, the successors and assigns of the respective parties.  The Agreement shall be recorded in the Office of the Recorder of Riverside County and shall constitute a covenant running with the land and an equitable servitude upon the subject property.

		26. Actions.  Any action by any party to this Agreement, or any action concerning a security furnished pursuant thereto, shall be brought in the appropriate court of competent jurisdiction within the County of Riverside, State of California, notwithstanding any other provision of law which may provide that such action may be brought in some other location.  The law governing this Agreement is the law of the State of California.

		27. Integration.  This Agreement is an integrated agreement.  It supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral.

		28. Construction; References; Captions.  It being agreed the Parties or their agents have participated in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement shall be construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any Party.  Any term referencing time, days, or period for performance shall be deemed calendar days and not work days.  All references to Principal include all personnel, employees, agents, and subcontractors of Principal, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  All references to City include its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  The captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope, content, or intent of this Agreement.

		29. Severability.  If any provision in this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall continue in full force without being impaired.

		30. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterpart originals, which taken together, shall constitute one and the same instrument.

		31. Effective Date of Agreement.  This Agreement shall not become effective until the date it has been formally approved by the City and executed by the appropriate authorities of City and Principal.

		32. Relationship Between The Parties.  The Parties hereby mutually agree that neither this Agreement, nor any other related entitlement, permit, nor approval issued by City for the Property shall operate to create the relationship of partnership, joint venture, or agency between City and Principal.  Principal’s contractors and subcontractors are exclusively and solely under the control and dominion of Principal.  Nothing herein shall be deemed to make Principal or its contractors an agent or contractor of City.

		IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as follows:



		1.10 SR - Villa Sienna Public Improvement Agreements

		1.10-1 Attachments combined

		2.2 - Zone Change 2021-01-CC Rept-Final 1-12-22

		BACKGROUND:



		2.2 A - H Attachments Combined 1-12-22

		Attachment A-CEQA Council Resolution-Ex1-EIR Addendum

		CEQA FINDINGS.

		SECTION 2. CITY COUNCIL ACTION.

		Attach A-Ex 1 - CEQA Addendum to GP EIR Doc.pdf

		1. Addendum to the Adopted General Plan EIR

		1.1 Background

		1.2 Purpose of an EIR Addendum

		1.3 Project Description

		1.4 General Plan EIR



		2. CEQA Analysis

		2.1 Environmental Analysis

		2.2 Findings







		Attachment B-Change of Zone Ordinance-Ex1-List of Rezone Sites

		Attachment C - General Plan Land Use Map-Parcels with Inconsistent Zoning

		Attachment D - Zoning Map-Parcels with Inconsistent Zoning

		Attachment E - Zoning Consistency Map-Proposed Zone Change Parcels

		Attachment F - Zoning Consistency Property Owner Notification Letter

		Attachment G - SB 166 No Net Loss Zone Changes Map

		Attachment H - Existing and Proposed Zoning - Unit Capacity Table



		2.3 ZOA 2021-04 - CC Report-Final 1-12-22

		2.4 ZOA 2021-05 - CC Report-Final 1-12-21

		3.2 COVID-19 Update

		3.3 SR Legislative Platform

		4.1 Cem Minutes 12-15-2021

		4.2 Warrant Reg CEM December 2021

		4.2-1 Warrant Reg CEM December 2021 Voucher Listings

		120921 cem fy 22

		121621 cem fy 22

		12221 fy cemetery district fy 22



		4.3 Treasurers Report CEM November 2021

		4.3-1 Treasurers Report CEM November 2021 Detail

		T NOV 2021










